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Our company is a statewidic netwosk

of nursing higmas and assisted fiving
facifities. Fo} 20 years, we were with oag
Lank, but aftpr some merger upheaval,
we found oulsalves without a refation-
ship manage. Thankiully, Superior Bank
quickly stapded in to provide credil,
ceposiiory akd freasury management ser-
vices. More mportantly, they provided the
personal attdntion we could no fonger ge:
from a largefpank. |will call and raquest
somathing, lan papers. lor instanca,
ang, since teyre focal, they W bring them
right to my qffice. When we requasied a
foan - a ver} large foan - | cafled George
Hall directly.He called back within live
minwies and simply said, ‘no problem.”
What kind of large bank could do that?
You couitn Qbeat ihat kind of response.
That kind offservice, and because they re
ail just gread foiks, is the reason vwe bank
with Supeng.”
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Cwur Dunnellon, Florida branch
manager Charlene Wiliams said it best,

“You bank with people. Not companies.” That has been our
guiding philosophy since Superior Bank was founded, and it is

as strong as ever today.

While 2007 was a challenging year throughout the banking
industry, Superior steadily grew and expanded the franchise
by holding steadfast to that philosophy. We hand-picked the
best bankers we could find, dedicated people who are totally
customer-focused. In concert with this effort, we selected loca-
ticns that strategically complemented our network by adding
greater convenience in areas where we already had a footprint.
Then, we put all of these right people in all of these right places.

Tte result was a year of exceptional growth. Last year we
opened 12 new branches - all with the goal of creating a bank
that goes back to the basics of service, convenience and friendly
bzinking. As mega-banks shifted their focus to mega-mergers,
we: continued to focus on treating our custormers right. This level
of service — combined with local management and sophisticated
praducts and technology ~ has filled a void in the banking
industry and allowed Superior to stand apart from other banks.
Within this report, some of our customers will give you first-hand
e»periences on how we're doing.

As you'll see, we're building something special; 2 Superior
frainchise with Superior people. And, thanks to them, we're
peised for a iuture of Supericr growth.
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"You canl be successiul in the
consiruction business vathouf a strong,
comfortable relationstip with your bank.
Thanklully, that's the tyie of relaijonship
vig have with Superior, This isp't just
imponiant for the daity running of our
business, it's alsp important for long-
term grovith. Superior has been with us
evary step of the way, and they've been
very instruriiental in hefping us grow. As
a highweay consiruction firm, we need
access to large amounts of capitat annt
Sugericr ahvays accommodates our
nestls. Pius. ihey go everything within
their poveer 1o speed up the procass. This
is vital whern running a business becaiise
response time makes all ive difference.
it's also imporiant that Superior 15 local,
VWiih big barks. you lose the ahility io lalk
to someong who knguwvs your business
ani the area. Superior knows us, and
they care aboit oy sUCCESS.”




AIRMAN'S% )'8:7E

MARCH 24, 2008

Dear Shareholders:

From a rational view, it would be normal o expec: a compary such as Supericr Barcorp to consider its annual
performance to be satisiactory when reviewing the fcliowing surmmary of 2007 accomplishments:

.+ Annual Earnings up 52%:; $7.6 million vs. $5.0 millon

- Assets up 18%: $2.9 billicn vs. $2.4 billion

- Bank branches increase more than 20%: 74 vs, 60 branches

. Stock repurchase program purchased 1.2 million shares

. Acquisition program completed with People's Commuruty Bank, Sarasota. Florida

During 2007, the slowing eccnomy, margin compression and the housing correction came icgether o create

a challenging environmen: as we conlinued 10 execule our long-ierm strategic plan We adjusted our plan to fit
that environment, resulting in continued growih in assets, income, branches and markets. While we believe 2008
may be no less challenging. our strategic plan remains intaci for your beneli. Untoriunately, ithe stock marxet has
not recognized our progress, bul rather has been negatively influenced by the sub-prime morigage debacie, the
housing slowdown and fear of an eCoNomic recession.

Your managerment is concentrating iis efforts on managing through this cradit cycle, which is much jike the one
financial insstutions faced in 1690 and 1991. In addition, gathering core deposis through an aggressive de novo
branch expansicn plan, acquiring customers from merged banks, repurchasing stack ai artificially cepressed
marke: values and preparing or ihe post-correction recovery pe-iod are our primary areas of focus,

Credit Quality Management

In OLr current envirsnment, investors are betiing on the quality of their respective management ieams, their
experiences from past credit cycles and their abilities 10 manage througn ihe curred cycle. Superior is fortunate
10 have a: least & cozen senior barkers who nave managed through previous credit cycles. As with the early
phase of any credit cycle, non-performing loans, past due loans and charged-oll loans will increase. The Jlevel of
deteriaration is dependent on the quality of loan underwnung and risk pricing in place at ihe tme of the loans’
origination several years ago. With the quality of underwriling standards in place ai Superior, we expeci thai the
levei of credi: quality deterioration should be mild.

De Novo Branch Expansion

In iurtherance of Superior's de novo branch sira:egy, 18 of 20 planned new branchas have been opened since
September 2006 in key Alabama and Florida miarkels contributing approximatety $162 million ot core depcosils
as of December 31, 2007. Since incepticn of the de nove branching plan, Superior Nas invesied $25 w0 $30 mil-
lion of capital and incurred non-interest expense associated with the néw branches of 53.0 miilion, representing
an approximate 2% premium on deposits. Two Alabama branches are scheduled 0 cpen during 2008.
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Bank Merger Chaos

As of this annual report, Superior will have becorne the third targest bank head-
quarterec! in Alabama, behind Regions and Caolonial. AmSouth, SouthTrust,
Compass, Alabama National and g@ven the “old Regions” no longer exist as
independent, locally-owned competitors. These mergers have caused and
should centinue to cause many customers of those former institutions to seek
to do thei - banking with a locally-owned bank whose bankers arg known {o the
customer and are able to make prompt decisions without having to call North
Carolina, Canada or Spain. Superior has been and will continue to be a viable
option for those customers.

Share Repurchase

Superior 13ancorp repurchased 182,000 shares of cornmon stock in the fourth
Guarter o' 2007 pursuant to its second repurchase program and repurchased a
total of ap proximatety 1.2 milion shares for the year ended December 31, 2007.
The Board of Directors authorized, beginning on or after November 2, 2007, the
second repurchase program to purchase up to one million shares of Superior
Bancorp's outstanding common stock. The Board continues to consider an
investmernt in the Corporation’s common stock to be an excellent use of capital
for the foreseeable future. Superior Bancorp does not intend to repurchase any
shares from its management team or other insiders. As of December 31, 2007,
Superior I3ancorp had approximatety 40.1 million shares of its common stock
outstanding.

Board Leadership

Superior's; Board is representative of our geographic franchise and our share-
holder compaositian, as well as diverse business leadership experiences. Within
that conte:xt, four new directors were added to the Board during 2007 John

C. Meiz, Peter L. Lowe, Charles W. Roberts and Mark A. Lee. It should also be
noted that K. Eari Durden Is retiring as an active director. His vision, leadership
and contributions have been instrumental in the creation of Superior Bancorp as
we know It today.

Looking IForward

The entire: banking industry is operating in an adverse environment relative to
maximizing short-term performance. Factors such as the challenging credit
cycle, housing softness, gloomy media coverage, weakened consumer
canfidenc e and dramatic Federal Reserve interesl rate reductions provide a stiff
headwinc going into 2008. At Superior, we continue to adapt to these factors
while remaining focused on taking the right actions that should ultimately result in
enhance¢l sharehoider value.

We appreciate your continued support during these challenging times.

Sincerely yours,

( By Bt

A Different Type of Bank

Superior is a community bank in philasaphy,
but a big bank in services. It is the best of
both worids, and it is the type of bank peapie
are craving. This unigue positioning satisfies
the consumer, and alows us fo attract ihe very
best people fn the indusiry. The fact that this
caliber of personnel has joined us is a testa-
mant to our philosophy; the fact that we have
achieved success is a lestament 10 them.

Superior People. Superior Service.

While many institulions say they're cusiomer-
driven, few can deliver. That's because
exceliant service doesn't just happen: if takes
the right peaple to make it hapnen, Ye go the
exira rmile 1o hire bankers who go the extia
mile. The end resull, however, goes beyond
service. By eslablishing relaiignships, ve also
astablish irust, which uliimately leads lo a
better understanding of our customers’
linancial needs.

All the Pieces in Place.

Calling people our most valuable asset isn't
just a feel-good fing. It's a busingss practice
that works. Superior hias grown inio the farges:

community bank in Alabama. We 've said it
helore, but it's wonth repeating: successit!
banxing is abou! putting alf the right people
in all the right places. That's what we've done
over this past year. Now, with the picces in
DLICE, Ve Can continug 10 grow our customer
basa ant coniinug 10 prosper as a company.




ALABAMA

Current Superior Offices

Planned Superior

Albertville Branches \

Andalusia Coming Soon in 2008

:rab Cheisea ,
thens Madison Hwy 72

Birmmgham

Birmingham Greystone
Blountswile

1st Community Credit

AT A G LAN C E Boaz Corporation Offices
Childersburg
Cleveland Albartville
Cullman Arab
Decatur Athens
Eliirmont Boaz
Falkville Cuiiman
Frisco City gecatur .
Gadsden ort Payne
Gardendale Gadsden
/ Guniersville :arttsel;; ,
@ ./ @ Gurlay D ausn S‘:I e(2)
» %“ Haleywville pe
%‘l i / Harmilton Northport
. ) lﬂtSVl e Hartselle Oneonta
Huntswlle Downlown Pell City
Talladega

Huntswile Hampten Cove
Huntsvile Jones Valley
Madison

Mendianville

Monroeville
Montgomery

Mountain Brook Westem
New Hope

Oneonta

Onacnta WakMart

Opp

Ramnbow City
Rogersville

Samson

Snead

Sylacauga

Trussvitle

Uriontown

warrior

West Blount

Superior Finance
Company Cffices

Attalia
Cullman
Hunisville
Jasper
Moody
Oxford

® Current SUperior Branches: 43
Q Planned Spperior Branches: 2
A 1st Comrr]. bredit Offices: 16

A Superior Rinancial Services Offices: |6




“Having a strong banking rélationship

is 50 important when you're growing a
busingss. Wa're o smali company, heerr in
business 17 years. outfitting John Degre
constnuction equipment for use in spacial
applications. Yet, even thaugh we're
small, Superior Bank mekes us feol fike
we 're the miost imporiant customer they
have. You get the impression with some
banks that the decisions are being rade
not by your banker, but by someone else,
somewhere else. And thal your banker is
simply the messenger. Witk Suparior, cur
banker is ihe decision maker, He knows
us anid knows what we need, Being able
{0 deal diractly with the dacision makey
~ 1ot the messenger — makes a world of
difference. Our motto at GR s 'We buitd
world-class products for world-class
machings.” With Supatior, we no. have a
worli-class bank. ™
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\SRfighing banks isn't a decision to

. gt fightly, but Superior made it

B Wt fooked al oiher banks, bul

' Superdor showed that ihey wanted our

- hsiness, and  want 1o do businass with

Wyn Dobihs | Decatur Tiarsit | Decat.r, A'ahama | Supener Resatanshp Manager  Sooft Marte

peopla that want 16 do businass with me.
Stiperior was the only one that studied
our business and developed a program
{0 fit our nesds, not their needs or a
siandard model. They were intarested in
how we bough! and sold owr rental car
fieet, and their solutions were lailored to
our specific, local problems. Big banks
simply don't have the flexibility to do

that. Even belora we became a customer,
Scolt Martin introduced me to the bank's
axecutives. Tatk about personal service.
We're not the world's biggest company.
but this act showed that Superier plannad
io et us as if we were. To this day. they
st do.”

<

iannessee | Superor Relat onghp Manager  Dardna Bray

Ken Vitut | £ Swver Powerspons | Fayenavie,

~Thg process of complating a buy/sefl ir
the powersports industry can be comple,
From the beginning, Darlina Bray mage i
clear that the project was as importan!
her and her team at Superior Bank as it
was fo me. From financing the project 1o
proviging the lattars of credit, Darlina wa
available every st2p of the way — even
on wegkends of while on vacaiion. | hav
cealt vih larger banks in the past. bui !
ahvays felf fike I was coing them a favor,
With Darling, [egl e her most imporia
cusiomer. Since my iirst project, | have
atdded another franchise, again with the
same gréai service from Oarfina and her
fpam. Supzarior ofters all of e progucts
necessary in today's markel, plus | get
persondl service, Most comparies preac
ahout this kind of service. but very faw
actuatly deliver. Superior does!”




“As an entreprensur, | need a banker that
will sit down rith ms, Ksten and under-
Stand the nefds of miy eco-tour busiNzss.
That's what Buperor doss. They don’t
lell me my ipas are pipe dreams. They
know what Hwant and then help make it

happen, A o] of it nzs to do vith “lurnstile
manzgemen],’ That's what you gat al by

somehody riew, It's a pain.
Being with Syperior, a sinall, parsonable
bank, has mpde such an imprassion on
me. It’s @ pidasure 10 walk into a branch.
Everyone knpws my namg. They know my
famity. I've gsed only nva banks in my
tife: a farge [national bank; and Superior.
And to be rept candid, unless they
become big.\'m siaying with them.”

Wirsion Spurgeon | Sarasota Bay Exploress | Sarasola. Florda | Supenor Retatonship Manayer. Rick Hal'oran

Ancén 1. Tullo 1 o Lawe | Tarmpa, Flonda | Supenor Relatonstrn Mamnages: Ken Pomeroy

“Qur growing law firm had done business
with a large. national bank for years when
W@ started sharing our business villt
Superior Bank. When we compared them
sig by side, vig werg 5o impressed with
ihe ditference — evarything from customer
sendce o lees ta responsivaness, For
exaimple, Superior Suggesteg we uss a
ramole scan deposit sysiem. \Vhen e
meniioned iis to our otner bank, ihey
saict that they could offer it. too. But that's
aot the same. Supericr maxes tha effort o
look at our Business, figure oul whai we
need and proactively olfer ideas to
laclitate our operation. Another diiference:
with our larmer bank, we weren't working
with execuiives, With Superion, key daci-
sion makers are just a phone call away.
For & young busingss ke ours. we havs
{0 have a bank as our pariner, Supenor s
cefinitely in our corner, hatoing o position
US i 3 SirGigar way S0 we can grove”
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Current Superior Offices /
Altha New Port Richey /
Apalachicola Palr Harbor ® i
Eleverly Hills Panama City L4 d
[#]
EMountstown Port Richey .. o . 0 W
Eiradenion Port 5t. Joe ‘. ﬁ '
Etristol Sarasota 4
Elrooksvilie Spring Hill ® / . / L,
Carrabelle Sun City Center ™ /...1 —
Carroliwood Aston /® Tampa
(Jearwater Courtyard /
Cypress Sun Towers T
Dunnellon Tallahassae Capital Circle ®
tlomosassa Tallahassee Killearn Center
lverness Venice
rMananna Waesley Chapel
Mexico Beach

@ Current Superior Branches: 31

“ 've worked for & number of banks, and it's been a
p'easant change o be able to take more time with

¢ stomers and do that in & nendly environment.,
Superior Bank brings the locus back lo the customer.”

E lie Smith
Branch Manager
lr veraess, Florida




Board of Directors

Senior Management

3t 111'3 City, Hlorida .
ckiD. Gardner

Superjor Bancarp

Bi:miagham, Alabama

!
Thomas E. Jernigan, Jr.
Marathon Corporation
Birmingham, Alabama

Jam}es Mailon Kent, Jr.

Mai'dn Kent tnsurance Agency

Birmingham, Alabama

Mark A. Lee
Fores Hill Capiial, LLC
Little Rock, Arkansas

James M. Link

Lisutenani General, LS. Army
(redired)

Huntsville, Alzbama

Stan Baitey
Chief Executive Officer

Marvin Scott
President

Rick Gardner
Chief Operating Qificer

Mark Tarnakow
Chief Financial Oflicer

Duane Bickings
Chief Credil Officer

Peler L. Lowe

G.W. Jones & Sons Real Estate
{nvestmant Company, Inc.

Huritsville, Alabarz

John C. Metz
Melz & Associates
Calfas, Pernsylvania

D. Dewey Mitchell
Capstone Tropical Holdings, Inc.
Tampa, Flosida

Barry Morton
Ronins & Worto
Birmingham, Alabama

Robert R. Parrish, Jr.
Pariish Groug. Inc.
Tallahassee, Florida

Charles W. Roberts, I
C.W. Roberts Contraciing, Ing.
Taltahassee, Florida

C. Marvin Scott
Superiar Bancorp
Birmingham, Afabama

James €. White, Sr.
Banhs, Finley, White & Co.
Birmingham. Alabzma

Bill Caughran
General Counset & Secrelary

Fox deFuniak
Birmirgham Markel Presidani

George Hall
Floriga “resident

David Hiden
Chief Information Oificer
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PART I

Item 1. Business.
General

Superior Bancorp is a Delaware-chartered thrift holding company headquartered in Birmingham, Alabama.
We offer a broad range of banking and related services in 72 locations in Alabama and Flprida through Superior

Bank, our principal subsidiary. Superior Bank’s consumer finance subsidiaries aperate an g
P P ry. supe pe

dditional 22 consumer

finance offices in North Alabama. We had assets of approximately $2.885 billion, |
$2.017 billion, deposits of approximately $2.201 billion and stockholders’ equity of app
at December 31, 2007. Our principal executive offices are located at 17 North 20th Street,

ans of approximately
imately $350 million
irmingham, Alabama

35203, and our telephone number is (205) 327-1400.

We were founded in 1997 and completed our initial public offering in December 1998. Beginning in the fall of
1998, we grew through the acquisition of various financial institutions in Alabama and Florida.

In January 2005, we began the transition from our founding management team to a n¢w senior management
team composed of veteran bankers with a strong track record and a history of enhancing sto¢kholder value. During
the remainder of 2005, we completed that management transition. bn addition, in November R005 we converted our
principal subsidiary, Superior Bank, from an Alabama state-chartered bank to a federally chartered thrift regulated
by the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS"). We believe that this conversion allows us greater flexibility in our
operations, as well as allowing Superior Bank 10 operate under a single regulatory systefn rather than the duat
federal/state regulatory system that had been applicable.

During 2006 and 2007, we expanded our franchise with three strategic acquisitions. Op August 31, 2006, we
entered the Tampa, Florida market when we acquired Kensington Bankshares, Inc. (JKensinglon™) and its
subsidiary, First Kensington Bank. Gn November 7, 2006, we increased our market presefice in North Alabama
by acquiring Community Bancshares, Inc (“*Community™) and its, subsidiary, Community Bank. On July 27, 2007,
we acquired People’s Community Bancshares, Inc. (“People’s”) and its subsidiary, People’s Community Bank of

the West Coast, adding three branches in Sarasota and Manatee Counties in Florida to our franchise.

Strategy

Operartions. We focus our services on small- to medium-sized businesses, as wel

individuals, emphasizing our local decision-making, effective response time and personalize

we conduct our business on a decentralized basis with respect to deposit gathering andl
utilizing local knowledge and authority to make these decisions. We supplement this dcccl'
approach with centralized loan administration, policy oversight, credit review, audit, lega
agement, data processing, human resources and risk management systems, We impIemF
administrative and operational policies at each of our locations while retaining local man
directors to capitalize on their knowledge of the local community.

as professionals and
d service. As a result,
most credit decisions,
ntralized management
11, asset/liability man-
nt these standardized

Iagemem and advisory

Products and Services. Superior Bank provides a wide range of retail and smail busir
noninterest-bearing and interest-bearing checking, savings and money market accounts
withdrawal (“NOW’") accounts, certificates of deposit and individual retirement accounts
Bank offers an extensive array of consumer, small business, residential real estate and <o
products. Other financial services include annuities, autornated teller machines, debit cards
disability insurance, safety deposit boxes, Internet banking, bill payment and telephone b:
attracts primary hanking relationships through the customer-oriented service environmer
Bank’s personnel combined with competitive financial products.

Superior Bank also owns two consumer finance companies, Superior Financial Serwc

pss services, including
. negotiable order of
In addition, Superior
ercial real estate Joan
credit-related life and
king. Superior Bank
created by Superior

ks, LL.C and 1™ Com-

munity Credit Corporation and Superior Financial Management, Inc. which provides invéistment and insurance

|
products. The finance companies generally provide smaller loans to a market segment tradit

onally not pursued by

Superior Bank. These loans typically involve greater risk and generate higher yields than sl%.ndnrd bank loans. We
believe that, by conducting this business, we reach a customer base not served by our banking operations.

2




Market Areas.’

Superior Bancorp is headquartered in Birmingham, Alabama. Our primary markets are
located in northern and central Alabama and in the panhandle and west coast of Florida. '

Superior Bank has branches in:

Alabama(41) Floride(31)
Albertville Andalusia Altha Apalachicola
Athens Birmingham(2) Beverly Hills Blountstown
Blountsville Boaz Bradenton _Bristol
Childersburg Cleveland Brooksville Carrabelle
Cullman Decatur Clearwater Dunnellclm
Elkmont Falkville Homosassa Invemes«'s
Frisco City Gadsden Marianna Mexico IBcach
Gardendale Guntersville New Port Richey Palm Halrbor
Gurley Haleyville Panama City Beach  Port Richey
Hamilton Hartselle Port St. Joe Sarasota
Huntsville(3) Madison Spring Hill Sun Cityj Center(4)
Mendianville Monroeville Tallahassee(2) Tampa(2)
Mountain Brook New Hope Venice Wesley (IZhapel
Oneonta(2) Opp
Rainbow City Rogersville
Samson Snead
Sylacauga Trussville
Uniontown Warrior(2)

In addition to our branches, we operate a loan production office in Montgomery, Alabama Our finance
company subsidiaries have 22 offices in Albertville, Arab, Attalla, Athens, Boaz, Culiman(2), ,Decatur. Fort Payne,
Gadsden, Hartselle, Huntsville(3), Jasper (2), Moody, Northport, Oneonta, Oxford, Pell City and Talladega,
#.labama.

Growth, Our future growth depends primarily on the expansion of the business of our plr'ima.ry wholly owned
subsidiary, Superior Bank. That expansion will depend on internal growth and the opening of new branch offices in
new and existing markets. Superior Bank may also continue to engage in the strategic acquisition of other financial
institutions and branches that have relatively high eamings and low-cost deposits or Lhal we believe to have
exceplional growth patential, such as the acquisitions completed in 2006 and 2007, Ou'r ability 10 increase
profitability and to grow internally depends primarily on our ability to attract and retain low-cost core deposits
while continuing to generate high-yielding, quality loans. Our ability to grow profitably through the opening or
acquisition of new branches will depend primarily on, among other things, our ability to 1denufy growing markets
and branch locations within such markets that will enable us to attract the necessary deposns to operate such
tranches profitably, and identify lending and investment opportunities within such markets,

We periodically evaluate business combinaticn opportunities and conduct discussions, dt,e diligence activities
and negotiations in connection with those opportunities. As a result, we may pursue b[usiness combination
t:ansactions involving cash, debt or equity securities from time to time. Any future business combination or
series of business combinations that we might undertake may be material to our business, financial condition or
rzsults of operations in terms of assets acquired or liabilities assumed. Any future acquisition is subject to approval
ty the appropriate regulatory agencies. See “Supervision and Regulation.”

Lending Activities

General. 'We offer various lending services, including real estate, consumer and commercnal loans, primarily
13 individuals and businesses and other organizations that are located: in or conduct a substanual portion of their
business in our market areas. Our total loans at December 31, 2007 were $2.017 billion, or 82.2% of total caming
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assets. The interest rates we charge on loans vary with the risk, maturity and amount of the
competitive pressures, money market rates, availability of funds and government regulatio
foreign loans or loans for highly leveraged transactions.

The lending activities of Superior Bank are subject to the written underwriling standarI
procedures established by Superior Bank's Board of Directors and management. Loan orj
from a variety of sources, including referrals, existing customers, walk-in customers
applications are initially processed by loan officers who have approval authority up to de

We use generally recognized loan underwriting criteria, and attempt to minimize crcdi!t
means. In particular, on larger credits, we generally rely on the cash flow of a debtor as
repayment and secondarily on the value of the underlying collateral. In addition, we attemp
terms in order to reduce the risk of a decline in the value of such collateral. As of December 3
78.9% of our loan portfolic consisted of loans that had variable interest rates or maruredi

We address repayment risks by adhering to internal credit policies and procedures lA
customer lending limits, a multi-layered loan approval process that includes senior manage

loan and are subject to

Ims. We do not have any

s and loan origination
ginations are obtained

and advertising. Loan

signated limits.

losses through various
the primary source of

| ene
1 to utilize shorter Joan

1, 2007, approximately
within one year.

hat include officer and
men! of Superior Bank

and Superior Bancorp for larger loans, periodic documentation examination and follow
exceptions to credit policies. The level in our loan approval process at which a loan is appro}
of the borrower’s overall credit relationship with Superior Bank.

Loan Portfolio
The following is a summary of our total loan portfolio as of December 31, 2007 (dq

|up procedures for any

red depends on the size

Mlars in thousands):

Amount Percent
Commercial and industrial . .. ... ... ... . . . i i 3 183013 9.07%
Real estate:

Construction and land development

Residential development — Alabama. ............ ... coivn 192,133 9.52%

—Florida.................. .. 0 0l 195,460 9.68%

—Other ........ovii e 7,929 0.39%

Total residential development. .. ....... .. .o, 395,522 19.60%

Commercial development — Alabama .. ........................ 60,407 2.99%

—Florida ........................... 162,286 3.04%

—Other ...... ... i 12,521 0.62%

Total commercial development ... .......................... 135,214 11.65%

Otherdevelopment . _ . ... ... .. .. .. .. .. e 34,567 1.71%

Total construction and fand development . ... .................. §65,303 32.96%

Single-family MOMEARES . . . .. . oo o v i ittt ia i s 340,277 26.77%

Nonresidential mortgages . . ...... .. . it i 575,146 28.50%

Total real estate portfolio. .. ........ ... .. oot 1,180,726 88.23%

L0 1310 1= G AR 53,317 2.64%

0 11 11 1,235 0.06%

Total J0ans . .. ...t e e e e $2,018,351  100.00%

QOur loan portfolio is our largest eaming assel category totaling $2,017 billion, net of
December 31, 2007. Loans secured by both residential and commercial real estate are a sij

our loan portfolio, constituting $1.781 billion, or 88.2% of total loans, at December 31,
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Single-Family Mortgage Loans. At December 31, 2007, $540.3 mitlion, or 26.8% of our total loan portfolio,
vonsisted of single-family monigage loans. Single-family mortgage loans are loans that are tradmonally secured by
first or second liens on the primary residences of individuals. First liens are cenirally underwritten by our mortgage
depanment with strict adherence to Federal National Mortgage Association (“Fannie Mae'}) and Federal Home
loan Mortgage Corporation (“Freddie Mac™) secondary market specifications, where a'pplicable. to ensure
marketability. Loans outside these guidelines are held in-portfolio but maintain conservative ur':derwriting standards
as well, At December 31, 2007, single-family mortgage loans secured by first liens accountcd for $432 million, or

1% of to1al loans. Home equity products totaled $108 million, or 5% of total loans. Home eqtl.my products are also
centrally underwritten with strict adherence to internal loan policy guidelines to ensure that borrowers have
appropriate credit ratings and capacity lo repay and that adequate collateral or loan-to-value (“LTV") is obtained.

Nonresidential Mortgage Loans. Nonresidential mortgage loans include commercial |and industrial loans
that are secured by real estate. At December 31,2007, $575.2 million, or 28.5% of our total loan portfolio, consisted
of these loans. Our commercial real estate loans primarily provide financing for income-producing properties such
s shopping centers, multi-family complexes and office buildings and for owner-occupied broperties {primarily
light industrial facilities and office buildings). These loans are underwritten with LTV ratios ‘ranging, on average,
Irom 65% to 85% based upon the type of property being financed and the financial sm:ngth‘of the borrower. For
owner-gccupied commercial buildings, we underwrite the financial capability of the owner, wuh an 85% maximum
1TV ratio. For income-producing improved real estate, we underwrite based on the strength of the leases, especially
those of any anchor tenants, with minimum debt service coverage of 1.2:1 and an 85% maxlmum LTV ratio. While
evaluation of collateral is an essential part of the underwriting process for these loans, repaymem ability is
dletermined from analysis of the borrower’s earnings and cash flow. Terms are typically 3 to 5 years and may have
payments through the date of maturity based on a 5- 10 30-year amortization schedule. As of|December 31, 2007,
owner-occupied properties comprised approximately 6%, or $127 million, of total loans of which $38 million were
located in Florida and the remaining amount located primarily in Alabama. Non-owner occ'upied properties are
primarily in the office and retail sectors and totaled approximately $84 million, or 15% of nonresidential morigage
loans, and $41-million, or 7% of nonresidential mortgage loans, respectively at December 31, 2007 Gcographacally,

"% of the office sector and 74% of the retail sector were located in Florida, with the rcmalmng portfolio in
Alabama.

Construction and Land Development Loans. 'We make loans to finance the construction of and improve-
nents to single-family and multi-family housing and commercial structures as well as loans fér land development.
At December 31, 2007, $665.3 million, or 33.0% of our total loan portfolio, consisted of such Ioans Approximately
$631 million, or 95%. of construction and land development loans can be categorized as commercnal where the
borrower is not an individual consumer. Within this pontfolio, approximately $396 million, ori 63%, was related to
residential development and construction. Of the residential construction loans, 49% were localed in Florida. The
largest category in the residential development and construction portfolio is related 1o de\'elopnllcm of single-family
12ts and single-family lots held by experienced, licensed builders for the future construction of single-family homes.
This category represents approximately $158 million, or 40%, of this portfalio. Geographicallyi approximately 57%
of this portfolio was located in Florida with the remainder located in Alabama,

Single-family spec home construction loans represented approximately $53 million, or 14% of the total
residential development and construction loan ponfolio, with over 72% of these loans locatcd in Alabama,
primarily in the Huntsville and Birmingham markets, which have proven to be relatively s!ab!e For single-family
spec home construction loans, management closely monitors the aging of the builders’ spec home inventories to
ensure lurnover and to enable management to look for early signs of weakness within our markets. Spec homes that
are 100% complete and remain in inventory for over nine months are considered aged spec homes. As of
December 31, 2007, approximately $3.8 million (17 homes with a $227,000 average loan balance}, or 7%, fell into
this aged category.

For construction loans related 1o income-producing properties, the underwriting criteria are the same as
cutlined in the preceding section “Nonresidential Mortgage Loans”. Loans for this category accounted for
$235 miilion, or 35% of the total commercial construction and land development loans. Geographically, approx-
imately 699 of this total category was located in Florida, with the remaining loans located primarily in Alabama.

The three largest sectors within this category were retail, hotel/motel and office buildingsI which collectively

5




accounted for approximately $131 million, or 56% or the total commercial construction loans. Individually, the

retail construction loans accounted for the Jargest sector, with approximately $56 millionl

(24%), office building

loans accounted for approximately $43 million (18%), and hotel/motel construction] loans accounted for
approximately $32 million {14%) of the total commercial construction. Approximately 73% of these three sectors

were located in Florida, with the remainder primarily located in Alabama.

For construction and land development loans, we underwrite based on the financial strength and reputation of
the builder, factoring in the general state of the economy and interest rates and the location of the home, with an 85%
maximum loan-to-value ratio. This conservative approach to underwriting is further demapstrated by the overall

|
performance of this category. For construction loans related to income-producing prope|

lies, the underwriting

criteria are the same as outlined in the preceding paragraph.

Commercial and Indusirial Loans. We make loans for commercial purposes in varjous lines of business.
These loans are typically made on terms up to five years at fixed or variable fates and ?re secured by eligible
accounts receivable, inventory or cquipment. We attempt to reduce our credit risk on comm rcial loans by limiting
the loan to value ratio to 80% on loans secured by eligible accounts receivable, 50% on loans secured by inventory
and 75% on loans secured by equipment. Commercial and industnial loans comprised approx ately $183.0 million,
or 9.1% of our loan portfolio, at December 31, 2007. We also, from time to time, make unsecyred commercial loans.

Consumer Loans. QOur consumer porifolio includes installment loans to individuals ip our market areas and
consists primarily of loans to purchase automobiles, recreational vehicles, mobile homesl and consumer goods.
Consumer loans comprised approximately $53.4 million, or 2.6% of our loan portfolio, @ December 31, 2007.
Consumer loans are underwritten based on the borrower’s income, current debt, credit history and collateral. Terms

' . |
generally range from one 1o six years on automobile loans and one 1o three years on other consumer loans.

Credit Review and Procedures

There are credit risks associated with making any loan. These include repayment risks, risks resulting from
uncertainties in the future value of collateral, risks resulting from changes in economic and i i dustry conditions and
risks inherent in dealing with individual borrowers. In particular, longer maturities increase khe risk that economic
conditions will change and adversely affect collectibility.

We have a loan review process designed 1o promote early identification of credit quality)problems. We employ
a risk rating system that assigns to each loan a rating that corresponds to the perceived credit risk. Risk ratings are
subject to independent review by a centralized loan review department, which also perfonm's ongoing, independent
review of the risk management process, inciuding underwriting, documentation and collderal control. Regular
reports are made 10 senior management and the Board of Directors regarding credit quality aslmeasured by assigned
risk ratings and other measures, including, but not limited 10, the level of past due pencenta' s and nonperforming
assets. The loan review function is centralized and independent of the lending function.

Deposits

At December 31, 2007, our deposits totaled $2.201 billion which consisted of approxjmately 90% in direct

customer deposits and 5% of wholesale money market deposits and 5% of brokered certifigates of deposits, Core
deposits are our principal source of funds, constituting approximately 71.8% of our total : eposits as of Decem-
ber 31, 2007. Core deposits ¢onsist of demand deposits, interest-bearing transaction accounts, savings deposits and
certificates of deposit (excluding certificates of deposits over $100,000). Transaction acconts include checking,

money market and NOW accounts that provide Superior Bank with a source of fee incom
opportunities, as well as a low-cost source of funds. Time and savings accounts also pm:widteI
low-cost source of funding. The largest source of funds for Superior Bank is centificates of E
deposit in excess of $100,000 are approximately $620.7 million, or 28.2% of our deposits, of
$119 mitlion consist of wholesale, or “brokered,” certificates of deposits, at December 31

Our other primary source of funds is advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank (“FH
are secured by FHLB stock, agency securities and a blanket lien on certain residential and c
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1oans. We also have available unused federal funds lines of credit with regional banks, subject 1o centain restrictions
¢nd cotlateral requirements.

Deposit rates are set periedically by our internal Asset/Liability Management Commmee which includes
certain members of senior management. We believe our rates are competitive with those offered by competing
institutions in our market areas.

Competition

The banking industry is highly competitive, and our profitability depends prim:ipal];,'I upon our ability to
compete in our market areas. In our market areas, we face competition from both super-regional banks and smaller
community banks, as well as non-bank financial services companies. We encounter strong; competition both in
riaking loans and attracting deposits. However, over the past two years, either through foreign investment in local
tanks, mergers of equals or sales of competitors to Jarge regional banks, the competitive landls;cape has changed in
cur markets. Superior Bank is now the third largest bank headquartered in Alabama and the largest community bank
i1 Alabama. We fully anticipate being the beneficiary of the chaos these changes have broughi and will bring to the
zffected organizations in our markets. Competition among financial institutions is based upon interest rates offered
on deposit accounts, interest rates charged on loans and other credit and service charges. Cus.llomers also consider
tae quality and scope of the services rendered, the convenience of banking facilities and, iq the case of loans to
commercial borrowers, relative lending limits. Customers may also take into account the fact that other banks offer
cifferent services. Many of the large super-regional banks against which we compete havcfsigniﬁcantly greater
1:nding limits and may offer additional products; however, we believe we have been able 1o compete effectively
with other financial institutions, regardless of their size, by emphasizing customer service anq by providing a wide
array of services. In addition, most of our non-bank competitors are not subject to the same extensive federal
rzgulations that govern bank holding companies and federally insured banks. See “Supervision and Regulation.”
Competition may further intensify if additional financial services companies enter markets in which we conduct
tusiness.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we employed approximately 790 full-time equivalent employees, primanly at
Superior Bank. We believe that our employee relations have been and continue to be good!

Siupervision and Regulation

General. Superior Bancorp, as a unitary savings and loan holding company, ard Superior Bank, as a federal
savings bank, are required by federal law to report to, and otherwise comply with the rules and regulations of, the
OTS. We are subject to extensive regulation, examination and supervision by the OTS, as| our primary federal

rzgulator, and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC"), as the deposit msurer‘ We are a member of
tae Federal Home Loan Bank System and, with respect to deposit insurance, of the Deposn Insurance Fund
raanaged by the FDIC. We must file periodic reports with the OTS and the FDIC concemmg our activities and
financial condition in addition to abtaining regulatory approvals prior to entering into certain transactions such as
raergers with, or acquisitions of, other financial institutions. The OTS conducts periodic exa:nunauons to test our
safety and soundness and compliance with various regulatory requirements. This rcgulanon and supervision
establishes a comprehensive framework of activities in which a thrift can engage and is intended primarily for the
protection of the insurance fund and depositors. The regulatory structure also gives the regulatory authorities
extensive discretion in connection with their supervisory and enforcement activities and examination policies,
including policies with respect to the classification of asscts and the establishment of adequate loan loss reserves for

rzgulatory purposes. Any change in such regulatory requirements and policies, whether by Lhe OTS, the FDIC or
Congress, could have a material adverse impact on us and our operations. Certain regulatory requirements
applicable to us are referred to below or elsewhere herein. The description of statutory provisions and regulations
applicable to thrifts and their holding companies set forth below does not purport to be a corlnpletc description of
such statutes and regulations and their effects on us and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the actual laws and
r>gulations.




Holding Company Regulation,, We are a nondiversified unitary savings and loan holdjng company within the
meaning of such terms under federai law. The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 providel.] that no company may
acquire control of a savings institution after May 4, 1999, unless it engages only in the finantial activities permitted
for financial holding companies under the law or for multiple savings and loan holding companies as described

below. Further, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act specifies that certain savings and loan holdin
engage in such activities. Since we became a savings and lean holding company in 2005,!

activities. Upon any non-supervisory acquisition by us of another savings institution or szn.'iI

g companies may only
we are limited to such
gs hank that meets the

qualified thrift Jender test and is deemed to be a savings institution by the OTS, we would begome a multiple savings

and loan holding company (if the acquired institution is held as a separate subsidiary)

d would generally be

limited 10 activities permissible for bank holding companies under Section 4(¢)(8) of the Bank Holding Company
Act, subject to the prior approval of the OTS, and certain activities authorized by the OTS' nfgulation. However, the
OTS has issued an interpretation concluding that the multiple savings and loan holding companies may also engage
in activities permitted for financial holding companies.

A savings and loan holding company is prohibited from directly or indirectly acquirigg more than 5% of the
voting stock of another financial institution or savings and loan holding company without pfior written approval of
the OTS and from acquiring or refaining control of a depository institution that is not insured by the FDIC. In
evaluating applications by holding companies to acquire other institutions, the OTS considdrs, among other things,
the financial and managerial resources and future prospects of the institutions involved, the ¢ffect of the acquisition
on the risk to the deposil insurance funds, the convenience and needs of the community apd competitive factors.

Subject to certain exceptions, the OTS may not approve any acquisition that would resylt in a multiple savings

and loan holding company’s controlling savings institutions in more than one state.

Although savings and loan holding companies are not currently subject to specific ¢apital requirements or

specific restrictions on the payment of dividends or other capital distributions, federai reg
resirictions on subsidiary savings institutions, as described bclow. Superior Bank must

declaring any dividend to Superior Bancorp. In addition, the financial impact of a holding co
institution is a matter that is evaluated by the OTS, and the OTS has authority to order c¢
divestitere of subsidiaries deemed to pose a threat 1o the safety and soundness of the ins

Change in Bank Control Act. Under the Federal Change in Bank Control Act, a notic

ulations prescribe such
hotify the OTS before
mpany on its subsidiary
tssation of activities or
itution.

e must be submitted to

the OTS if any person, or group acting in concert, seeks to acquire “control” of a savings and iloan holding company

or a savings association. A change of control may occur, and prior notice may be required,
more than 10% of our outstanding voting stock, unless the OTS has found that the acquisi
change of control of Superior Bancorp. Under the Change in Bank Control Act, the OTS gen
the filing of a complete notice to act, taking irito consideration certain factors, inclu
managerial resources of the acquirer and the anti-trust effects of the acquisition.

Regulation of Business Activities. The activities of thrifis are govemed by federa
These laws and regulations delineate the nature and exient of the activities in which
particular, certain lending authority for thrifts, that is, commercial Joans, non-residential
consumer loans, is limited 1o a specified percentage of the nstitution’s capital or assets.

Capital Requirements. The OTS capital regulations require savings institutions td
capital standards: a 1.5% tangible capital to total assets ratio, a 4% leverage ratio (3% for i
highest rating on the regulatory examination rating system) and an 8% risk-based capita
prompt corrective action standards discussed below also establish, in effect, a minimu
standard, a 4% leverage ratio (3% for institutions recciving the highest examination rating)
risk-based capital standard itself, a 4% Tier | risk-based capital standard.

total capital (which is defined as core capital and supplementary capital) to risk-weighted

upon the acquisition of
Eon will not result in a
erally has 60 days from
ing the financial and

Hlaws and regulations.
Jlarifls may engage. [n
eal property loans and

meet three minimum
stitutions receiving the
ratio. In addition, the
m 2% tangible capital
!and, together with the
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sets of at least 4% and

The risk-based capital standard for savings institutions requires the maimenar{ce of mngos of Tier t {core) and

8%, respectively. In determining the amount of risk-weighted assets, all assets, including ¢
assets, recourse obligations, residual interests and direct credit substitutes, are multiplied by
0% to 100%, assigned by the OTS capital regulation based on the nisks believed inherent in
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(Tier 1) capital includes, among other things, common stockholders’ equily (including retained eamings), centain
roncumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus, and minority interests in equn)‘( accounts of consol-
idated subsidiaries. The components of supplementary capital currently include, among OIher things, cumulative
perpetual preferred stock, mandatory convertible securities, and the allowance for loan and lease losses limited to a
raximum of 1.25% of risk-weightied assets. Overall, the amount of supplementary capital included as pan of total

capital cannot exceed 100% of core capital.

The OTS also has authority to establish minimum capital requircments in appropriate cases upon a deter-
riination that an institution’s capital fevel is or may become inadequate in light of the particular circumstances. At
December 31, 2007, Superior Bank met each of its capital requirements.

Prompi Corrective Regulatory Action. The OTS is required to take cerfain supervisory actions against
undercapitalized institulions, the severity of which depends upon the institution’s degree oﬁ undercapitalization.
Generally, a savings institution that has a ratio of total capital to risk weighted assets of less than 8%, a ratio of Tier |

(zore) capital to risk-weighted assets of less than 4% or a ratio of core capital to total assets of less than 4% (less than
3% for institutions with the highest examination rating) is considered to be “undercapitalized.” i
that has a total risk-based capital ratio of less than 6%. a Tier 1 capital ratio of less than 3% or a leverage ratio that is
l:ss than 3% is considered to be “significantly undercapitalized™, and a savings institution that has a tangible capital
t> assets ratio equal to or less than 2% is deemed to be “critically undercapitalized.” Subject to a nurow exception.
tte OTS is required 10 appoim a receiver or conservator within specified time frames for ‘an institution that is
“critically undercapitalized.” The regulation also provides thal a capital restoration plan must be filed with the OTS
vithin 45 days of the date a savings institution receives notice that it is “undercapuahzed “significantly
undercapitalized™ or “critically undercapitalized.” Compliance with the plan must be guaranteed by any parent

|
holding company. In addition, numerous mandatory supervisory actions become immediately applicable to an

undercapitalized institution, including, but not limited to, increased monitoring by regulators and restrictions on
growth, capital distributions and expansion. The OTS could also take any one of a number of discretionary
supervisory actions, including the issuance of a capital directive and the replacement of senior executive officers

and directors.

Insurance of Deposit Accounts.  Superior Bank is a member of the Deposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC. The
FDIC maintains a risk-based assessment system by which institutions are assigned to one of four categories based
upon a commbination of their capilalization and examination ratings. An institution’s assessment depends upon the
category to which it is assigned. An institution assigned to the category with the lowest risk also has certain financial
ratios taken into account in determining assessment rates, unless it is a large institution with at least one long-term
debt issuer rating, in which case the rating will be taken into account in determining ils assessment rate. Assessment
rates for Deposit [nsurance Fund members currently range from five basis points for the heallhmsl institutions to
43 basis points of assessable deposits for the niskiest. The FDIC has the authority 0 increase inburance assessments.
£, significant increase in Deposit Insurance Fund insurance premiums would likely have an édvcrsc effect on the
operating expenses and results of operations of Superior Bank., Management cannol predlcl what insurance
assessment rates will be in the future.

In addition to the assessment for deposit insurance, institutions are requircd to make payments on bonds issued
in the late 1980s by the Financing Corporation to recapitalize the predecessor to the Savings Association [nsurance
Fund. During fiscal year 2007, Financing Corporation paymenis for Savings Association Insurance Fund members
approximated 1.18 basis points of assessable depaosits.

Deposit insurance may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that the instilution has engaged in unsafe or
unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound cendition to continue operations or has violatcc!l any applicable law,
rugulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the FDIC or the OTS. We do not know of any practice, condition or
violation that might lead to termination of deposit insurance.

Loans 1o One Borrower.  Federal law provides that savings institutions are generally subject to the limits on
loans 1o one borrower applicable 1o national banks. Generally, subject 10 certain exceplions, 2 savings institution
niay not make a loan or extend credil to a single or related group of borrowers in excess of ]5|% of its unimpaired
capital and surplus. An additional amount may be lent, equal to 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus, if secured by
specified readily-marketable collateral.




QTL Test. Federal law requires savings institutions to meet a qualified thrift lendet test. Under the test, a
savings association is required to either qualify as a “domestic building and loan assocnat on’" under the Internal
Revenue Code or maintain at least 65% of its “portfolio assets” (total assets less: (i) specifi eddlnquid assets up to 20%

of total assets; (ii) imangibles, including goodwill; and (iii) the value of propenty used 1o cont uct business) in certain
“qualified thrift investments” (primarily residential mortgages and related investments, incliding certain morngage-
backed securities) in at least nine months out of each 12-month period.

A savings institution that fails the qualified thrift lender test is subject to certain operatmg restrictions and may
be required to convert to a bank charter. As of December 31, 2007, Superior Bank met the qu‘ alified thrift lender test.
Recent legislation has expanded the extent to which education loans, credit card loans and small business loans may
be considered “qualified thrilt investments.” j

Limirations on Capital Distributions.  The OTS regulations impose limitations uponjll capital distributions
by a savings institution, including cash dividends, payments 1o repurchase its shares and payments to shareholders
of another institution in a cash-out merger. Under the regulations, an application to and pno| approval of the OTS is
required prior to any capital distribution il the institution does not meet the criteria for * e pedited treatment” of
applications under the OTS regulations, the total capital distributions (including the propos d capital distribution)
for the calendar year exceed net income for that year plus the amount of retained net income for the preceding two
years, the institution would be undercapitalized following the disiribution or the dlS[l'lbl]ll n.would otherwise be
contrary to a statute, regulation or agreement with the OTS, [f an application is not required, ghe institetion must still
provide prior notice to the OTS of the capital distribution if, like Superior Bank, it is a I bsidiary of a holding
company. In the event Superior Bank's capital fel! below its regulatory reguirements or lh| OTS notified it that it
was in need of increased supervision, Superior Bank’s ability to make capital distributions|could be restricted. In
addition, the OTS could prohibit a proposed capital distribution by any institution, whidh would otherwise be
permitied by the regulation, it the OTS determines that such distribution would constitute] an unsafe or unsound

practice,

Trunsactions with Related Farties.  Superior Bank’s authority to engage in transactions with “affiliates” (i.e.,
any company that controls or is under common control with Superior Bank, including Superior Bancorp and its non-
savings institulion subsidiaries) is limited by federal law. The aggregaie amount of covered transactions with any
individual affiliate is limited 1o 10% of the capital and surplus of the savings institution. The aggregate amount of
covered transactions with all alfiliates is limited to 20% of a savings institution’s capitdl and surplus. Certain
transactions with affiliates are required to be secured by collateral in an amount and of a type described in federal
law. The purchase of low quality assets from affiliates is generally prohibited. The transactigns with affiliates must
be on terms and under circumstances that are at least as favorable to the institution as those ptevailing at the time for
comparable transactions with non-affiliated companies. In addition, savings institutions are prohibited from lending
to any affiliate (hat is engaged in activities that are not permissible for bank holding companies, and no savings
institution may purchase the securities of any affiliate other than a subsidiary.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 generally prohibits loans by public companies to theid executive officers and
directors. However, that act contains a specific exception for loans by a financial institution, such as Superior Bank,
(o its executive officers and directors that are made in compliance with federal banking laws. Under such laws,
Superior Bank's authority o extend credil to executive officers, directors and 10% shareholdgrs (“insiders™), as well
as entilies such persons control, is limited. The taw limits both the individual and aggregate amount of loans
Superior Bank may make 1o insiders based, in part, on Superior Bank’s capital position and|requires certain board
approval pracedures to be followed. Such loans are required to be made on terms substantfally the same as those
offered 1o unaffiliated individuals and not involve more than the normal risk of repayment. There is an exception for
loans made pursuant to a benefit or compensation program that is widely available to all emplpyees of the institution
and does not give preference to insiders over other employees.

Standards for Saferv and Soundness. The federal banking agencies have adopted Interagency Guidelines
prescribing Standards for Safety and Soundness. These guidelines set forth the safety and soundness standards that
the federal banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository institutions before capital
becomes impaired. If the OTS determines that a savings institution fails to mect any standard prescribed by the
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guidelines, the OTS may require the institution to submit an acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the
standard.

Enforcemeni. The OTS has primary enforcement responsibility over savings insllilulions and has the
authority to bring actions against the institution and all institution-affiliated parties, mcludmg stockholders,
and any attorneys, appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessly participate in wrongful action likely 1o
have an adverse effect on an insured institution, Formal enforcement action may range from the issuance of a capial
Jdirective or cease and desist order to removal of officers and/or directors to institution of lreceivership. conser-
~satorship or termination of deposit insurance. Civil money penallies cover a wide range of violations and can
amount to $5,000 per day, or even $1 million per day in especially egregious cases. In addmlon the FDIC has the
authority to recommend to the Director of the OTS that enforcement action be taken with respect to a particular
savings institution. If action is not taken by the Director, the FDIC has authority to take such action under ceriain
vircumstances. Federal law also establishes criminal penaliies for certain violations.

Federal Home Loan Bank System. Superior Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System,
which consists of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Bank System provides a central
credil faCIllly primarily for member institutions. Superior Bank, as a member of the Fedcral Home Loan Bank
System, is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in the applicable FHLB (All.mtn) in an amount at least
equal to 1.0% of the aggregate principal amount of its unpaid residential morigage loans and similar obligations at
the beginning of each year, or 1720 of its advances (borrowings) from the applicable FHLB, whichever is greater.

tuperior Bank was in compliance with this requirement at December 31,2007, with an investment in FHLB stock of
$14.9 million.

Federal Reserve System. The Federal Reserve Board regulations require savings msuluuons to maintain non-
interest eaming reserves against their Lransaction accounts (primarily NOW and regular checkmg accounts). The
regulations generally provide that reserves be maintained against aggregate transaction accounts as follows: a 3%
reserve ratio is assessed on net transaction accounts up to and including $45.8 million; a 10% re‘Tservc ratio is applied
above $45.8 million. The first $8.5 million of otherwise reservable balances (subject to adjustments by the Federal
Feserve Board) are exempted from the reserve requirements. These amounts are adjusted anniually. Superior Bank
complies with the foregoing requirements.

Community Reinvestment Act.  Superior Bank is subject to the CRA. The CRA and the regulations issued
thereunder are intended to encourage financial institutions to help meet the credit nceds of their service areas,
mcludmg low and moderate income neighborhoods, consistent with the sufe and sound opcrauons of the financial

institutions. These regulations also provide for regulatory assessment of an institution’s record in meeting the needs
of its service area when considering applications to establish branches, merger applications, apphcauons to engage
in new activities and applications 1o acquire the assets and assume the liabilities of another msuluuon The Financial
I1stitutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 (“FIRREA™) requires federal bankmg agencies to
make public a rating of an institution's performance under the CRA. In the case of a holding company involved in a
proposed transaction, the CRA performance records of the banks involved arc reviewed by federal banking agencies
in connection with the filing of an application to acquire ownership or controf of shares or assc(& of abank or thrift or
to merge with any other bank holding company. An unsatisfactory record can substantiaily delay or block the
nansaction. Superior Bank maintains a satisfactory CRA rating.

Confidentialiry of Customer Information. Federal laws and regulations, including the Cluramm-l_each-BliIey
A1, require that financial institutions take certain steps to protect the security and confidentiality of customers’
non-public personal information. Among other things, these regulations restrict the ability of financial institutions
i share non-public customer information with non-affiliated third parties and require ﬁnanc:al institutions to
provide customers with information about their privacy policies. Superior Bank has procedures in place that are
intended to comply with these requirements.

Bank Secrecy Act.  Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank are subject to the federal Bank Secrecy Actof 1970,
ai amended, which establishes requirements for recordkeeping and reponiing by banks and other financial
institutions designed 1o help identify the source, volume and movement of currency and rn:onetary instruments
irto and out of the United States in order to help detect and prevent money Jaundering and other illegal activities.

The Bank Secrecy Act requires financial institutions to develop and maintain a program rca‘;onably designed to




ensure and monilor compliance with its requirements, to train employees in such p Jgram, and to test the
effectiveness of such program. Any failure to meet the requirements of the Bank Secrecy Actjcan involve substantial
penatties and adverse regulatory action. We have adopted policies and procedures intended to comply with the

requirements of the Bank Secrecy Act.

USA Fairiot Act.  On October 26, 2001, President Bush signed into law the Unil! ng and Strengthening
America by Providing Appropriatc Tools Required to Intercept and QObstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (the “USA
Patrion Act™), which, among other things, amends the Bank Secrecy Act. The USA Palri1 Act strengthened the
ability of the U.S. govemment to detect and prosecute international money laundering and the financing of
terrorism. Among its provisions, the USA Patriot Act requires that regulated financial insli utions: (i} establish an
anti-money laundering program that includes training and audit components; (ii) comply with regulations regarding
the verification of the identity of any person seeking to open an account; (iii) take addition‘,.tl required precautions
with non-U.S. owned accounts; and (iv) perform cenain verification and centification of mahey laundering risk for
any foreign correspondent banking relationships. We have adopted policies, procedures énd controls to address
compliance with the reguirements of the USA Patriot Act under the existing regulations and|will continue to revise
and update ous policics, procedures and controls 1o reflect changes required by the ‘USA Patriot Act and
implementing regulations.

Consumer Laws and Regulations.  In addition to the laws and regulations discussed hf
also subject to certain consumer laws and regulations that are designed to protect consume
banks. While the list set forth herein is not exhaustive, these laws and regulations include the
the Truth in Savings Act, the Electronic Funds Transfer Act, the Expedited Funds Availubilila

rein, Superior Bank is

rs in transactions with

Truth in Lending Act,
Act, the Equal Credit

Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act, the Fair Credit Reporting Act und the Real Estate Bettlement Procedures

Act, among others. These luws and regulations mandate certain disclosure requirements and!
which financial institutions must deal with customers when taking deposits from, making Ig
other types of transactions with. such customers.

Instahility of Regulatury Structure

Various bills are coutinely introduced in the United States Congress and state tegislaty
regulation of financial institutions. Some of these proposals, if adopted, could significanily ¢l
banks and the financial services industry. We cannot predict whether any of these proposaly

adopted, how these proposals would affect us.

Effect on Economic Environment

The policies of regulatory authorities, especially the monetary policy of the Federal f
significant effect on the operating results of savings and loan holding companies and their su
means available 1o the Federal Reserve Board to affect the money supply are open
U.S. Government securities, changes in the discount rate on member bank borrowings af
requirements against member bank deposits. These means are used in varying combinmio|
growth and distribution of bank loans, investments and deposits, and their use may affect int
loans or paid for deposits.

Federal Reserve Board monelary policies have materially affected the operating resulls
and thrifts in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future, The nature of fulure!
the effect of such policies on our business and earnings cannot be predicted.

Available Information

We maintain an Internet website ai www.superiotbank.com. We make available free
website various reports that we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments (
reports are made available as soon as reasonably practicable after these reports are filed wit
Securities and Exchange Commission. From our home page at www.superiorbank.com, go 10!
Relations” and click on “SEC Filings” to access these reports.
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Zode of Ethics

We have adopied a code of ethics that applies 1o all of our employees, including our principal executive,
financial and accounting officers. A copy of our code of ethics is available on our website. We intend to disclose
information about any amendments to, or waivers from, our code of ethics that are required to be disclosed under
¢pplicable Securities and Exchange Commission regulations by providing appropriate mfon'n{auon on our website.
If at any time our code of ethics is not available on our website, we will provide a copy of i it free of charge upon
written reguesi.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Qur business, and an investment in our securities, involves risks. The following summary describes factors we
Lelieve are material risks relating 1o our business and to the ownership of our securities. Qur discussion of these risks
contains forward-looking statements, and our actual results may differ materially from thosc: anticipated by such
farward-looking statements, In addition, financial condition and results of operations, and the market price of our
common stock, may be substantially affected by other risks, including risks we have not ldenuﬁed or that we may
believe are immaterial or unlikely. This summary does not purport to describe all risks that mi ghl possibly affect our
business, financial condition or resulis of operations or the market price of our common stock.

Fisks Relating To Our Business

If the interest payments we make on our deposils increase relative to our interest income, we may be less
profitable.  Our profitability depends to a large extent on Superior Bank’s net interest income, which is the
difference between income from interest-carning assets, such as loans we make and inveslmenlt securities we hold,
aid interest we pay on deposits and our own borrowings. Our net interest income is affected not only by actions we
t:ke, but by changes in general interest rate levels and by other economic factors beyond <:)ur control. Our net
interest income may be reduced if (i) more interest-earning assets than interest-bearing liabilities reprice or mature
al. a time when interest rates arc declining, or (ii) more interest-bearing liabilities than interest-earning assets reprice
0 mature at a time when interest rates are rising.

In addition, we may be affected by changes in the difference between short- and long-term interest rates. For
e:tample, shont-term deposits may be used to support longer-term loans, IF the difference between short-and long-
term interest rates becomes smatler, the spread between the rates we pay on deposits and borrowings and the rates
we receive on loans we make could narrow significantly, decreasing our net interest income.

Further, if market interest rates rise rapidly, interest rate adjustment caps may limit our ability to increase
interest rates on adjustable-rate mortgage loans, but we may have to pay higher interest rales on deposits and
borrowings. This could cause our net interest income 10 decrease.

An increase in loan prepayments may adversely affect our profitability. The rate at which borrowers prepay
loans is dependent on a number of factors outside our conwrol, including changes in market i mterest rates, conditions
in the housing and financial markets and general economic conditions. We cannot always accurately predict
prepayment rates. If the prepayment rates with respect to our loans are greater than we anuclpate there may be a
negative impact on our profitability because we may not be able to reinvest prepaymenl proceeds at rates
cemparable 1o those we received on the prepaid loans, particularly in a time of falling interest rates.

If our allowance for loan losses is inadequate, our profitability will be reduced. 'We are exposed to the risk
that our customers will be unable w repay their loans in accordance with their terms and that any collateral securing
such loans will be insufficient 10 ensure full repayment. Such credit risk is inherent in the Icndm'g business, and our
fa:lure to adequately assess such credit risk could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and resutts
of operations. We evaluate the collectability of our loan portfolio and review our evaluation on "a regular basis, and
we: provide an allowance for loan losses that we believe is adequate based on various factors that we believe may
afi'ect the credit quality of our loans. However, there can be no assurance that actual loan losses|will not exceed the
allowance that we have eswblished, as such allowance is adjusted from time to time.
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If our allowance for loan losses is inadequate for the actual losses we experience, there could be a material
adverse effect on our results of operations. In addition, if as a result of our perception| of adverse trends, we
materially increase our allowance for loan lesses in the future, such increase would also [reduce our earnings.

Events in our geographic markets could adversely affect us.  Qur business is concenfrated in six geographic
regions in Alabama and Florida. Any adverse changes in market or economic conditions in Florida and Alabama
may increase the risk that our customners will be unable to make their loan payments. In addigon, the market value of
the real estate securing loans as collateral could be adversely affected by unfavorable changes in local market
conditions and general economic conditions. Any period of increased payment delinquencieb, foreclosures or losses
caused by adverse market or economic conditions in general or in our markets in Florila and Alabama could
adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

With most of our loans concentrated in a small number of markets, a decline in loci! economic conditions
could adversely affect the values of our real estate collaterai. Thus, a decline in local econonjic conditions may have
a greater effect on our eamings and capital than on the eamings and capital of targer financia} institutions whose real
estate loan portfolios are more geographically diverse.

In addition, natural disasters, such as humricanes and tomados, in our markets could adversely affect our
business. The occurrence of such natural disasters in our markets could result in a decline infthe value or destruction
of morigaged properties and in an increase in the risk of delinguencies, foreclosures or losses on these loans and
may impact our customers’ ability to repay loans.

We face substantial competition. There are numerous competitors in our geographic markets, including
national, regional and local banks and thrifts and other financial services businesses| some of which have
substantially greater resources, higher brand visibility and a wider geographic presence {han we have, Some of
these competitors may offer a greater range of services, more favorable pricing and greatel ,cusiomer convenience
than we are able to. In addition, in some of our markets, there are a significant number »f new banks and other
financial institutions that have opened in the recent past or are expected 1o open in the ne future, and such new
competitors may also seek to exploit our markets and customer base. If we are unable to Iaintain and Erow our

|
market share in the face of such competition, our resuits of operations will be adversely[affected.

We are subject to extensive regulation. Qur operations are subject to regulation by the Office of Thrift
Supervision and the Federal Deposit [nsurance Corporation. We are also subject to appli¢able regulations of the
Federal Home Loan Bank. Regulation by these entities is intended primarily for the protecti In of our depositors and
the deposit insurance fund and not for the benefit of our stockholders. We may incur substa unl costs in complying

with such regulations, and our failure to comply with them may expose us to substantial

- . { .
In addition, we are subject to numerous consumer protection laws and other laws relg
financial institutions. Qur failure to comply with such laws could expose us to liability, whig
adverse effect on our results of operations.

penalues

llmg to the operation of
h could have a material

We may require additional capital to fund our growth plans.  Our business strategy includes the expansion of

our business through the development of new locations and through the acquisition of other financial institutions

and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, complementary businesses as appropriate
order to finance such growth and to maintain required regulatory capital levels, we may requ
the future. There can be no assurance that such capital will be available upon favorable

We are dependent upon the services of ourmanagement team. Our operations and strg

| . .
opportunities arise. [n
ilre additional capital in
erms, or at all.

tegy are directed by our

senior management team, most of whom have joined Superior Bancorp since January 2005. An) loss of the services
of members of our managemem team could have a malerial adverse effect on our result$ of operations and our

ability to implement our business strategy.

Risks Related To an Investment in QOur Commeon Stock

Superior Bancorp's stock price may be volatile due 10 limited trading voliume and gen eral market conditions.
Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Market. However, the average daily trading volume in our
common stock is relatively small, typically under 60,000 shares per day and sometimes Itlss. With the increased

number of outstanding shares due to acquisitions in 2006 and 2007, cur average daily trad
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approximatelty 171,000 shares per day. Notwithstanding this increase, trades involving a relatively small number of
+hases may have a significant effect on the market price of our common stock, and it may be difficult for investors 1o
acquire or dispose of large blocks of stock without significanmtly affecting the market price.

[n addition, market fluctuations, industry factors, general economic conditions and political events, including
us economic slowdowns or recessions, interest rate changes or market trends, also could cause our stock price to
decrease regardless of our operating results of operations.

Our ability o pay dividends is limited. Qur ability to pay dividends is limited by regulatlory requirements and
the need to maintain sufficient consolidated capital to meet the capital needs of our business, including capital needs
related to future growth. Our primary source of income is the payment of dividends from Supenor Bank to vs.
Superior Bank, in turn, is likewise subject to regulatory requirements potentially limiting its ability to pay such
dividends to us and by the need to maintain sufficient capital for its operations and obligations. Further, we are
obligated, subject to regulatory limitations, to make periodic distributions on our trust preferred securitics, which
reduces the income that might otherwise be available to pay dividends on our common stock. Thus, there can be no
assurance that we will pay dividends to our common stockholders, no assurance as 1o the amount or timing of any
«uch dividends, and no assurance that such dividends, if and when paid, will be maintained, at the same level or at
all, in future periods.

Use of our common stock for future acquisitions or fo raise capital may be dilutive to existing stockholders.
"When we determine that appropriate strategic opportunities exist, we may acquire other fi na‘ncml institutions and
related businesses, subject to applicable regulatory requirements. We may use our common stock for such
acquisitions. From time to time, we may also seek to raise capital through selling additionlal common stock. It
is possible that the issuance of additional common stock in such acquisition or capital transaclions may be dilutive
to the interests of our existing stockholders.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable. .

Item 2. Properties.

Our headquarters are located at 17 North 20th Street, Birmingham, Alabama. As of IDecember 21, 1999,
Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank, who jointly owned the building, converted the building into condominivms
}nown as The Bank Condominiums. Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank collectively own 13 condominium units.
"This space includes a branch of Superior Bank, various administrative offices, operauo}\s facilities and our
headquarters. Twelve units are owned by third parties. We have leased or are pursuing the I¢ase or sale of cenain
tnits (or parts thereof) not currently needed for our operations.

We operate through facilities at 93 locations. We own 52 of these facilities and lease 41 of these facilities.
RRental expense on the leased properties totaled approximately $2,109,000 in 2007.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

While we are a party to various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of our business, we believe that
there are no proceedings threatened or pending against us at this time that will indi\riduallyI or in the aggregate,
inaterially and adversely affect our business, financial condition or results of operations. We believe that we have
strong claims and defenses in each lawsuit in which we are involved. While we believe that we will prevail in cach
Yawsuit, there can be no assurance that the outcome of the pending, or any future, litigation, either individually or in the
uggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our business, our financial condition or our; results of operations.

Jtem 4. Submission Of Matters To A Vote Of Security Holders.

None
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PART il |

Item S. Market For The Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Equity Securities.

Market for Common Stock

Our commen stock trades on NASDAQ Global Market under the ticker symbol “SUPR.” As of December 31,
2007, there were approximately 2,753 record holders of our common stock. The followinglable sets fonth, for the

calendar periods indicated, the range of high and low reported sales prices:

2006

First QUarer. . .ot ittt e e e
Second Quaner. . ... . ... e
Third QUarmer . ..o vt e e e s
Fourth Quarter . ... ... . i it i et
2007

Fiest Quarter, .. ...t e e
SO QUANEr. . v ottt e i e
Third Quarter . ... ............. e e e
Fourth Quarter . ... ... . i i e et
2008

First Quarter (through March 11,2008). . ...... ... ... ... .. ... ... .0t

High Low
$11.94 $10.70
11.87 10.71
1193 10.54
11.89 10.39
$11.87 $10.57
10.99 9.64
10.43 8.10
9.35 . 5.00
$606 §425

On March 11, 2008, the last reported sale price for the common stock was $5.24 per share.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

We announced in October 2007, that the Board of Directors approved the purchase of an
shares of our outstanding common stock beginning on or after November 2, 2007.

additional $1.0 million

We repurchased 182,000 shares of our issued and outstanding common stock during the fourth quarter of 2007

pursuant to this program.
Total Number of Maximum Number
Shares Purchased as of Shares That
- Part of Publicly May Yet be
Total Number of Average Price Announced Plans or Purchased Under
Period Shares Purchased Puld Per Share Programs tl{e Ptans or Programs
November 2007 152,000 $6.88 152,000 —_
December 2007 30,000 528 30,000 818,000
Dividends
We paid dividends on our preferred stock aggregaling $4.92 per preferred share in 20p5. All of our preferred
stock was converted into common stock effective June 30, 2005.

Holders of our common stock are entitled to receive dividends when and if declared by
We derive cash available to pay dividends primarily, if not entirely, from dividends paid tg
There are cenain restrictions that limit Superior Bank's ability (o pay dividends to us and, in

.::;ur board of directors.
I;JS by our subsidiaries.
turn, our ability to pay

dividends. The restrictions that may limit our ability to pay dividends are discussed in this R4 port in Item 1 under the
heading “Supervision and Regulation — Limitations on Capital Distributions,” Qur ability [to pay dividends to our
stockholders will depend on our eamings and financial condition, liquidity and capital requircments, the general

economic and regulatory climate, our ability to service any equily or debt obligations senid
and other factors deemed relevant by our board of directors. We do not currently pay div

£ L0 our common stock
dends on our common

stock, but expect to evaluate our common stock dividend policy from time to time as circumstances indicate, subject

to applicable regulatory restrictions,

16




Equity Compensation Plan Information

The information required to be provided under Jtem 201(d) of Regulation 5-K is mcorporatcd by reference to
the information provided under the caption “Executive Compensation and Other lnformauon included in our
definitive proxy statement Lo be filed not later than April 30, 2008, in connection with our 2008 Annual Meceting of
Stockholders.
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Performance Graph

The performance graph below compares our cumulative shareholder return on our common stock over the last five
fiscal years to the cumulative total return of the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDAQ Financial Index. Our
cumulative shareholder retum over a five-year period is based on an initial investment of $!100jon December 31, 2002.

Total Return Performance

250

—&— Superior Bancorp
996 1 —-—- NASDAQ Composite

—&— NASDAQ Financial /’
200 +4— —&— SNL Southeast Thrift Index

~—#-—- SNL Southeasl Bank Index /’
175 }""-— 1

wE
=
/

o NN
. N

-

S0 } + } $
12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07
Period Ending %

Index 12731102 12/31/03 12731704 12231145 | 12731106 123107
Superior Bancorp 100.00 | 109.54 | 106.06 | 147.04/ | 146.13 | 69.20
NASDAQ Composite 100.00 | 150.01 | 162.89 | 165.18! | 180.85 | 198.60
NASDAQ Financial 100.00 | 131.16 | 151.20 | 154.76] | 176.94 | 21099
SNL Southeast Thrift Index 100.00 | 151.65 | 179.27 | 163.14]] 191.73 | 82.56
SNL Southeast Bank Index 100.00 | 125.58 | 148.92 | 152.44]{ 178.75 | 134.65

SNL Southeast Thrift : [acludes all Major Exchange (NYSE, AMEX, NASDAQ) Thrifts in SNL's coverage univ, ~rs|t headquartered in AL, AR,
FL. GA, M5, NC, SC. TN, VA, WV, )

SNL Southeast Bank : Includes all Major Exchange (NYSE, AMEX, NASDAQ) Banks in SNL's coverage univi rsL headquartered in AL, AR.
FL, GA. MS, NC, 5C, TN, VA, WV, .

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following table sets forth selected financial data from cur consolidated financial tatements and should be
read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements including the related nd‘lc; and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” The selected hjstorical financial data as
of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and for each of the three years in the period ended Dece*nt;er 31, 2007 is derived
from our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included in this Form 10-K. See “ltem 8.

Superior Bancorp and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements.”
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As of and For The Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 | 2004 2003
{Amounts in thousands, exceps per share data)

.Selected Statement of Financial Conditicn Data:

O] NS . . ., i i i e e s sy $2,885.425 52440990 S1415469 $1423,128 §1.171.626
Loans, et of uneamed MMCOME. . . ... it r e e 2017011 1.639.528 963,253 934,868 856,941
Allowance For loan IoSSES . . . .. vt s it n e 22,868 18,892 12,011 12,543 25174
TIVESIMENT SEOUTILES « . o .o v v e e e b e m e e e e s sl 354,716 242,595 288,308 141,601
EPOSHS . . o ot e e e e 2200611 1B70.841 143695 1,067,206 889935
Advances from FHLB and otherborrowings . ... ... .. ..o 222,828 211,255 214,496 205,546 131,919
Motespayable .. . ..o e e 9,500 5,545 3.755 3,965 1,925
Junior subordinated debentures owed (o unconsolidated trusts . . . .. L. ... ... 53,744 44,006 31.959 31,959 31,959
Stockholders™ equily © o v v e e e e 350,042 276,087 105,065 100,539 100,122
‘lelected Statement of Income Data: !
IMERESLANCOME & . vt v et e i ae v e et eme i aean e an e na e, $ 171929 $ 108,777 § 77280 § 66160 § 76,213
INIETESLERPEMSE o . o vttt e it i i e 96.767 61.383 38.255 28.123 33487
NelimMerest iICOME . . o v v vttt et a e m s m e a e e it 75.162 47,394 39.025 38.037 42,726
Provision for Joan Losses. . . . ... ot i i it i e e e 4,54} 2,500 3,500 975 20975
INOMINICRESL INCOME . . . . . . .. ittt iin s T imseemmemeee s 19,357 11,811 9,583 10,527 14,592
15000 0N S0 OF BIAMEIES. - . . v o e e v e r e ime e e — —_ - 739 48,264
INSURNCE PROCERAS . & v v v ot v n e e s a i a s e m e —_ - 5114 - -
IM2NAREMENL SEPAMAMION COSIS . . . . . . ot vttt c i n e — 265 15.467 - -
INONINMCIESE CAPEMSE, « v v o vt v e e v eemm e e s A 78223 49,520 45,153 47,937 57,930
Income (loss) before income taxes (benefit) . . ... ... ... ... L. 11,155 6920 (10,398) 391 26,677
Income tak expense{benefit) . . . . . ... ... L i e 414 1,923 (4.612) {796) 9,178
Mot income (lOSS) . . < - v i e e el 1.62) 4997 {5.786) 1,187 17,499
Preferred stock dividends . . . ... v oo i e e e —_ —_ 308 446 219
lifTect of carly conversion of preferred stock . .. . 0o v e e e e — mme 2.006 — —
Net income (loss) applicable 10 common stockholders . . ... ... ... .. .. .. $ 7621 § 4997 § (8097 S 741 5 17280
P'er Share Data: |
Het income (loss) —basic. .. ... ... i 3 02§ 021 § 042) $ 04 S 0.99
—diduted(l), . ... L e e e § 020 $ 021 § (04 $ 004 S 0.95
Weighted average shares outstanding —basic. . ... .. v oo 36974 23,409 19,154 17,583 17.492

Weighted average shares outstanding — diluted(1) 37,332 24034 19,154 17,815 £8.137

Hook valuc ot periodend . .. ... ... .. . $ 873 § 197 8 521 % 5 8 5.3
“bngible book value pershare . ... ... L ... s 405 § 423 § 461 % 462 § 4.59
Preferred shares outstanding atperiodend . . . oo v v v i - - - 62 62
Common sharcs ouistanding s period end . . . ... ... i 40,108 34.652 20,172 12,750 17.695
I'erformance Ratios and er Data:
Hetum on Overage ASSCIS. . . . v v v v v e m e e AR 0.29% 0.30% 0.41)% 0.9% 1.29%
fletun on avernge tangibleassets . . .. ... Lo 0.31 0.30 N/A N/A N/A
Heturn on sverage stockholders” equity . . . o - o v v e e i i 247 3.55 (5.68) L18 19.08
Heturn on average tangible equity . . . . ... ... ... .. 4.9i 4.89 N/A N/A N/A
Hetinterest margin(ZH3) . . ... o i e in 7 kAT 1.3 50
Hetioterest spread(3}(4) . . . . .. .. .. ... . o e 0 293 3.00 320 338
[ioninterest income toaverage assets{s) . . . .. ... e i i 0.67 0.66 0.7 0.82 1.03
Honinterest eapensc o average asses(6), . . - . ... .o Ly PR 2.83 2.84 34 152 407
Bfficiency miio{T). . . .. v o et e 79.48 8146 87.99 91.72 100.09
Jwverage loan to average deposit €3O . - . . ... s " 92.80 93.12 88.82 92.16 160.69
/werage imerest-eaming assets 1o average interest bearing lishilities, . .. ... . .. 107.54 106.01 104.58 104.88 10582
/issets Quality Ratlos: |
sillownnce for loan losses to nonperforming foams . . ... ... ... e 90.31%  219.88%  252.76%  169.36% 78.59%
/\ltowance for Joan losses to loans, net of uncamed income . . . . ... ... ... 1.13 1.15 1.25 1.34 294
Honperforming asscts ("NPAs”™) (0 loans plus NPAs, net of unearned income . . . . 1.47 0.63 0.68 1.32 4.41
PIPAStOBMal @SSELS. . . . .. . L. . i s 1.G3 043 0.47 0.87 3.25
et loan charge-offstoaverage loans. . .. .. ... v ii e © 024 0.20 043 1.52 221
HMet loan charge-offs as a percentage of: |

Provision for loan bosses . . . . ..ot v i i s 94.30 9264 115.20 1,395.49 111.87

Allowance farloan Jusses .. . ..o v vn i o 8.2 12.26 33.57 108.47 93.21

{1)-Commaon steck equivalents of 775,000 and 1,002,000 shares were not included in computing diluted earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2005, respeciively, because their effects were antidilutive.

(2)-Net interest income divided by average caming assets.

(3)Calculated on a taxable equivalent basis.

(1)-Yield on avernge interest-enming assets less rale on average interesi-bearing liabilities.

(5)-Noninterest income has been adjusted for certain nonrecurming items such as gain on sale of branches, insurance proceeds. change in fair
value of derivatives and investment security gains (losses).

(5)>-Noninterest expense has been adjusted for certuin nonrecurring tems such as loss on sale of assets and management separation Cosis.

{N-Efficiency mtio is calculated by dividing noninterest expense, adjusied for management separation costs, losses on other real estate and the
loss on sole of assets, by noninterest income, adjusted for gain on sale of branches, insurance proceeds. changes in fair values of derivatives
and investment security geins (losses), plus net interest income on a {ully taxable equivalent basis. .
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation.

General

The entire banking industry is operating in an adverse environment relative to maximizing shom-tenn
performance. Factors such as the challenging point in the credit cycle, housing market spfiness. gloomy media
coverage, weakened consumer confidence and dramatic Federal Reserve rate reductions pfovide a stiff headwind
going into 2008. We continue to adapt to these factors while remaining focused on taking the right actions that
should ultimately result in enhanced shareholder value,

The following is a narrative discussion and analysis of significant changes in our refults of operations and
financial condition. This discussion should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
selected financial data included elsewhere in this document.

Overview .

Our principal subsidiary is Superior Bank (the “Bank™), which has, since November [, |005 been chartered as
a federal savings bank. Prior to that date, Superior Bank operated as an Alabama st te bank. The Bank is
headquartered in Birmingham, Alabama and operates 72 banking offices and one loan prod cuon office throughout
the states of Alabama and Florida. Other subsidiaries include SFS, LLC, an Alabama li tcd liability company
(“SFS"), Superior Financial Services, LLC, an Alabama limited liability company (S penor Financial™), 1¥
Communilty Credit Corporation, an Alabama corporation {“Community Credit”), Superior Financial Management,
Inc., an Alabama corporation, Community (AL) Capital Trust I, a Delaware trust, TBC Capital Statutory Trust 11
(“TBC Capital 11™), a Connecticut statutory trust, Superior Capital Trust I (“Superior Gapital 1), a Delaware
business trust, Peoples Community Statutory Trust [ (“Peoples Trust I”') and Morris Aven Ie Management Group,
Inc. ("MAMG"), an Alabama corporation, all of which are wholly owned. SFS was fo

ed 10 acquire tax lien
certificates. Superior Financial and Communily Credit provide consumer finance servi cs through 22 offices
primarily in North Atabama and Superior Financiat Management, Inc. provides investment related services.
Community (AL) Capital Trust I, TBC Capital II, Superior Capital [ and Peoples Trust | unconsolidated special
purpose entities formed solely to issue cumulative trust preferred securities. MAMG nsnar}eal estate management
company that manages our headquarters, our branch facilities and certain other real estate owned by the Bank.

On July 27, 2007, we merged with People’s Community Bancshares, Inc. (“People's”). People’s was the
holding company for Peopie's Community Bank of the West Coast, a Florida state ban \‘wth three branches in
Sarasota and Maratee Counties in Florida. People’s had total assets of approximately $3 ]|mllhon total loans of
approximately $259 million and total deposits of approximatcly $245 million. During the ird quarter of 2006, we
merged with Kensington Bankshares, Inc. of Tampa, Florida (“Kensington™) and in the fo rth quarter of 2006, we
merged with Community Bancshares, Inc. of Blountsville, Alabama (“Community™). Ken mglon and Community
had combined loans of approximately $470 million and deposits of approximately $700 million.

In furtherance of our de novo branch strategy, 17 of 20 planned new branches have been opened since
September 2006 in key Alabama and Florida markets atiributing approximately $162 milli a of core deposits as of
December 31, 2007. For the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2007, noninterest x'pense associated with
the new branches was $1.0 and $3.0 million, respectively, or an approximate 2% pre um on deposits: Three
Alabama branches are scheduled to open before the end of the third quarter of 2008. Upagn |complclion. the Bank
will have invesied approximately $25 to $30 million toward its de novo branch expansion| program.

Our primary source of revenue is net interest income, which is the difference between income earned on
interesi-eaming assets, such as loans and investments, and interest paid on interest-be 'rlig liabilittes, such as
deposits and borrowings. Our results of operations are also affected by the provision f¢r loan losses and other
noninterest expenses such as salaries and'benefits, occupancy expenses and provision for i mcome taxes. The effects
of these noninterest expenses are partially offset by noninterest sources of revenue such as serwce charges and fees
on deposit accounts and mortgage banking income. Qur volume of business is influenced by competition in our
markets and overall economic conditions including such factors as market intercst rates business spending and
consumer confidence.
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During 2007, our net interest income increased by 58.6%. primarily due to an increase in average interest-
saming assets. The increase in our interest-camning assets resulted primarily from an overall irllcrease in the average
volume of our loan portfolio. During 2007, we continued our strategy of realigning our loan and deposit mix,
primarily through our acquisitions.

Service charges and fees were up 61.9% in 2007 from 2006 duc 1o an increase in our customer base and
adjustments for fee structures to market rates. Mortgage banking income increased 28.8% in 2007 due to an increase
in the volume of mortgage loan criginations throughout the year.

Total noninterest expenses increased from 2006 1o 2007 primarily due to our acquisitions and branch
expansion which resulted in higher personnel costs and occupancy expenses. All other noninteresl expenses
remained relatively stable in 2007 compared to 2006.

Our nonperforming assets have increased during 2007 as a result of weaknesses in the residential construction
and mortgage loan pontfolios. Management has increased its allocation of allowance for loan }os-;es related to these
sectors of our loan portfolic. The Bank is fortunate to have senior bankers who have expenenced several previous
chaltenging credit cycles. As with the first year of any credit cycle, nonperforming loans past due loans and
charged-off loans will increase. The level of deterioration is dependent on the quality of loan underwntmg and risk
pricing used during the loan’s origination several years ago. If underwriting and pricing is done properly, the level of
credit quality deterioration will be mild.

Management reviews the adequacy of the allowance for {oan losses on a quarterly basis. The provision for loan
losses represents the amount determined by management necessary 1o maintain the allowance for loan losses at a
tevel capable of absorbing inherent losses in the loan portfolio. (See “Critical Accounting Elstlmates" below.) For
2007, our provision for loan losses totaled $4.5 million and our net charge-offs totaled $4.3 million. As of
December 31, 2007, our allowance for loan losses was $22.9 million, or 1.13% of loans, net of unearned income.

Critical Accounting Estimates

In preparing financial information, management is required to make significant estimates and assumptions that
affect the reporied amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses for the periods sh(:)wn The accounting
principles we follow and the methods of applying these principles conform to accounung principles generally
accepted in the United States and to general banking practices. Our most significant z:snmzuesI and assomptions are
related primarily to our allowance for loan losses, income taxes and goodwill impairment and are summarized in the
following discussion and in the notes to the consolidated financial statements,

Allowance for Loan Losses

Management’s determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, which is based on the factors
ind risk idenification procedures discussed in the following pages, requires the use of judgmclms and estimates that
may change in the fulure. Changes in the factors used by management to determine the adequacy of the allowance or
‘he availability of new information could cause the allowance for loan losses 1o be increased (l>r decreased in future
seriods. In addition, our regulators, as part of their examination process, may require that addmons or reductions be
“nade 1o the allowance for loan losses based on their judgments and estimates.

Income Tuxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on (emporary differences between financial reporting
and tax bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
mcome in the years in which those temporary differences are expecied 10 reverse. These calculations are based on
many complex factors, including estimates of the timing of reversals of temporary differences' the interpretation of
‘ederal and siate income tax laws, and a determination of the differences between the tax and lhe financial reporting
ibasis of assets and liabilities. Actal results could differ significantly from the estimates and mlerprclauom used in
Jetermining the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities.

Our determination of the realization of deferred tax assets (net of valuation allowances) is based upon
management's judgment of various future events and uncenainties, including future reversals of existing taxable
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temporary differences, the timing and amount of future income earned by our subsidiaries 3nd the implementation
of various tax planning sirategies to maximize realization of the deferred tax assets. A portipn of the amount of the
deferred tax asset that can be realized in any year is subject 10 certain statutory federa) incame tax limitations. We
believe that our subsidiaries will be able 1o generate sufficient operating eamings to realize LT deferred tax benefits.
We evaluate quarterly the realizability of the deferred tax assets and, if necessary, adjust any valuation allowance
accordingly.

In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued FASB {Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes (“FIN 48”). This interpretation clarifies the acJDuming for uncertainty
in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (*SFAS”) No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Specificalty, the pranouncement prescribes
a recognition threshold and a measurement attribuie for the financial statement recognition] and measurement of a
tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The interpretation also provides guidance on the related
recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting for interim periods, disclqsure and transition of
uncertain tax positions. The interpretation was ¢ffective for fiscal years beginning afler December 15, 2006. We
adopled FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 (see Note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statemenits).

Acquisitions

T ' . . | , .
We recorded the assets and liabilities of People’s, Kensington and Community at their estimated fair values.

Arriving at these fair values required numerous assumptions regarding the economic life ot: assets, decay rates for
liabilities and other faciors. We engaged a third party to assist us in valuing certain of the financial assets and
liabilities of People’s, Kensington and Community. We alse engaged a real estate appraisal firm 10 value the more
significant properties that we acquired in the acquisitions. As a resuit, we consider the val €s we have assigned 10
the acquired assets and liabilities of People’s, Kensington and Community to be reasonable ind consistent with the
application of generally accepted accounting principles.

Long-lived assets, including purchased intangible assets subject 10 amortization, s ch as our core deposit
intangible asset, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumsthnces indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held an ‘used is measured by a
comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows éxpected to be generated
by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, : impatrment charge is
recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assetstobe
disposed of would be separately presented in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or

fair value less cosis to sell, and are no longer depreciated,

Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are tested annually 1o|r impairment, and are
tested for impairment more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. An
impairment loss is recognized 10 the extent that the carrying amoum exceeds the asset’y fair value. Qur annual
assessment date is December 31. Should we determine in a future period that the goodwill r:ecordcd in connection
with our acquisitions has become impaired, then a charge to our camings will be recofded in the period such
determination is made.
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Results of Operations

Earnings. Net income decreased $155,000, or 7.6%, to $1.90 million for the three months ended Decem-
ber 31, 2007 (fourth quarter of 2007), from $2.06 million for the three months ended Decclmber 31, 2006 (fourth
quarter of 2006). Net income increased $2.62 million, or 52.5%, to $7.62 million for the year ended December 31,
2007, from $5.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The following table presems key eamings data for
the periods indicated;

Three Months Year
Ended December 31, Ended December M,
2007 2006 | 2007 2006

{Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Superior Bancorp and Subsidiaries

NELINCOME . ... ittt e 51,904 $2059, S 7.621 34,997
Net income per common share {dituted} . ..................... 0.05 0.06| 0.20 0.21
Netinterest margin. ... . ... ... it i nnanns 3.20% 3.34% 337% 3.17%
Netinterestspread . ... ... ..t iiiiii e, 2.88 3.01 3.04 2.93
Return on average assels. .. ... ..ot it i i 0.26 0.37 0.29 0.30
Return on average stockholders’ equity ... .......... ... ... .... 2.16 -3.71 2.47 3.55
Retum on average tangibleequity . . .. ... ... .. ... ... ..., 4.66 6.52 4.91 4.89
Book value pershare ... ... ... ... . ... ... .. ... .., $873 §$797 5§ 873 § 1797
Tangible book value pershare. .. ........................... 4.05 4.23 4.05 4.23
Banking Subsidiary, Superior Bank

NelinCoOme . ..o e e et e e e e $2,329 $3.884] 812473 $9,156
Return on average assels. . . ... ...ttt 0.32% 0.68% 048% (0.55%
Return on average stockholders' equity . . ........... ... ... ... 236 6.64 3.63 5.85
Retum on average tangible equity . . .. ... ... ... .. ool 4.50 11.23 6.54 7.78

Net income decreased during the fourth quarter of 2007 compared to 2006. This Idecrcaz;e is primarily
attributable to an increase in the provision for loan losses. The increase in our net income during the year ended
December 31, 2007 compared to year ended December 31, 2006 is primarily the result of an increase in net interest
income and noninterest income offset by an increase in noninterest expenses. The lI‘lCI‘|CﬂSC in each of these
components is primarily attributable to our de novo branch strategy and our acquisitions of People’s in the third
quarter of 2007, and Kensington and Community in the third and fourth quarters, respectively, of 2006.

23




Net Interest Income.  The largest component of our net income is net interest income. v
between the income earned on interest-earning assets and interest paid on deposits and bo
income is determined by the rates earned on our interest-camning assets, rates paid on our inter]
the relative amounts of interest-eaming assets and interest-bearing liabilities, the degree
maturity and repricing charactenstics of our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing I
income divided by average interest-earning assets represents our net interest margin. The
marizes the changes in the components of net interest income for the periods indicated:

Interest-earning assets:
Loans, net of uneamed income. .. .......
Investment securities

Total investment securities . ... .....
Federal fundssold . ................
Other investments . ... .............

Tolal interest -earning assels. ..... ..
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits. . ............ Peeaa
Savings deposits .. ....... .. .ol
Time deposits .. ......ovvivvnnnnnn..

Other borrowings. . ......... . ovnvnt
Subordinated debentures .. ............

Total interest-bearing liabilities. . . . ..
Net interest income/net interest spread. ... ..
Net yield on eamning assets .. ............

Taxable equivalent adjustment:
lavestment securities ... ..............

Net interest income . .............

Increase (Decrense) in

vhich is the difference
rowings. Net interest
est-bearing liabilities,
l of mismatch and the
abilities. Net interest
following table sum-

Fourth Quarter

Yeat Ended December 34,

2007 vs. 2006 | 2007 vs, 2006
Average Income/ Yield/ Averape. Income/ Yiewd/
Batance Expcnse Rate Balance,| Expense Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
ASSETS
$545413 $ 9978 (0.22)% $662,185 $57,784 031%
(5,051) 131 0.24 64,862 4,180 030
21,494 361 0.54 11,575 770 043
16,443 492 031 76,437 4950 033
(18,110) {244) (0.53) (2.128) o9 012
1,761 {106) (1.08) 10,345 779 0.36
$545.507 10,120 (0.03) $746,8%19 63,414 0.40
$162,738 1,768 0.05  $208,863 8934 036
11,752 187 1.04 22,684 641 0.98
280,020 4,374 0.34 407,135 23,581 0.44
16,770 (55) (0.41) 20,812 1,368 0.13
18,347 135 (2.53%) 14.915 860 (1.22)
|
$519,627 6410 0.0 $674439 35384 0.29
3710 (0.13)% 28,030 0.11%
(0.18)% 0.20%
123 262
$ 3,587 $27,768
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The following table depicts, on a taxable equivalent basis for the fourth quarters of 2007 and 2006, certain
information related to our average balance sheet and our average yields on assets and average costs of liabilities.
Average yields are calculated by dividing income or expense by the average balance of the corresponding assets or

liabilities. Average balances have been calculated on a daily basis.

Three Mooths Ended December 3,

2007 | 1006

Average Income/  Yield/ Avel:'agt Income/  Yield/
Balsnce Expense & Batance Expense Rate
(Dollars in thousands)
ASSETS
Interesi-camning assets: '
Loans, net of uneamed income(1) . . .. ... oiih i $2.045813 340660 7.89% $1,500400 $30.682 8.1i%
Investment securities
Taxable . . ... . . e e 331,596 4369 523 33|6.647 4238 4.9
Tox-exempi(2) . . ... e e, 31,447 537 637 11,953 176 5.83
Total investment secusities . .. .. .. ... vae it 365.043 4906 533 34:8.600 4414 5.02
Federal fundssold . . ........ ... .0t amneennn 8,500 97 4.5} 26610 31 5.06
Other INVESIMENS . » o oot s e s chaaemm e e etes 48,800 640 5.20 47,039 746  6.28
Total interesi-CAMINgG Sset5. . . - . o2 vvvrornerreen ... 2468156 46301  T44 1922649 36183 747
Noninterest-carning asscls: k
Cashanddeefrombanks . ......... ... i, 48,618 32.628
Premises and equipment . . . ... ... a i 99,190 81.068
Accrued interest and Other assels . .. .o v v v e e v v nnnnaan 290,894 164,232
Allowance for loan losses .. .... ... et (22,093) (17,152}
TOta] GSSEIS - . . .\t $2.884,763 $2.183.425

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Interest-bearing liabifities:

$ 5657 153% § 442,633 § 1888 148%
34 208 48,194 127 1.04
16037 497 998,956 1,663 463
3336 489 254.038 3391 5.30
1,066 7.86 35452 931 1041

Demanddeposits . .. .........ccv. i $ 635370
Savingsdeposits ... . ... ... e 39.946
Time deposits . .. ... vt unr oottt i c e 1,278,976
Otherbomowings. . . .. ... .. ...t ivainnasrns 270,808
Subordinated debentures . .. ... ... Ll e 53,79%
Total interest-bearing labifities . . .. ... ... vviiaanna, 2,298,900
Honinerest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits . . . .. ... . . it i e 206,977
Accrued interest and other liabilities . . . ... ... ... . ..., 29,834
Stockholders' equily . .. ..ottt e i 349,052
Total liabilities and stockholders® equity .. .............. $2,884,763
Het interest income/net interest spread .. ... ...,
Heryield oncaming assets . . ... ..t ii it v e v ennnn
Taxable equivalent adjusiment:
Investment secunities(2). . . ... ... ... L e
Net interest income, .. ........... e

26410 456  LTI9273 20000 446
159,239
24,159
220,154
$2,183.425
19.893  2.88% 16183  301%
3.20% 3%
183 60
$19.710 516,123

(1) Nonaccrual loans are included in loans, net of unearned income. No adjustment has been made for these loans in

the calculation of yields.

(2) Interest income and yields are presented on a fully taxable equivalent basis using a tax|rate of 34%.




The following table sets forth, on a taxable equivalent basis, the effect that the vary
eaming assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the applicable rates have had on changes in
the fourth quarters of 2007 and 2006:

Three Mo
pi

ing levels of interest-
et interest income for

ths Ended December 31,
vs. 2006 (1)

Increase
(Decrease)

Changes Due To
Rate Volume

(Doflars in thousands)

Increase (decrease) in:
Income from interest-earning assels:

Interest and fees on 10ANS . . . .. . ... i i e e $9978| § (856) $10,834
Interest on securities:
Taxable .. ... e e 131 197 (66)
TaOX-EXEBIMPL . o\t e et i e 361 18 344
Intereston federal funds. ... .. .. ottt it i vt (244) (33) (P18
Interest on other INVESUMENIS . . .. ... vt ir i rnnnnnan (106) (133} 27
Total INETESE INCOME . .. ..ottt e vt ianrnaraaean s 10,120 (807) 10,928
Expense from interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest on demand deposits . . .. .. .. ..o i e 1,769 | 57 1,712
[NLErest ON SaViNgs dEPOSHS - . . v v v e v vrnneeeeeennnnnns i 187, 150 37
Interest on time deposits .. ... .. ... i i 43147 908 3.466
Interest on other borrowings. . ... .. SN I (55) (271 216
Interest on subordinated debentures .. .. ... ... ... e, 135 (266) 401
Total INIErest €XPENSE . . . ..ottt it 6,410 578 3,832
Netinlerest inCome. .. .. oo ov i ittt $ 3,710[1 $(1,385) 3§ 5.096

(1) The change in interest due to both rate and volume has been allocated to rate and volumge
to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the changes in each. |
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The following tables depict, on a taxable equivalent basis for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2007, certain information related to our average balance sheet and our average yields on assets and
average costs of liabilities. Such yields are derived by dividing income or expense by the average balance of the
corresponding assets or liabilities. Average balances have been derived from daily avcrag;lzs.

[nterest-caming assets:
Loans, net of uncamed
income(1). .. ...........
[nvestment securities:
Toxable. . ...............

Total investment securities . . .
Federal funds sold . ... ......
Other investments . ... ... ...

Total interest-carning assets . .

Noninierest-caming assels:
Cash and due from banks
Premises and equipment . . . . ..
Accrued interest and other

assels

Interesi-hearing liabilities:
Demand deposits. . .. ..... ..
Savings deposits . ... ..., ...
Time deposits. . .. ... 0.
Other bormowings
Subordinated debentures . . . ...

Tota) interest-bearing
ligbilities. ............
Honinterest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposits. . ... .. .. ..
Accrued interest and other
liahilities
Tota! lisbilities
Stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity. . . . ..

Net interest income/net interest

Net yield on caming assets . . . .

Taxable equivalent adjustment:
Investment securities(2)

Net interest income

the calculation of yields.

(:2) Interest income and yields are presented on a fully taxable equivalent basis using a 1ax
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(1) Nonaccrual loans are included in loans, net of uneamed income. No adjustment has been m;

Year Ended December 31,
007 1006 1 2005
Interesi  Ave: Interest  Ave Interest  Ave:
Averuge Elirnr:sdl ;’l:{;ﬁc Average Earned/ \’idr?f Avlnge Earned/ “:‘gre
Balance Paid Rate Balance Paid Rate Balance Paid Rate
{Dollars in thoussnds)
ASSETS
$1,839.029 $150,441 £.18% 81,176,844 § 92659 787% $ 947212 $63.895 6.75%
328.893 [7,174 522 264,031 12994 492 255663 11632 455
21668 1,359 6.27 10,093 580 584 |6,932 373 538
350,561 18,533 529 274,124 13,583 496 26:2.595 12005 4.57
8975 471 525 11,102 570 5.2 14,757 460 312
47,612 2944 6.8 37227 2,165 5.82 22,266 1,047 470
2,246,177 172,391 767 1,499,297 108,977 17.27 1.246.830 77407 621
45,142 32,730 28227
95,289 64.378 56,897
254,785 100,514 83,743
(20.431) {13,594} (12,504)
$2.620.962 $1.683,325 $1.403,193
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
$ 568,125 §$ 20791 366% § 359262 % 11,857 330% § 339.842 § 114 2.10%
50,652 818 L6l 27,968 177 0.63 25,935 4 0as
1,171,942 58,058 495 764,787 34477 451 607,141 20,731 341
249,443 12971 520 228,631 11,603 507 187.297 7493 400
48,557 4129 850 33.642 3260 972 31,959 2847 891
2,088,719 96,767 4.5 1,414,290 61383 434 1,192,174 38255 3.2
191,066 §11,757 93,564
32.905 16,451 15,651
2312690 1,542,498 1,301,389
308.272 140,827 101,804
$2,620,962 $1,683,325 $1,403,1923
75624 3.04% 47,594  2.93% 3%,152  3.00%
337% 37% 3.1%
462 200 127
$ 75,162 $ 47,394 $39,025

ade for these loans in

rate of 34 percent.




The following table sets forth, on a taxable equivalent basis, the effect which the varying levels of interest-

eamning assets and inlerest-bearing liabilities and the applicable rates have had on changes in
the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Year Ended December 31,(1

net interest income for

2007 vs. 2006 | 2006 vs, 2008
Incrense Changes Due o Increase Changes Due to
(Decrease) Rate ) Volume (Decrease) Rate Volume
(Doltars in thousznds) |
Income from eaming assets:
Interest and feesonloans ............ $57.784 $3,780 $54,004 $28,764 | $11,688  $17,076
Interest on securities:
Taxable . ... ... ..o, 4,180 831 3,349 1,362 390 972
Tax-exempt. . .. ..o 770 46 724 216 33 183
Interest on federal funds . .. .......... (99 13 {112) 110 244 (134)
Interest on other investments. . ........ 779 141 638 1,118 997 12]
Total interest income ... ......... 63414 4,811 58,603 31,570 13,352 18,218
Expense from interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest on demand deposits . ... ...... 8.934 1412 7.522 4713 4,285 428
Interest on savings deposits. . ......... 641 421 220 137 134 3
Interest on time deposits . ... ...... ... 23,581 3,651 19,930 13,746 1.616 6,130
Interest on other borrowings . . ........ 1,368 301 1,067 4,110 2,252 1,858
Interest on subordinated debentures. . . .. 860 (450) 1,310 422 267 155
Total interest expense . .......... 35,384 5,335 30,049 23,128 14,554 8.574
Net interest income . . . .....0 . ... $28,030 $(524) $28554 $ 8442} $(1,202) % 9644

(1) The changes in net interest income due to both rate and volume have been allocated to ra
in proportion to the relationship of the absolute dollar amounts of the changes in eac

Provision for Loan Losses.
to be necessary to maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level capable of absorbing inh
portfolio. Management reviews the adequacy of the aHowance for loan losses on a quarterl]
for loan loss calculation is segregated into various segments that include classified toar
allocations and pass rated loans. A pass rated loan is generally characterized by a very low to
and in which management perccives there is a minimal risk of loss. Loans are rated using an
loan officers having the primary responsibility for assigning risk ratings and for the timely
the risk ratings. These processes, and the assigned risk ratings, are subject (o review by ot

e and volume changes
|

o

The provision for loan losses represents the amount detertnined by management

erent losses in the loan
y basis. The allowance
;s, loans with specific
average risk of default

tI:ighl-point scale, with

nllt::poning of changes in

r internal loan review

function and chief credit officer. Impaired loans are reviewed specifically and separate
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS") No. 114 to determine the appropriate reserve al
compares the investment in an impaired loan with the present value of expected future cash
loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s observable market price, or the fair value of the ¢

3'/ under Statement of
;ocalion. Management
ows discounted at the
llateral, if the loan is

collateral-dependent, to determine the specific reserve allowance. To evaluate the overall ade Iuacy of the allowance
to absorb losses inherent in our loan portfolio, management considers historical loss expe ence based on volume
and types of loans, trends in classifications, volume and trends in delinquencies and non-accruals, economic
zonditions and other pertinent information, Based on future evaluations, additional provisigns for loan losses may
be necessary to maintain the allowance for loan losses at an appropriate level. See “Hinancial Condition —
Allowance for Loan Losses™ for additional discussion.

The provision for loan losses was $1.7 million for the fourth quarter of 2007, an increase of $1.0 million, or

154.9%, from $650,000 in the fourth quarier of 2006. The provision for loan losses was $
nded December 31, 2007, an increase of $2.0 million, or 81.6%, from $2.5 million the ye
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2006, During the fourth guarter and year ended December 31, 2007, we had net charged-off loans totaling
$1.7 million and $4.3 million, respectively, compared to net charged-off loans of $662,000 and $2.3 million in the
fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2006, respectively. The annualized ratio of ne[ charged-off loans to
average loans was 0.33% and 0.24% for the founh quarter of 2007 and year ended December 31 2007, compared to
the .18% and 0.20% for the fourth quarter of 2006 and year ended December 31, 2006. The aII?wmcc for loan losses
totaled $22.9 million, or 1.13% of loans, net of unearmed income, at December 31, 2007, compared to $18.9 million,
or 1.15% of loans, net of uneared income, at December 31, 2006. See “Financial Condition — Allowance for Loan
Losses” for additional discusston.

Noninterest income. Noninterest income increased $2.2 million and 57.5 million, or|61.l% and 63.9%, 10
$5.8 million and $19.4 million for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2007, respectively, from
$3.6 million and $11.9 million for the fourth quarter and year ended December 31, 2006 respectively. The
components of noninterest income for the fourth quarters and years ended December 31, 2007jand 2006 consisted of
the following:

Three Mounths Ended December 31,

2007 2006 % Change
(Dollars lln thousands)
Service charges and fees on deposits . .............. ... ... ... 32,183 Sl.i530 42.68%
Mortgage banking income .. ... ..ottt 808 839 (3.69)
Investment SecUrities BAINS. . .. ... vt v it ir s 66 — 100.00
Change in fair value of derivatives . .. ....................... 1,141 ?3] 244.71
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance . .............. 514 I357 43.98
Other noNINIErESt MCOMIE . . . v\ v v vt et er e e s anecraeaennns 1,096 549 99.64
TOE o oo e e $5808 $3.606 _61.06%
Year Ended December 31,
1007 2006 % Change
(Dollars in ilhousands)
Service charges and feeson deposits. . . . ........ ... ... ..., $ 1957 3 4.?15 61.89%
Mortgage banking income ... ......... ... i 3,860 2,997 28.80
Investment securities gains . .. .. ... .. .. ... ... .ieean.. 308 — 100.00
Change in fair valve of derivatives . . ...................... 1,310 3|74 250.27
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance . . ........... 1,895 1,580 19.94
Other noninterest income . .. .. ...... .. ... viiiivinn. 4,027 1,945 107.04
Total .. e $19357  $§lI ,él 1 63.89%

The increases in service charges on deposits and fees are primarily attributable to an increased customer base
tesulting from our acquisitions. The increase in mortgage banking income is the result of an increase in the volume
of originations. The increase in other noninterest income is primarily due to increases in 'eredit life insurance
commissions, brokerage commissions and ATM network fees. Our credit life insurance commissions have
iacreased due to the acquisition of a consumer finance company subsidiary as part of the CPmmunily purchase.
The increase in brokerage commissions is the result of increased volume in our investment subsidiary, and the
ilicrease in ATM netwark fees is the result of increased volume related to new customers and additional ATM

locations acquired through acquisitions or new branch locations.
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Noninterest expenses. Noninterest expenses increased $4.7 million, or 29.4%, to $20
quarter of 2007 from $16.1 million for the fourth quarter of 2006. This increase is primarily
and the opening of new branch locations. Selected key ratios, as shown below, remained lev

. : . , . -
with noninierest expense 10 average assets ratio showing some improvement. Continues

B million for the fourth
due to our acquisitions
el between the periods
i branch expansion is

expected 10 put pressure on these ratios. However, increases in the volume of net interest lI
income are expected to begin offsetting these costs. Noninterest expenses included the fg
quarters of 2007 and 2006:

ncome and noninterest
llowing for the fourth

Three Months Epded December 31,

2007 2#06 % Change
{Dollars i thousands)

Noninterest Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits. .. ... ... ... e $11,357 § 8738 29.97%
Occupancy, furniture and equipment expense ................ 3,742 1,430 53.99
Management SEParation COSES . . .. v v v e ininnnneniannns — 1265 (100.00)
Amortization of core deposit intangibles. . .................. 588 2090 181.34
Merger-related COSIS . - -« o vvevseeeerenenenarenanenns 108 less  (62.11)
ProfeSSIONA) fEES & v v vt v v ettt ettt 720 1738 (2.32)
INSUTANCE EXPENSE . . . oottt in s ia i i n e n e iseans s 638 588 8.56
Postage, stationery and supplies ... ... ... oot 570 438 30.11
Communications eXpPense . . ... ... vventee oo iases 538 401 34.08
Advertising eXpense. . ... ...t inrra e 638 432 4749
Other Operating expense. . ... ... ot inaenea.n- 1,951 593 22.47
Total e e $20850 $14.117 29.37%
Selected Key Ratios
Noninterest expense to average assets{i}. ................... 2.76% 2.84%
Efficiency ratio{1) ... ... .. oo i 81.82 19.19

(1) In calculating the selected key ratios, noninterest expense has been adjusted for amort
intangibles, merger-related costs and other losses on the sale of assets.
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Noninterest expenses increased $28.4 million, or 57.1%, to $78.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2007 from $49.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. This increase is primarily due to our acquisitions
and the opening of new branch locations. Selected key ratios, as shown below, improved from the year ended
December 31, 2006. Continued branch expansion is expected to put pressure on these ratios. Powcvcr, increases in

the volume of net interest income and noninterest income are expected to begin offsetting these costs. Noninterest
expenses included the following for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 %% Change
(Dotlars in|thousands)

Noninterest Expenses
Salaries and employee benefits . .. ... .. ................... $42316 $26,§05 57.81%
Occupancy, furniture and equipment expense . ............... 13,391 7,?54 72.70
Management separalion costs . . .. .. ... i — 265  (100.00)
Amortization of core deposit intangibles.. . ............... ... 1,691 ‘442 28258
Loss on extinguishmentof debt . ........... ... ... ... ... 1,469 ‘ —_ 100.00
Merger-related COSIS. . .. .. ..ot e 639 635 .63
Loss on temination of ESOP ... ... ... ... ... o il 158 - 100.00
Subsidiary Startup CoSiS . . .. .. i e — 135 (100.00)
Professional fees . ... ... i e 2,269 2.?98 (12.65)
[NSUraNce EXPENSE . .. ... oottt e e 2,189 I.§99 15.29
Postage, stationery and supplies . ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 2,252 I.?SO 80.20
CommUuniCations EXPeNSE . . ..o v vt vn e s e e 2,007 ?88 103.04
Adventising expense . .. .. ... _ ... e 2,397 1,352 77.34
Other operating eXpense. . . ... .o inr i nennrnaus 7,445 5,562 31.47
TOL . oo $78223 $49.785 _ 5T.12%
Selected Key Ratios ‘
Noninterest expense to average assets(l). . ... ............... 2.83% 2‘.84%
Efficiency ratio{]) . .. .. oottt e 79.48 81.46

1) In calculating the selected key ratios, noninterest expense has been adjusted for amomzauon of core deposit
imangibles, extinguishment of debt, merger-related costs, termination of ESOP and other losses on the sale of
assets.

Income tax expense. 'We recognized income tax expense of $1.1 million and $4.! mtlllon for the fourth
-quarter of 2007 and year ended December 31, 2007, respectively, compared to $903,000 and $1.9 million for the
fourth quarter of 2006 and year ended December 31, 2006, respectively. Our effective tax rale increased in 2007
'ompan:d to 2006 due to higher levels of income, recognition of taxable gains on the cxchangc of bank-owned life
nsurance and the recapture of tax credits related to the sale of condominium units. The dlfference between the
wffective tax rates in 2007 and 2006 and the blended federal statutory rate of 34% and state tax rates between 5% and
5%, is primarily due to certain tax-exempt income from investments and insurance pollc:es We adopted the
jsrovisions of FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007, the effect of which is described in Note 14 10 the Consolidated Financial
Statements. -

We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 as of January 1, 2007 which resulted in a charge of approximately
$555,000 1o the January 1, 2007 retained eamings balance. As of the adoption date, we had unrecognized tax
benefits of $459,000, all of which, if recognized, would affect our effective tax rate. Also, as 'of the adoption date,
‘we had accrued interest expense related to the unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $146,000. Accrued
interest related 1o unrecognized tax benefits is recognized in income tax expense. Penalties, if incurred. will be
recognized in income tax expense as well.
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We, along with our subsidiaries, are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as to Alabgy
income taxes. We have concluded all U.S. federal income tax matters for years through y
acquisitions.

Al state income tax matters have been concluded for years through 2001. We received notif
adjustments relating to state taxes due for the years 2002 and 2003, which include proposed|adjust
income apportionment of a subsidiary. Qur management anticipates that these examinationsimay be
foreseeable future. However, based on the status of these examinations, and the protocol of finalizil
- taxing authority, which could include formal legal proceedings, it is not possible to esumate the
changes to the previously recorded uncertain tax positions. There have been no significant change.

these examinations during the twelve-month period ended December 31, 2007.

ma and Florida
2002, including

tes of proposed
ents relating to
finalized in the
ng audits by the
impact of any
10 the status of

QOur net deferred tax assets decreased $4.5 million to $20.9 million as of December 31, 2007 from $25.4 million

at December 31, 2006. This decrease is primarily due to an tncrease in deferred tax liabilities
acquisition of People’s.

Our determination of the realization of deferred tax assets (net of valuation allowance)
management's judgment of various future events and uncertainties, including future rcver:%als of ¢
temporary differences, the timing and amount of future income earned by our subsidiaries and the
of various tax planning strategies to maximize realization of the deferred tax assets. A ponitlm of th
deferred tax asset that can be realized in any vear is subject to certain statutory federal mco‘mc tax
believe that our subsidiaries will be able 10 generate sufficient operating carnings to realize the defen

related to our

is based upon
bxisting taxable
mplementation
B amount of the
limitations. We
red tax benefits.

We evaluate quarterly the realizability of the deferred tax assets and, if necessary, adjust any valu
accordingly.

Year Ended December 31, 2006, Compared with Year Ended December 31, 2005

Our net income for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $4.9 million, compared to a net los
for the year ended December 31, 2005. Net income available to common stockholders was $4 9 milli
cnded December 31, 2006, compared to a net loss of $8.1 million for the year ended Deccmbcr 31,
and diluted net income {loss) per common share was $0.21 for the year ended December 3l 2

tion allowance

of $5.8 million
ion for the year

our langlble book value per common share decreased 1o $4. 23 al December 31, 2006 from $4. 61 as of December 31,
2005. Average equity to average assets increased 1o 8.37% in 2006 from 7.26% in 2005. |

The increase in eamings for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended December 31,
2005 was primarily the result of an increase in net interest income and a decrease in managcment sl:parauon cOSts.

Net interest income is the difference between the income eamed on interest-earning assets and nterest paid on
interest-bearing liabilities used to support such assets. Net interest income increased $8. 4|mlll|on or 21.4%, to
$47.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from $39.0 million for the year ended Decembe 31, 2005. This
‘was due to an increase in interest income of $31.5 million, or 40.8%, offset by a increase in lotal int¢rest expense of
$23.1 million, or 60.5%. The increase in total interest income was primarily attributable lo a $28.8 million, or
45.1%, increase in interest income on average loans, which increased $230 million to $1. 177 bi ion.

The increases in interest income were offset by a $18.6 million, or 66.6%, increase in intefest expense on
deposits and a $4.5 million, or 43.8%, increase in interest expense on other borrowings. Average terest-beaning
leposits increased $179.1 million, or 18.4%, and average other borrowings increased $41.3 mnlllon or 22.1%. The
iiverage rale paid on interesi-bearing liabilities was 4.34% for the year ended December 3I 2006, compared to

1.21% for the year ended December 31, 2005. This increase is the result of higher average rales paid on all interest-
bearing deposits due (o higher market rates.

he year ended
31, 2005,

Our net interest spread and net interest margin were 2.93% and 3.17%. respectively, for
December 31, 2006, compared to 3.00% and 3.14%, respectively, for the year ended Decc%’nbcr
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Qur average interesi-carning assets lor the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $251r2.5 million, or 20.2%,
to $1.499 billion from $1.247 billion for the year ended December 31, 2005. This increase in our average interest-
earning assets was due primarily 1o mergers with Kensington and Community in late 2006 and increased loan
production. Average interest-bearing liabilities increased $222.1 million, or 18.6%, toi‘ $1.414 billion from
$1.192 billion for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in average interest-bearing liabilities is
primarily due o mergers with Kensington and Community in late 2006. The ratio of our average interest-carning
asscls (o average interest-bearing liabilities was 106.0% and 104.6% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
2003, respectively. Our average interest-bearing assets produced a taxable equivalent yield 'of 7.27% for the year
ended December 31, 2006, compared 10 6.21% for the year ended December 31, 2005. The |06 basis point increase
in the yield was offset by a 1]3-basis point increase in the average rate paid on interest- beanng liabilities.

The provision for loan losses was $2.5 million for the year cnded December 31, 2006, a décrease of $1.0million
in comparison to $3.5 million in 2005. This decrease can be attributed primarily to the continued improvement in
the overall quality of the Bank’s loan portfolios. While the provision is moderaiely lower inl comparison to 2005,
management continues to maintain a proactive approach 1o credit risk management as the economy experiences
>ycles and as the Bank continues to grow both internally and through mergers and acquisitions. Nonperforming
loans increased, to 0.52% of loans at December 31, 2006 from 0.49% at December 31, 2005. During 2006, we had
et charged-off loans totaling $2.3 million, compared to net charged-off loans of $4.0 million for 2005. The ratio of
net charged-off loans to average loans was 0.20% for 2006 compared 1o 0.43% for 2005. The allowance for loan
losses totaled $18.9 million, or 1.15% of loans, net of unearned income, at December 3! 2006, compared to
$12.0 million, or 1.25% of loans, net of uneared income, at December 31, 2005. See “Financial Condition —
Allowance for Loan Losses™ for additiona! discussion.

Neninterest income decreased $2.9 million, or 19.6%, 10 $1 1.8 million in 2006 from $14.7 million in 2005.
‘This decrease is primarily due to insurance proceeds received in 2005 of $5.1 million and was partially offset by
$1.3 million in losses on the sale of available-for-sale securities in 2005 and changes in the fairjvalues of derivatives.
In 2006, changes in the fair value of derivatives totaled $374,000. The investment portfolio losses were realized
primarily in the first quarter of 2005 as a result of a $50 million sale of bonds in the invelstmenl portfolio. We
reinvested the proceeds in bonds intended to enhance the yicld and cash flows of our invesiment securities portfolio.
The new investment securities were classified as available for sale.

Income from mortgage banking operations for the year ended December 31, 2006 increased $439,000, or
17.2%. to $3.0 million in 2006 from $2.6 million in 2005. This increase is due to increased origination activity
¢ uring 2006. Income from customer service charges and fees increased $228,000, or 4.9%, 10/$4.9 million in 2006
from $4.6 million in 2005. This increase is primarily due to an increase of transaction accounts from 2005 o 2006.
Management is currently pursuing new accounts and customers through direct marketing and other promotional
efforts to increase this source of revenue. Other noninterest income was $3.5 million, a dec‘rease of $86,000, or

2.3%, from $3.6 million in 2005.

Noninterest expense decreased $10.8 million, or 17.9%, 10 $49.8 million in 2006 from $60 6 million in 2005,
primarily due to the management separation costs of $15.5 million incurred in the first six months of 2005, Salaries
and employee benefits increased $3.7 million, or 16.0%, to $26.8 million in 2006 compared to $23.1 million in
2005. This increase is primarily the result of an increased employee base which resulied from the mergers with
Kensington and Community in the third and founth quarters of 2006. We incurred internal merger—related costs and
subsidiary startup costs of $770,000.

All other noninterest expenses remained flat, at $22.0 million in 2006 and in 2005, as the new executive
nmanagement team implemented centain cost control measures. See Note 21 to the Consolidated Financial
Siatements for more detail on the components of our noninterest expenses.

Income tax expense was $1.9 million in 2006, compared o a tax benefit of $4.6 million i in 2005. The pnmary
difference in the effective tax rate ang the federal stawtory rate of 34% for 2006 is due 10 the effect of cenain tax-
exempt interest and the increase in the cash surrender value of life insurance. See Note 14 10 the Consolidated
Financial Statements for more delail on the components of our income tax expense.
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Our net deferred tax assets increased to $25.3 million as of December 31, 2006 frotn $14.8 million at
December 31, 2005. This increase is primarily due to an increase in federal net operating (loss carryforwards
("NOLs™). Approximately $26.0 million in NOLs were generated in prior periods by Co munity, which we

acquired during the fourth quanier of 2006. These carryforwards are subject to cenain statutory| limitations, but we

|
expect that future earnings will be sufficient to wilize these losses. These carryforwards do not
the year 2023. Due to limitations on the use of nei operating losses acquired in the merger

gin lo expire until
ith Community, a

valuation allowance of $1.2 mitlion has been established as of December 31, 2006 against such deferred income tax

assets in purchase accounting. Any subsequently recognized income tax benefits relzllting
allowance will be reflected as a reduction of goodwill related 10 the acquisition.

Market Risk — Interest Rate Sensitivity

Market risk is the nisk of loss arising from adverse changes in the fair value of ﬁnanci‘al i

to this valuation

struments due to a

change in interest rates, exchange rates and equity prices. Our primary market risk is interes{ rate risk.

We evaluate interest rate sensitivity risk and then formulate guidelines regarding astet generation and
repricing. funding sources and pricing, and off-balance sheet commitments in order to |moderale interest rate

sensitivity risk. We use computer simulations that reflect various interest rate scenarios and the
interest income over specified periods of time.

ated impact on net

The primary objective of asset/liability management is to manage interest rate risk z%nd chieve reasonable
stability in net interest income throughout interest rate cycles. This is achieved by maintaining the proper balance of

interest rate sensitive eaming assets and interest rate sensitive liabilities. In general, manage
match asset and liability balances within maturity categories to limit our exposure to eami

nt’s strategy is 1o
gs vanattons and

variations in the value of assets and liabilities as interest rates change over time. Our asset and liabiliy management

strategy is formulated and monitored by our Asset/Liability Management Committee| (A
composed of our head of asset/liability management and other senior officers, in accordance witl]

LCO™), which is
policies approved

by the board of directors. The ALCO meets monthly to review, among other things, the sensitivify of our assets and

liabilities to interest rate changes, the book and market values of assets and liabilities, unrca]:ze
including those attributable to purchase and sale activity, and maturities of investments and borrg

d gains and losses,
wings. The ALCO

ility composition
tors.

also approves and establishes pricing and funding decisions with respect 1o overall asset an'd li
and reports regularly to our Board Loan and Investment Committee and the full board of di

One of the primary goals of the ALCO is to cffectively manage the duration of our assets and liabilities so that
the respective durations are matched as closely as possible. These duration adjustments can be accomplished either
internally by restructuring our balance sheei, or extemally by adjusting the duration of our sets or liabilities
through the use of interesi rate contracts, such as interest rate swaps, caps, and floors. In the fourh quarter of 2006,
as it appeured shori-term rates had reached a plateaw, we purchased $50 million in interest rate 1 ors, reducing our
level of asset sensitivity. (See “Interest Rate Floors” below)

We measure our interest rate risk by analyzing the correlation of interest-bearing assets to interest-bearing
liabilities (“‘gap analysis™), net interest income simulation, and economic value of equity (“EVE") medeling.

As of December 31, 2007, the Bank had approximately $454 million more in interest-bearing liabilities than
inlerest-carning assets that could reprice to currenl markel rates during the next 12 months. How ver, shoricomings
are inherent in any gap analysis, because the rates on certain assets and liabilities may not move roportionately as
markel interest rates change. For example, when national money market rates change, interest

savings, and money market deposit accounts may not change as much as rates on commercial lo
approximately $717 million of such administratively priced deposits on December 31, 2007.

The Bank’s net interest income simulation model projects that net interest income wilijincrpase on an annual
basis by 3.5%, or approximately $2.7 million, assuming an instantaneous and parallel incre‘asc in interest rates of
200 basis points. Assuming an instantaneous and parallel decrease of 200 basis points, net ipterest income is
projected 1o decrease on an annual basis by 9.1%, or approximately $7.1 million. The nel interest|income produced

by these scenarios is within our asset and liability management policy.
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EVE is a concept related 1o longer-term interest rate risk. EVE is defined as the net present value of the balance
sheet’s cash flows or the residual value of future cash flows. While EVE does not represent actual market liquidation
or replacement value, it is a useful tool for estimating our balance sheet eamings capacity. The greater the EVE, the
greater our eamnings capacity, The Bank’s EVE model projects that EVE will mcrease 4.4% assuming an
instantancous and parallel increase in interest rates of 200 basis points. Assuming an instantaneous and parallel
decrease of 200 basis points, EVE is projected to decrease 9.8%. The EVE produced by these/scenarios is within our
asset and liability management policy. The following table sets forth the Bank’s EVE as of December 31, 2007

Change
Change (in Basis Points) in Interest Rates EVE Amount Percent
(Dollars in thousands)
+ 200 BP L e e $470,866 $|19.274 44%
OBP. . et e 451,142 - —_
=200 BP. .. e e e 407,146 (43,996) (9.8)

Both the net interest income and EVE simulations include assumptions regarding balances, asset prepayment
speeds, and interest rate relationships 2among balances that management believes to be reaslonable for the various
interest rate environments. Differences in actual occurrences from these assumptions, as well as non-parallel
changes in the yield curve, may change our market risk exposure.

Qur board has authorized the ALCO 10 wiilize financial futures, forward sales, options and interest rate swaps,
caps and floors, and other instruments to the extent necessary, in accordance with the OTS regulations and our
intemal policy. We expecl that interest rate swaps, caps and floors will be used as macro hedges against our
securities, our loan portfolios and our liabilities.

We recognize that positions for hedging purposes are primarily a function of three main areas of risk exposure:
(1) mismatches beiween assets and liabilities; (2) prepayment and other option-type nisks embcddcd in our assets,
liabilities and off-balance sheet instruments; and (3) the mismatched commitments for m‘ongages and funding
sources. We will engage in only the following types of hedges: (1) those which synthetically ‘{allcr the maturities or
repricing characteristics of assets or liabilities to reduce imbalances; (2) those which cnablc: us 1o transfer the
interest rate risk exposure involved in our daily business activities; and (3) those which serve to alter the markel risk
inherent in our investment portfolio or liabilities and thus help us to match the effective maturities of the assets and
liabilities.

The following is a discussion of our primary derivative positions.

Interest Rate Swaps.  As of December 31, 2007, we had entered into $43.5 million nouonal amount of swaps
(“CD swaps") to hedge the interest rate risk inherent in certain of our brokered certificates of deposits {“brokered
CDs"). The CD swaps are used to convert the fixed rate paid on the brokered CDs o a vanable rate based upon
three-month LIBOR. Hedge accounting was discontinued on $40.4 million of these swap posmons during 2007
because the instruments no longer qualified as an effective fair value hedge under SFAS ]33 due to market rate
changes in the bench-mark interest rate. Therefore, all changes in fair value were recognized in earnings during the
period of the change. The net cash settlement of these denivatives was included in nonimerest: income during 2007.
As of December 31, 2007, these CD swaps had 2 recorded fair value of $12,073 and a weighted average life of
7.46 years, respectively. The weighted average fixed rate {receiving rate) was 5.04% and t:he weighted average
variable rate (paying rate) was 5.00% (LIBOR based). Subsequent to December 31, 2007, five CD swaps with a
notional value of $23 million were called at par value.

Fair Value Hedges. As of December 31, 2007, we had $3.2 million of notional amount of CD swaps
Jdesignated and qualified as fair value hedges. As fair value hedges, the net cash eetllemenls from the designated
swaps are reported as pant of net interest income. In addition, we will recognize in current carmngs the change in fair
-7alue of both the interest rate swap and related hedged brokered CDs, with the ineffective pomon of the hedge
relationship reporied in noninterest income. The fair value of the CD swaps is reported on the Consolidated
Sstatements of Financial Condition in other assets or other liabilities and the change in fair value of the related
hedged brokered CD is reported as an adjustment to the carrying value of the brokered CDS.I As of December 31,
2007, the amount of CD swaps designated had a recorded fair value of $55,000 and a weighted average life of
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6.62 years. The weighted average fixed rate (receiving rate) was 4.70% and the weighted|average variable rate
(paying rate) was 4.90% (LIBOR based). !

Iierest Rate Floors. During the fourth quarier of 2006, we entered into cenain intc‘rc st rate floor contracts
that have not been qualified for hedge accounting treatment and will be used as an economic lfedge. An interest rate
floor is a contract in which the countesparty agrees lo pay the difference between a current }mrket rate of interest
and an agreed rate muttiplied by the amount of the notional amount. We entered into $50 mll ion interest raic floor
contracts for a 3-year period with a 4.25% floor on the 3-month LIBOR rate. We paid a $248 400 premium for these
investents. These economic hedges will be carried at fair value in other assets or other |ll‘lt ilities and changes in
the fair value of these derivatives and any payments received will be recognized in nnmmereft income, The floacs
had a positive fair value of $590,000 and $215,000 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. [n March 2008,
we tenninated our interest rate floor contracts for $1.3 million which resulted in a realized pre-tax gain of $677,000
that we will recognize in our first quarter 2008 consolidated statement of income.

Commitments to Originate Mortgage Loans. During the ordinary course of business,jwe eater into certain
commit{ments with customers in connection with residential mortgage loan applications. SL ch commitments are
considered derivatives under the provisions of SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 149, Amendment 10
Statement 133 on Derivatives Instrumenis and Hedging Activiries, and are therefore required{io be recorded at fair
value. The aggregate amount of these morigage loan origination commitments was $20.9 mi}] on and $28.7 miilion
at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The net unrealized gain of the originaliclar commitments were
$122,000 and $51,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The fair values are|calculated based on

changes in marke! interest rates after the commitment date.

Liquidity

The goal of liquidity management is to provide adequate funds to meet changes in |oan demand or any
potential unexpected deposit withdrawals. Additionally, management strives to maximize our rarnings by investing
our excess funds in securities and other assets with maturitics matching our offsetting liabilities. See the “Selected
Loan Maturity and Interest Rate Sensitivity” and “Maturity Distribution of Investment Secyrities”.

Historically, we have maintained 2 high loan-to-deposit ratio. To meet our short-term| liquidity needs, we
maintain core deposits and have borrowing capacity through the FHLB, repurchase agreements and federal funds
lines. Long-term liquidity needs are met primarily through these sources, the repayment of loaps, sales of loans and
the maturity or sale of investment securities.

As shown in the Consolidated Statemtents of Cash Flows, operating activities did not plrovide any significant
levels of funds in 2007, 2006 and 2005, primarily due to our low level of operating income dlong with increased
volume of morigage loans held for sale originations.

Investing activities in 2007 and 2006 were a net user of funds, primarily due 1o loan [funding and capital
sxpenditures. During 2007, we received a higher level of funds from principal payments and (:| Is in our investment
sortfolio. During 2006, a significant amount of securities that were acquired as part of our business combinations
‘were sold and reinvested in loans and additional invesiment securities, continuing our strategy of realigning our
"alance sheet which we began in 2005. lavesting activities were a net provider of funds in 2003 due to maturities and
sale of securities available for sale. As noted above, we sold securities in 2005 as pan of a strategy to deleverage and
realign our balance sheet.

Financing activities were a net provider of funds in 2007 and 2006, as we increased our level of deposits.
During 2007, the increase in deposit funding was offset by a decrease in borrowings and the purchase of treasury
stock. During 2006, the increase in deposits was offset by the restructuring of FHLB advanges and maturity of
repurchase agreements acquired in our business combinations. Financing activities were a net user of funds in 2005,
15 we decreased our levels of brokered centificates of deposit and repurchase agreements. This{decrease was offset
by an increase in interest-bearing demand deposit accounts, advances from the FHLB and proceeds from equity
Lransactions.

We have entered into certain contractual obligations and comumercial commitments in the normal course of
Lusiness that involve elements of credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. :
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The following tables summarize these relationships by contractual cash obligations and commercial
commitments: :

Payments Due by Period

Less than One to Four to After Five
Total One Year Three Years Five Years Years

(Dollars in thousands)

Contractual Obligations

Advances from FHLB(1) .......... $222828 $74,488 $£55.032 $341968 5 58340
Operating leases(2). . ............. 16,793 2,731 4,020 21230 7.812
Capitalized leases(2).............. 8,222 367 134 734 6,387
Notes payable(3) ................ 9,500 9,500 — — —
Repurchase agreements(d) ......... 7,075 7075 —_ — —
Junior subordinated debentures owed

to unconsolidated trusts(S) . ...... 53,744 — —_ - 53,744
Deferred compensation

agreements(@). . .. ....... ... .. 14,179 367 776 818 12,218
Employment separation

agreements(7). ............. .. 666 62 84 44 476

Other employment related contract
obligations incurred in business

combinations(8) ............... 4,948 3,002 1.536 410 —
Benefit Restoration Plan(®). . ... ... . 2,461 265 521 503 1,170
Income tax obligations under FIN )
48(10) ... ... 600 — 600 — —
Total Contractual cash
obligations. .. ......... $341,016  $97.857 $63,303 $39.709  $140,147

{1y See Note 8 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements.

. (2) See Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(3) See Note 10 10 the Consolidated Financial Statements.
{(4) See Note 9 to the Consclidated Financial Statements.
(5) Sec Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
{6) See Note 13 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(7) See Note 28 10 the Consolidated Financial Statements.
(8) See Note 2 to the Consolidited Financial Statements.
(9) See Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
{10) See Note 14 to the Consclidated Financial Statements.

Payments Due by Period

Less than One to Four to After Five
Total One Year  Three Years  Five Years Years
(Doflars in thousands)
Commercial commitments
Commitments to extend credit(1). ... $355579  $258,007 $30,444 $20,120  $47.008
Standby letters of credit(1) ........ 29,107 22,704 1,322 5,081 —

Total Commercial Commitments .. $384,686  $280,711 $31,766 $25',201 $47,008

(1) See Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In addition, the FHLB has issued for the Bank’s benefit a $20.0 million irrevocable letter of credit in favor of
the Chief Financial Officer of the State of Florida 10 secure certain deposits of the State of Florida. The leiter of
credit expires January 6, 2009 upon 60 days’ prior notice of non-renewal; otherwise, it automaucally extends fora
successive one-year term.
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We are constructing or have plans to construct various new branch locations. In that regard we have entered
into commitments as of, or subsequent to, December 31, 2007 for the construction of these bmnch locations totaling

approximately $2,125,000.

Financia! Condition

Our total assets were $2.885 billion at December 31, 2007, an increase of $444 mi
$2.44) billion as of December 31, 2006. This growih is primarily attributable to an inc’n
People’s acquisition, as discussed below. Our average total assets for 2007 were $2.62
supported by average total liabilities of $2.313 billion and average total stockholders’ cqh

Recent Acquisitions

People's Acquisition. We completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding
Sarasota, Florida an July 27, 2007 in exchange for 6,635,125 shares of our common stock v'g
$74.0 million. The shares were valued by using the average of the closing prices of our stock fd
and afier the terms of the acquisition were agreed 1o and announced. The 1otal pum:hasa:L

lion, or 18.2%, from
base in loans and the
| billion, which was
ty of $308 million.

stock of People’s of
ued at approximately
r several days prior to
price, which includes

certain direct acquisition costs, was $76.4 million. As a result of the acquisition, we now|operate three banking

locations in Sarasota and Manatee Counties, Florida. This area is a significant addition to our
was eapanded in 2006 by the Kensington acquisition discussed below.

Florida market, which

The People's transaction resulted in $47.4 million of goodwill allocated to the Flor n[i'a reporting unit and

$9.8 million of core deposit intangibles. The goodwill acquired is not tax-deductible, The a
core deposit intangible was determined by an independent valuation and is being amortized oV
life of ten years based on the undiscounted cash flow.

Management is completing its plan to consolidate People’s data processing operations
accounts to our system. This conversion is expected to be completed in the first quarter o
associated with this conversion totaling approximately $575,000, which primarily includes
costs, were estimated and accrued as of the acquisition date. In addition, certain employ"
obligations totaling approximately $4.6 million were also accrued at the acquisition date.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liak
date of acquisition.

Cashand due from banks. . . ... ... it i it e e .
Federal funds sold . . . . .. ... . . e 1.
INVESIMERT SECUTILIES . . - .\ v v et ee et s e e e e e e e e e e e e lf.
7T T3 (T \B
Premises and cquUipment, Bet . .. . .ottt e e 1.
Goodwill . .. .......... e, e IX
Core deposit intangibles. . ... ..................... e e If.
L 13Tt g 3L =] 13 If.

ount allocated te the
Er an estimated usefu!

and convert People’s
¥ 2008. Certain costs
contract cancellation
ment-related contract

ilities assumed at the

Amount
{In thousands)

$ 33854
4,200
47,684
254,047
2,318
47,389
2810
10,612

DePOSIES . oL e e

Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements ... .............. P .

Advances from FHLB ... .. ... i i i sttt i et anen
Junior subordinated debentures. . ... v ittt i e
Other labilitles & . L. L i i e e e e e

Total consideration paid for People™s. ... .. ... ... ... .ol .

Community Acquisition. The Corporaticn completed the acquisition of 100% of the

(245,459)
(6,905)
(37,983)
(3.962)
(9.176)

s 76429

outstanding stock of

Community Bancshares, Inc. (“Community”) of Blounisville, Alabama on November 7, 2006 in exchange for

3,072,179 shares of the Corporation’s common stock valued at approximately $92.8 miilj
valued by using the average of the closing prices of the Corporation’s stock for several daysi

pn. The shares were
prior to and after the

ierms of the acquisition were agreed to and announced. The total purchase price, which inctudes certain direct
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acquisition costs and cash payments due for the cancellation of stock options totaled $97.2 million. As a result of the
acquisition, the Corporation added 18 banking locations and 15 consumer finance company Iocations in the State of
Alabama.

The Community transaction resulted in $60.2 million of goodwill allocated to the Alab‘ama reporting unit and
$10.1 million of core deposit intangibles. The goodwill acquired is not tax deductible. The amount allocated to the
core deposit intangible was determined by an independent valuation and is being amortized over an estimated useful
life of ten years based on the undiscounted cash flow.

During the third quarter of 2006, management completed its plan to terminate Commumty s data processing
operations and convert Communily’s accounts to our system. This conversion was completed in the fourth quarter
of 2006. Certain costs associated with this conversion totaling approximately $1.2 million, which included
primarily contract canceliations and employment-related costs, were estimated and accrued as of the acquisition
date.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
date of acquisition.

Amount
{In thousands)
Cashanddue from banks. ... ... vttt it i it et et .. § 23,167
Federal funds SOI . . ...« e et et e L. 3521
INVeSIMeNL SBCUIILIES . ... - ..o oot ittt ittt et et L. 117,424
10711 1 T 1 - O 337,148
Premises and equipment, met .. .. ... i e e L. 22,529
| PR L 60,148
Core deposit intangibles. . .. ... .o i i e L. 10,142
L T T -~ (-3 PO l, 21,185
DEPOSIES . .+« o+ e e e e e e et e e e e e L. (431,334)
FHLB advances . .. .. vv it ittt i it e et teaaa et naen L. (68,801)
Junior SubOFDINated EDENIUTES . . . . . v .« e v o e e et e e e e e neeenns L (12.047)
OMher TAbIBLES - - .+« v e vee e e e e e e e e e et e . (17.634)
Total consideration paid for Community .. ............... . ... ... .. ..., | . § 97,200

Kensington Acquisition. 'We completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding stock of Kensington on
August 31, 2006 in exchange for 6,226,722 shares of our commeon stock valued at approxlmately $71.2 million, The
shares were valued by using the average of the closing prices of our stock for several days pnor 10 and after the terms
of the acquisition were agreed to and announced. The total purchase price, which includes cerllam direct acquisition
costs, was $71.4 million As a result of the acquisition, we now operate 12 banking locations in the Tampa Bay area
of Florida. This area will be our largest market and has a higher projected population growth than any of our current
banking markets.

The Kensington transaction resulted in $44.5 million of goodwill allocated to the Florida reporting unit and
$3.5 million of core deposit intangibles. The goodwill acquired is not tax deductible. The amount allocated to the
core deposit intangible was determined by an independent valuation and is being amortized over an estimated useful
life of ten years based on the undiscounted cash flow.

During the third quarter of 2006, management completed its plan to terminate Kensington's data processmg
operations and convert Kensington's accounts to our system. This conversion was complelcdl in the first quarter of
2007. Certain costs associated with this conversion tolaling approximately $1.4 million, which included primarily

contract cancellations and employment-related costs, were estimated and accrued as of the! acquisition date.
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and lidbilities assumed at the
date of acquisition.
Amounnt
{In thousands)
Cashand due from banks. . .. . .. it i e it e L. § 4,454
Federal fundssold .. ... ... ... . ... . i i 1. 964
Investment SECUFIHES . . .. L.\ttt e ittt ittt et e tnne e . 180,151
[T 1 TN 1) GO O L. 136,826
Premises and eQUIPIENT, MEL . .. ... ittt i e e L. 5.397
GoOdWIll . . . o e . 44 470
Core depositintangibles. . ... ... ... . i e ; 3,544
BT BS80S . & o ot ittt e e e . 5,128
D POSIES « ot ottt et e e e . (276,186)
Repurchase agreements .. ... ...ttt i aaaet . (30,050)
o e S S | (3.326)
Total consideration paid for Kensington | . % 1372
Loans, net of unearned income, Qur loans, net of uneamed income, totaled $2.017 billion at December 31,

2007, an increase of 23.0%, or $377 million, from $1.640 billion at December 31, 2006. Of the increase,
approximately $235 million can be auributed to the People’s acquisition. Mortgage loanis held for sale totaled
$33.4 million at December 31, 2007, an increase of $9.0 million from $24.4 million at Decem ber 31, 2006, Average
loans, including mortgage loans held for sale, totaled $1.839 billion for 2007, compared to $l 177 billion for 2006.
Loans, net of unearned income, comprised 82.2% of interest-earning assets at December 3 , 2007, compared to
78.7% at December 31, 2006. Mortgage loans held for sale comprised 1.4% of 1nLer.st-caming assets at
December 31, 2007, compared 10 1.2% ut December 31, 2006. The average yield of th loan portfolio was
8.18%, 7.87% and 6.75% for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, n:specuvely. The increase in
average yield is primarily the result of a general increase in market rates.
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The following 1able details the distribution of our loan portfolio by category for the periods presented:

Distribution of Loans by Category

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)
Commercial and industrial . ... .. $ 183,013 % 172872 $135454 $134,688 $142072
Real estate — construction and
land development(2) . ........ 665,303 547,172 326,418 249715 147,917
Real estate — mortgages '
Single-family .............. 540,277 456,341 243,183 250,758 231,064
Commercial ... ............ 533,611 362,542 210,611 242,884 250,032
Other .................... 41,535 46,895 27,503 25,764 31,645
Consumer...........ocvvue-.. 53,311 54,462 21,122 32,009 46,201
Other(D).................ut. 1,235 438 498 8.523
Total loans. .. ........ 2,018,351 1,641,322 964,789 936,385 857,854
Unearned income . . .. ......... (1.340) (1,794) (1,536) (li.517) (213)
Allowance for loan losses . ... ... (22.868) (18,892) (12,01)) (12L543) (25,174)
Netloans............ $1,994,143 31,620,636  $951,242 $922',325 $831,767

{1) Centain reclassifications were made 10 the 2004 amounts to conform to the 2005 presentation. This information

was not available for periods prior to 2004,

(2) A further analysis of the components of our real estate construction and land development loans as of

December 31, 2007 is as follows:

December 31, 2007

Residential Commercial ‘
Development Development Other Tatal
(Dollzrs in thousands)
Geographic Location
Alabama . ... e $192,133 $ 60,407 | $16,003 $268.543
Florida. . ... i e 195,460 162,286 18.564 376,310
L0 1 17 7,929 12,521 _— 20,450
Total ... e et i e e $395,522 $235.214.  |$34,567 $665,303

Additional information and analysis regarding our loan portfolio is included in the Business Section, ltem {,

Part L, under the heading “Loan Portfolio.”

. . |
The following table shows the amount of total loans, net of unearned income, by segment and the percent

change for the dates indicated:

December 31, December 31,  Percent
2007 2006 Change
(Dollars in lh?usunds)

Total loans, net of unearned income. .. ................. $2,017,011 Sl,63‘9.528 23.02%
Alabama segment . ....... ... .. ... i 908,292 S’II'.!,S'.'O 406
Florida segmenn. . ... ... v nn e nnnnnnnn 932,478 62|5.633 49.05
OIher o i e e e s 176,241 141,025 2497

The repayment of loans as they mature is a source of liquidity for us. The following table sels forth our loans by
category maturing within specified intervals at December 31, 2007. The information presenled is based on the
contractual maturities of the individual loans, including loans which may be subject 1o renewal at their contractual
maturity, Renewal of such loans is subject to review and credit approval, as weli as modification of terms upon their
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maturity. Consequently, management believes this treatment presents fairly the maturity and repricing of the loan
portfolio.

Selected Loan Maturity and I;uerwt Rate Sensitivity
Rate Structure for Loans

Over One Year Ma'tf.lring Over One Year
One Year through Five  Over Five Predetefmined Floating or
or Less Years Years Total Interest Rate  Adjustable Rate

(Dollars in thousands) i
Commercial and I

industrial .. .......... $106,751 $ 71,134 $ 5128 § 183,013 § 44089 $ 32,173
Real estate — construction |
and land development ... 527,030 102,955 35318 665,303 40660 97,613
Real estate — mortgages !
Single-family ......... 44,526 149,168 346,583 540,277 1421,452 353,299
Commercial .......... 131,178 170,170 232,263 533,611 1484114 254,319
Other ............... 16,010 12,407 13,118 41,535 l55.328 10,197
Consumer.............. 15,490 36,011 1,876 53,377 36,350 1,537
Other................. 1,235 — — 1,235 — —_
Total loans. . .... $842,220  $541,845  $634,286 $2,018,351  $426,993 $749,138
Percent 1o total loans . ... 41.7% 26.8% 31.4% 100.0% 11.2% 37.1%

— et — ——— — eo——

Allowance for Loan Losses. 'We maintain an allowance for loan losses within a range e believe is adequate
to absorb estimated losses inherent in the loan portfolic. We prepare a quanterly analysis to asgess the risk in the loan
portfolic and to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Generally, we estimaje the allowance using
specific reserves for impaired loans, and other factors, such as historical loss expertence basedl on volume and types
of Joans, trends in classifications, volume and trends in delinquencies and non-accruals, national and local
economic trends and conditions and other pertinent information. The level of allowance for loan losses to net loans
will vary depending on the quarterly analysis.

We manage and control risk in the loan portfolio through adherence to credit standards established by the
Board of Directors and implemented by senior management. These standards are set forth ig a formal lean policy
which establishes loan underwriting and approvat procedures, sets limits on credit concehtration and enforces
regulatory requirements. ' '

Loan portfolio concentration risk is reduced through concentration limits for borrowers pind varying collateral
types. Concentration risk is measured and reported 1o senior management and the board of directors on a regular
basis.

The allowance for loan loss calculation is segregated into varicus segments that include ¢lassified loans, loans
with specific allocations and pass rated loans. A pass rated loan is generally characterized byla very low to average
risk of default and in which management perceives there is a minimal risk of loss. Loans ard rated vsing an eight-
30int scale, with the loan officer having the primary responsibility for assigning risk ratings and for the timely
reporting of changes in the risk ratings. These processes, and the assigned risk ratings, are subject to review by our
internal loan review function and senior management. Based on the assigned risk ratings, the criticized and
vlassified loans in the portfolio are segregated according to the following regulatory classifications; Special
Mention, Substandard, Doubtful or Loss.

Pursuant to SFAS No. 114, impaired loans are specifically reviewed loans for which it ig; probable that we will
be unable 10 collect all amounts due according to the terms of the loan agreement. Impairment is measured by
comparing the recorded investment in the loan with the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the
loan's effective interest rate, at the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the c1l)1]aleral if the loan is
collateral dependent. A valuation allowance is provided to the extent that the measure of the jmpaired loans is less
than the recorded investment. A loan is not considered impaired during a period of delay in pdyment if we continue
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to expect that all amounts due will ultimately be collected according to the terms of the Iloan agreement. Larger
groups of homogenous loans such as consumer installment and residential real estate mortgage loans are

collectively evaluated for impairment.

Reserve percentages assigned to homogeneous loans are based on historical charge-off experience adjusted for
current trends in the portfolio and other risk factors.

As stated above, risk ratings are subject to independent review by internal loan review, which also performs
ongoing, independent review of the risk management process. The risk management process!includes underwriting,
documentation and collateral control. Loan review is centralized and independent of the Iendlng function. The {oan
review resulls are reported to senior management and the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. We havé a
centralized loan administration department to serve our entire bank. This department |provides standardized
oversight for compliance with loan approval auvthorities and bank lending policies and procedures, as well as
centralized superviston, monitoring and accessibility.

We historically have allocated our allowance for loan losses to specific loan calegories Although the
allowance is allocated, it is available 10 absorb losses in the entire loan portfolio. This allocauon is made for
estimation purposes only and is noi necessarily indicative of the allocation between calcgones in which future
losses may occur.

i

Allocation of the Allowance for Loan Losses

December M,
2007 2005 2005 2004 2003
Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
of Lenns of Loans of Loans of Loans of Loans
in Esch in Each in Each in Each in Each
Category Category Category Categary Category
to Total io Total to Total 10 Total to Touwl
Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans Amount Loatss Amount Loans
{Dollars in thousands)
Commercial and
industrial . _ . ., .. $ 2607 9.1% $§ 39 10.5% § 3,805 140% $ 176 14.1% $10.110 16.6%
Real estate —
construction and
fand
development. . . . . 939 330 3425 334 1,275 338 1.009 26.6 1,099 17.2
Real estate —
morigages
Single-family . ... 2,360 26.8 2910 278 1,395 252 1.582 26'.8 4,538 269
Commercial . . . .. 6,781 26.4 6,206 220 4,194 218 4,594 259 7,613 29.1
Other . ........ 155 21 530 29 215 29 257 2 320 17
Consumer . .. ..... 1.479 26 2,102 34 1,127 22 1,336 3;0 1,374 54
Other........... — — - - — A 29 9 120 1.1
$22 868 100.0% $18.892 100.0% $1.011 100.0% $12.543 100.0% §$25.174 100.0%

The allowance as a percentage of loans, net of uneamed income;, at December 31, 2007 was 1.13%, compared
to 1.15% as of December 31, 2006, Net charge-offs increased $2.0 million, from $2.3 million in 2006 10 $4.3 million
in 2007. Net charge-offs of commercial loans decreased $221,000, from $985,000 in 2006 to 5764 000 in 2007. Net
charge-offs of real estate loans increased $998,000, from $770,000 in 2006 to $1.77 million mw2007 Net charge-offs
of consumer loans increased $1.19 million, to $1.75 million in 2007 from $561,000 in 2006 Net charge-offs as a
percentage of the allowance for loan losses were 18.72% in 2007, up from 12.26% in 2006.

Our consumer loan charge-offs were higher during 2007 than in previous periods, primarjly due to the addition
of our consumer finance compantes, which accounted for approximately $1.2 million, or 68.9%, of the total ne1
sonsumer loan charge-offs. Going forward, we expect these losses to continue (o be a subs:»tantia] portion of the
overall consumer loan loss experience for the bank; however, we believe the increased risk associated with these
loans is generally offsel by their higher yield.
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During 2007, management increased its allocation of the allowance for loan losses related to construction and
land development real estate loans as a result of the increasing levels of risk associated wnh the general economic
conditions related to construction and land development real estate portfolio throughout our franchise. Within this
construction and land development portfolio, approximately $396 million, or 63%, was related to residential
development and construction. Of the residential purpose loans, 49% were located in Florida C;t December 31, 2007.

The largest category in the residential development and construction portfelio is related to development of single-
family lots and single-family lots held by experienced, licensed builders for the future constryction of single-family
homes. This category represents approximately $158 million, or 40%, of this portfolio. Con truction loans related
to income-producing properties accounted for $235 million, or 35% or the total comme cial construction and
development loans. Geographically, approximately 69% of the total category was located in Florida, with the
remaining loans located primarily in Alabama.

The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of nonperforming loans decreased 10 90 1% at December 31,
2007 from 219.9% at December 31, 2006. Approximately $958,000 in allowance for loan Ios s has been allocated
to nonperforming loans as of December 31, 2007. As of December 31, 2007, nonperfprming loans totaled
$25.3 million, of which $24.0 million, or 94.9%, were loans secured by real estate compa'r to $7.3 million. or
85.3%, as of December 31, 2006. Of the $958,000 in allowance for loan losses allocated to onperforming loans,
$680,000 is atributable to these real estate loans, with the remaining $278,000 allocated to remaining non-
performing loans, which consist primarily of commetcial loans. (See *Nonperforming Asset;l) Despite the overall
decline in the allowance for loan losses as a percentage of nonperforming loans, management believes the overall

allowance for loan losses to be adequate.




The following 1able summarizes certain information with respect to our allowance for loan losses and the
composition of charge-offs and recoveries for the periods indicated.
Summary of Loan Loss Experience
Year
2007 2006 2005 | 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)
Allowance for loan losses at beginning of
- o $ 18892 $§ 12011 $ 12543 § 25174 § 27766
Allowance of acquired banks (branches sold). . 3,717 6,697 — —_ (102)
Charge-offs:
Commercial and industnal. . .......... . 1,162 1,450 2,097 7,690 10,823
Real estate — construction and land
development . .. ... ... ... ......... © 301 378 358 765 630
Real estate — mongages
Single-family. . .................... 1,149 625 795 1,012 1,505
Commercial ...................... 724 416 1.432 5,820 6,696
Other ... ... . i, 206 15 85 86 1,187
CONSUMEr .. . oottt e iee e 2,117 860 630 1,881 3,092
Other ... ... e 63 2 345 87 517
Total charge-offs .......... e 5,722 3,746 5,742 17,341 24,450
Recovenes:
Commercial and industrial. ... .......... 398 465 413 1,468 554
Real estate — construction and land
development .. .................... 286 126 37 4 23
Real estate — mongages
Single-family. ..................... 174 102 335 470 23
Commercial ...................... 70 363 526 737 49
Other ... ... . i 82 73 118 97 48
Consumer . .............ouuuiinnon.. 382 30t 280 549 282
Other .. ... i, 48 — 1 410 6
Total recoveries ................ 1,440 1,430 1710 | 3,735 985
Netcharge-offs. . ............. ... ...... 4,282 2316 4,032 13,606 23,465
Provision for loan losses . .. ... ........... 4,541 2,500 3,500 975 20,975
Allowance for loan losses at end of year . . ... $ 22868 $ 18892 $ 12,011 $[ 12543 § 25174
Loans at end of period, net of unearned 1
mcome . ... ... ..., $2,017,011 $1,639.528 $963,253 $934,868 $ 856,941
Average loans, net of uneamed income . ... .. 1,814,032 1,176,844 947212 894,406 1,063,451
Ratio of ending allowance to ending loans. . . . 1.13% 1.15% 1.25% 1.34% 2.94%
Ratio of net charge-offs 1o average loans. . . .. 0.24 0.20 0.43 1.52 2.21
Net charge-offs as a percentage of:
Provision forloan losses . . ............. 94.30 92.64 115.20 1,39549 §11.87
Allowance for loanlosses .. ............ 18.72 12.26 33.57 108.47 93.21
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of
nonperforming loans . . ................ 90.31 219.88 252.76 169.36 78.59

Nonperforming Assers.  Nonperforming assets increased $19.3 million, to $29.7 mllllon as of December 31,
2007 from $10.4 million as of December 31, 2006. As a percentage of net loans plus nonperformmg assets,
nonperforming assets increased to 1.47% at December 31, 2007 from .63% at December 31 2006. The overall
increase in nonperforming assets was primarily related to the residential construction and mortgage toan portfolios.
The increase in the construction category was directly related to three large northwest Flonda construction credits
over $1.0 million, where managemeni does not currently expect significant losses. The i increase in the residential
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mongage category is primarily driven by single family residences with limited loss exposure. The following table
represents our nonperforming assets for the dates shown.

Nenperforming Assets

December 3
2007 2006 2005 | 2004 2003
(Dollars in thousands)
Nonaccrual . ... .o et i e e e $22,533 3§ 7,773 34,550 (| $ 6,344  $29.630
Accruing loans 90 days or more delinquent ... . ..., 2,117 514 49 431 1.438
Restructured ... ....... .. ... .. cciviiuiiiin.. 671 305 153 631 966
Total nonperforming loans. . .. .. R 25,321 8,592 4,752 7,406 32,034
Otherrealestateowned . . ...................... 4,277 1,684 1,842 4,906 5,806
Repossessed assets . ..................vvevr.un 138 137 — 103 219
Total nonperforming assets . ............. $20.736  $10,413  $6,594 [{ $12,415 §38,059
Nonperforming loans as a percentage of loans .... ... 1.26% 52% 49% .79% 3.74%
Nonperforming assets as a percemtage of loans plus
nonperforming assets . ... ... ..ooi i, 1.47% .63% 68% 1.32% 4.41%
Nonperforming assets as a percentage of total assets. . . 1.03% A43% 47% 87% 3.25%

The following is a summary of nonperforming loans by category for the dates shown|:

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
{Doflars in thousands)

Commercial and industrial . . ...................... $ 1058 $ 704 % 988[| $2445 §$l11.621

Real estale — construction and land development. .. .. .. 10,569 2.067 469 187 1,735
Real estale — mortgages

Single-family. ........ ... ... o, 8,069 2,805 2,448 2,060 5,472

Commercial . ... ... ... ... ... .. 4045 - 1,765 675 2,273 12,378

Other . .o e e 805 688 11 183 162

011D 11 1 775 559 161 250 465

HREr .. e i — 4 — 8 201

Total nonperforming loans ... _............ $25,321  $8,592 $4,752 | $7.406 $32.034

i

A delinguent loan is placed on nonaccrual status when it becomes 90 days or more past due and management
helieves, after considering economic and business conditions and collection efforts, that lhe: borrower's financial
condition is such that the collection of interest is doubtful. When 2 loan is placed on nen-accrial status, all interest
which has been accrued on the loan during the current period but remains unpaid is reverse; and deducted from
«arings as a reduction of reported interest income; any prior period accrued and unpaid interest is reversed and
charged against the allowance for loan losses. No additional interest income is accrued on the Ipan balance until the
collection of both principal and intecest becomes reasonably certain. When a problem loan is | ally resolved, there
may be an actual write-down or churge-off of the principal balance of the toan to the allowance for loan losses,
which may necessitate additional charges to earmings.

Impaired Loans. At December 31, 2007, our recorded investment in impaired loans under SFAS 114 totaled
$22.3 million, an increase of $15.4 million from $6.9 million a1 December 31, 2006. Approximl‘ tely $10.6 million is
Iscated in the Alabama segment and $11.7 million is located in the Florida segment. Approximately $1.5 million of
the allowance for loan losses is specifically atlocated 1o these loans, providing 6.8% coverage. Additionally,
121.4 million, or 96.0%, of the $22.3 million in impaired loans is secured by real estate.




The following is a summary of impaired loans and the specifically allocated allowance for loan losses by
category as of December 31, 2007 and 2006: !
December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Qutstanding Specific Outstanding Specific
Balance Allowance | Balance Allowance
, (Dollars in thousands)
Commercial and indostrial. .. .. .. ... ... ... 5 8N $ 56 $ 9 $ 405
Real estate - construction and land development. . ... ... 11,105 - 881 1,959 311
Real estate — mortgages
Single-family . . .......... ... ... ... . 4,553 9 616 92
Commercial. . ....... ... ... i 4972 464 2,381 656
Other. ... i i 787 94 1,019 343
Total ..o e e $22.294 $1,514 | $6.886 $1,807

Potential Problem Loans. 1n addition to nonperforming loans, management has idenfiﬁed $15-20 million in
potential problem loans as of December 31, 2007. Potential problem loans are loans where known information
about possible credit problems of the borrowers causes management to have doubts as: 10 the ability of such
borrowers to comply with the present repayment terms and may result in disclosure of such loans as nonperforming
in future periods. The majority of these loans are located along the west coast of Florida which has been
considerably affected by the recent downtum in the real estate markets. Management is actively working a plan of
action to ensure that any loss exposure is mitigated and will continue to monitor their respective cash flow positions.

Investment Securities. The investment securities portfolio comprised 14.7% of our total interest-eaming

assets as of December 31, 2007. Total securities averaged $350.6 million in 2007, comparcd to $274.1 million in
2006 and $262.6 million in 2005. The invesiment securities portfolio produced average taxnble equivalent yields of
5.29%, 4.96%, and 4.57% for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, ncspecuvcly At December 31,
- 2007, our investment securities portfolio had an amortized cost of $362.0 million and an estlmaled fair value of
$361.1 million and weighted average yield of 5.07%. The acquisition of People's mcrleascd our tax-exempt
investments in state and political subdivisions. Our investment in state and political subdivisions increased
$27.7 million to $40.7 million from $13.0 million. Qur average tax-equivalent yield oﬁ these securitics was
6.27% during 2007. As of December 31, 2007, the tax-equivalent yield is approximately 6.41%.

The following table sets forth the amortized costs of the securities we held at the dates indicated.

Investment Portfolio

December 131,
Avajlable for Sale
2007 | 2006 2008
(Do!la;rs in thousands)
U S aeNCIES . . .ottt e $ 93207 $113.259 % 99,365
State and political subdivisions . . ... ... ... ... L o L 40,738 12,977 8,729
Mortgage-backed securities . . ... ... ... .. ...l 191,202 185,814 93,689
Corporate debl . . . ... . e 32,404 38,383 38,064
Other securties. . .. ... i ittt et e ittt v e 4,480 6,675 - 7,028
1
Total investment SECUNItIES . ... .. .00 v e v ernrnnrerennnan- $362,031 $357,608 $246,875
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The following table shows the scheduled maturities and average yields of investment securities held at
December 31, 2007,

Maturity Distribution of Investment Securities

Maturing
ARer One But Alter Five But
Within One Within Five Within Ten Afler,
Year Years Years Ten Yeard Tota)
Amount  Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount m Amount Yield
(Dollars in thousands)
Securities available for sale:
U.S. agencies ... ... ... 54500 408% $40700 4.23% $28.843 526% $ 10164 |[S.18% § 93,207 467%h
State and political subdivision. . . . — — 2076 332 5877 438 32,785 |[Q.26 40738  4.23
Mortpage-backed securities . .. .. 2943 421 347718 424 11961 4.59 141.520 | 5.36 191,202 5.9
Other securities . ... ... ..... 535 405 7083 672 - = 20266 (699 36.384 E‘J_O
Toal ............... 57978 4.13% $93.637 443% $46.681 i.!‘_ﬂ% 5213735 1541% $362.031 3.07%

Tux lien certificares. During 2007, we purchased $18 million in tax lien centificates|from various munic-
ipalities primarily in Alabama, Indiana, Mississippi, New Jersey, and South Carolina. Ta; lien cenificates arc
carried at cost plus accrued interest, which approximates fair value. Tax lien centificates resulting deeds are
classified as nonaccrual when a 1ax lien certificate is 24 1o 48 months delinquent; depnt:ndlnI on the municipality,
from the acquisition date. At that time, interest ceases to be accrued. As of December 3I 2007, there were no
delinquent or nonperforming liens. The outstanding tax lien balances for the years ended December 31, 2007 and
2006 were $15,615 and $16,313, respectively.

Short-term liquid assets.  Qur short-term liquid assets (cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits in
other banks and federal funds sold) decreased $22.6 million, or (26.3)%, o $63.4 million a] December 31, 2007
from $86.0 mitlion at December 31, 2006. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, our short-term liquid assets comprised
2.2% and 3.5% of total assets, respectively. We continually monitor our liquidity position|and will increase or -
ilecrease our short-term liquid assets as necessary.

Property and Equipment.  Property and equipment totaled $104.8 million at December B 1, 2007, an increase
of 10.8%. or $10.2 million, from $94.6 million at December 31, 2006. This increase is primarily due to the purchase
of land and the construction of branch facilities. The People’s acqﬁisition added approximptely $2.3 million in
property and equipment. We also recorded the reclassification of certain propenties to the held4for-sale category and
the sale and fease-back of two branch facilities (See Note 6 to the Consolidated Finangial Statements). On
January 30, 2008, we announced that our Bank entered into agreements with a limited liability company, of which
one of our directors is a member, which purchased on January 31, 2008 office buildings Jocaled in Albenville and
Athens, Alabama for a total of $4.3 million.

As a result of our acquisitions and recent sale-leaseback transactions our operating leage commilments have
increased significantly. This resulted in a $1.2 million increase in remal expense 10 $2.5 mil uon in for 2007 from
$1.3 million in 2006. Please refer to our “Liquidity™ discussion for the amoum of ful lure operating lease
commitments.

increase of 8.5%, or
?.4% of total deposits

Deposits. Noninterest-bearing deposits totaled $207.6 million at December 31, 2007, a
$16.3 million, from $191.3 million at December 31, 2006. Noninterest-bearing deposits were ¢
a: December 31, 2007 compared to 10.2% at December 31, 2006.

Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.993 bitlion at December 31, 2007, an increase of 18 TI%, or $313 million,
fiom $1.680 billion at December 31, 2006. Interest-bearing deposits averaged $1,791 billiorll for the year ended
December 31, 2007 compared to $1.151 bitlion for the year ended December 31, 2006. The avierage rate paid on all

irterest-bearing deposits during 2007 was 4.45%, compared to 4.04% for 2006.

The People’s acquisition contributed approximately $245 million in deposits at the acfjuisition date. As of
December 31, 2007, People’s deposits totaled approximately $241 million, of which $35 million were noninteresi-
bearing and $206 million were interest-bearing.
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The following table sets forth the composition of our total deposit accounts ‘at the dates indicated.
December 31, |December 31, Percent
2007 2006 Change
{Dollars in thousands)
Noninterest-bearing demand . ............. ... ... ... ..., $ 207602 |$ 191323 B.51%
Alabama segment ... ... ... e e 128,009 130,129 {1.63)
Floridasegment. .. ... ... ... iiiiinniiiiaiee 73,061 45,742 46.88
Other. . .. i e e 6.532 11,452 (42.96)
Interest-bearing demand . ........ ... ... . . i i iiaiiiiiaas 657,809 552,887 18.98
Alabama segment .............. .. .. ... 295,794 220,514 34.14
Florida segment. . ... ... ittt 253017 115528  119.01
L T T P 108,998 216,845  (49.73)
VIS, . ottt e e 59,507 42,717 39.31
Alabama segment ... . ... ... i 33,919 28.161 20.45
Floridasegment. . ..... ..ot iiuntinininiennenan. 25,056 14,323 7494
OtheT. . . e e e i 532 233 12833
Time deposits . ... ... .t e 1,275,693 1,083,914 17.69
Alabama segment . ....... ... ... ... e i 694,380 592,900 17.12
Floridasegment. .. ....... ... .. i uriiireiiiinn.s 462,071 341,161 35.44
L T 119,242 149853  (20.43)
Total deposits ... ... e e e $2,200,611  $1.870.341 17.63%
Alabama SeEMENt. . . .. v i\ vte it $1,152,102  $ 971,704  18.57%
Floridasegment . .. ... .. ... .. it eniannon.. $ 813205 § 520,754 56.16%
0 O $ 235304 § 378383 (378)%

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had deposits from related parties of approximan‘:ly $35.8 million and
$23.8 million, respectively. We believe that all of the deposit transactions were made on terms and conditions in the

ordinary course of business.

The following table sets forth our average deposits by category for the periods indicated.

Average Deposits

Average for (he Year |

2007 2006 | 2005
Average Average Average
Amount Average Amount Average Amount Average
Outstandding  Rate Paid  Qutstanding  Rate Pald  (hitstanding  Rate Paid
(Dollars In thousands) '
Noninterest-bearing demand
deposits . ............... $ 191,066 —% $§ 111,757 —% $ | 93,564 —%
Interest-bearing demand
deposits ................ 568,125 3.66 359,262 330 l3 39,842 2.10
Tavings deposits .. .. ... ... 50,652 1.61° 27,968 .63 | 25935 AS
Time deposits-customer. . . . ... 1,023,573 4.90 575,065 4.40 440,403 3.55
Total average customer
deposits ................ 1,833,416 3.92 1,074,052 3.48 899,744 2.53
Time deposits-brokered . . . . . .. 148,369 §__3__l_ 189,722 5_2 166,738 3.07
Total average ) |
deposits . ........ $1,981,785 4.02%  $1,263,774 3.68%  $1,066,482 2.62%




Deposits, particularly core deposits, have historically been our primary source of fundip and have enabled us
to meet successfully both our shont-term and Jong-term liquidity needs. Our core deposits, which exclude our time
deposits greater than $100,000, represent 71.8% of our total deposits at December 31, 2007 ompared to 71.5% at
December 31, 2006. We anticipate that such deposits will continue to be our primary source 0 funding in the future.
Our loan-to-deposit ratio was 91.7% at December 31, 2007, compared to 87.7% at December 31, 2606.

The maturity distribution of our time deposits over $100,000 at December 31, 2007 is shown in the following
table.

Maturities of Time Depasits of $100,000 or More

At December 31, 2007

Under 36 612 Qver
3 Months Months Months 12 Manths Total

(Dodlars in thonsands)
$243,516 $206,256 $101,343 $69,603 $620,718

Approximately 39.2% of our time deposits over $100,000 had scheduled maturnities within three months of
December 31, 2007. (These amounts include brokered CDs and State of Alabama Time Demand Open Account).
We believe customers who hold a large denomination centificate of deposit tend to be extremgly sensitive to interest
rate levels, making these deposits a less reliable source of funding for liquidity planning purposes than core
deposits.

Borrowed Funds. During 2007, average borrowed funds increased $20.8 mitlion, or 9.1%, to $249.4 million,
from $228.6 million during 2006, which in turo increased $41.3 million, or 22.1%, from $187.3 million during
2005. The average rate paid on borrowed funds during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was 5.20 . 5.07%, and 4.00%,
respectively. Because of a relatively high loan-to-deposit ratio, the existence and stability of these funding sources
are important to our maintenance of shori-term and long-term liquidity. .

Borrowed funds as of December 31, 2007 consist primarily of advances from the FHLLB. The following is a
summary, by year of contractual maturity, of advances from the FHLB as of December 3 | 2007 and 2006:

2007 | 2006

Weighted Weighted
‘fear Average Rate Balance Average Rate Balance
{Dollars in lhoukalnds)

PR 10 —% $ —_ |5.37% $ 42,000
008 . . e 4.62 74,488 t5.33 55.500
009 . e e . 433 30,032 ‘5.39 27,000
7 0 483 25,000 641 5,000
Wl .. e 4.80 4,968 - —
) ] 4.49 30,000 — —
015, 539 7 " 26340 5.39 26,340
2020, .. e e 4.28 32,000 4.28 32,000
Total. .. e e e 4.63% $222.828 5.22% $187,840

|
The above schedule is by.contractual maturity. Call dates for the above are as follows: 2008, $154.0;'and 2010,
$11.3.

The advances are secured by a blanket lien on certain residential and commercial real estate loans all with a
carrying value of approximately $346.0 at December 31, 2007. We have available approxnmalely $174.0 in unused
advances under the blanket lien subject lo the availability of qualifying collateral.

In February 2008, FHLB advances totalmg $100.0 million were refinanced 1o lower lh!j current interest rate in
e sponse to current market conditions. This refinancing was accounted for as debt modificati bn,ltherefore no gain or
less was recognized on the transaction.
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The following table summarizes the current terms of the refinanced advances by contractual maturity;

Weighted

Current Average Rate

Weighted Before ! Balance
Matures Average Rate Refinancing  (In thousands)
2001 e 2.77% 4.60% $ 25,000
013, 3.46 421 | 35,000
20015, . 405 457 40,000
Total. ..o e 3.52% 4.45% $100,000

|

Call dates for the refinanced advances are as follows: 2009, $25.0; and 2010, 575.01

The FHLB has issued for the benefit of the Bank a $20.0 wrevocable letter of crcdu in favor of the Chief
Financial Officer of the State of Florida 1o secure certain deposits of the State of Florida. The letrer of credit expires
January 4, 2008 upon sixty days’ prior notice of non-renewal; otherwise, it shall automancally extend for a
successive one-year lerm,

We have available approximately $35.0 million in unused federal funds lines of credit with regional banks,
subject to certain restrictions and collateral requirements.

Junior subordinated debentures. On July 19, 2007, we issued approximately $22 million in aggregate
principal amount of Trust Preferred Securities and a like amount of related subordinated debenlures through our
wholly-owned, unconsolidated subsidiary trust, Superior Capital Trust 1. The Trust Preferred Securities and
subordinated debentures bear interest at a floating rate of three-month LIBOR plus 1.33% that is payable quarterly.
The Trust Preferred Securities, which may be redeemed on or after September 1S5, 20]2 will mature on
Sepiember 15, 2037.

On July 25,2007, we completed a redemption of approximately $16 miliion in aggregate outstanding principal
amount of Trust Preferred Securities and related six-month LIBOR plus 3.75% junior subordmatcd debentures due
July 25, 2031, both of which were issued by our wholly-owned, unconsotidated subsuilary trusl, TBC Capital
Statutory Trust IIl. We cglled the securities for redemption effective July 25, 2007 at a rcdempuon price equal to
106.15% of par. We incurred a loss of approximately $1.5 million ($925,000, net of tax, or $ 02 per share), during
the third quarter of 2007 relating to the redemption of the outstanding Trust Preferred Securities.

The remaining proceeds from the issuance of the new trust preferred securities were used in the stock
repurchase program and for other corporate purposes.

We have three additional sponsored teusts, TBC Capital I, Community Capital I and Peoples Trust I, of which
100% of the common equity is owned by us. The trusts were formed for the purpose of, issuing Corporation-
obligated mandatory redeemable trust preferred securities to third-party investors and investing the proceeds from
the sale of such trust preferred securities solely in junior subordinated debt securities of ouxs‘(lhe debentures). The
debentures held by each trust are the sole assets of that trust. Distributions on the trust prefen'ed securities issued by
cach trust arc payable semi-annually at a rate per annum equal to the interest rate being camcd by the trust on the
debentures held by that trust. The trust preferred securities are subject to mandatory redemption, in whole or in part,

. . A
upon repayment of the debentures. We have entered into agreements which, taken collecnv;e]y. fully and uncon-
ditionally guarantee the trust preferred securities subject to the terms of each of the guarantees. The debentures held
by the TBC Capital II, Community Capital I and Peoples Trust I trusts are first redeemable, in whole or in part, by us
on September 7, 2010, March 8, 2010 and December 15, 2010, respectively.

The trust preferred securities held by the trusts qualify as Tier 1 capital for us under n|cgulatory guidelines.
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Cansolidated debt obligations related to these subsidiary trusts are as follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006

10.6% jenior subordinated debentures owed to TBC Capital Statutory Trust I1 }

due September 7, 2030 .. ... .. e e $15464  $15464
6-month LIBOR plus 3.75% junior subordinated debentures owed to TBC

Capital Statutory Trust Il due July 25,2031 .............. ... .. 0. —_ 16,495
10.875% junior subordinated debentures owed to Community Capital Trust I |

dueMarch 8,2030 .. ... . .. .. . e 10{310 10,310
3-month LIBOR plus 1.33% junior subordinated debentures owed to Superior \

Capital Trust 1 due September 15, 2037(1) .. ... ... ... ... oiviuunn. 221681 -
6.41% junior subordinated debentures owed 10 Peoples Community Capital |

Trust [ due December 15, 2035(2) . ... . it e et 4I 124 —_—
Purchase accounting adjustment . .............. oottt iiiiaiian., 11165 1,737
Tental junior subordinated debentures owed to unconsolldaled subsidiary ]

0 14 LA $53]744  $44,006

{1) Current interest rate is equal to 6.32% at _Decembcr 31, 2007.
:2) Converts to quarterly floating rate of LIBOR plus.1.45% in December 2010.

Stockholders’ Equity

Stockholders’ equity increased $74.0 million during 2007, to $350.1 million at Decgmber 31, 2007 from
:$276.1 million at December 31, 2006. As of December 31, 2007, we had 41,522,633 shares of pommon siock issued
and 40,108,317 shares outstanding. As of December 31, 2007, there were 1,390,145 shares held in treasury at a total
cost of $12,309,000. We had no shares of preferred stock issued at December 31, 2007. Ln March 2008, our Board of
Directors approved, subject to approval by our stockholders, a proposed amendment to Superigr Bancorp’s Restated
Certificate of Incorporation effecting a 1-for-4 reverse split of its issued and outstanding shares of common stock and
<lecreasing the number of our authorized shares of common stock from 60 million to 15 millio ). The 1-for-4 reverse
stock split and reduction of authorized shares are contingent on approval of this proposal by the requisite vote of the
stockholders at our 2008 annual meeting of stockholders, and the filing of the proposed amend ' ent with the Secretary

of State of the State of Delaware, We anticipate that the reverse stock split will be effective honly after the 2008

znnual meeting of stockholders, in accordance with the terms of the proposed amendment.

Stock Repurchase Plan.  We announced in June 2007 that our Board of Directors had ap roved the repurchase
¢f up to 1,000,000 shares of our outstanding common stock. During the quarter ended Se ember 30, 2007, the
Corporation purchased 1,000,000 shares of then outstanding stock at an average price of $ 22 per share, which
have been recorded, at cost, as treasury stock in the consolidated statement of financial condii }on The shares were
purchased in the open market through negotiaied or block transactions and were not répurchased from our
nanagement team or other insiders. ‘

We announced in October 2007, that our Board of Directors approved the purchpse of an additional
1,000,000 shares of our outstanding common stock beginning on or after November 2, 2007: Dunng the quarter
eaded December 31, 2007, we purchased 182,000 shares of then outstanding stock at an a erag,e price of $6.61,
which have been recorded, al cost, as treasury stock in the consolidated statement of financial ondmon The shares
were purchased in the open market through negotiated or block transactions. We did not repu I‘mse any shares from
our management team or other insiders. This stock repurchase program does not obligate us 1o acquire any specific

number of shares and may be suspended or discontinued at any time.

Stock Incentive Plan. We established a stock incentive plan for directors and certai key employees that
provides for the granting of restricted stock and incentive and nongualified options lo purchase up 1o
2,500,000 shares of our common stock. The compensation commitiee of the Board of Dire clors determines the
terms of the restricted stock and options granted. All options granted have a maximum term of ten years from the

. ) ) . |
giant date, and the option price per share of options granted cannot be less than the fair marketjvalue of our common

52




|

|

|
stock on the grant date. Some of the options granted under the plan in the past vested over: a| five-year period, while
others vested based on certain benchmarks relating 1o the trading price of our common stock' with an oulside vesting
date of five years from the date of grant. More recent grants have followed this benchmark- veslmg formula. During
the first quarter of 2003, we granted 1,690,937 options 1o the new management team. ThesF options have exercise

prices ranging from $8.17 to $9.63 per share and were granted outside of the stock incentive plan as part of the
inducement package for new management

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R”), which is a
revision of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123”), and supersedes Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB Opmlon 25"). The new
standard, which became effective for us in the first quarter of 2006, requires compani¢s (o riccogmzc an expense in
the statement of operations for the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equity-based compensation issued
to employees, but expresses no preference for a type of valuatipn method. This expense willlbé recognized over the
period duning which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award. SFAS 123R carries
forward prior guidance on accounting for awards 1o non-employees. If an equity award is modified after the grant
date, incremental compensation cost will be recognized in an amount equal to the excess 'of the fair value of the
modified award over the fair value of the original award immediately prior to the modifi cauon We are recognizing
compensation expense for any stock awards granted after December 31, 2606. Since all of }he Corporation’s stock
option awards granted prior 10 December 31, 2005 have vested in full, no future compensation expense will be
recognized on these awards.

We adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R using the modified-prospective transition method. Under that
transition method, compensation cost recognized-in 2007 and 2006 includes $473,000 and $165,000. respectively,
in compensation cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to Decernber 31, ZOPS. based on the grant-
date fair value cstimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. Results for prior pericds have not been
restated.

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant based upon the Black-Scholes pricing
model that uses the assumptions found in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements. Tl"lc risk-free interest rate
is'based on the implied yield on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remaining term equal to the expected tenm.

Expecied volatility has been estimated based on historical data. The expected term has been estimated based
on the five-year vesting date and change of control provisions.

Our board of directors approved the full vesting as of November 15, 2005 of all unvested stock options
ouistanding at that daie. The effect of this accelerated vesting is reflected in the pro forma nctfloss and pro forma loss
per share figures in Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. During the fourth quancr of 2005, the pro
forma after-1ax effect of compensation cosls for stock-based employee compensation awarq: totaled $2.1 million,
or $0.10 per share. In conjunction with the Board's approval of the full vesting, members of the our senior
management team announced that they would not accept any performance bonus for which they might have been
eligible at year-end 2005. The number of shares represented by unvesied options lhm‘were vested effective
November {5. 2005 is approximately 800,000, of which approximately 665,000 were held by our directors and
executive officers. I

In January 2008, members of cur management received restricted stock grants lmalin!g 107,150 shares. This
grant excludes certain senior executive management who received cash under the shorl-(erm:managemcm incentive
plan in lieu of restricted stock. The grant date fair value is equal to $4.64 per share or $497,000 which will be
recognized over the next 24-month period as 50% of the stock vests on January 22, 2009 and 50% vesls on
January 22, 2010. If the executive’s employment terminates prior to a vesting date for any reason other than death,
disability or a change in control, the unvested stock is forfeited. Unvested stock becomes lmlmedmlcly vested upon
death, disability or a change in conurol. Under the restricted stock agreements, the stock may :n01 be sold or assigned
in any manner during the vesting period, but the executive will have the rights of a shareholder with respect 1o the
stock (i.e. vote, receive dividends, elc), prior w0 vesting.

Superior Bancorp ESOP.  Effective August 31, 2007, we terminated the Superior Bancorp Employee Stock
Ownership Plan {the “ESOP"). The ESOP was leveraged, and a promissory note existed between the ESOP and us
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that had a remaining balance of $1,165,000 at the termination date. The promissory note was s tisfied by the transfer
from the ESOP to us of 127,469 unallocated shares of Corporation common stock valued ata price of $9.14 per
share, the closing price that day, We transferred these shares during the third quarter of 20q 10 lreasury stock at
curren! market value from the unallocated ESOP shares account. The remaining 17,178 unallocated shares were
committed to be allocated to the participants’ accounts, and, as a result, we recognized additional compensation
expense during the third quarter of 2007 of approximately $158,000.

On January 29, 2003, the ESOP trusiees finalized a $2.]1 promissory note, which hag been fully repaid as
discussed above, to reimburse us for the funds used to leverage the ESOP. The unreleased shares and our guarantee
secured the promissory note, which had been classified as notes payable on our statement of financial condition. As
the debt was repaid, shares were released from collateral based on the proportion of débt service. Principal
payments on the debt were $17,500 per month for 120 months. The interest rate adjusted to the Wall Street Journal
arime rate. Interest expense incurred on the debt in 2007, 2006, and 2005 totaled $82,000, $122,000, and $98,000,

espectively. Total contributions to the plan during 2007, 2006, and 2005 totaled $1 3215 000, $322,060, and
$313,000, respectively. Released shares were allocated to eligible employees at the end of the 'lan year based on the
employee’s eligible compensation to total compensation. We recognized compensation ex nse during the period
s the shares were eamed and committed to be released. As shares were committed to be rele ed and compensation
uxpense was recognized, the shares became outstanding for basic and diluted eamnings per sh ‘e computations. The
imount of compensation expense we reported is equal to the average fair value of the shares amed and committed
1o be released during the period. Compensation expense that we recognized during the peri ‘ended December 31,
2007, 2006. and 2005 was $371,000, $304,000, and $281.000, respectively. The ESOP shares as of December 31,
2006 and 2005 were as follows:

Deécember 31,
2006 | | 2005

| s
Allocated shares . ............ .. iirinirinnnnennns e 70,519 52,501
Estimated shares committed lobe released . ............: e 2 G,Tlpq 26,700
Unreleased shares ... ....... ..t ottt e 164,672 191,372
Total ESOP SHares . . . ........oouvnvrnneeeeeeinnnnns. . 261,801 270573
Fair value of unreleased Shares. . . ... ........ovuereinennennnn.. $1,867.000  $2.184,000

Community Bancshares ESOP.  As a result of our merger with Community, we became a sponsor of an
internally leveraged ESOP maintained by Community. This ESOP has an outstanding loan to us'that bears interest at
a floating rate equal to the prime rate of interest. As of December 31, 2007, the interest rate on the note was 7.25%.
Principal and interest payments on the ESOP loan are due monthly through August, 2011, t?ased oa the current
amortization schedule, with the remaining principal and interest, if any, due upon that date. ¢ ESOP loan may be
pxepaid in whole or in pant without penalty under the loan agreement, subject to applicable ERISA and tax
restrictions. We make contributions to the ESOP that enable the ESOP to make payments dug under the ESOP loan.
Under Statement of Position No. 93-6 (“SOP 93-6), “Employer’s Accounting for Empl yc‘c Stock Ownership
P.ans,” employers that sponsor an ESOP with an employer loan should not repont the ESOP’s|note payable or the
emnployer’s note receivable in the employer’s statement of condition, nor should interest cost or interest income be
recognized on the employer loan. We have followed SOP 93-6 accordingty. The principal balance of the loan from
the ESOP at December 31, 2007 was $941,000. l

An employe¢e becomes a participant in the ESOP after completing 12 months of se vicle during which the
eraployee is credited with 1,000 hours or more of service. Contributions to the plan are madg at the discretion of the
board but may not be less than the amount required to service the ESOP debt. Under the terms of the ESOP, after a
person ceases to be an employee of ours, that person is no longer eligible to participate in the E.SOP In that case, the
person may demand to receive all stock credited to his benefit under the ESOP as of the end of lhe year immediately
przceding that person’s termination of employment with us.
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Dividends paid on released ESOP shares are credited to the accounts of the participants to whom the shares are
allocated. Dividends on unreleased shares may be used to repay the debt associated with the ESOP or treated as
other income of the ESOP and allocated to the participants, Compensation cost recognized dunng the period ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $125.000 and $39,000, respectively. The ESOP shares as of December 31, 2007
and 2006 are as follows:

December 31,
2007 2006
|
Allocated shares . ... ... ittt ittt it e e e e 33}.840 319,774
Estimated shares committed tobe released. .. ... ... ... . ool ll|.932 14,066
Unreleased shares . ... ..ttt i iie et et e et e et 54,727 66,659
Total ESOP ShaIes. - . . .« o et v et ee e e ettt e 400499 400,499
Fair value of unreleased Shares . . .. ... oo orueen e $294.000  $756,000

Regulatory Capital. During the fourth quarter of 2005, we became a unitary thrift hcl)lding company and, as
such, we are subject to regulation, examination and supervision by the OTS.

Simultaneously, the Bank's charter was changed to a federal savings bank charter, and lhe Bank is also subject
to various regulatory requirements administered by the OTS. Prior to November 1, 2005, lheLBank was regulated by
the Alabama Baoking Department and the Federal Reserve. Failure to meet minimum capitat requirements can
initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if ?mdenaken. could have
a direct material effect on our financial position and results of operations. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve
quantitative measures of its asscts, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calcu;latcd under regulatory
accounting practices. The Bank's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the
regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require|the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of tangible and core capital (as defined in the regulations)
10 adjusted total assets (as defined), and of total capital (as defined) and Tier 1 capital 10 risk weighted assets {as
defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, that the Bank meets 4ll applicable capital
adequacy requirements.

The table below represents the Bank’s actual regulatory and minimum regulatory capital requirements at
December 31, 2007 (dollars in thousands):

To Be Well
For Capital Capitalized Under
Adequacy Prompt Corrective
Actus! Purposes | Action
Amaunt Ratlo Amount Ratio ‘Amotnt Ratic
As of December 31, 2007
Tier 1 Core Capital (1o Adjusted )
Toral Assets), . .......c..vuun. $204,145 7.64% $106872 4.00% $133.591 5.00% |
. Total Capital (to Risk Weighted {
ASSEIS) .. ... 225602 1045 172,683 8.00 215,854 1000
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted
ASSEIS) .. v 204,145 9.46 N/A  NIA 129,513 6.00
Tangible Capital (to Adjusted Total
ASSEIS) . . o 204,145 164 40,077 1.50 N/A N/A

Impact of Inflation

Unlike most industrial companies, our assets and liabilities are primarily monetary, in nature. Therefore,
interest rates have a more significant effect on our performance than do the effects of changcls in the general rate of
inflation and changes in prices. In addition, interest rates do not necessarily move in the same dircction or in the
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same magnitude as the prices of goods and services. We seek to manage the relationships between interest sensitive
assets and liabilities in order 10 protect against wide ‘interest rate fluctuations, including|those resulting from
inflation. :

Forward-Looking Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements
made by us or on cur behalf. Some of the disclosures in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, incliiding any statements

preceded by, followed by or which include the words “may,” “could,” “should,” “will," “wou d,” “hope,” “might,”

” " * . + I -
" “intend,” “plan,” “assume” or similar expressions constitute forward-

"o LLIETY

anticipate,” “estimate,

LLETY

“betieve,” “expect,
Jooking statements.

These forward-looking statements, impliciily and explicitly, include the assumpuons nderlying the state-
ments and other information with respect to our beliefs, plans, objectives, goals, expect tions, anlicipations,
estimates, intentions, financial condition, results of operations. future performance and buginess, including our
expectations and estimates with respect to our revenues, expenses, earnings, return on cquijty, relurn on assets,
uficiency ratio, asset quality, the adequacy of our al]owancc for loan losses and other financial daia and capital and
performance ratios.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements are reasonable, these
slalements involve risks and uncentainties' which are subject to change based on vartous imponant factors (some of
which are beyond our control). The following factors, among others, could cause our financia! performance to differ
rnaterially from our goals, ptans, objectives, intentions, expectations and other forward-looking statements: (1) the
strength of the United States economy in general and the sirength of the regional and local ecgnomies in which we
conduct operations; (2) the effects of, and changes in, trade, monetary and fiscal policies |and laws, including
interest rate policies of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System; (3) inflation,|interest rate, market
and monetary fluctuations; (4) our ability to successfully imegrate the assets, liabilities, customers, systems and
management we acquire or merge into our operations; (5) our timely development of new prodpicts and services in a
changing environment, including the features, pricing and quality compared to the producty and services of our
competitors; {6) the willingness of users to substitule competitors” products and services for our products and
s:rvices; (7) the impact of changes in financial services policies, laws and regutations, including laws, regulations
and policies conceming taxes, banking, securities and insurance, and the application thereof By regulatory bodies;

() our ability to resolve any legal proceeding on acceptable terms and its effect on our financig
of operations; (9) technological changes; (10) changes in consumer spending and savings hab
naurul disasters, such as hurricanes, in our geographic markets; and (12) regulatory, legal or |

If one or more of the factors affecting our forward-looking information and statements pr
or actual results, performance or achievements could differ materially from those expresss

I condition or results
its: (11) the effect of
|udicial proceedings.
roves incorrect, then
'd in, or implied by,

forward-looking information and statements contained in this annual report. Therefore, we caut‘lon you not to place

undue reliance on our forward-looking information and statements.

We do not intend to update our forward-looking information and statements, whether wri

)
|
ten or oral, 10 reflect

¥ . . . I
change. All forward-looking statements. attributable to us are expressly qualified by these cqutionary statements.

Item 7A.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks.

Please refer to “ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cond
Qaerations — Market Risk — Interest Rate Sensitivity," which is incorporated herein by re
Itam 8. Financia) Statements and Supplementary Data.

Consotidated financial statements of Superior Bancorp meeting the requirements of Reg
on the succeeding pages of this Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING

Board of Directors ané¢ Sharehelders
Superior Bancorp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial condition of
Delaware corporation) and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007, and the related conso
uperations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31,
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to expre
tinancial statements based on our audit.

FIRM

Superior Bancorp {a
idated statements of
2007. These financial
ts an opinion on these

We conducted ocur audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounjting Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes exam
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial stalements. An audit also i

Ining, on a test basis,
hcludes assessing the

tccounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as eyaluating the overall

financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in

our opinion.

all material respects,

the financial position of Superior Bancorp and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007, and the results of their

cperations and their cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2007 in conformity with
generally accepted in the United States of America.

[ . -
gccounting principles

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{("Jnited States), Superior Bancorp's internal control over financial reporting as of Decembsr 31, 2007, based on

criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
nizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated March 14, 2008, exp
opinion.

/st GRANT THORNTON LLP

Raleigh, North Carolina
larch 14, 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors
Superior Bancorp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Superior Bancorp
{formerly, The Banc Corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006, and the retated consolidated
statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in the period
ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.!

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounung Oversight Board
{United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain n:aslonablc assurance about
whether the financial statemenis are free of material misstatement. An audit includes cxamxmng, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as|evaluating the overall
financial statemenl presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Superior Bancorp and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006, and the consolidated
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2006, the Company, changed its method of
accounting for post-retirement benefit plans and share-based compensation.

fs/ Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC

Dothan, Alabama
March 16, 2007
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

December 31,
2007 2006
(In Thousands)}
ASSETS
Cash and due frombanks . . ............. e e e ittty $ 52983 § 49,783
Inerest-bearing deposits inotherbanks .. ... ... . . L L 6916 H),994
Federal funds s01d . . . ... ottt et e e e et 3.452 25,185
Investment securities available forsale . . .. ... .. ... . e e 361,171 354,716
Tax Hen CemifiCaIes . . .. . ...ttt ittt et 15,615 16,313
Mortgage loans held for sale . . .. ... .. i i i i i e e e, 33,408 24,433
AN . vt ittt et e e e e e e e e 2,018,351 1,641,322
Unearmed inCOmME . « . ... i e e eae e e, (1,340) (1,794)
Loans. net of uncamed IMCOME . . . . . ottt e e e e e e e e e e 2,017,011 1,639,528
Allowance {or loan 08SeS . . . ... ... i e et e e i (22,868) (18,892)
3 [ o T 1,994,143 1,620,636
Premises and equUiPMEnt, N8, . . ...ttt e et et e, q 104,799 94,626
Accnued Inlerest TeCeivable . . .. .. L e e et 16,512 14,387
Stock in FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank . . .. .. ... . ... . . i it 14,945 12,382
Cash surrender value of tife insurance . ... ... .. ... ... . i i 452717 40,598
Goodwill and intangible assets . ... ... ..., 187.520 129.520
Oher 853818, . . . ... L 48,684 47417
e T PP e 42,885,425 $2.440,990
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Deposits:
Noninterest-bearing demand. . .. ... ... ... ... i e % 207602 $ 191,323
Interest-bearing demand . ... ... .. ... . i i i e e e e 657,809 552,887
VIS . L e e i 59,507 217
Time deposits $100,000 and OVEr . .. .. ... .ttt et it i e i e 620,718 533,700
Other lme deposilS. . . ..t it e it e e e 654,975 550,214
O] QO POSIIS .« ¢ vttt ettt e e e e e e 2200681  1.870,841
Advances from FHLB . ... ..t e et e e et e e e 222 828 187.840
IFederal funds borrowed and security repurchase agreements . .. .. ... .. c.ouiienenan e ‘ 17.075 23,415
Hotes payable . ... . e e et e e e 9,500 5.545
Junior subordinaled debentures owed 10 unconselidated subsidiary trusts . ... ... ... ..., ‘ 53.744 44,006
Accrued expenses and other liabilities . .. ....... ... ... ... . i 31,625 33,256
Total aBIRIES . . . ..ottt e et e e e e 2535383 2.164.903
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 6 and 17)
Stockholders™ equity:
Convertible preferred stock, par value $.001 per share; shares authorized 5,000,000; -0- shares
issued and outstanding in 2007 and in 2006 .. .. .. ... .. .. ... oo, — —
Common stock. par value $.001 per share; shares authorized 60,000,000, shares issued
41,522,633 in 2007 and 34,732,345 in 2006; outstanding 40,108,317 in 2007 and
351,669 im 20006 . .. ... e e et 41 35
SUIPIUS . L e 329,201 253,815
Retained eamings .. . ... ... . e 33.557 26,491
Accumulated other comprehensive gain (loss} . ... ... . ... L i e e 174 (1,452)
Treasury stock. at cost — 1,390,145 and 80,676 shares, respectively . . ...... ..., ...... (12.309) (716)
Unearmed ESOP St0CK . . .. .ttt i it sttt e nt et e e (622) {2,086)
To1al StoCKROMIERS' EQUILY . - - « .« o e e et et e e e et e e e 350042 276,087
Total liabilities and stockholders” equity. . .. ...... ... .. i $2.885425 $2,440,990
See accompanying notes
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31,

2007

2006

2005

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

. Interest income:

Interestand feesonloans. ... .. ...... .. o L N e $150443 | $ 92,659 363,895
Interest on taxable securities . ........ ... i i i e 17,174 12,994 11,632
Interest on (ax eXempL SECUMLES. . . ...t it in i it 897 389 246
Interest on federal funds sold . . ... .. ... . o 471 570 460
Interest and dividends on other investments . .. .................. 2,944 2,165 1,047
Total inerest INCOME . . .. ..o ittt i tie e ie ittt ateeaannens 171,929 108,777 77.280
Interest expense:
Interest on deposits . . ..o or i i 79,667 46,511 27915
Interest expense on advances from FHLB and other borrowed funds . . . 12,971 11,603 7.493
Interest on subordinated debentures . ...... ... ... oo 4,129 3,269 2,847
Total interest Xpense ... .............. [ 96,767 61,383 38,255
INEt INTETESE INMCOMMIE - & o o v v e e et et ettt e et eaee e ns . 75,162 47,394 39,025
Provision forlpandosses .. .. ............couvut, I e 4,541 2,500 3,500
Net interest income after provision forloanlosses . ................. 70,621 44,894 35,525
Noninterest income:
Servicechargesandfees .. ... .. ... ... ... L 1,957 4915 4,687
Mortgage banking income . . . ...... ... ... i 3,860 2.997 2,558
Investment securities gain (losses) .. ........ ..ot 308 — (948)
Change in fair value of derivatives . . . ......... ... ... ... .. ..., 1,310 374 (325)
“Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance .. ... ... ... .... 1,895 1.580 1,544
[NSUrance Proceeds . ... .. ..ot ir it e — — 5,114
1 4,027 1,945 2,067
Total NONINLErESE iNCOME . . o ...ttt et e eamree e fea 19,357 11,811 14,697
Noninterest expenses:
Salaries and employee benefits. . ... ... ... . . oL 42,316 26,805 23,104
Occupancy and eqQUIPMENT . .. ..ottt et s a i ia e 13,391 7.754 7.680
Management Separation COSIS . . .. ... v ottt ininnn e — 265 15,467
Amontization of core deposit imtangibles. . . .......... ... ... ... 1691 | 442 286
Loss on debt extinguishment . ......... ... ..:c i 1,469 — —
Mergercosts . ..........vinn.n e e 639 635 -
Lossontermination of ESOP . ... ... .. ... .. ... ... . itat. 158 — —
Subsidiary startup costs . ... ... e e e — 135 —
Other. . o e 18,559 13,749 14,083
Total noninterest eXpenses . . ......... i iieii i e 78,223 49,785 60,620
Income (loss) before inCome taxes . . .. ...t vr e e niiaunnnen 11,755 6,920 (10,398)
Income tax expense {benefit) . .. ...... ... ... ... il 4,134 1,923 (4,612)
Net InCOmE (J05S) © « vt vt e e e e e e e e e 7.621 4,997 (5,786)
Preferred stock dividends. . ... ... i P — — 305
Preferred stock conversion. ........ .. ittt i —_— — 2,006
Net income (loss) applicable to commeon stockholders. . .......... $§ 7621 $ 4997 S (8.097)
Weighted average common shares outstanding ... .................. 36,974 23,409 19,154
Weighted average common shares outstanding, assuming dilution. ... ... 37,332 24,034 19,154
Basic net income (loss) percommon share. .. ... ... ... .. ... ... $ 021 $ 021 § (42
Diluted net income (loss) percommonshare .. .. .................. 0.20 0.21 (42)

See accompanying notes
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN S'I'OCKHOLDERS:’ EQUITY

Accumuisted |
Other Unearped Uzearned Tots]
C Sarptas Retalned Com e Tressury ESQF  Restricted Stockholders’
Stock  Common Preferred Exrnings  Galn (Losst) Stock Stodk Stock Equity
{In Thousands, Except Share Data) |
Balance at Janvary 1,2005 .............. SIB 5 68428 56,193 $29.591 $(1,004) $ (390} $(1,758) S5(449) 5100539
Comprehensive income:
Netloss . ... ...t s iianas —_ — — (5,786) - _ — — (5,786)

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax benefit
of $984, unrealized loss on securities
available for sale, arising during the
pariod, net of reclassification
adjustment . .. i - — - - (1.473) — — - {1.473)

Change in accumulated gain on cash flow
hafging instrument, net of tax expense of

16, . e — — —_— - 23 - b— —_ 23
Comprehensive loss . ... ............. (7,236}

Issnance of 925,636 shares to new executive
management and others in a private

placement. . . ...\ e | 7.328 —_ — _ —_— b —_ 1,329
Issuance of 8,191 shares of treasury stock ... — 34 - —_ - 49 — —_ 83
Issuance of 49,375 shares of resmricted stock, . — 403 —_ — _ _— — (122} 81
Preferved dividends declared . . . ... ... ... —_ — —_— (305 - — — _ (305)
Preferred stock conversion — 775,000 shares. . 1 B.I98 (6,193) (2.006) —_ —_ — —_ —_
Stock options exercised — 474,684 shares ... — 327 _ —_ —_ - — 3y
Forfeiture of uncarned restricted stock. . . . . . _ (204) - — — — i_ 204 —
Amortization of uneamed restricted stock .. ..  — - —_ — — e 67 367
Release of 26,700 shares by ESOP . . . . . ... — 65 T — — _ —_ 215 — 280

Balance ot December 31.2005. ... .. ... .. 20 87979 —  214% (2.544) (341) (L5 — 105.065
Comprehensive income: .
Netincome . .. ... oiiinin ey _ — — 4997 — — — —_ 4,997
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
expense of $556, unrealized gain on
securities gvailable for sale, arising
during the period, net of reclassification A
adjustment . . . ... — — — - 831 -— — — 831
Change in 2ccumulated gain on cash flow ’

hedge. metoftax . ... ... ......... —_ —_ — - v (23) — - — (23}
Change in pension liability oet of tx effect .. — — — —_ 284 —_ — — 284
Comprehensive income .. ... .......... 6,089
Issuance of 4,873 shares of reasury stock ... — 20 — —_ —_ 32 — — 52
Issvance of 6,226,722 shares for Kensington

purchase. . .. .. ... L e 6 70,965 — - — — — — 70,971
Issuance of 56,170 shares related to board -

COMPENSALION. . . .. .. ........ e — 565 - — — — - — 569
[ssuance of 8,072,179 shares for Community. . B 93,045 —_— — —_ 407 (759 - 91,887
Stock aptions exercised — 155,818 shares . . . )| 91 - —_ —_ —_ — - 992
Compensalion expense related to stock | .

........................ — 159 — — - - o —- 159
Rcle.w_ of 26,700 shares by ESOP . . ... ... — 87 — — — — 216 — 303
B ance at December 31, 2006 . .. ... ... .. 35 253815 — 26491 (1452 (716) (2.086) — 276087
Adoptionof FIN48 . . .. ... .., ... ... — —_ - (555) —_ —_ o - (555)
Comprchensive income:
Netincome . ..................... — — — 7621 —_ _ B — 1621
Crther comprehensive income, net of tax

expense of $798, unrealized gain on

securilies available for sale, arising during

the period, net of reclassification

adjustment .. ... ...l — - —_ —_ 1,238 _— b - 1238
Change in pension liability, nct of tax effect. .  — — — -— 358 - — — 388
Comprehensive income . . . ... ... ... ... 9,247
chun::hasc of 1,182,000 shares of treasury

.......................... - — - - —_ (10,428) r— _ (10.428)
[ssuanu: of 6,635,125 shares for People's .

purchase. . . ....... .. il 6 73.798 - - - - - — 73,804
Issuance of 27,765 shares related to board [

COMPENSation. . . .. ..........c..un. - 278 — - —_ —_ Bl —_ 278
Btock options exercised — 85,000 shares . ...  — 540 —_ — — — - — 640
Zompensation expense related to stock L |

OPHONG. . . . ittt e - 472 — - — - = - 472
liclease of 49,135 shares by ESOP . . . . . ... - 198 — - — — 29 —_ 497
“ermination of ESOP — 127.469 shares i

transfered . ... ... = — — — — (1.165) 1195 — —

Balance 2t December 31,2007, .. .. ... se- W1 5320201 8 — 533357 5 174 30123098 (6p2) $ — 3350042

See accompanying notes
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Ovperating activities

Net ineome (J0SS) . . . . .t i i ittt et i e e e,

Adjusiments to reconcile nel income(loss) to net cash provided by (used in)

operations:

DeprecialiOn . . . . e e ettt
Amorntizaton of Intangibles . . ... .. e e
Net (discount) premium amortization on secunities .. ..................
(Gain) loss on sale of investment securities ., ... ... ... ... ... ...
Losson foreclosed assets . .. .. .o i ittt e i i e et a e
Provision for loan bosses . . ... ... .. .. .. . .. i et
Decrease in accrued interest receivable . ... ....... ... ... ... ...,
Deferred income tax expense (benefit). ... .. ... .. o o
Gainonsaleof assetshbranches. . ... .. ... ... il
Net increase in mortgage loans held forsale. . . .. ... . ... ... ........
Other operating activilics, DEL. . . . .o v ittt nnn i eanaar s

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activilies. . . ............. ...t
Investing activities

Decrease in interest bearing deposits inotherbanks .. .. ... ... .. ... ... ... ..
Decrease infederal funds sold . . . .. . ... .. ... ... .. ... ...
Proceeds from sales of invesiment securities available forsale. . ... ...........
Procecds from maturitics of investment securities available forsale .. ..........
Purchase of investment securities available forsale ... ... ... .. . ciurnrn.n.
NeLInCrease I J0aNS . ... v i ittt i i i iiiae it rannnnenn
Net cash received in business combinations. . .. ... ... ... i
Net redemptions (purchase) of tax ken centifieates . . ........ ... ... ... ...
Purchase of premises and equipment . . ...... ... ... a.
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment . ... ... ... ... ... L.
Proceeds from sale of foreclosed assels. . . .. ... ... iy i
Other invesSling aCHIVIIES, MEL. . . . .ot ittt et et e st e mae e e e e e e

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities. . ... ...................
Financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in demand and savings deposits ... . ........ ... ...
Net increase (decrease) in ime depasits . .. ... .. ...t
{Decrease) increase in FHLB advances . . .. . .. ... ..., . ... ..o L,
Proceeds from note payable. . . ... ... L
Principal paymentonnote payable. . . ... ... ... ...
Net (decrease) increasc inotherborrowed funds .. .. ... .. ... .. ... ... ...
Proceeds from issuance of junior subordinated debentures, . ... ... ..o
Principal payment on junior subordinated debentures . . ... .. .. ... L.
Purchase of treasury StOCK . . . .. ... . e
Proceeds from issuance of commen S10CK . . . ..o ool i e s
Cashdividends paid . . .. ... i e e

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities. . .. ....... ... ... ... ...

Increase incashand due frombanks ... ... .. . . L L Lt
Cash and due from banks ol beginningof year. . ......... ... ... .....
, Cashanddue frombanksatendof year . ... .. ... .. . .. i e
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Cash paid (received) during the year for:
= -

Assets acquired in business combinations . . ... .. ... .. L Lo L.,
Liabiliies assumed in business combinations. . . . . .. ... ... ... .. . eaan
Issuance of common stock in dequisitions . . . ... .. oo i,

See accompanying notes
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Year Ended December 31,
2007 | 2006 2005
(tn Thousands)

$ 7621 | 3§ 4997 % (5,786)
4,630 3,245 3.275
1,868 —_ —_—
(116) 298 531
(308) —_ 948
[70 181 818
4,541 2,500 3,500
(386) (750) (844)
4,021 1,923 (3,168)
(139 (254) —
(8,975) {1,993)  (13,260)
(9,184) (3,781) 4,202
3133 6,366 (9.784)
4,078 1,222 1.639
25933 11,052 11,000
18,378 215,717 57.372
82,873 39,233 40,642
(59.910) (72.319) (56,233)
(132,769) (200,837)  (34,225)
1,231 18,642 —
698 {16.024) (273)
{23,833) {13,813) (2,665)
5630 1,835 3,343
7,327 1,722 4,155
1.442 2,087 1,247
(68,922) (11,483) 26,002
(7.824) 59.375 50,236
92,150 60,766 (73,747)
{2.995) (62,051) 25,000
10,000 2,000 —_
{6,045} (210) (210)
. {13,304) (41,060) (16,050)
22,680 — —_
(16,495) —_ —_
(10,428) — —_
640 992 10,457
- - (305)
68,379 19.812 (4,619
3,200 « 14,695 11,599
49,783 35,088 23,489
$ 52983 (§ 49,783 § 35,088
$ 97848 |$ 56831 $37,790
(564) (1,706) (3.066)
9239 935 1.804
376.061 1,006,674 —_
303,487 838,102 —
73,804 162,858 —




Zorporation's reserve requirements were $6,759,000 and $10,800,000. which it was in full

SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2007, 2046 and 2005

1. Summary of Significan! Accounting Policies

Superior Bancorp (“Corporalion"), through its subsidiaries, provides a full range of bar}k

ng and bank-related

services to individual and corporate customers in Alabama and Florida. The accounting and rep:)mng policies of the
Corporation conform with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and lo general pracuce withtn the banking

industry, The following summarizes the most significant of these policies.

Basis of Preseniation and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes to consolidated financ‘ia

the accounts of the Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. All significant intercom
balances have been eliminated in consolidation,

Certain amounts in prior year financial statements have been reclassified to conformny
presentation.

Use of Estimares

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with gencrally accepted accountir]
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of asse
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statémenis and the
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those g

Cash und Cash Equivaients

For the purpose of presentation in the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent
amounts included in the statements of financial condition caption “Cash and Due from Bal

—

| statements include
pany transactions or

to the cumrent year

g principles requires
s and liabilities and
reported amounts of

stimates.

s are defined as those

ks.”

" The Corporation’s banking subsidiary is required to maintain minimum average resérve balances by the

Federal Reserve Bank, which are based on a percentage of deposits. At December 31,

Investment Securities

2007 and 2006, the
compliance.

Investment securities are classified as either held to maturity, available for sale or u admb at the time of
purchase. The Corporation defines held to maturity securitics as debt securities which managyg ment has the positive

intent and ability to hold to maturity.

Held 10 matunity securitics are reported a1 cost, adjusted for amortization of ‘premidms and accretion of

cliscounts that are recognized in interest income using the effective yield method.

Securities available for sale are reported at fair value and consist of bonds, notes, debentu

res, and certain equity

securities not classified as trading securities nor as securities 10 be held to maturity. Unrealized holding gains and

lnsses, net of deferred taxes, on securities available for sale are excluded from earnings and re
cther comprehensive income (loss) within stockholders™ equity.

Gains and losses on the sale of securities available for sale are determined using the
method.

Tax lien centificaies

Tax lien cenificales represent a priority lien against real properly for which assesseq
delinquent. Tax lien certificates are carried at cost plus accrued interest which approximat
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

L. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

certiftcates and resulting deeds are classified as nonr-accrual when a tax lien cemﬁcale is 24 1o 48 months
delinquent, depending on the municipality, fram the acquisition date at which time, interest ceases to be accrued.

Loans and Allowance for Loan Losses

Loans are stated a1 the amount of unpaid principal, reduced by unearned income ancli an allowance for loan
losses. The Corporation defers certain nonrefundable loan origination and commitment fees and the direct costs of
onginaling or acquiring loans. The net deferred amount is amortized over the estimated fives of the related loans as
an adjustment to yield. Interest income with respect 10 loans is accrued on the principal amount outslandmg except
for ioans classifted as nonaccrual.

Accrual of interest is discontinued on loans which are more than ninety days pasi due unless the loan is well
secured and in the process of collection. “Well secured” means that the debt must be secured by collateral having
sufficient realizable value 1o discharge the debt, including accrued interest, in full. “In lhe:I process of collection™
means that collection of the debt is proceeding in due course either through legat action or other collection effort
that is reasonably expected to result in repayment of the debt in full within a reasonable beriod of time, usually
within one hundred eighty days of the date the loan became past due. Any unpaid interest, previously accrued on
these loans is reversed from income. Interest payments received on these loans are applied as a reduction of the loan
principal balance. |

Under the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 114, Accounting by
Creditors for Iimpairment of a Loan, impaired loans are specifically reviewed loans for whlch it is probable that the
Corporatien will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the terms of the loan agrecmcm Impairment is
measured by comparing the recorded investment in the loan with the present value of expe'cled future cash flows
discounted at the loan"s effective interest rate, at the loans observable market price, or the fairI value of the collateral
if the loan is collateral dependent. A valuation allowance is provided to the extent that the measure of the impaired
loans is less than the recorded investment. A loan is not considered impaired during a period'of delay in payment if
the ultimate collectibility of all amounts due is expected. Larger groups of homogenous lo:ms such as consumer
installment and residemial real estate mortgage loans are collectively evaluated fori lmpmrmem Payments received
on impaired loans for which the ultimate collectibility of principal is uncertain are generally applied first as
principal reductions. Impaired loans and other nonaccrual loans are returned to accrual status if the {oan is brought
contractually current as to both principal and interest and repayment ability is demonstmted.1or if the loan is in the
process of collection and no loss is anticipated. ‘

The aliowance for loan loss is considered to be a significant estimate and is established through a provision for
loan losses charged to expense. Loans are charged against the allowance for loan losses when management believes
the collectibility of principal is unlikely. The allowance is the amount that management believes will be adequate to
absorb inherent losses on existing loans.

Managemenl prepares a quarierly analysis to assess the risk in the loan portfolio and to determine the adequacy
of the allowance for loan losses. Generally, management estimates the allowance using Ispecif'u‘: reserves for
impaired loans under SFAS 114, and other factors, such as historical loss experience based on volume and types of
loans, trends in classifications, volume and trends in delinquencies and non-accruals, national and local economic
trends and conditions and other pertinent information, The level of allowance for loan losses to niet loans may vary
depending on the quarterly analysis.

The Corporation manages and controls risk in the loan portfolio through adherence to credit standards
established by the Board of Directors and implemented by senior management. These smnda:rds are set forth in a
formal loan policy which establishes loan underwriting and approval procedures, sets limits on credit concentration
and enforces regulatory requirements.
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continited)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

Loan portfolio concentration risk is reduced through concentration limits for borrowers and varying coltateral
types. Concentration risk is measured and reported to senior management and the board ofdirectors on a regular
basis.

The allowance for toan loss calculation is segregated into various segments that includelclassified loans, loans

with specific allocations and pass rated loans. A pass rated loan is generally characterized by
risk of default and in which management perceives there is a minimal risk of loss. Loans are

A very low Lo average
rated using an eight-

point scale, with the loan officer having the primary responsibility for assigning risk ratmgs and for the timely
reporting of changes in the risk ratings. These processes, and the assigned risk ratings, are sul: }ject 1o review by our

internal loan review function and senior management. Based on the assigned risk ranngs the criticized and

classified loans in the portfolio are segregated accordmg 1o the following regulatory clgssifications: Special

Mention, Substandard, Doubtful or Loss.

Reserve percentages assigned to homogeneous loans are based on historical charge-off € perience adjusted for

current trends in the portfolio and other risk factors

As stated above, risk ratings are subject fo independent review by intemal loan review,

ongoing, independent review of the risk management process. The risk management process i
documentation and collateral control. Loan review is centralized and independent of the lendi
review results are reported to senior management and the Audit Committee of the Board of
centralized loan administration department to serve our entire bank. This department f
oversight for compliance with loan approval authorities and bank lending policies and p
centralized supervision, monitoring and accessibility.

Acquired Loans

The Corporation generally acquires loans ihrough business combinations rather than ind

which also performs
cludes underwriting,

'Pg function. The loan

Directors. We have a
rovides standardized
rocedures, as well as

ividually or in groups

or portfolios. An acquired loan which has experienced deterioration of credit quality betwegn origination and the

acquisition, and for which it is probable that the Corporation will be unable to collect all am
the loan’s contractual terms, is accounted for under the provisions of Statement of Positio:
Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer (*SOP 03-3"). For such loans, the
the amount and 1iming of undiscounted expected principal, interest, and other cash flo
prepayments, if any) as of the acquisition date. The excess of the loan’s contractually requi
Corporation expected cash flows is referred (o as a nonaccretable difference and is not recor
The loan is initially recorded at fair value, which represents the present value of the ex

| .
unts due according to

[03-3, Accounting for
orporation estimates
(including expected
cash flows over the
d by the Corporation.
cted cash flows. The

difference between the undiscounted expected cash flows and the fair value at which the loa is recorded is referred

10 as accretable yield and is accreted into interest income over the remaining expected life| of the loan.

On a quarterly basis. the Corporation updates its estimate of cash flows expected
astimated cash flows have decreased, the Corporation will recognize a loss by reducing the

to be collected. If the
a{ccretable yield. If the

astimated cash Mows have increased, the Corporation will increase the accretable yield which is accreted on a

rospective basis over the loan’s remaining life.

Morigage Loans Held for Sale

|
originate these loans.

Mortgage loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or market, determined on a 1& apgregate basis. The

carrying value of these loans is adjusted for any origination fees and cost incurred to)
IDifferences between the camrying amount of mortgage loans held for sale and the amounts! ¢

ffcewed upon sale are

credited or charged to income at the time the proceeds of the sale are collected. The fair valpes are based on quoted

market prices of similar loans, adjusted for differences in loan characteristcs.
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amorllization. Depreciation is
computed over the estimated service lives of the assets using straight-line and accelerated methods, generally using
5 to 40 years for premises and 5 to 10 years for furniture and equipment.

Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred: cxpenlditures {or renewals and
bewterments are capitalized and written off by depreciation charges. Property retired or sold is removed from the
asset and related accumulated depreciation accounts and any gain or loss resulting there \from is reflected in the
statement of operations.

The Corporation reviews any long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, goodwill totaled $162,467.000 and 31 I4!458.000. respectively.
SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other intangible Assets (“SFAS 142") requires goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives to no longer be amortized but instead tested for impairment at least annually in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS 142, (See Note 2 — Business Combinations)

The Corporation has determined that its reporting units for purposes of this testing are the operating branches
which are included as part of its reportable segments: the Alabama Region and the Florida Region. Goodwill is
allocated to each reporting unit based on the location of the acquisitions as follows:

December 31,
2007 2006
‘I(ln Thousands)
Alabama Region .. ... ..ot i e i s 65|.899 § 64,950
Florida Region . ... .. .. ... ittt in i et 96,568 49,508
TOW + - e e e et e e $162,467  $114,458

The first step in testing requires that the fair value of each reporting unit be determined. If the carrying amount
of any reporting unit exceeds its fair value, goodwill impairment may be indicated. The determination of the fair
value of each reporting unit is considered to be a significant estimate.

The Corporation performs the annual impairment test as of December 31. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
the Corporation determined no impairment existed. '

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Corporation’s core deposit intangible, which is being amortized over ten
years from the date of acquisition, was as follows:

2007 2006
{In Thousands)
Core deposit imangible . .. ... . ... e 5216,355 $16,545
Accumulated amortization. .. ... e i e {3,238) {1,547
Net core deposit intangible . .. .... ... .. A $23,017  $14,998




SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

Amortization expense was $1,691,000, $442,000, and $286,000 for the years ended Dece
and 2005, rcspectively. Aggregate amortization expense for the years ending Decembef
December 31, 2012, is estimated to be as follows:

Year

Other Real Estute

Other real estate, acquired through partial or total satisfaction of loans, is carried at the
value, less estimated selling expenses, in other assets. At the date of acquisition, any differe
value and book value of the asset is charged to the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent gain
r losses from the valuation of and the cost of maintaining and operating other real estate
income or expense. Other real estate totaled $4,378,000 and $1,684,000 at December)]
respectively and is included in other assets on the accompanying consolidated statement of

Security Repurchase Agreements

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are generally accounted for as coll
transactions and are recorded at the amounts at which the securities were sold plus accrued]
gienerally U.S. government and Federal agency securities, pledged as collateral under these ﬁr'l
cannot be sold or repledged by the secured party.

Income Taxes ‘

The consolidated financial statements are pfepared on the accrual basis. The C-:)rporalionL
taxes using the liability method pursuant to SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Ta.:res|
ceferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial repon

ber 31, 2007, 2006,
31, 2008 through

Annual Exp_snse
(In 'Thousands)

$ 3,584
3,942
3.479
3,049
2,492

$16.546

lower of cost or fair
ce between the fair
or losses on the sale

included in other
1, 2007 and 2006,
financial condition.

nteratized financing
interest. Securities,
cing arrangements

nccounts for income
Under this method,
ing and tax bases of

assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in

vthich those temporary differences are expected to reverse.

In July 2006, thc Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB ln(erprclauon No. 48,

Accouming for Uncertainiy in Income Taxes (“FIN 48™). This interpretation clarifies the accou
in income taxes recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance with Sla

nting for uncertainty
ement of Financial

A.ccounting Standards (“SFAS"™) No. 109, Accounring for Income Taxes. Specifically, the prono ncemeni prescribes

a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition

d measurement of a

tux position taken or expecled to be taken in a tax return. The interpretation also provides gux ance oo the related

recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting for interim periods, disclosu
uacertain tax positions. The interpretation was effective for fiscal years beginning after Dece
Corporation adopied FIN 48 on Junuary 1, 2007 (see Note 14). |
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business the Corporation has entered into off-balance sheﬁ.t financial instruments
consisting of commitments to extend credit, commitments under credit card arrangements and commercial letters of
credit and standby letiers of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded in the financial statements when they
become payable to the extent that they do not qualify as derivatives.

Per Share Amounts '

Eamings per common share computations are based on the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding during the periods presented.

Diluted earnings per common share computations are based on the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period, plus the dilutive effect of stock options, convertible preferred siock and
restricted stock awards.

Stock-Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R”), which is a
revision of SFAS 123, Accounting for Siock-Based Compensation, and supersedes Oplmon 25 The new standard,
which became effective for the Corporation in the first quarter of 2006, requires companies t0 recognize an expense
in the statement of operations for the grant-date fair value of stock options and other equn;'-based compensation
issued to employees, but expresses no preference for a type of valuation methed. This expensc is recognized over
the period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award SFAS 123R carries
forward prior guidance on accounting for awards to non-employees. If an equity award is mOdlﬁCd afier the grant
date, incremental compensation cost will be recognized in an amount equal fo the excess of the fair value of the
modified award over the fair value of the original award immediately prior to the modifi canon The Corporation
will recognize compensation expense for any stock awards granted after December 31, 2005 Since all of the
Corporation’s stock option awards granted prior to December 31, 2005 vested prior to December 31, 2005, no future
compensation expense will be recognized on these awards (see Note 12).

Pension Plan
Liabilities and contributions to the plan are calculated using the actuarial unit credit method of funding, (see
“Recent Accounting Pronouncements — Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Ne. 158.7)

Derivative Financial Insrruments and Hedging Activities

SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (“SFAS 133"), requires
companies to recognize all of their derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial
position at fair value.

Derivative financial instruments that qualify under SFAS 133 in a hedging relationship are designated, based
on the exposure being hedged, as either fair value or cash flow hedges. Fair value hedge rf::lationships mitigate
exposure to the change in fair value of an asset, liability or firm commitment. Under the fair value hedging model,
g:ains or losses atiributable to the change in fair value of the derivative instrument, as well as the gains and losses
attributable to the change in fair value of the hedged item, are recognized in eamings in the' period in which the
change in fair value occurs,

Cash flow hedge relationships mitigate exposure to the variability of future cash ﬂows or other forecasted
vansactions. Under the cash flow hedging mods), the effective portion of the gain or loss related to the derivative
instrument, if any, is recognized as a component of other comprehensive income. For denvanvc financial

\
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS —- (Contirqued)

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

instruments not designated as a fair value or cash flow hedges, gains and losses related to the chiange in fair value are

recognized in earnings during the pericd of change in fair value.

The Corporation formally documents all relationships between hedging instruments and bedged items, as well
as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.| This process includes
linking all derivative instruments that are designated as fair-value or cash-flow hedges tq specific assets and

liabilities on the balance sheet or to specific firm commitments or forecasted transactions.

The Corporation also formally assesses, both at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the
derivative instruments that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offseuingI hanges in fair values
or cash flows of hedged items. When it is determined that a derivative instrument is not highly affective as a hedge or
that it has ceased to be a highly effective hedge, the Corporation discontinues hedge accoun{ing prospectively, as
discussed below. :

;’

The Corporation discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when: (1) it is delen'm that the derivative
instrument is no longer effective in offsetting changes in the fair value or cash flows of a he ged itemn (including
firm commitments or forecasted transactions); (2} the derivative instrument expires or ig sold, terminated or
exercised; (3) the derivative instrument is de-designated as a hedge instrument, because it is unlikely that a
forccasied transaction will occur; (4) a hedged firm commitment no longer meets the Wefinition of a firm
commitment; or (5) management determines that designation of the derivative instrument a2 a hedge instrument
is no longer appropriate. ' |

strument no longer
the balance sheet at

When hedge accounting is discontinued because it is determined that the derivative
qualifies as an effective fair-value hedge, the derivative instrument will continue to be carried
its fair value and the hedged asset or liability will no longer be adjusted for changes in faif value. When hedge
accounting is discontinued because the hedged item no longer meets the definition of a l' commitment, the
derivative instrument will continue to be carried on the balance sheet at its fair value and anylasset or liability that
was recorded pursuant 1o recognition of the firm commitment will be removed from balance sheet and
recognized as a gain or loss in the then-current-period earnings, When hedge accounting is d|1 continued because it
is probable that a forecasted transaction will not occur. the derivative instrument will connnu to be carried on the
batance sheet at its fair value, and gains and losses that were accumulated in other compre ; dnsive income will be
recognized immediately in earnings. When the derivative instrument is de-designated, termingted or sold, any gain
or loss will remain in accumulated other comprehensive income and will be reclassified into egrnings over the same
period during which the.underlying hedged item affects earnings. In all other situations in'w? ch hedge accounting
is discontinued, the derivative instrument will be carried at its fair value on the balance sheet, with changes in its fair
value recognized in the then-current-period eamings.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 155 |

In February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid %inancia! Instruments
(“SFAS 155™), which: (1) permits fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrunent that conMaing an
embedded derivative that otherwise would require bifurcation, (2) clarifies which lmeresl-onl{{ strips and principal-
only strips are not subject to the requirements of SFAS 133, (3) establishes a requirement t evaluate interests in

securitized financial assets to identify interests that are freestanding derivatives or that
instrunents that contain an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation, (4) clarifies that conc
the form of subordination are not embedded derivatives, and (5) amends SFAS No. 140, Ace
and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities — a replacement of FAS
to eliminate the prohibition of a qualifying special-purposc entity from holding a dcnvauwl'
that periains to a beneficial interest other than another derivative financial instrument. SFAS
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the Corporatian {or period beginning January 1, 2007. The provisions of SFAS 155 did not have a material impact
on the Corporation.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 156

In March 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets (“SFAS 1567),
which: (1) provides revised guidance on when a servicing asset and servicing liability|should be recognized,
(2) requires all separately recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities to be initially, measured at fair value,
if practicable, (3) permits an entity to elect to measure servicing assets and servicing llablhues at fair value each
reporting date and report changes in fair value in earnings in the period in which the changes occur, (4) upon initial
adoption, permits a one-time reclassification of available-for-sale securities to trading securities for securities
which are identified as offsetling the entity’s exposure to changes in the fair value of servxcmg assets or liabilities
that a servicer elects to subsequently measure at fair value, and (5) requires separate presentauon of servicing assets
and servicing liabilities subsequently measured ai fair value in the statement of financial posmon and additional
footnote disclosures. SFAS 156 was applicable to the Corporation beginning January 1, 2007, and did not have a
material impact on the Corporation.

FASB Interpretation No. 48

In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncerramly in Income Taxes. This
interpretation clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in a company's financial
statements in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. Spec1ﬁca1ly. the pronouncement
prescribes a recognition threshold and a measuremeni auribute for the financial statement recognition and
measurement of a tax positien taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. The imerp:relalion also provides
guidance on the related derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting for imerim periods,
disclosure and transition"of uncertain tax positions. The interpretation was effective for the Corporation beginning
January 1, 2007. Sce Note 14 for the related impact of the adoption of FIN 48.

FSP No. 48-1 "Definition of Settlement in FASB Interpretarion No. 48.”

FSP 48-1 provides guidance on how to determine whether a tax position is effectively sellllcd for the purpose of
recognizing previously unrecognized tax benefits. FSP 48-1 was effective retroactively to January 1, 2007 and did
not significanily impact the Corporation’s financial statements.

Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 06-05

In September 2006, the FASB ratified a consensus reached by the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF") on
Issue No. 06-05, Accounting for Purchases of Life Insurance — Determining the Amoun: Thaf Could Be Realized in
Accordance with FASB Technical Bulletin No. 85-4. Technical Bulletin No. 85-4, “Accoummg for Purchases of Life
Insurance.” requires that the amount that could be realized under a life insurance contract|as of the date of the
statement of financial position should be reported as an asset. The EITF concluded that a policyholder should
<onsider any additional amounis (i.e., amounts other than cash surrender value} included in lhe contractual terms of
she policy in deiermining the amount that could be realized under the insurance contract. When it is probable that
contractual restrictions would limit the amount that could be realized, these coniractual l‘imilalions should be
considered when determining the realizable amounts. Amounts that are recoverable by thc policyhelder at the
discretion of the insurance company should be excluded from the amount that could be n:ahz|cd Amounts that are
recoverable beyond one year from the surrender of the policy should be discounted to present value. A policyholder
thould determine the amount that could be realized under the insurance contract assuming the surrender of an
individual-iife by individual-life policy (or certificate by centificate in a group policy). Any amount that would
ultimately be realized by the policyholder upon the assumed surrender of the final policy (or final certificate in a
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group policy) should be included in the amount that could be realized under the insurance conttract. A policyholder
should not discount the cash surrender value component of the amount that could be realized when contractual
restrictions on the ability to surrender a policy exist. However, if the contractual limitations prescribe that the cash
surrender value component of the amount that could be realized is a fixed amount, then the hmount that could be
realized should be discounted. EITF Issue No. 06- 05 was effective for fiscal years beginni‘p afier December 15,
2006. The application of EITF Issue No. 06-05 did not have a material impact on the Cgrporation’s financial
condition or results of operations.

Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108

In September 2006, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 108,
Misstaiemenis, which expresses the Siaff’s views regarding the process of quantifying financial statement
misstatements. Registrants aré required to quantify the impact of comrecting all misstatements, including both
the carryover and reversing effects of prior year misstatements, on the current year financial statements. The
techniques most commonly used in practice to accumnulate and quantify misstatements are generally referred to as
the “rollover” (current year income statement perspective) and “iron curtain™ (year-end; balance perspective)
approaches. The financial statements would require adjustment when either approach results in quantifying a
misstatement that is material, after considering ali relevant quantitative and qualitative faclf s. This guidance did
not have a material effect on the Corporation’s financial condition, results of operations off cash flows.

wantifyving Financial

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers® Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Staiements No. 87, 88, 106 and 1B2(R) (“SFAS 1587).
SFAS 158 requires employers to fully recognize the obligations associated with single-employer defined benefit
pension, retiree healthcure and other postretirement plans in their financial statements. SFAS 158 requires an
employer to (a) recognize in its statement of financial position an asset for a plan’s over funded status or a liability
for a plan’s under funded status, (b) measure a plan’s assets and its obligations that determine {ts funded status at the
end of the employer’s fiscal year and (c) recognize changes in the funded status of a defined postretirement plan in
the year in which the changes occur. Those changes will be reported in the comprehensive [income of a business
entity. The requirement to recognize the funded status of a benefit plan and the disclosure requirements were
effective as of the end of the fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006, for publicly traded companies. The
requircment to measure plan assets and benefit obligations as of the date of the employer’s fis¢al year-end statement
of financial position is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2008. SFAS 158 did not have a matenal
impact on the Corporation’s statement of financial position at December 31, 2006 or bn the Corpdralion‘s
izomprehensive income for the period ended December 31, 2006.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards Ne. 157

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in generally accepted accounting principles and
expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
vears beginning afier November 15, 2007. Management has evaluated the provisions of SFAS 157 and does not
Letieve that the adoption of this standard will have a material impact on the Corporation’s financial statements.

Starement of Financial Aécauming Standards No. 159

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Oprion for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (“SFAS 159™). SFAS 159 would allow the Corporation 1o make an im:vocabl:lclection 10 measure
certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, with unreatized gains and losses on the elgeted items recognized
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in earnings at cach reporting period. The fair value option may only be elected at the time olf initial recognition of a
financial asset or financial liability or upon the occurrence of certain specified events. The election is applied on an

instrument by instrument basis, with a few exceptions, and is applied only (o entire instruments and not to portions

" of instruments. SFAS 159 also provides expanded disclosure requirements regarding the effects of electing the fair

valug option on the financial stalements. SFAS 159 is efleclive prospectively for ﬁscall years beginning after
November 15, 2007, The Corporation has evaluated SFAS 159 and determined that the fair value option will not be
elecied for any financial asset or liability currently reported on the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements.

Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 06-04

In July 2006, the EITF issucd a draft abstract (or EITF Issue No. 06-08, Accounting for Deferred Compen-
sation and Postretirement Benefit Aspecis of Endorsement Split-Dollar Life Insurance Arrangement. This draft
abstract from the EITF reached a consensus that for an endorsement split-dollar life i insurance arrangement within
the scope of this Issue, an employer should recognize a liability for future benefits in accordalilce with SFAS No. 106,
Emplovers” Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions. The EITF concluded that a liability for the
‘benefit obligation under SFAS No. 106 has not been settled through the purchase of an‘endorscmcm type life
insurance policy. In September 2006, FASB agreed 1o ratify the consensus reached in EITE Issue No. 06-04. This

new accourtting standard will be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007 At December 31,
2007, the Corporation had no endorsement split-dotlar life insurance arrangements oulsmndmg on any of its bank-
owned life insurance.

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 160

SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling huterest in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amend}nem of ARB Statement
No. 51 ("SFAS 160™). SFAS 160 amends Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51, “Consolidated Financial
Statements,” to establish accounting and reporting standards for the non-controlling interest'in a subsidiary and for
the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. SFAS 160 clarifies that a non-controlling interest in la subsidiary, which is
somelimes referred 1o as minority interest, is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity ‘lhal should be reported
as a componert of equity in the consolidated financiat statements. Among other requirements, SFAS 160 requires
cansolidated net income to be reported at amounts that include the amounts attributable to bolh the parent and the
non-controlling interest. It also requires disclosure, on the face of the consolidaied income statement, of the
amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the non-comrol]mg!mtcreSI. SFAS 160 is
effective for the Corporation on January 1, 2009 and is not expected to have a significant impact on the
Corporation’s financial statements.

Staff Accounting Bulletin 109

SAB No. 109, Writien Loan Commitments Recorded at Fair Value Through Earnings ("SAB 169™). SAB 109
supersedes SAB 105, “Application of Accounuing Principles io Loan Commitments,” and md:catcs that the expecled
net future cash flows related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included in the measurement of all
written loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings. The guidancelin SAB 109 is applied
on a prospective basis 10 derivative loan commilments issued or modified in fiscal quanters beginning after
December 15, 2007. SAB 109 is not expected to have a material impact on the Corporation's financial statements.

2. Business Combinations
People’s Acquisition

The Corporation completed the: acquisiion of 100% of the outstanding stock of People’s Community
Bancshares, Inc. (“Pecple’s”), of Sarasota, Florida on July 27, 2007 in exchange for 6,635,125 shares of the

73




SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

2. Business Combinations — (Continued)

Corporation’s common stock valued at approximately $73,982,000. The shares were valued b
the closing prices of the Corporation’s stock for several.days prior to and after the terms of
agreed to and announced. The total purchase price, which includes cenain direct z‘tc
$76,429,000. As a result of the acquisition, the Corporation now operates three bankmg
and Manatee Counties, Florida. This area is a significant addition to the Corporation's large
expanded in 2006 by the Kensington acquisition discussed below.

$9.810,000 of core deposit intangibles. The goodwill acquired is not tax-deductible. The ar

y using the average of
the acquisition were
quisition costs, was
locations in Sarasota’
st market, which was

ount allocated to the

The Peopie‘s transaction resulted in $47,389,000 of goodwill allocated to the Flori:#‘a reporting unit and

core deposit intangible was determired by an independent valuation and is being amonized 0:
life of ten years based on the undiscounted cash flow,

Management is completing its plan to consolidate People’s data processing operations

er an estimated useful

and convert People's

accounts to the Corporation’s system. This conversion is expected to be completed in the,
Certain costs associated with this conversion totaling approximately $575,000, which prim

first quarter of 2008.
ily includes contract

cancellation costs, were estimated and accrued as of the acquisition date. In addition, certaip employment-related

coniract obligations totaling approximately $4.600,000 were also accrued at the acquisiti

date.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liapilities assumed at the

date of acquisition.

Cashand due from banks. .. ... .. . ittt e e e e e L
Federal funds sold . . . .. ... ... ... . . . e ..

Premises and equipment, Aet . ... .. ... ... 5
Goodwill . . ... e e o
Core depositintangibles. . .. ... ... . e e S,
Ot ASSeLS . . . ot e e e |-
Deposits ... ... e A
Federal funds purchased and repurchase agreements .. ... ................... L
Advances from FHLB . ... ... .. . |-
Junior subordinated debentures. .. ............ e e .
Other liabilities ... ...... ... . i i e e .-

o
i
=]
B
=

-
=
(2]
—_
.
.

Total consideration paid for People’s. .. ... ... ... i on.. .

Community Acquisition

Amount
(In thoosands)

$ 3854
4,200
47,684
254,047
2,318
47,389
9,810
10,612
(245.459)
(6,905)
(37,983)
(3,962)
(9.176)

576429

The Corporation completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding stock of Com
(“‘Community”) of Blountsville, Alabama on November 7, 2006 in exchange for &,
Corporation’s common stock valued at approximately $91,848,000. The shares were valug
of the closing prices of the Corporation’s stock for several days prior to and after the terms
agreed to and announced. The total purchase price, which inctudes certain direct acqu
payments due for the cancellation of stock options totaled $97,200,000. As a result
Clorporation added 18 banking locations and 15 consumer finance company locations in
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The Community transaction resulted in $60, 148,000 of goodwill allocated to the Alab:ama reporting unit and
$10,142,000 of core deposit intangibles. The goodwill acquired is not tax deductible. The amount allocated to the
core deposit intangible was determined by an independent valuation and is being amortized over an estimated useful
life of ten years based on the undiscounted cash flow.

During the third quarter of 2006, management completed its plan to terminate Community’s data processing
operations and convert Community's accounts 1o the Corporation’s system. This cunverswn was completed in the
fourth quarter of 2006. Certain cosis associated with this conversion, totaling approxnmatlely $1,200,000, which
included primarily contract cancellations and employment-related costs, were estimated I:amd accrued as of the
acquisition date. In addition, cenain employment-related contract obligations totaling approximately $3,500,000
were also accrued as of the acquisition date.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the
date of acquisition.

Amount
(In thousands)
Cashanddue from banks. . . . ... oottt i et et ias e $ 23,167
Federal funds sold . . ... ...t i i e e e e e s l . 35,273
INVESHTIENE SECUTIHES . o o 4 vt v e v e nn e ts e a e et e ta e naieanasnaessiy 117,424
Loan:,netl 337,148
Premises and equipment, NEL . . ... ... ittt i 22,529
GOOAWIL . .+ o oo oo e e e e e L 60,148
Core deposit intangibles . . . .o oot v i e i e s 10,142
L0 11) T=) gL =1 - k . 21,185
Deposits .......... .. ... ciiia. et et e e e e e | . (431,334}
FHLB advances . . ... ... ottt it i et et ittt e . {68,801}
Junior subordinated debentures. . . ... ... ... e e . (12,047)
Other liabilities . ... ... . i i e et it ce e . (17,634)
Total consideration paid for Community ........... ..ot iineis . § 97,200

Kensinglon Acquisition

The Corporation completed the acquisition of 100% of the outstanding stock of Kensington Bankshares, Inc.
(“Keasington™), of Tampa, Florida on August 31, 2006 in exchange for 6,226,722 shares of the Corporation’s
common stock valued at approximately $71,200,000. The shares were valued by using the a\'reragc of the closing
prices of the Corporation’s stock for several days prior to and after the terms of the vaUISII.IOIl} were agreed to and
announced. The total purchase price, which includes certain direct acquisition costs, was $71, 372 ,000. As aresult of
te acquisition, the Corporation now operates 12 banking locations in the Tampa Bay area of Flonda which is one
<f the Corporation’s largest markets and has a higher projected population growth than any, of its other banking
markets.

The Kensington transaction resulted in $44,470,000 of goodwill allocated to the Flonda reporting unit and
$3.544,000 of core deposit intangibles. The goodwill acquired is not tax deductible. The amt‘)um allocated to the
care deposit intangible was determined by an independent valuation and is being amortized overan estimated useful
life of ten years based on the undiscounted cash flow. During the third quarter of 2006, management completed its
plan to terminate Kensington's data processing operations and convert Kensington's accounts to the Corporation’s

svstem. This conversion was completed in the first quarter of 2007. Certain costs associated with this conversion,
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totaling approximately $1.400,000, which includes primarily contract canceliations and empl
were estimated and accrued as of the acquisition date.

oyment-related costs,

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the

Amount
(In thousands)
Cashand due frombanks. .. ... . i e . % 4454
Federal funds sold . .. .. ... ... . e e e | . 964
INVESIMENT SECUTILIES . . . .. . o ittt ittt e e a e ‘l . 180.151
LS, B . .ttt et e e e e e e e 1 136,826
Premises and equipment, net . . .. .. ... L. L. e 5,397
Goodwill . ... e e e 44,470
Core deposit intangibles. . . .. . .. .. e e 3.544
T OSSBLS . . o v vttt i T e e e e e s 5.128
I T2 L 4 (276,186)
Repurchasc agreements . ... ... . ittt iintaaanneaened. {30,050}
Other labiliies . .. ... . i i i i i it e e i e a e (3,326}
Total consideration paid for Kensington . ............... ... ... ........L. $ 71372

Pro Forma Results of Operations

The results of operations of the People’s, Kensington and Community acquisilio

ns subscquent to the

acquisition dates are inciuded in the Corporation’s consolidated statements of operations. The following pro
forma information for the periods ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 reflects the Corporation’s estimated

consolidaied results of operations as if the acquisition of People’s, Kensington and Cqg

Januvary 1, 2006, unadjusted for potential cost savings.

mmunity occurred at

2047 2006
{Dollars in thousands,
ux}n per share data)
Net interest income and noninterest income .. ... ... ... ... ... $101i620 $104,149
NelICOmE . . .. it it i e e e 71413 9215
Eamings per common share —basic .......... ... ... o i, $f DA8 5 023
Earnings per common share —diluted . . .. .. ... ... .. L oLl $ ‘3 18 % 022
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3. Investment Securities ,

The amounts at which investment securities are carried and their approximate fair values at December 31, 2007
are as follows:

Gross Grosy
Amurtized  Unrealized  Unrealized Estimuted
Cost Gains Lusscs Fair Vatue
{In Thousands)
investment securities available for sale:
ULS. agency securities .. ... ... ... 593207  $1.086 $ 175 § 94218
State, county and municipal securities ... ..... 40,738 222 395 40,563
Mongage-backed securities .. .............. 191,202 1,082 888 191.3%6
Corporate debt. . ........................ 32,404 11 1,030 31,385
Other seCUrities . . ... ... v e i e v e ininnnnn 4,480 — 873 3,607
Total .. .. $362,031 $2.401 $3.261 $361.171

The amounts at which investment securities are carried and their approximate fair values at December 31. 2006
are as follows:

Gross Crpss
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In Thousands)
Investment securities available for sale:
U.S. apency securities . ... ................ $i13,259 $150 $1,557 $111.,852
State, county and municipal securities . ....... 12,977 54 89 12,942
Mortgage-backed securities . ............... 185,814 361 1,722 184,453
Corporatedebt. . ..............c.viiinn. 38,883 103 334 38,652
Other SCCUTILIES . -+ v« v vvoneeeeee e 6,675 223 |81 6.817
Total .o e e $357,608 $891 $3,783 $354,716

|
Investment securities with an amortized cost of $239,875,000 and $219,658,000 a1 Dccember 31, 2007 and
' 2006, respectively, were pledged to secure United States government deposits and other public funds and for other
purposes as required or permitied by law.

The following table presents the age of gross unrealized losses and fair value by investment category.
December 31, 17

Less Than 12 Months More than 12 Months Total
’ Unrealired Unrealized i Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair, Value Losses
{ln Thousands) 1‘
U.S. agency securities . ... .. $ 500 $ — $36633 § 75 $37.133 § 75
State, county and municipal }
securities . .. ... ... 15,170 331 3.659 64 18,829 395
Mortgage-backed securities .. 10,310 69 59,162 819 69,472 888
Corporate debt and other |
securities . ... .o 19,224 1,056 12,874 847 32,008 1,903
Towal ................. $45204 $1.456 $112328 $1,805  $157,532  $3.261

:
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3. Investment Securities — (Continued)
December 31, 2006
Less Than 12 Manths More than 12 Months Tolal
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Lasses Fair Value Losses Falr Vatue Losses

{In Thousands) ‘ |

LS. agency securities ... ... s — $ — $ 83,347  $1.557 $ 83,347  §$1,557
State, county and municipal

securities . ... .......... 1,727 17 3,825 72 3,552 89
Mortgage-backed securities .. 16,223 76 78,000 1,646 94,223 1,722

Corporate debt and other |
securities . ... ... 3,920 80 8.572 335 12,492 415
Total ................. 521,870 $173 $173,744  $3610 3195614 33,783

Management does not believe any of the above individual unrealized loss as of December 31, 2007 represents
an other-than-temporary impairment. The unrealized losses relate primarily to 115 securitieg issued by the Federal
Home Loan Bank (“FHLB™), Fanpie Mae (“FNMA") and Freddie Mac (“FHLMC"), |various counties and
municipalities, primarily within the State of Alabama, and corporate securities consisting primarily of private
label CMOs, corporate bonds, and trust preferred securities. These unrealized losses are pgmarily attributable to
changes in interest rates. The Corporation has both the intent and the ability to hold the secyrities contained in the

previous 1able for a time necessary to recover the amortized cost. A sumnmary of the total counlt by category is shown
below.
Decembdr 31, 2007
Total Number of Securities
Less Than  Mgre than
12 Months 12 Months Total
U.S. gency seCUnlIes. . . ..ot v vu i e i e i | 15 16
State, county and municipal securities. . .. ......... .. ... .. 40 i3 53
Mortgage-backed secunities. . . ... ... . i ci oo 7 126 33
Corporate debt and other securities . ... .................... 6 P 7 13
Ol . o e e et e e 54 _l'al 15
The amortized cost and estimated fair values of investment securities a1 December 31, 2007, by contractual

maturity, are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities becau
the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

[~

I
be borrowers may have

turities Available

| For Safe
Amortized Estimated
Cast Fair Value
l‘n Thousands)
Due in 0ne year or 1ESS . . .ot v ittt ittt e e $ 5034 § 5,020
Due after one year through five years. . ... ... ... ... ... ..., 58,858 58,568
Due after five years throughten years .. ... .ot 34,721 35,505
Due after ten years .. ... .. .. ... i e 72,218 70,682
Mortgage-backed securities . .. ....... ... ... Lol 191,200 191,396
$363.031  $36L,171
\
\
Gross realized gains on sales of investment securities available for sale in 2007, 2006 and 2005 were $308,000,

5-0-, and $34,000, respectively, and gross realized losses for the same periods were $ -(
respectively.
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The components of other comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and
2005 are as follows:

Pre-Tax Income Tax Net of
Amount Expense Income Tax
(In Thousands)
2007
Unrealized gain on available for sale securities . ... ......... $2344 $ (918 $ 1,426
Less reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net
OO . . L ittt e e (308) 120 (188)
Change in pension liability . .. ........ ... ... ... .. .. ... 615 (227) 388
Net unrealized gain ... .....c.o.vvveeaeii i, $2651  $(1,025)  $1.626
2006
Unrealized loss on derivatives. ... ... ... itivanennn § 39 § 16) $ (23)
Unrealized gain on available for sale securities . ............ 1,387 556 831
Less reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net i
MCOME . L . Lt e st caranes _ — —_
Change tn pension liability . ... ..... ... ... ... . L. . 451 167 284
Net unrealized gain . ... ...................... $1799 § 707 $ 1,092
2005 l
Unrealized gainon derivative . ............. ..o, $ 39 § 16 $ 23
Unrealized loss on available for sale securities . ............ (3,405) (1,335) (2,070)
Less reclassification adjustment for losses realized in net
INCOME . . L it ettt i e (948) (351) (597)
Net unrealized 1055 . ... .ovverenreeniennien.. $(2418) $ (968)  $(1.450)
4, Loans

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the composition of the loan portfolio was as follows:

2007 | 2006
{In wan&)

Commercial and industrial . .. .. ... .t e e $ 183013 3 172872

Real estate — construction and land development ... ............... 665,303 547,772
Real eslate — morigages

Single family . .. ... ... s 540,277 456,341

Commercial . . ...t e e e e e 533,611 362,542

L0 11V o 41,535 46,895

COMSUIMIET & .ttt et e e e e e 53,377 54,462

ALl other l0ans. . ..o vttt i e i e 1,235 438

TOtA] JOANS . v ettt e e e e $2,018.351  $1,641,322

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Corporation’s recorded investment in loans considered to be impaired
vnder SFAS No. 114 was $22,294 000 and $6,886,000, respectively. Al December 31, 2007|and 2006, there was
approximately 31,514,000 and $1,807.000, respectively in the allowance for loan losses specifically allocated to
impaired loans. The average recorded investment in impaired loans during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was approximately
$11,767,000, $3,975,000, and $4,687,000, respectively. Interest income recognized on loans &considered impaired
witaled approximately $873,000, $176,000, and $65,000 for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005,

respectively.
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Loans — (Continued)

At December 31, 2007, aonaccrual loans totaled $22.5 million, compared to $7.8 million at December 31,
2006. Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing totaled $2,117,000 at December|3!, 2007 compared to

During 2007 and 2006, the Corporation acquired certain impaired loans through

Husiness combinations

(Note 2) which are subject to the income recognition provisions of SOP 03-3 (see Note t).} The carrying value of
these loans totaled $2,378, 000 and $260,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.| The carrying value of

these loans at acquisition and a summary of the change in accretable yield follows:

5.

December 31,
2007 2006
(In Thousands)
Contractually required principal and interest at acquisition . ............... $[5677 $1.696
Nonaccretable difference (expecled losses and forgone interest) . . ........... 1443y  (1.231)
Cash flows expected to be collected at acquisition. .. ........ .. .cocoint, 4,234 465
Accretable vield. . ... .. ... e e (209 (190)
Basis in acquired loans at acquisition . .. ... ... L il $f4025 § 275
Accretable yield, beginningof year. ....... ... ... ... il $[ 174 § —
AGGIHONS . . ot ottt o e 209 190
ACCICHON . o o ottt i ittt ettt e e (216) ¢
Transfer for nonaccretable yield to aceretable yield . .. .......... .. ....... 138 —
DIsposals . ... e i PR —_ (7
Accretable vield, end of the year ................ . .. ... i, $:305 $ 114

Other acquired impaired loans that are within the scope of SOP 03-3 but are not

Allowance for Loan Losses

subject to the income

recognition provisions had an acquisition carrying value of $1.3 million. The carrying valug ::;1( Dccember 31, 2007
and 2006 was $297.000 and $800.000, respectively. To recognize income on these loans undern SOP 03-3, there must
be a reasonable expectation of the timing and amount of expected cash flows. These loans in:: accounted for on the
cost recovery method with interest income recognized when received. During 2007 and 2006, no interest was
recognized on these loans.

A summary of the allowance for loan losses for the years ended December 31, 2007, Zq% and 2005 follows:
2007 2006 2005
(In Thousands)

Balance at beginning of year ... ... ... . . i $18,892 $12!.Ol 1 $12,543
Allowance of acquired banks .. .................. .. .. ... 3,717 6697 —
Provision for loan losses ...........c.coivureiiriineiann. 4,541 ZLSOO 3,500
Loanchargeoffs ........ ... ... . i (5,722) (3:746) (5.742)
RECOVEMIES . . . ot e et e it re e it aa e 1,440 11430 1,710

Balance at end Of YEAr . . . ... vovvereer et e $22,868 §18:892  $12,011
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6. Premises and Equipment

Components of premises and equipment at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as folllows:

2607 2006
I(In Thousands)

15T T P 319834 § 17432
PRI S . - . oo it 76,733 74,836
Fumiture and equipment . ... ....... .. i 22,956 17,737
119,523 110,005

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization. .. ........ .. ... ... (24,842)  (20,311)
Net book value of premises and equipment in service. . ................ 94,68I 89,694
Construction in process (also includes land for branch expansion}. . ....... 10,118 4,932
TO] oo e $104,799  $ 94,626

!
Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $4,630,600, $3,245,000 and
$3,275,000, respectively.

in March 2005, the Corporation sold its corporate aircraft, realizing a $355,000 pre-tax Joss.

During 2000, Communily enltered into sale/leaseback arrangements on its Hamilion, }l\labama bank location,
Due to the structure of this transaction, the lease qualified and has been accounted for under capitalized lease rules.

The following is an analysis of the leased property located in Hamilton, Alabama on which the Company
maintains a capital lease (in thousands):

007 2006
|
BUlldingS . ..o e i e $2,450 32,450
Accumulated depreciation. . . ... ... e e (98) (21)

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments under the capital lease and all other
operating leases, 10gether with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31, 2007 (in
thousands):

Operaling
Years endiag December 31, Property Equipment Total Capitalized
{In Thousands?
2008 .. e %241 $320 $ 2,131 $ 367
2009 . . 2,055 205 2,260 367
2010 .. e 1,653 107 1,760 367
200 L. e N 1,341 6 1,347 367
2002 e 883 — 883 367
2003 and thereafter ....... ... . o .s. 7.812 — 7.812 6,387
Tolal minimum lease payments ................ $16,155 $638 $16,793 8,222
Amount representing interest ... .. _.......... (4,483}
Present value of net minimurn lease payments. . . . $3.739

Rental expense relating to operating leases amounted to approximately $2,460,000, $1,258,000 and $810,000
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

On May 31, 2002, the purchaser of Community’s Marshall County branch offices acqu!ired the land, building
and land improvements located in Albenville, Alabama under a sales-lype lease. The lease agreement calls for 60
payments of $14,000 per month beginning June 1, 2002. The lease ended on May 31, 2007 and was subject to

81




SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contipued)

6. Premises and Equipment — (Continued)

options which gave the right for the seller to require the purchaser to purchase the property :xr d gave the right to the

purchaser to require the seller 1o sell the property. The purchase option was exercised on May
totaling $2,621.,544 were received by Superior Bank.

Properry Classified as Held-for-Sale

lil, 2007 and proceeds

|

During the second quarter of 2007, management committed to a plan 1o selt real estate that is no longer used in
the Corporation’s operations. The real estate consists of two groups. The first group containg the former corporate

headquarters and administrative office facilitics of Community in Blountsville, Alabama,

and the second group

consists of seven condominium units located in the John Hand qulding in downtown Birmingham, Alabama, where

the Corporation's headquarters and operations center are housed.

Management commitled to the sale of the Community property in Blountsville because j e size and location of

the facility does not meet the Corporation’s current needs or future expansion plans. Manage
property within the next 12 months to an unrelated party. The property’s current carrying v
assets, is $1,967,000, which approximates its market value.

Management committed to the sale of the condominium units because the rental operati

nent expects to sell the
hlue, included in other

pns are not a part of the

Corporation’s long-term strategy. Management expects to sell the units within the next 12 moaths. Currently, there

are six condominium units with a current carrying value, included in other assets, of $1.674,0%
the current market price.

Both groups, of assets are included as part of the administrative reporting unit,

Sale-Leaseback Transactions

On July 24, 2007, the Corporation’s banking subsidiary sold a branch office building in

Huntsville, Alabama to

a limited liability company, of which one of the Corporation’s directors is a member, for 535000 000. The limited
liability company then leased the building back to the banking subsidiary. The initial term nf the lease is 14 years

and may be renewed. at the banking subsidiary’s option, for three additional terms of five yed
the monthly lease payments to be made by the banking subsidiary is $19,500 for the firs
increases annually until it reaches $26,881 per month in year 14. Annual reni escalations as|

rs cach. The amount of
.year of the lcase and
ociated with this lease

are being accounted for on a straight-line basis over 14 years. Rent for the renewal terms is o be determined based

ardinary course of business and is being accounted for as an operating lease.

on appraisals of the property. No gain or loss was recognized on this transaction, which was entered into in the

On Sepiember 7, 2007. the Corporation’s banking subsidiary sold an additional br

nlch office building in

N0, which is lower than -

Hunsville, Alabama 10 an unrelated panty for $2,445,000. The purchaser then leased 1 e‘building back to the
hanking subsidiary. The initial term of the lease is 15 years and may be renewed, at the ban ng subsidiary’s option,

ror three additional terms of five years each. The amount of the monthly lease payments to ‘made by the banking
subsidiary is $11,225 for the initial term. Rent for the renewal terms is to be determined base(! on future appraisals of
the property. No gain or loss was recognized on this transaction, which was entered into ig the ordinary course of
husiness and is being accounted for as an operating lease.

On January 30, 2008, the Corporation’s banking subsidiary entered into agreements wuh a limited liability
¢ompany, of which one of the Corporation’s directors is a member, pursuant to which the li lled liability company
purchased on January 31, 2008 office buildings located in Albertville and Athens, labama for a 1otal of
$4,250,000. The limited liability company then leased the building back to the bankin subsndmry The initial
term of each lease is 13 years and each lease may be renewed, al the banking subsidiary’s o uon for two additional
terms of five ycars each. The amount of the monthly lease payments to be made by the banking subs:dmry in the first
year is $13,240 for the Albenville office and $14,208 for the Athens office. These amounty m'crease annually unti}
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the monthly lease payments reach $17.393 for the Albentville office and $18,666 for the Athens office in year 13.
Annual rent escalations associated with these leases are being accounted for on a straight line basis over the iease
terms. Rent for the renewal terms is to be determined based on appraisals of the propcrties.lA gain of $73,000 was
realized on these transactions which will be recognized as a reduction of rental expense over the remaining term of
the leases. These transactions were entered into in the ordinary course of business and are being aceoumed for as
operating leases.

7. Deposits

-The following schedule details interest expense on deposits:

Year Ended December 31

N 2007 2006 2005
(I Trl:ousands)
Interest-bearing demand. . ... ...... ... ... e $20,791  S101.857 % 7,144,
SaVINgS . - e 819 177 40
Time deposits $100,000 andover. ... ... .. ... it 21,122 11170 7.1
Other time deposits .. .. ...t ei i it 36,935 23,307 13,620

TOl. v e e e $79.667 $46,511  $27915
|

|
Al December 31, 2007, the scheduled maturities of time deposils are as follows (in llhousands):

2011

...........................................................

...........................................................

B. Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank

|, s1149002
45,199
21,886
14,159
45,407

$1,275,693

The following is a summary, by year of maturity, of advances from the FHLB as of Dccember 31, 2007 and

2006:
2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
Year Average Rale Balance Average Ratc Balunce
(Dollars in Thousands)
2007 .. —% $ — 5.37% $ 42,000
2008 ... ., 462 74,488 5.38 55,500
2009 ... 4.33 30,032 5.39 27,000
2000 .. 4.83 25,000 6.4\ 5.000
000 L 4.80 4,968 — —_
002 e, 4.49 30.000 — —
2005 . e, 5.39 26,340 5.39 26,340
2020 ... e 428 32,000 428 | 32,000
Total. . ...... ... .. ... .. 4.63% $222.828 3.22% $187.840
The above schedule is by contractual maturity. Call dates for (he above are as follows: 2008, $154,000,000; and
2010, $11,340,000.
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8. Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank — (Continued)

|
The advances are secured by a blanket lien on certain residential and commercial rcal estate loans all with o
carrying value of approximately $346,000,000 at December 31, 2007. The Corporation has a\. ailable approximately
$174,000,000 in unused advances under the blanket lien subject to the availability of qualltfying collateral.
I

in February 2008, FHLB advances totaling $100,000,000 were refinanced to lower the urrent interest rate in
response to current market conditions. This refinancing was accounted for as debt medification therefore no gain or
loss was recognized on the transaction. The following table summarizes the current tefms of the refinanced

advances by contractual maturity:

Weighfed
Current Averuge [Rate
Weighted Befoge
§iulurcs Average Rate Refinanting Balance
0UL o 277% 460%  $ 25000
1] 1 T P 3.46 4.2 35,000
2005 e 4.05 451 40,000
|
B2+ Y T 3.52% 4.45% $100,000

Call dates for the refinanced advances are as follows: 2009, $25,000,000; and 2010, $75.,000,000.

“The FHLB has issued for the benefit of the Corporation’s banking subsidiary a $20, 00&0 1000 irrevocable letter
of credil in favor of the Chiel Financial Officer of the Siate of Florida to secure certain de‘,posns of the State of
Florida. The letter of credit expires January 4, 2008 upon sixty days’ prior notice of non-rengwal; otherwise, it shall

automatically extend for a successive one-year term.

9. Federal Funds Borrowed and Security Repurchase Agreements

Detail of Federal funds borrowed and security repurchase agreements follows (dollars in thousands):

2007 2006

Balance a1 December 31:

Federal fundsbommowed . . .. ..ottt i $ OI,OOO $ -

Security repurchase agreements . . ............. P 1,075 23415
Maximum outstanding at any month end:

Federal funds borrowed. .. ... ... .. o it e 0,000 9,000

Security repurchase agreements . ... ... ... .. i ee i :.8‘,545 31,464
Daily average amount outstanding:

Federal funds bormowed . . .. ... ... o it s 1,263 1811

Security repurchase agreements . . ... ... e e 5E798 30,629
Weighted daily average interest rate:

Federal funds bormowed . . ... . ... iuu ittt e ?.43% 547%

Security repurchase agreements . ... ... ... it i 5.28 451
Weighted daily interest rate for amounts outstanding at December 31:

Federal funds bormrowed . . . .. .. .. it i i e ?‘;.65% —%

Security repurchase agreements . . .. ... iin i it i 422 4.63

The carrying value of securities sold under repurchase agreements is $20,500,000|and $30,327,000 as of

December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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10. Notes Payable
The following is a summary of notes payable as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 (in thousands):

2007 2006
Balance at December 31: Principal Rate | Principal Rate

Note payable 10 bank, borrowed under $10,000,000 line of
credit, duc January 26, 2008; interest is based on the 30-day
LIBOR plus 1.25%, secured by 51% of the ouistanding
Superior Bank stock(1). .. ... ... . oL $9500 606% § — —%

Note payable to bank, borrowed under $10,000,000 line of
credit, due June 7, 2007, plus interest payable monthly a1
30 day LIBOR plus 2.50%, secured by real estate owned by
the Corporation and 100% of Superior Bank stock . ....... 4250 7.85

ESOP note payable to bank, due February 1, 2013, plus interest
payable monthly at the Wall Streer Journal prime rate,
secured by Corporation stock; see discussion in Note 12 . . . .

!
l

— 1,295 825
$5.545

|
|

“
e
tn
8

Towalnotes payable . ... e

|
|

(1) Extended for 90-day period until May 26, 2008.

11.  Junior Subordinated Debentures Owed to Unconsolidated Subsidiary Trusts

On July 19, 2007, the Corporation issued approximately $22,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of
Trust Preferred Securities and a like amount of rclated subordinated debentures through the Corporation’s wholly-
owned, unconsolidated subsidiary trust, Superior Capital Trust I. The Trust Preferred Securtues and subordinated
debentures bear interest at a floating rate of three-month LIBOR plus 1.33% that is payable quarterly. The
Trust Preferred Securities, which may be redeemed on or after September 15, 2012, will deure on September 15,
2037.

On July 25, 2007, the Corporation completed its redemption of apprommately $I6l000000 in aggregate
putstanding principal amount of Trust Preferred Securities and related six-month LIBOR plus 3.75% junior
subordinated debentures due July 25, 2031, both of which were issued by the Corporauon s wholly-owned,
unconsolidated subsidiary trust. TBC Capital Statutory Trust Itl. The Corporation called the securities for
:edempuon effective July 25, 2007 al a redemption price equal to 106.15% of par. The Corporauon incurred a
"oss of approximately $1,469,000 ($925,000 net of 1ax, or $.02 per share), during the third quarter of 2007 relating o
ithe redemption of the ouistanding Trust Preferred Securities.

The remaining proceeds from the issuance of the new trust preferred securities were used in the stock
repurchase program and for other corporate purposes.

The Corporation has three additional sponsored trusts, TBC Capital Statutory Trust ll (“TBC Capital 11"},
tCommunity (AL) Capital Trust I (“Community Capital I”) and Peoples Community Slalutory Trust 1 (*Peoples
Teust 1), of which 100% of the common equity is owned by the Corporation. The trusts were formcd for the purpose
of issuing Corporation-obligaled mandatory redeemable trust preferred securities to thlrd-pany investors and
investing the proceeds from the sale of such trust preferred securities solely in juniar subordmatcd debt securities of
the Corporalion (the debentures). The debentures held by each trust are the sole assets of that lrust Distributions on
uie trust preferred securities issued by each trust are payable semi-annually at a rate per annun|1 cqual to the interest
rate being earned by the trust on the debentures held by that trust. The trust preferred secpnues are subject 1o
raandatory redemption, in whole or in pant, upon repayment of the debentures. The Corporation has entered into
ugreements which, taken collectively, fully and unconditionally guaranice the trust preferred securities subject 1o
the terms of each of the guarantees. The debentures held by the TBC Capital 11, Community Capital 1 and Peoples
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11. Junior Subordinated Debentures Owed 10 Unconsolidated Subsidiary Trusts — [Continued)

Trust I trusts are first redeemable, in whole or in part, by the Corporation on September 7, 20010, March 8, 2010 and
December 15, 2010, respectively. |

The trust preferred securities held by the trusts qualify as Tier 1 capital for the Corporption under regulatory
guidelines.

Consolidated debt obligations related 1o these subsidiary trusts are as follows {dollar$ in thousands):

December 31,
007 2006

10.6% junior subordinuted debentures owed to TBC Capital Statutory Trust I
due September 7,2030 . .. .. ... L. $15464  $15464

t-month LIBOR plus 3.75% junior subordinated debentures owed to TBC

Capital Statutory Trust 11 due July 25,2031 .. ...\ .oooneeoinirannn.. 16495
10.875% junior subordinated debentures owed to Community Capital Trust | |

due March 8, 2030 .. ... it e e 10,310 10,310
3-month LIBOR plus 1.33% junior subordinated debentures owed to Superior -

Capital Trust I due September 15, 2037(1). ...... ... . .ooiiiianet, 32,681 —
6.41% junior subordinated debentures owed 10 Peoples Community Capital 1

Trust [ due December 15, 2035(2) . . ... .t i e e 4.]24 —
Purchase accounting adjustment . ... .........uterrnnn i 1,165 1,737
Total junior subordinated debentures owed to unconsolidated subsidiary |

V5 - $53.744  $44.006

(1) Interest rate is equal to 6.32% at December 31, 2007.
(2) Converts to quarterly floating rate of LIBOR plus 1.45% in December 2010.

i
12. Stock Incentive Plans

: [

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R™), which is a
revision of SFAS No. 123, Accouniing for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123), and sﬁperscdn.s Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (“APB t)pmlon 257). The new
standard, which became effective for the Corporation in the first quarter of 2006, requires compamcs 10 recognize
an expense in the statement of operations for the grant-date fair value of stock options alljd other equity-based
compensation issued to employees, but expresses no preference for a type of valuation me:hod;. This expense will be
recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide service in ¢xchange for the award.
SFAS 123R carries forward prior guidance on accounting for awards to non-employees. If an equity award is
modified alter the grant date, incremental compensation cost will be recognized in an amoy ntiequal to the excess of
the fair value of the modified award over the fair value of the original award immediately ﬁn'or to the modification.
The Corporation recognizes compensation expense for all stock awards granted after Dec ber 31, 2005. Since all
of the Corporation’s stock option awards granted prior to December 31, 2005 have esth in full, no future
zompensation expense will be recognized on these awards. During the first quarter of 2005{ the Corporation granted
1,690,937 options to the new management team. These options have exercise prices ranging from $8.17 10 $9.63 per
share and were granted outside of the stock incentive plan as pan of the inducement package for new management.
These shares are included in the tables below.

The Corporation adopted the provisions of SFAS 123R. using the modified-pros, cuve transition method.
IWnder that transition method, compensation cost recognized in 2007 and 2006 includes $473 000 and $165,000,
vespectively, in compensation cost for all share-based payments granted subsequent to Dec -mber 31,2005, based on
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12. Stock Incentive Plans — (Continued)

the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. Results for prior periods have
not been restated.

The Corporation has established a ‘stock incentive plan for directors and certain key elmployees that provides
for the granting of restricted stock and incentive and nongualified options to purchase up to 2,500,000 shares of the
Corporation’s common stock. The compensation committee of the Board of Directors determines the terms of the
restricted stock and options granted. All options granted have a maximum term of ten years from the grant date, and
the option price per share of options granied cannol be less than the fair market value of the Corporation’s common
stock on the grant date. Some of the options granted under the plan in the past vested over a f ive-year period, while
others vested based on certain benchmarks relating io the trading price of the Corporation’s common stock, with an
outside vesting date of five years from the date of grant More recent grants have followed this benchmark-vesting
formula. .

The fair value of each option award is estimated on 1he date of grahl based upon the|Black-Scholes pricing
model that uses the assumptions noted in the following table, The risk-free interest rate i$ based on the implied yield
on U.S. Treasury zero-coupon issues with a remaining term equal to the expected term. Expe'cted volatility has been
estimated based on historical data. The expected term has been estimated based on the ﬁve -year vesting date and
change of control provisions. The Corporation used the following weighted-average ass'umpuons for the years

ended December 31, 2007 and 2006:

: 2007 2006
Risk-free IMterest TAlE . . . . . ... ... . i ittt e ieteee iitiiien e 4.49% 4.54%
Volatility factor ........... s e e e e 29.11% 30.16%
Expected [60m (in YEOrS). . ... oottt it e e 5.00 5.00
Dividend yield . . .. 0. ottt i i e e e 0.00% 0.00%

A summary of stock option activity as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and changes during the years then
ended is set forth below:

Weighted-|
Weighted- Average |
Average Remaining
Exercise Contractual . Agprepgate
For The Year Ended December 3, 2007 Number Price Term | Intrinsic Value
Under option, beginning of period. .. ... ... 3,042,597 § B.O7
Granted. .. ........ ... i 276,596 10.05
Exercised . ...............c..ivvn. {85,000) (6.37)
Forfeited. ........ ... ... ... ... ... (26,000) _(10.35)
Under option, end of period . ............ 3.208.193 § 827 6.70 $ —
Exercisable atend of period ... .......... 2,766,597 § 7.94 5.44 $§ —
Weighted-average fair value per option of
options granted during the period. .. ... .. h) 345
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Weighted
Weighted- Average
Averapge Remaining
Exercise Contractun) Apgregale
For The Year Ended December 31, 2006 Number Price Term ! Intrinsic Value
Under option, beginning of period. . ... .. .. 3031996  § 7.81
Granted. .. ... ... 0., 186,500 10.84
Exercised . ........................ (155.818) 6.37
Forfeited. .. ............ ..., (20,031) 7.06
Under option, end of period . ............ 3,042,597 § 8.07 7.39 $9,940.,257
Exercisable at end of pen'éd ............. 2,861,097 $ 7.90 §_8@ 39,847,002
Weighted-average fair value per option of
options granted during the period. . ...... $ 179
The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31 1())7 and 2006 was

$287.000 and $814.000, respectively. As of December 31, 2007, there was $367.000 <|)I‘

tal unrecognized

compensation expense related 1o the unvested awards, This expense will be recognized over apprpximately the next
25- 1o 30-months unless the shares vest earlier based on achievement of benchmark trading p:rice levels. During the
year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Corporation recognized approximately $473,0015 and $165,000 in

compensation expense related 10 options granted. ‘

A summary of activity for the period ended December 31, 2005 is as follows:

2005
Weighted.
Averape
Exercise
Number Price
Under option, beginning of year. ... ... .. ... .. .. i, 1,654,509 $6.63
o PO 1,9:4.:437 8.53
o T 1 O (4'1“4,‘6841 6.59
FOrfeited . . ..ottt (62316 7.73
|
Under option, end of year .. ... ... ... i, 3,031,946 $7.81
|
Exercisable atend of year . ..., ... ... it 3,031,946

]
Weighted-average fair value per option of options granted during the year. . § 4.91

The Corporation’s Board of Directars approved the full vesting as of November 15, 2005 of all unvested stock
options outstanding at that date. The effect of this accelerated vesting is reflected in the pro forma|net loss and pro
forma loss per share figures below. During the fourth quaner of 2005 the pro forma after-tax effect of compensation
costs for stock-based employee compensation awards totaled $2,067,000, or $0.10 per Sham1 In conjunction with
the Board's approval of the full vesting, members of the Corporation’s senior management executive team
znnounced (hat they would not accept any performance bonus for which they might have been eligible at year-
end 2005, The number of shares represented by unvested options that were vested effective Noverpber 15, 2008 is
approximately 800,000, of which approximately 665,000 were held by directors and executivej officers of the

Corporation.

Prior 10 January 1, 2006. the Corporation applied the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS 123, which allows an
entity 1o continue to measure compensation costs for those plans using the intrinsic val Je-bjsed method of
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accounting prescribed by APB Opinion 25. The Corporation elected 1o follow APB Oplmon 25 and related
interpretations in accounting for its employee stock options. Accordingly, compensation cost for fixed and variable
stock-based awards is measured by the excess, if any, of the fair market price of the unhcrlymg stock over the
amount the individual is required to pay. Compensation cost for fixed awards is measured|at the grant date, while
compensation cost for variable awards is estimated until both the number of shares an individual is enttled to
receive and the exercise or purchase price are known (measurement date). No option-based employee compensation
cost is reflected in net income, as all options granted had an exercise price equal 1o tllle market value of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant. The pro forma information below was determined as if the
Corporation had accounted for its employee stock options under the fair value method of SFJ?S 123. For purposes of
pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over the options’ vesting

period. The Corporation's pro forma information for the period prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R follows (in
thousands, except eamings per share information):

2008

Net loss applicable to commen stockholders:

ASTEPOIEd . . . .o e 3 (8.097)

20O TR () 5 117 S M (14,217)
Basic net loss per common share: .

ASTEPONEd . . . Lo 3 (42)

g 10 30 161 111+ O L. {(.74)
Diluted net loss per common share:

ASTEPOrted . . . e {.42)

PO FOMMA . . .o . oo ettt et e et e e e e L. (74)

The fair value of the options granted was based upon the Black-Scholes pricing model: The Corporation used
the following weighted-average assumptions for the years indicated:

2005
Risk free interest rate. . . ... ... i i it i 4.34%
Volatility facior . . .. . . e i 43%
Weighted average life of options (inyears). . ............. ... oo L b 7.00

0.00%

Dividend yield. ... ... ... . e

On April 1, 2002, the Corporation issued 157,500 shares of restricted common stock 10 certain directors and
key employees pursuant to the Second Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan. Under the restricted stock
agreements, the stock may not be sold or assigned in any manner for a five-year period that began on April 1, 2002.
During this restricted period, the participant is eligible (o receive dividends and exercise you‘ng privileges. The
cestricted stock also has a corresponding vesiing period with one-third vesting in the third, Ifourlh and fifth years.
The restricted stock was issued at $7.00 per share, or $i,120,000, and classified as a contra-equity account,
“Unearned restricted stock”, in stockholders' equity. During 2003, 15.000 shares of th|s|re:mcted stock were
forfeited. During the second quarter of 2003, an additional 29,171 shares of this restricted stdck were forfeited. On
January 24, 2005, the Corporation issued 49,375 additional shares of resuricted commonl stock lo certain key
employees. Under the terms of the management separation agreements entered into during 2005 (Note 28), vesting
was acceferated on 124,375 shares of restricted stock. As of December 31, 2007, all reslncled shares had vested.
The outsianding shares of restricted stock are included in the diluted earnings per share calculauon using the
treasury stock method, until the sharcs vest Once vested, the shares become outstanding for hasic eamings per
share. For the year ended December 31, 2005, the Corporation recognized $648,000, in resmcled stock expense was
primarily related to the accelerated vesting from the management separation agreements included in the amount of

management sepa ration cost.
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In January 2008, members of the Corporation’s management received restricted| stock

term management incentive plan in liew of restricted stock. The grant date fair value is cqual to$

grants totaling

64 per share or

107,150 shares. This grant excludes cenain senior executive management who received| cash {nder the short-

$497.000 which will be recognized over the next 24-month period as 50% of the stock vests on Janu
50% vests on January 22, 2010. If the exccutive's employment lerminates prior 1o a vesting date for

ry 22, 2009 and
any reason other

than death, disability or a change in control, the unvested stock is forfeited. Unvested stock becomes immediately

L . . ]
vested upon death, disability or achange in control. Under the restricted stock agreements, ‘hf’ stock
or assigned in any manner during the vesting period, but the executive will have the rights of a s

respect to the stock (i.e. vote, receive dividends, elc), prior to vesting,

Emplovee Siock Ownership Plans

Superior Bancorp ESOP

may not be sold
hareholder with

Effective August 31, 2007, the Corporation terminated the Superior Bancorp Employee Stock ODwnership Plan

(the “ESOP"). The ESQP was leveraged, and a promissory note existed between the ESOP and the €

had a remaining balance of $1,165,000 at the termination date. The promissory note was s:'msﬁed
from the ESOP o the Corpoeration of 127,469 unallocated shares of Corporation common slock vl

orporation that
by the transfer
ed at a price of

$9.14 per share, the closing price that day. The Corporation transferred these shares during lhe third|quarter of 2007
10 treasury stock at current marker value from the unallocated ESOP shares account. The remaining 17,178

unallocated shares were committed to be allocated 1o the participants’ accounts, and, as a rlt:sult.
recognized additional compensation expense during the third quaner of 2007 of approximately

On January 29, 2003, the ESOP trustees finalized a $2,100,000 promissory note, which hlas bee
discussed above, to reimburse the Corporation for the funds used to leverage the ESOP. The unrelea<

e Corporation
158,000

fully repaid as
ed shares and a

guarantee of the Corporation secured the promissory note, which had been classified as) notes payable on the

Corporation’s statement of financial condition. As the debt was repaid, shares were released from ¢
on the proportion of debt service. Principal payments on the debt were $17,500 per month for 12
interest rate adjusted 1o the Wall Streer Journal prime rate. Interest expense incurred on the debl in
2005 totaledt $82,000, $122,000 and $98.000, respectively. Total contributions to the plan dunng 2
2005 totaled $1,326,000, $322,000, and $313,000, respectively. Released shares were|alloca
employees at the end of the plan year based on the employee’s eligible compensation 10 total

The Corporation recognized compensation expense during the period as the shares were eameld and ¢

released. As shares were commitied (o be released and compensation expense was recognized, the
outstanding for basic and diluted earnings per share computations. The amount of compensation ex

ollateral based
0 months. The
’007, 2006 and
007, 2006 and
ed to eligible
compensation.
ommitted to be
shares became
pense reported

by the Corporation is equal to the average fair value of the shares eared and committed lo bc relegsed during the |
period. Compensation expense that the Corporation recognized during the period ended Dccember 1, 2007, 2006
and 2005 was $371,000, $304,000 and $281,000. respeciively. The ESOP shares as of December 31,2006 and 2005
were as follows:
December B,
006 | 2005
Allocated SRAES . .. ... .ottt 70,519 52,501
Estimated shares committed tobereleased . . ................... .. 26,700 26,700
Unreleased shares ....................... e 164.672 191,372
Total ESOP shares. . ............ PO 261,891 270,573
Fair value of unreleased shares ........................ $1.867,000  $2.184.000
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12. Stock Incentive Plans — (Continued)
Communiry Bancshares ESOP

As a result of its merger with Community, the Corporation became a sponsor of an internally leveraged ESOP
maintained by Community. This ESOP has an ouistanding loan to the Corporation that hears interest at a floating
rate equal to the prime rate of interest. As of December 31, 2007, the interest rate on the nolc was 7.25%. Principal
and interest payments on the ESOP loan are due monthly through August, 2011, based on llhe current armortization
schedule, with the remaining principal and interest, if any, due upon that date. The ESOP Iloan may be prepaid in
whole or in part without penalty under the loan agreement, subject to applicable ERISA and 1ax restrictions. The
Corporation makes contributions to the ESOP that enables the ESOP to make payments duc under the ESOP loan.
Under Statement of Position No. 93-6 (“SOP 93-6), “Employer’s Accounting for Employcc Stock Ownership
Plans," employers that sponsor an ESOP with an employer loan should not report the ESOP s note payable or the
employer’s note receivable in the employer’s statement of condition, nor should interest cost or interest income be
recognized on the employer loan. The Corporation has followed SOP 93-6 accordingly. The pnnmpal balance of the
Company’s loan to the ESOP at December 31, 2007 was $941,000. !

An employee becomes a participant in the ESOP after completing 12 months of SCll"ViCC during which the
employee is credited with 1,000 hours or more of service. Contributions to the plan are madoT at the discretion of the
board but may not be less than the amount required to service the ESOP debi. Under the terms of the ESOP, after a
person ceases to be an employee of the Corporation, that person is no longer eligible to parlllmpate in the ESOP. In
that case. the person may demand to receive all stock credited to his benefit under the ESOP as of the end of the year

immediately preceding that person’s termination of employment with the Corporation.

Dividends paid on released ESOP shares are credited to the accounts of the participants to whom the shares are
allocated. Dividends on unreleased shares may be used to repay the debt associated with lhe ESOP or ireated as
other income of the ESOP and allocated to the participants. Compensation cest recognized durmg the period ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $125,000 and $39,000, respectively. The ESOP shares as 'of December 31, 2007
and 2006 are as follows:

December 31,
2007 2006
F -
Allocated shares . . ... .. i i e e e 333§840 319,774
Estimated shares committed tobereleased. .. ... ... ... . ..., 1 I;932 14,066
Unreleased Shares . . oo v ittt e ittt et st e e et s 541727 66,659
Total ESOP Shares . ... .oovivneeeeieiieiiaeiieneannns 4001499 400,499
Fair value of unreleased shares . .. ...... ... .. ... ... ........ $294.000 $756,000

13. Profit-Sharing Plan and Other Agreements

The Corporation sponsors a profit-sharing plan that permits panticipants to make contnbuuons by salary
reduction pursuant 1o Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. This plan covers substanually all employees
who meet certain age and length of service requirements. The Corporation matches comnbﬂguons a1 its discretion.
The Corporation’s contributions to the plan were $886.000. $549,000 and $448.000 in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

The Corporation has various nonqualified retirement agreements with certain current and former directors and
former executive officers. Generally, the agreements provide a fixed retirement beneﬁl' that will be paid in
installments ranging from 10 1o 20 years, As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, substantially nll of the benefits due
under these plans were vested (Note 28). The Corporation’s nonqualified retirement agreements had an aggregate
unfunded projected benefit of approximately $14,179,000 as of December 31, 2007 and $14,201,000 at Decem-
ber 31, 2006. The accrued liability, included in other liabilities, associated with these benefits totaled $6,331,000

9)




SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

13. Profit-Sharing Plan and Other Agreements — (Continued)

and $6,358,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. which represents the present value of the future

benefits. Compensation expense related 1o these plans totaled $334,000, $216,000 and $1,1§
and 2005, respectfully.

The components of the consolidated income tax expense (benefit) are as follows

14. Income Taxes

8,000 for 2007, 2006

(in thousands):

2007, {R00s 2008
Current: |
Federal ... .o i e e $ 88 § — 5(1.439
SHAE « o v ettt e 25 || — (5)
Total current expense (benefit) . .. ....... ... ... .. .. ... ... 113 | — {1,444)
Deferred:
Federal ... .. i e e e 3,529 555 (2,096)
SHAIE vttt e e e e 492 || 368  (1.072)
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) ... .............. 4.02] 923 (3,168)
Total income tax expense (benefit). .. ................. $4,134 i 923 $(4,612)

Significant components of the Corporation’s deferred income tax assets and lizbilities
2007 and 2006 are as follows (in thousands):

as of December 31,

2007 2006
Deferred income tax assets:
Rehabilitation tax credit .......... e e h) 5r98l $ 6,144
Allowance for 10an 108565 . . .. ... ..ottt it it §,36? 6,978
Deferred compensation .. .......... ..t ur it e 3910 4,076
Net operating loss carryforwards .. ... ... ... . i, 121226 13,147
Alternative minimum tax credit carryover. .. ... ., ... e 1§122 1,034
Purchase accounting basis differences ................. ... ... .. ..., 24770 2,936
Unrealized loss on securities . ... ... ... .ttt innnannnna 365 1,157
4= 2{194 2,085
Total deferred income tAX aSSBLS . . .. . ...t eninnnnn . 36[935 37,557
Less: valuation allowance on net operating loss carryforwards .. ........... {11207) {1,207)
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Difference in book and tax basis of premises and equipment. . ........... 41127 5,060
Excess purchase price and intangibles .. .. ...... ... ... .. ... 9901 5.784
OB . . e e e e e 838 107
Total deferred income tax liabilities ......................... 14,866 10.951
Net deferred income tax asset. ... ... ..., $20/862  $25,399

Management assesses the need for a valuation allewance against the Corporation’s d

eferred tax assets in

accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. The Corporation’s determinatio

of the realization of

ceferred tax assets (net of valuation allowances) is based upon management's judgment of varipus future events and
uncertainties, including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, the timing jind amount of future
income eamed by the Corporation's subsidiaries and the jmplementation of various tax planning strategies to
maximize realizaiion of the deferred tax assets. A portion of the amouni of the deferred tax asset that can be realized

in any year is subject 10 certain statutory federal income tax limitations. The Corporat
subsidiaries will be able to generate sufficient operating earnings to realize the deferred (o
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14.

|
discussed in the following paragraph. The Corporation evaluates quarterly the realizability of the deferred tax assets
and, if necessary, adjusts any valuation allowance accordingly.

Income Taxes — (Continued)

fn 2006, due to limitations on the use of state net operating losses acquired in the merger with Community, a
valuation allowance of $1,207,000 was established against such deferred income tax assets in purchase accounting.
Any subsequently recognized income 1ax benefits relating to this valuation allowance will be reflected as a
reduction of goodwill related to the acquisition.

The effective tax rate differs from the expected tax using the staiutory rate. Reconciliation between the
expected 1ax and the actual income tax expense (benefit) follows (in thousands):

2007 2006 2005

Expecied 1ax expense {benefit) at statutory rate of income (loss)

(4723 {0} = F: . (-2 S NN $3.996 $2,353 $(3.535)
Add (deduct):

State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit. ........ 7 . ....... 341 243 (71

Effect of interest income exempt from Federal income 1axes . .. ... (468) (251) (191

Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance . ............. (644) (537 (493)

Taxable exchange of cash surrender value of life insurance . . . .. .. 256 — -

Other IemMS — DL . . ... vttt e e e e e e e e e 653 115 318
Income 1ax expense (benefit) .. . ... ...uueeeeeierenaain, $4,13¢  $1923  $(4.612)
Federal statutory rate - . . ... ... . .ottt i i 4% 34% 34%

The Corporation’s unused net operating loss carryforwards and expiration dates are as follows (in thousands):

Year of expiration: Felderal Alabamp
1) L 3! — $1,79
721 1 — 13,147 -
.0 ) 2N —_ 6,815
7.1 P _ 22,1t
L1 1 —_ 71.083
7.1 1 — 11,001
P43 Y O _ 176
7.0 1 — 8
-1 1 S — 165
.0 1 8 - 280
2020 . e e e e e i -— 563
71 7. R —_ 59
7 .7 — 6
1735 4|.7!3 —_
2024, .. e 13,043 —
2025 ..o 5812 -
.00 ..« J 5,721 —

$29.289  $63,209
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The Corporation has available at December 31, 2007 unused rehabilitation tax cred

forward and wilized against future Federal income 1ax liability. Unused credits and expirati
{(in thousands):

14. [Income Taxes — (Continued) P‘L
|

Year of expiration:

ts that can be cammed

n dates are as follows

2008 L e . $1,734
2009 . e ... .. 738
2020 - e | O 1,261
2021 o 522
2022 366
2023 960
2028 .o 400

$5,981

This credit was established as a result of the restoration and enhancement of the John A.
is designated as an historical structure and serves as the corporate headguarters for the Corp

equal to 20% of cerain qualified ¢xpenditures incurred by the Corporation prior to Dec;t
Corporation is required to reduce its 1ax basis in the John A. Hand Building by the amoun|

Applicable income tax {benefit) expense of $114,000, $-0-, and $(351,000) on investm
gains for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively, is included in

Hand Building, which
bration. This credit is
mber 31, 2005. The
t of the credit.

*nt securities (Josses)
income taxes.

The Corporation recognized a ($98,000) and a ($600,000) tax benefit in 2007 and 2005 related to the exercise

of nonqualified stock options. This benefit was recognized as a credit to stockholders’ equily|

The Corporation adapted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As a result of the adoption, the Co
charge of approximately $555,000 to the January 1, 2007 retained earnings balance. As of |
Corporation had unrecognized tax benefits of $459,000, all of which, if recognized, would a
rate. Also, as of the adeption date, the Corporation had accrued interest expense related to

benefits of approximately $146,000. Accrued inerest related to unrecognized tax benefits is r

lax expense. Penalties, if incurred, will be recognized in income 1ax expense as well. A
beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefit is as follows:

Balance at January 1, 2007 . . ... L. L.

Additions based upon tax positions related to the current year .. ...............
Additions for tax positions of prior years . ... ........c.. it
Reductions for 1ax positions of prior years .. ........... ... ... ... ...
SellementsS ... . i i e e

Balance at December 31, 2007 . . . ... i e e e

s additional surplus.

oration recognized a
¢ adoption date, the
fect the effective tax
e unrecognized tax
ecognized in income
teconciliation of the

$459.000

$459,000

The Corporation and its subsidiaries are subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as 1o Alabama and Florida
income taxes. The Corporation has concluded all U.S. federal income tax matters for years throgh 2002, including

ucquisitions.

All state income tax matters have been concluded for years through 2001. The Corparation has received
rotices of proposed adjustments telating to state taxes due for the years 2002 and 2003, whidh include proposed
cdjustments relating to income apponionment of a subsidiary. Management anticipates that thesg examinations may
te finalized in the foreseeable future. However, based on the status of these examinations, and the protocol of

finalizing audits by the taxing authority, which could include formal legal proceedings, it is ng

] . .
t possible to estimate
1¢ impact of any changes to the previously recorded uncenain tax positions. There have

peen no significant

changes to the status of these examinations during the twelve-month period ended Deceme" 31, 2007.
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15, Derivatives

The Corporation maintains positions in derivative financial instruments to manage inlerest rate risk and
facilitate asset/liability management strategies. The fair value of derivatives are recorded in other assets or other
liabilities.

Interest Rate Swaps

As of December 31, 2007, the Corporation had entered into $43,500,000 notional amount of swaps (“CD
swaps") to hedge the interest raie risk inherent in certain of its brokered certificates of deposits (““brokered CDs™).
The CD swaps are used to convert the fixed rate paid on the brokered CDs to a variable rate based upon three-month
LIBOR. Hedge accounting was discontinued on $40,350,000 of these swap positions dunng 2007 because the
instruments no longer qualified as an effective fair value hedge under SFAS 133 due to markel rate changes in the
bench-mark interest rate. Therefore, all changes in fair value were recognized in eamings quring the period of the
change. The net cash settlement, totaling $122,005, of these derivatives was included in noninterest income during
2007. As of December 31, 2007, these CD swaps had a recorded fair value 0f $12,073 and a “Ircightcd average life of
7.46 years, respectively. The weighted average fixed rate (receiving rate) was 5.04% and| the weighted average
variable rate (paying rate) was 5.00% (LIBOR based). Subsequent to December 31, 2007, five CD swaps with a
notional value of $23,000,000 were called at par value.

Fair Value Hedges

As of December 31, 2007, the Corporation had 33,150,000 of notional amount of CDiswaps designated and
qualified as fair value hedges. As fair value hedges, the nel cash settlements from the designated swaps are reported
as pant of net interest income. In addition, the Corporation will recognize in current eamings lhc change in fair value
of both the interest rale swap and related hedged brokered CDs, with the ineffective ‘poruon of the hedge
relationship reported in noninterest income. The fair value of the CD swaps is reponed on the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition in other assets or other liabilities and the change in fmr value of the related
hedged brokered CD is reported as an adjustment to the carrying value of the brokered CDs As of December 31,
2007, the amount of CD swaps designated had a recorded fair value of $55,000 and a weughted average life of
6.62 years. The weighted average fixed rate (receiving rate) was 4.70% and the welgh:cdiavemge variable rate

(paying rate) was 4.90% (LIBOR based). '

Interest Raie Floors

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Corporation entered into certain interest rate floor contracts that have not
seen qualified for hedge accounting treatment and will be used as an economic hedge. An interest rate floor is 2
contract in which the counterparty agrees to pay the difference between a current market rate of interest and an
agreed rate multiplied by the amount of the notional amount. The Corporation entered into $50 000,000 interest rate
floor contracts for a 3-year period with a 4.25% floor on the 3-month LIBOR rate. The Corporauon paid a $248,000
ppremium. These economic hedges will be carried at fair value in other assets or other liabilities and changes in the
iair value of these derivatives and any paymentis received will be recognized in noninterest mcomc The floorshad a
positive fair value of $590,000 and $215,000 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respecuvely In March 2008, the
Corporation terminated its interest rate floor contracis for $1,267,000 which resulted in a rcahzcd pre-tax gain of
677,000 that will be recognized in the Corporauon s first quarter 2008 consolidated statement of i income.

Commitments to Originate Morigage Loans

During the ordinary course of business, the Corporation enters into certain commltmems with customers in
connection with residential mortgage loan applications. Such commitments are considered derivatives under the
provisions of SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 149, Amendment to Stmemem1 133 on Derivatives
Instruments and Hedging Activities, and are therefore required 1o be recorded at fair value. The aggregate amount of
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these morigage loan origination commitments was $20,908,000 and $28,733,000 at Decem
respectively. The net unrealized gain of the crigination commitments were $122,000 and $.|5
2007 und 2006, respectively. The fair values are calculated based on changes in market
commitment date.

16. Related Party Transactions

The Corporation has entered into transactions with its directors, executive officers, Si

inued)

r 31,2007 and 2006,
1,000 at December 31,
interest rates after the

gnificant siockholders

and their affiliates (related parties). Such transactions were made in the ordinary course of business on substantially

the same terms and conditions, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the same time for

comparable ransactions with other customers, and did not, in the opinicn of managemc::
normal credit risk or present other unfavorable features. The aggregate amount of loans lo

nt. involve more than
such related parties at

December 31, 2007 and 2006 were $24,381,000 and $11,340,000, respectively. Activity during the year ended

December 31, 2007 is summarized as follows (in thousands):

Balance
Necember 31, Other
006 Advances Repayments Changes
$11,064 $17.831 $6,359 $1,845

Balance
December 31,
2007

$24,381

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the deposits of such retated parties in the subsidiat'y bank amounted to

approximately $35.825,000 and $23,793,000, respectively.

An insurance agency owned by one of the Corporation’s directors received commissions of approximately
$185.328, $166,876, and $180,567 from the sale of insurance to the Corporation during 2007, 2006 and 2005,

respectively. Also, several sale-leaseback transaction were completed with one of the dlrecl brs of the corporation

during 2007 and early 2008. The total amount of rent paid by Superior Bank during 2007 p
was $97,500, These transactions are discussed further in Note 6.

ursuant to these leases

The Corporation believes that all of the foregoing transactions were made on terms and cv.Lndi(ions reflective of

arm’s length transactions.

17. Commitments and Contingencies

The consolidated financial statements do not reflect the Corporation’s various commit

tiabilities which arise in the normal course of business and which involve elements of credit

ments and contingent
Hsk. interest rate risk

and liquidity risk. These commitments and contingent liabilities are commitments to exlefld credit and standby
letters of credit. The following is a summary of the Corporation's maximum exposure 10 credit loss for loan

commitments and standby letters of credit (in thousands):

December 3}
2007 2006
|
Commitments oextend credil . .. .. ... it e e $355.579 $361,523
Standby letters of credit. . ... ..ttt e e 29,

'lm 23,630

Commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit all include exposure to some ¢fedit loss in the event
of nonperformance by the customer. The Corporation’s credit policies and procedures for cre it commitments and

financial guarantees are the same as those for extension of credit that are recorded in the con

s lidated statement of

financial condition. Because these instruments have fixed maturity dates, and because many °| them expire without
being drawn upon, they do not generally present any significant liquidity risk to the Corportion.
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During 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Corporation settled various litigation matters,| none of which were
significant. The Corporation is also a defendam or co-defendant in various lawsuits incidental to the banking
business. Management, after consultation with legal counsel, believes that liabilities, if z:my. arising from such
litigation and claims will not result in a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial statements of the
Corporation.

The Corporation is constructing or has plans to construct various new branch locauo ns. In that regard, the
Corporation has entered into commitments as of, or subsequent to, December 31, 2007 for the construction of these
branch locations totaling approximately $2,125,000.

18. Regulatory Restrictions

A source of funds available to the Corporation is the payment of dividends by its subsidiiary. Regulations limit
the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of the subsidiary’s regulatory agency. Approx-
imately $14,538,000 in retained earnings are available 10 be paid as dividends by the subsidiary at December 31,
2007.

During the fourth quarter of 2605 the Corporation became a unitary thrift holding company and, as such, is
subject to regulation, examination and supervision by the OTS.

Simullaneously, the Corporation's subsidiary bank’s charter was changed to a federal sa\!fings bank charter and
is also subject o various regulatory requirements administered by the OTS. Prior to November 1, 2005 the
Corporation’s banking subsidiary was regulated by the Alabama Banking Department and the Federal Reserve.
Faiture to meet minimum capilat requiremenis can initiate ceriain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary
actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Corporauo:‘\ s and its subsidiaries
financial condition and resulis of operations. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the rcgﬁlatory framework for
prompt corrective action, the subsidiary bank must meet specific capital guidelines lhal involve quantitative
measures of the its assets, liabilities and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting
practices. The subsidiary bank's capital amounts and classification are also subject to quahta'uve judgments by the

regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors |

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Corporation’s sub-
sidiary bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (st forth in the table below) of tangible and core capital (as
defined in the regulations) to adjusted total assets {as defined), and of total capital (as deﬁned) and Tier { capital to
risk weighted assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, that the Corporation’s
subsidiary bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.
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18. Regulatory Restrictions — (Continued)

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the most recent netification from the subsnd:ary s primary regulators
categorized the subsidiary as "‘well capitalized™ under the regulatory framework for prompl corrective action. The
table below represents the Corporation’s bank subsidiary’s regulatory and minimum regulatory capital requirements
at December 31, 2007 and 2006 (dollars in thousands):

To Be Well
For Capital Capitafized
Adequacy Under Prompt
Actual Purposes Corrective Action
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2007
Tier | Core Capital
(to Adjusted Total Assets) .............. $204,145 1.64% $106872 4.00% $133,591 5.00%
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets). ... .. 225602 1045 172,683  8.00 215854  10.00
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets) .. ... 204,145 9.46 N/A  N/A 129,513 6.00
Tangible Capital (to Adjusted Total Assets) ... 204,145 7.64 40,077 1.50 N/A N/A
As of December 31, 2006 [
Tier 1 Core Capital |
(1o Adjusted Total Assets) .. ......_...... $174,084 1.64% $ 91,090 4.09% $113,863 5.00%
Total Capital (to Risk Weighted Assets)...... 192,259 1069 143,843 8.00 179,803  10.00
Tier 1 Capital {to Risk Weighted Assets) . . . .. 174,084 5.68 N/A  N/A 107,882 6.00
Tangible Capital (to Adjusted Total Assets) ... 174,084 7.64 34,159 150 N/A N/A

19. Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corporation in estimating' fair values of financial
instruments as disclosed herein:

Cash and short-term instruments. The carrying amounts of cash and short-term (instruments, including
interest-bearing deposits in other banks, federal funds sold and short-term commercial paper, approximate their fair
value.

Investment securities available for sale.  Fair values for investment securities are based on quoted market
prices. The carrying values of stock in FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank approximate fair values.

Tax lien certificates. 'The carrying amount of 1ax lien certificates approximates their fair value.

Mortgage loans held for sale. ‘The carrying amounts of mortgage loans held for sale approximate their fair
value.

Net loans,  Fair values for variable-rate loans that reprice frequeatly and have no significant change in credit
risk are based on carrying values. Fair values for all other loans are estimated using dlS-(.‘Ol]nled cash flow analyses
using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of smyla: credit quality. Fair
values for impaired loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses or underlying collateral values, where
applicable. ‘

. . . |
Accrued interest receivable. The camrying amounts of accrued interest receivable approximate their fair
values.

Deposits The fair values disclosed for demand deposits are, by definition, equal to l{!e amount payable on
demand at the reporting date (that is, their carrying amounts). The carrying amounts of vanable -rate, fixed-term
money market accounts and certificates of deposit (“CDs™) approximate their fair values at lhe reporting date. Fair
values for fixed-rate CDs are estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

19. Fair Values of Financia) Instruments — (Continued) ~

being offered on advances from the FHLB of Atlanta to a schedule of apgregated expecledimonthiy maturities on
time deposits.

Advances from FHLB. Rates currently available to the Corporation for debt with similar terms and remaining
maturities are used to estimate fair value of existing debt.

Federal funds borrowed and security repurchase agreememis. The carrying amount of federal funds
borrowed and security repurchase agreements approximate their fair values. .

Nore's.payable. The carrying amount of notes payable approximates their fair values.

Subordinated debentures. Rates currently available 1o the Corporation for preferred offerings with similar
terms and maturities are used to estimate fair value.

. . ' |
Interest rate swaps and floors. Fair values for interest rate swaps and floors are based on quoted market
prices. - v ’

Limitations. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point of time and are based on relevant market
information, which is continuously changing. Because no quoted market prices exist for a sig'niﬁcam portion of the
Corporation’s financial instruments, fair values for such instruments are based on managcmdm’s assumptions with
respect to future economic conditions, estimated discount rates, estimates of the amount and timing of future cash
flows, expected loss experience, and other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature mvolvmg uncertainties
and matters of significant judgment; therefore, they cannot be determined with precision. Changes in the
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates. -
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20. Pension Plan — (Continued)

Additional year-end information for pension plans with accumulated benefit
obligations in excess of plan assets:

December 31,

2007

2006

(Dollars in thousands)

Projected benefit obligation .. ... ... .. . ... .. i $ N/A 310301

Accumulated benefit obligation .......... ... . L. il $ N/A  $10301

Fair value of plan assels. . . ... ... .t i e e $. N/A  $10,096
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit obligations

Projected benefit obligation ... .. e e e e s 6.11% 5.84%

Rate of compensation increase ... .......... s e P N/A N/A
Expected Cash Flows , N , .

Expected return of assets 0 employer in next year ......................... $ — 8 —

Expected employer contribution for next.fiscal year. ... ...... ..o . feas ! $- — § -
Expected benefit payments - . : : " !

Year ending December 31, 2008........ P e e . $ 582

Year ending December 31,2009 . . .o oo oei et e 10585

Year ending December 31,2010 .. ............ PRI 583

Year ending December 31,2011 . .............. S PR e | 580 )

Year ending December 31,2012 . ......... USSR e | 594

Nextfiveyears. . ............. e T SO S SRS ORI 3,218
-Components of net periodic benefit cost ...

Interest CoSt. . ..o vvvvvvennnennnn. U i b8 590 8 97

Expected return on plan‘assets . . ....... ...... U S A e 1 (687) (113)

Net periodic benefit cost. . . . . M A ERUT SN s (9N S__(16)
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost , _

Discountrate . . ....... e U . e . 584% = 5.65%

Expected long-term return on plan assets ........ ... .. e - l 700%  7.00%

Rate of compensation 1ncrease ................ e [ $ NA § NA

The long-term expected rate of l'elum for delemnﬁ:ng net penodlc Pcnsuon Plan cost for the pcnods ending
December 31, 2007 and 2006 (7.00%) was chosen by the Corporauon from a best csumatt." range based upon the
anticipated long-term returns and Iong-lcrrn volatility for asset categones based on the target assct allocation of the

Pension Plan.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)

19. Fair Values of Financial Instruments — {Continued)

being offered on advances from the FHLB of Atlanta fo a schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities on
time deposits.

Advances from FHLB. Rates currently available to the Corporation for debt with s:mllar terms and remaining
maturities are used to estimale fair value of existing debt.

Federal funds borrowed and security repurchase agreements. The camrying amount of federal funds
borrowed and securily repurchase agreements approximate their fair values.

Notes payable. The carrying amount of notes payable approximates their fair values.

Subordinated debentures. Rates currently available to the Corporation for prcfcrrcd: offerings with similar
terms and maturities are used to estimate fair value.

Interest rate swaps and floors. Fair values for interest rate swaps and floors are based on quoted market
prices. .

Limitations. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point of time and are bascd on relevant market
information, which is continuously changing. Because no quoted market prices exist for a SLgmﬁczmt portion of the
Corporation’s financial instruments, fair values for such instruments are based on managemgnt s assumptions with
respect Lo future economic conditions, estimated discount rates, estimates of the amount and timing of future cash
flows, expected loss expericnce, and other factors. These estimates are subjective in nature involving uncertainties
and matters of significant judgment; therefore, they cannot be determined with precision. Changes in the
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.
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SUPERIOR BANCORP AND SUBSIDIARIES ]
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

19. Fair Values of Financial Instruments — (Continued)

The estimated fair values of the Corporation’s financial instruments are as foliows: |

1

December 11, 2007 December 1, 2006
Carrying Fair Carrying’
Amount Vzlue Amount l Fair Value

{In thousands)

Financial assets: :
Cash and duc frombanks . . .......... $ 52983 § 52983 § 49783 % 49,783

Interest-bearing deposits in other banks . . 6,916 6,916 10,994 10,994
Federal funds sold . ................ 3,452 3,452 25,185 25,185
Securities available for sale. .. ... ... .. 361,171 361,171 354.'”'6 354716
Tax lien ceniificates ................ 15,615 15,615 16,313 16,313
Morigage loans held forsale.......... 33,408 33,408 24,433 24,433
Netloans . .........oviiinnniannn, 2,017,011 2,010,120 1,639,528 1,634,782
Stock in FHLB and Federal Reserve

Bank ........c.. i 14,945 14,945 12,382 12,382
Accrued inlerest receivable . ... .. ..... 16,512 16,512 14,387 14.387
Interest rate SWaps ... .. ...o. oo .. 67 67 —1-- ' —
Interest rate floors .. ............... 590 590 215 215

Financial labilities:

Deposils. . ... . oot e e 2,200,611 2,204,371 1,870,841 1,868,121
Advances from FHLB. .. ............ 222 828 229,042 187, 840 189,628
Federal funds borrowed and security

repurchase agreements ........... . 17,075 17075 23415 23,415
Notespayable. . ................... 9,500 9,500 5,545 5,545
Junior subordinated debentures owed to

unconsolidated subsidiary wusts. .. ... 53,744 53,526 44,006 47,481
Interest rale SWaps .. .........evan.ns _ — ?'98 798

20. Pension Plan

As a result of its merger with Community, the Corporation became the sponsor of a deﬁned benefit pension
plan (the “Pension Plan™) and a nonqualified supplemental executive retircment plan (lhe “Benefit Restoration
Plan). Both plans were frozen by Community effective December 31, 2003. As long as the plans remain frozen, no
employeas become eligible to participate in the pians and no participants accrue any additional benefits. Benefits
accrued as of the date of the lreeze will be paid 10 participants in accordance with the terms of the plans.

Benefits under the Pension Plan depend upon a participant’s years of credited service |and his or her average

monthly earnings for the highest five consecutive years out of the participant’s final 10 yca{s of employment. The
number of years of credited service and average monthly earnings for each participant were fixed as of Decem-
ber 31, 2003. Normal retirement age under the Pension Plan is age 65. A participant wuh 10 years of service is
eligible to receive early retirement benefits beginning at age 55. The Corporation is requlrcd to make contributions
to the Pension Plan in amounts sufficient to satisfy the funding requirements of the Employ‘ee Retirement Income
Security Act, as amended. Pension Plan assets are held in a trust and consist primarily of corporatc siock and bonds.

The Benefit Restoration Plan was designed to provide cenain key executives of Coninmumty with benefits
which would have been paid to them under the Pension Plan except for certain limitations imposed by the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. A participant’s benefit under the Benefit Restoration Plan is equal to the
difference between his benefit under the Pension Plan calculated without regard to such limitations less the benefit
pavable to him from the Pension Plan. Benefit Restoration Plan benefits are unfunded.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contin!ued)

20. Pension Plan — (Continued)

The following tables set forth the funding status and the amount recognized for both the f’cnsion Plan and the
Benefit Restoration Plan in the Corporation’s consclidated statement of financial condition and consolidated
slatement of operations.

Pension Plan: )
December 31,
2007 2006
{Doltars in thousznds)

Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation as of December 31 and November 7, 2006, respectively. .. .. ... 310301  $10.540
Interestcost .. . ............ O P 590 97
Benefits paid (including expenses) . ... .. ... . i e (556) (73}
Actuanial (Eain)loss . . . . ... e e (265) (263)
Benefit obligation atend of year. . ... ... ... . . o i $10,070 $10.301

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 and November 7, 2006, respectively ... {510,096 § 9915

Actual return on plan assels . . ... ... ... e 997 254

Benefits paid (including expenses) . ......... ottt i e (556) (73)

Fair value of plan assets atendof year. . . ... .. ... ... . i, $10,537  $10,096
Funded statusatend of year . .. ....... ... ... . .. . iiiiirrniinnnnnnann

Net amount recognized in statement of financial condition (after SFAS 158) .. .. .. ‘.$ 467 $ (205)
Amounts Recognized in the Statement of Financial Condition consist of:

ASSEIS 4 Lt it e e e e e e e $ 467 § —

Liabilities .. e e e e —_ (205)

Net amount recognized in statement of financial condition (after SFAS 158) ...... $ 467 $ (205)

Amounts not yet reflected in net periodic benefit cost and included in
accumulated other comprehensive income:
Transition {Obligation) COSt. . . . ...\ttt e e e e 5 — 5 -
Prior service (cost) credit . . . ... ... ... ... — -
Nel gain ... e e e 979 404

Accumulated other comprehensive income (AOCI) .. .. ..................... 979 404
Cumulative employer contributions in excess of net periodic benefit cost......... (512) (609)

Net amount recognized in statement of financial condition . .................. § 467 § (205)

Change in Accumulated other comprehensive income due to application of
SFAS 158
Additional minimum liability (before SFAS 158). . ......... ... .. ... .......
Intangible assets offset (before SFAS 158) ........ .. ... ... it — —
AOCI (before SFAS 158) . . ... oo e e _— —
Net increase in AOCI due to SFAS 158 . ... ... ... .. .. . . il — 404

9
i
©»
I
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20. Pension Plan — {Continued)
December 31,
2007 2006
{Dollars in thousands)

Additional year-end information for pension plans with accumulated benefit

obligations in excess of ptan assets:

Projected benefit obligation ... ...... ... . .. . i $ N/A  $10301

Accumulated benefit obligation .. ... ... . .. i 3 N/A 510,301

Fair value of plan assels . . . ... ... e } $ N/A  $10.096
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit obligations

Projected benefit obligation . ........ ... L i i 6.11% 5.84%

Rate of compensation increase ... ... ..ottt N/A N/A
Expected Cash Flows

Expected return of assets to employer innextyear ., .......... ... .. ... .. $ - 3 -

Expected employer contribution for next fiscal year. . .................. R e T
Expected benefit payments

Year ending December 31,2008, .................. e e .. 1% 582

Year ending December 31, 2009. . .. ... i 585

Year ending December 31, 2000 . .. .. ... L 583

Year ending December 31, 2011, ... ... .. i i 580

Year ending December 31, 2012. . ... .. .. L e 594

Next five years. . ... ..o oo i i e e 3.218
Components of net periodic benefit cost

TREETESL COSE. .o v vttt ettt $ 59 §$ 97

Expected retum on plan assets .. ... ... . . it (687) (1i3)

Net periodic benefit cost. ... ... $ 97 & (16)
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost

DISCOUNE FALE . . . ottt e e ce it et i iat i ma i e na o acan s 5.84% 5.65%

Expected long-term return on plan assels .. ... v e i 7.00% 7.00%

Rate of COMPENSAON INCIEASE . . . . . - o v v et ot et iainaeaeaiarnaans $ NA § NA

The long-term expected rate of retumn for determining net periodic Pension Plan cost fur the periods ending
December 31, 2007 and 2006 (7.00%) was chosen by the Corporation from a best estimate range based upon the
anticipated long-term returns and long-term volatility for asset categories based on the target asset allocation of the

Pension Plan.
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20. Pension Plan — (Continned)

The .Corporalion's Pension Pian weighted average asset allocations at December 31,(2007 and 2006:

Percentage of
Pensian Plan
Assets at
_December 31, Long-term
2007 2006 | target Range
Asset Cafegory:
Cashandequivalents . ............ ... ...cou einnn 33% 3.0% 5.0% 1-15%
Equity securities .. ........ .. ... i 482 630 60.0 50-65
Dbt SECUIITIES. . o vt ittt e e 48.5 340 350 30-50
TOtal .o e 1000% 100.0% ‘100.0%

The overall investment objective of the Pension Plan is to meet the long-term benefit obilgauons accrued under
the Pension Plan through investment in a diversified mix of equity and fixed income securities. The investment
pontfolio will be diversified to comply with fiduciary standards set forth under ERISA.

Long-term asset allocation targets and ranges are based on historical risk and retumn characteristics of the
capital markets, plan objective and plan investment time horizon, Shorter term asset allocation strategies, executed
within the guidelines of the investment policy take into consideration plan liquidity needs and current and expected
market conditions.

The investment portfolio utilizes mutual funds to facilitate investment in each of the asset classes and sectors.
The fixed income mutual funds currently utilized in the portfolio have objectives and exhibit characteristics in
aggregate of intermediate and short-term maturity/duration securities. Certain individual :ssu'es within these funds
‘¥ill have a maturity/duration longer than what is typically considered short-term or mlermcdxale Over the long
ierm, the fixed income portfolic would be expected to exhibit characteristics of the aggrcgate bond market.

BBenefit Restoration Plan: |
December 31,
pid 006
(Dollars in thousands)

Change in benefil obligation
Benefit obligation as of December 31 and November 7, 2006, respectively. .  $ 2.771 $ 2,802

L E T3 o o 158 26
Benefits paid (including expenses) .. ..... ... .. ... it (60) (10)
Actuarial (gain)floss . . ... ... . i e Q) (47)
Benefit obligationatendof year . ... ... ... ... ... ..o iian, $ 2,829 $2,771

Change in plan assets |
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 and November 7, 2006,

TESPECUVRLY . - i e e as $ —l‘ 3} —
Actual return on Plan aSSELS .. .. .. e - —
Employer contribution . ........ .. ... . i, e 60 10
Benefils paid {including expenses) . ....... ... i it {60) (10)
Fair value of plan assets atend of year ... ......... e $ —+ - 8 —

Fundedstatusatend of yeac . ... . ...... ... .. . cciiiiivrennnnnnn.
Net amount recognized in statement of financial condition
(after SFAS 158). .. .. . i e $(2.829) $(2,171)
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20, Pension Plan — (Continued)

Amounts Recognized in the Statement of Financial Condition consist of:
1.7
Current liabilities . . ... ..t e
Noncurrent labilities . ... .. ... . i

Net amount recognized in statement of financial position (after SFAS 158). .

Amounts net yet reflected in net periodic benefit cost and included in
accumulated other comprehensive income:
Transition (obligation) cost . .. ... .. il e
Prior service (costyeredit ... ... . ... i i e,
Nl BN, ottt e et
Accurnulated other comprebensive income (AOCI) ...................
Cumulative employer contributions in excess of net periodic benefit cost . ..

Net amount recognized in statement of financial condition. .. ...........

Change in Accumulated other comprehensive income due to application of
SFAS 158
Additional minimum liability (before SFAS 158} . ....................
Intangible assets offset (before SFAS 138). .........................
AOCI (before SFAS 158) .. ... .. . i i
Net increase in AOCI due to SFAS 158, . .. ... ... . it

Additional year-end information for pension plans with accumulated
benefit obligations in excess of plan assets:
Projected benefit obligation. . ......... ..o i e

Accumulated benefitobligation . ... . ... .. ... ..o
Fairvalue of plan assels . . ... .. o vt e e

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit
obligations
Projected benefit obligation. .. ... .. ... o i
Rate of compensalion iNCICASE .. ... ... . vinn e oeannnas

Compeonents of net periodic benefit cost
B 1~ 1 =13 U+ 1

Net periodic benefitcost. .. ... oo
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost
DisCOUNL FAlE . . oottt e e

Expected Tong-term returnon plan assets. .. ....... ... .. .o
Rate of compensation iNCIEASE .. . oo vvviivnre e inrnrarnanneansas

Expected Cash Flows
Expecied retum of assets 10 employer innextyear. . ... ... . ..o.n
Expected employer contribution for next fiscal year. . .................

104

| December 31,

2007

2006

(Dollars in thousands)

$ | — $ —
(265) (161)
(2.564) (2.610)
$2829)  $(2.771)
|
|
$ | — $ —
88 a7
38 47
(2917) (2,818)
$(2,829)  $(2.77D)
$ | — [ J—
—_ 47
$ 2.829 $ 2,771
$2.829 $2.771
LS —_— _—
6:11% 5.84%
N/A N/A
158 26
$ 158 $ 26
5.84% 5.65%
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
$ L
265
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0. Pension Plan — (Continued)

Expected benefit payments

Year ending December 31,2008 .. ... ... . i $ 265
Year ending December 31, 2009 . .. ... ... 262
Year ending December 31,2010 .. ... .. L i e 258
Year ending December 31, 2001 ... ... ... .. e 254
Year ending December 31,2012 ... ... ... . . i e 250
Xt IV YIS . . o ittt ettt it e e e e 1,170

21, Other Noninterest Expense

Other noninterest expense consisted of the following (dollars in thousands):
Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
PrOfeSSIONal FEES -« .« v vt e e e e el $2260 §2l503 $ 2745
Directors fees ... ... i 397 345 380
Insurance and assessmentS . ... ... .. ... ... i il 2,189 1,898 2,344
Postage, stationery and supplies . .. .............. .. ... ... 2,252 1,251 97
CommuniCalions .. ... .. n e 2,007 988 1,075
Advertising - .. . ..ot et s 2.397 1,348 B57
Foreclosure JOSSes . . ..ottt i i i e e e e 227 210 796
Other operating eXpense. . . ... ...t vvet s ianrievneiansnn 6.821 5,116 4,889
TOtal . L $18,559 $13749  $14,083

22. Concentrations of Credit Risk

All of the Corporaticn’s loans, commitments and standby lctters of credit have been granted 10 customers in the
Corporation's market areas. The concenirations of credit by (ype of loan or commitment are set forth in Notes 4 and

17, respectively.

The Corporation maintains cash balances and fedesal funds sold at several financial institutions. Cash balances
ar each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the “FDIC") up to $100,000. At
various times throughout the year, cash balances held at these institutions will exceed fede'rally insured limits.
Superior Bank’s managemeat monitors these institutions on a quarterly basis in order 1o determine that the
institutions meet “well-capitalized” guidelines as established by the FDIC.
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23, Net Income (Loss) Per Common Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic net income (loss) per common share and diluted net
income {loss) per common share (in thousands, except per share amounis): ’

2007 2006 2005

Numerator:

Netincome (1055}, . . ottt v i r e r e $ 7621 %4997 $(5786)

Less prefemmed dividends. . .. . ... ... ... . ..ol —_ —_ (305)

Less conversion of preferred stock .. ......... .. . oLl —_— — (2,006)

For basic and diluted, net income (loss) applicable to common |

Stockholders. . . . ..o e $ 7621 %4997 $(8,097)

Denominator: '

For basic, weighted average common shares outstanding . . . . . .. 36,974 23,409 19,154

Effect of dilutive stock options. . ... ..................... 358 1625 o

Average common shares outstanding, assutning dilution ... .... 37,332 24.034 15.154
Basic net income (loss) per common share . ... ............... $ 021 $ 021 $ (42
Diluted net income (loss) per common share . .. ..., ... ... ... $ 020 S 021 §$ (42)

Basic net income (loss) per common share is calculated by dividing net income '(loss), less dividend
requirements on outstanding convertible preferred stock, by the weighted-average numbér of common shares
putstanding for the period.

Diluted net income (loss) per common share takes into consideration the pro forma dilution assuming
sutstanding convertible preferred stock and certain unvested resiricted stock and unexerciseq stock option awards
were converted or exercised inlo common shares. Options on 620,301 shares of common stock and the weighted
average effect of 382,192 shares of conventible preferred stock prior to conversion were not mcluded in computing
diluted net (loss) per share for the year ended December 31, 2008, as they are considered anti-dilutive. No shares of
convertible preferred stock remained outstanding at December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005.

4. Parent Company !

The condensed financial information (unaudited) for Superior Bancorp (Parem Company only) is presented as

follows (in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006
Statements of financial condition |
Assets: |
Cash . ... s $ 62 § 1,318
[nvestment in subsidiaries . ........ . . i 392,865 306,792
Imangibles, net . ... .. . e 214 214
Premises and equipment — mel. . ... ... . i 4,252 6,713
Other as8ElS. . . . it i e e i 20,851 19,719

$418,844  $334,756

Liabilities:

Accrued expenses and other liabilities . ................ ... ..., $ 5558 § 9118
Notespayable . .. ... ... . e 9.500 5,545
Subordinated debentures . ... .. ... ... e 53, 744 44,006
Stockholders’ equity .. ... oo it 350, 042 276,087

$418,844  $334,756
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24. Parent Company — (Continued)
Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Statements of operations
Income:
Dividends from subsidiaries .. ......... .. ... .. i $7000 S$1,750 $ 2,585
Iterest . . ..o 156 116 15
Other IRCOME . . . ottt et it it et e e e e i ir e nanns 404 415 852
7560 2,281 3,452
Expense:
Directors” fees . ... o e s 269 276 270
Salaries and benefits . ... ... e e e e e 1,384 708 10,831
OCCUPANCY EXPENSE . ... vt ottt ie i r e iincnnses 362 512 897
TNETESE BXPENSE . o . o o vt v ot et i et e 4,569 3,366 3,142
Other. ... .o e P 2,373 886 2,257

8.957 5948 17,397

Loss before income taxes and equity in undistributed eamnings of

SULSIdIAAES - .. oot e (1,397} (3,667)  (13.,945)
Income tax benefit. . ... ... . o it e 3,513 1,409 6,445
Income (loss) before equity in undistributcd eamnings of

SUbSIdIAMES - . ... e e 2,116 {(2,258) (7.500)
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries ............... 5,505 7,255 1,714
NEt inCOME (1055) . . .+ .o v eevet e et e ns $7621 $4997 S (5786)

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005

Statements of cash flows
Operating activities
Netincome (1055) ... ...t iiiiii e iieeinacanenanannnn $ 7621 $4997 S5(5786)
Adjustments 1o reconcile net income (loss) to net cash used by '

operating activities:

Amonization and depreciation expense . ................ . 184 245 257
Equity in undistributed camings of subsidiaries ............. (5,505) (7,255) {1,714)
Other (decrease) INCrease. . . . . ...t u e i annranns (1,120) 1,392 (868)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities ....... 1,180 621 (8,111

Investing activities
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment. ... ............ 339 947 19
Purchases of premises and equipment . .. ................... — |(5) —_
Net cash paid in business combinations . . ................... (2,527) (3,855) —
Neit cash (used) provided by investing activities. . ... ... (2,188) (2.913) 19
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24. Parent Company — (Continued)

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ... .......... R 640 1992 10,542
Proceeds from note payable. . .. ......... ... ... 0oL 10,000 2.000 —
Principal paymentonnote payable . ............. ... ... ... {6,045) (210) (210)
Proceeds from issuance of junior subordinated debentures . ... ... 22,680 — —
Principal payment on junior subordinated debentures ... ........ (16,495) — —
Purchase of treasury stock. . . ... ... .. ... ... o e (10,428) — —
Cashdividends paid ... ... ... ... ... .. . i, —_— —_ (305)
Net cash provided by financing activities. . ........... 352 2,782 10,027
Net (decrease) increase incash ... ... ............. (656) I(752) 1,935
Cash at beginning of year . . . ........... ... ...... 1,318 2,070 135
Cashatend of YEar. . . ....ovvvrenriannanrannns. $ 662 $1318 § 2070

25. Selected Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

A summary of the unaudited results of operations for each quarter of 2007 and 2006 follows (in thousands,

except per share data): . )

First Second Third Foarth
Quarter Quarter ° Quarter Quarter
2007
Total interest INCOME . . ..o vivnvt i riennnnns $39,744  $40,067 $45,999  $46,120
Total interest expense ... ......c.ov i 21710 22,554 26,093 26410
Net interest iNCOMmMeE. . .. oo ve v v iee e naeeeeon. 18,034 17,513 19.906 19,710
Provision forloanlosses ... .............. ..o\, 705 1,000 1,179 1,657
Securities gains. .. .. ..... . ... e 243 — — 66
Changes in fair value of denivatives. .. ........... (152) 118 202 1,141
Income before income taxes .............. ceee. 3,389 2,993 2,361 3,011
Nel InCOme. . .. oot ee e e 2,298 1,969 1,450 1,904
Basic net income per common share . ............ 0.07 0.06 ‘0.04 0.05
Diluted net income per common share. . . ......... 0.07 0.06 0.04 0.05
1006 L

Total interest iNCOME .. ..o vv i enniaan $21.649 $23,608 $27,458 $36,062
Total interest eXpense . ... ......c..vuvnns e 11,645 13,195 16,543 20,000
Net Inerest INCOME. . .. vt i v v et ettt mnee e 10,004 10,413 10,915 16,062
Proviston for loan losses. ... ... ... .o iva.n, 600 700 550 650
Changes in fair value of derivatives. . . ........... 70 (33) 6 33l
Income before income taxes ................... 1,100 1,880 1979 2,961
NELIMCOME. . . ittt it et ieeaemae e 850 1,274 813 2,060
Basic net income per common share .. ........... 0.04 0.06 0.04 0.07
Diluted net income per commeon share. ........... 0.04 0.06 0.04 0.06

Due to the effect of quarterly weighted average share calculations, the sum of the quarterly net income per

share amounts may not total the year-to-date net income per share amounts.

26. Segment Reporting

L
n

i
Beginning in the third quarter of 2007, the Corporation’s management made certain revisilons o how it assesses
the performance of its reportable business segments. The following presentation of segment data has been revised to
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26. Segment Reporting — (Continued)

r=flect this change. The Corporation has two reportable segments, the Alabama Region and the Florida Region. The
Alabama Region consists of operations located throughout Alabama. The Flerida Region consists of operations
located primarily in the Tampa Bay area and panhandle region of Florida. The Corporation’s reportable segments
are managed as separale business units because they are located in different geographic arcas. Il-}olh segments derive
revenues from the delivery of financial services. These services include commercial loans, morigage loans,
consumer loans, deposit accounts and other financial services. All of the corporale adminislrlative costs and other
banking activities have been removed from the Alabama Region. Administrative and olh$r banking activities
included the results of the Corporation’s investment portfolio, home mortgage division, brokered deposits and
borrowed funds positions. i

The Corporation evaluates performance and allocates resources based on profit or loss from operations. There
are no material inter-segment sales or transfers. Net interest income is used as the basis for perlformance evaluation
rather than its components, total interest income and total interest expense. The accounting policies used by each
n:portable segment are the same as those discussed in Note 1, All costs, except corporale admin;istralion and income
tuxes, have been allocated to the reportable segments. Therefore, combined amounts agree to the consolidated totals
(in thousands).

Total . Superior
Alabama Florida Alabama and  Administrative Bancorp
Region Region Florida and Other Combined
2007 }
Net interest tncome .. ......... $ 36844 § 38059 § 74903 $ 259 $ 75,162
Provision for loan losses. .. ..... 3,845 1,632 5477 (536} 4,541
Nomnterest income ........... 7,021 1,723 8,744 10,613 19,357
Noninterest expense . . . ........ 24,924 14,702 39,626 38,597 78,223
Operating profit (loss). .. ... .. $ 15096 § 23448 § 38544 $(26,789) 11,755
income tax expense ........... 4,134
Netincome................ L $ 7621
Total assets .. ......ccovuvnnn. $1,029652 $1,124816  $2,154,468 $730,957 $2,885,425
2006 i
Net interest income ........... $ 27369 $ 25379 § 52,748 $ (5. 354) $ 47394
Provision for loan losses. .. ..... 2,152 1,150 3,302 (802) 2,500
Nonimerest income ........... 4,468 1,092 : 5,560 6 ?Sl 11,311
Noninterest expense .. ......... 14,064 7,156 21,220 28,565 49,785
Operating profit (loss). . ... ... $ 15621 $ 18,165 $ 33,786 5(26.'8@) . 6,920
Income 1ax expense . .......... 1,923
Netincome. ......covvvunn. $ 4,997
Totalassets ................. $ 085423 § 862462 $1,847885 $593.105 $2,440,990
2005 i
Net interest income . .......... $ 24920 $ 16807 $ 41,727 $ (2.702) $ 39,025
Provision for loan losses. ... .. .. 2439 1,061 3,500 _ 3,500
Noninterest income ........... 6,443 1,123 7.566 7.131 14,697
Noninterest expense . . . ........ 11,981 4,759 16,740 43,880 60,620
Operating profit (loss). .. ... .. $ 16943 3 12,110 S 29053 $(39.451) (10,398)
Income tax benefit . .. ......... (4,612)
Netloss . ..oenvvnennnn $  (5,786)
Total assels ... .......oonn... S 511,077 $ 414045 § 925122  $490,347  $1,415469
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27. Stockholders Equity

Stock Repurchase Plan

The Corporation announced in June 2007 that the Board of Directors had approved the repurchase of up to
1,000,000 shares of the Corporation’s outstanding common stock. During the quarter ended September 30, 2007,
the Corporation purchased 1,000,000 shares of then outstanding stock at an average price of $9 22 per share, which
have been recorded, at cost, as treasury stock in the consolidated statement of financial condition. The shares were
purchased in the open market through negotiated or block transactions and were not ‘repurchased from the
Corporations management team or other insiders. '

The Corporation announced in October 2007 that the Board of Directors approved the purchase of an
additional 1,000,000 shares of its ouistanding commeon stock beginning on or after Novemb‘er 2, 2007. During the
quarter ended December 31, 2007, the Corporation purchased 182,000 shares of then outstanding stock at an
average price of $6.61, which have been recorded, at cost, as treasury stock in the cons‘ohdatcd statement of
financial condition. The shares were purchased in the open market through negotiated or block transactions. The
Corporation did not repurchase any shares from its management team or other insiders. This stock repurchase
program does not obligate the Corporation 10 acquire any specific number of shares and may be suspended or
discontinued at any time.

Termination of Superior ESOP

Effective August 31, 2007, the Corporation terminated the Superior Bancorp Employee Stock Ownership Flan
(the “ESOP™) (See Note 12). The ESOP was feveraged, and a promissory note existed between the ESOP and the
Corporation that had a remaining balance of $1,165,000 at the termination date. The promlssory note was satisfied
by the transfer from the ESOP to the Corporatlcm of 127,469 unallocated shares of Corporauon common stock
valued at a price of $9.14 per share, the closing price that day. The Corporation transferred ghese shares during the
third quarter of 2007 1o treasury stock at current market value from the unallocated ESO‘P shares account. The
remaining 17,178 unallocated shares were committed to be allocated to the participants’ accounts, and, as a result,
the Corporation recognized additional compensation expense during the third quarter of 2007 of approximately
$158,000. '

28. Management Separation Costs and Insurance Settlement

On July 21, 2005, the Corporation announced: that it had bought out the employment contracts of its Chief
Financial Officer and its General Counsel, effective June 30, 2005. Under these agreements, in lieu of the payments
to which they would have been entitled under their employment agreements, the Corp&ralion paid a total of
$2,392,343 on July 22, 2005. In addition, these officers became fully vested in stock options and restricted stock
previously granted to them and in benefits under their deferred compensation agreements with the Corporation.

In May 2003, the Corporation received $5,000,000 (approximately $3,200,000 after-ta:‘c, or $.17 per common
share) to resolve its insurance claims relating to fraud losses which occurred in previous periods.

On January 24, 2005, the Corporation announced that it had entered into a series of qxecutive management
change agreements. These agreements set forth the employment of C. Stanley Bailey as Chief Executive Officer and
a director of the Corporation and chairman of the Corporation’s banking subsidiary, C. Marviln Scott as President of
the Corporation and the Corporation’s banking subsidiary, and Rick D. Gardner as Chief Operating Officer of the
Corporation and the Corporation’s banking subsidiary. These agreemenis also provided for the purchase by
Mr. Bailey, Mr. Scott and Mr. Gardner, along with other investors, of 925,636 shares of 'common stock of the
Corporation at $8.17 per share. The Corporation also entered into agreements with James A‘ Taylor and James A,
Taylor, Jr. under which they would continue to serve as Chairman of the Board of the Corporation and as a director
of the Corporation, respectively, but would cease their employmcnt as officers of the Corporation and officers and
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28. Management Separation Costs and Insurance Settlement — (Continued)

directors of the Corporation’s banking subsidiary. Mr. Taylor and Mr. Taylor, Jx. subsequently resigned as directors
of the Corporation to pursue other business opportunities, |

Under the agreement with Mr. Tayler, in lieu of the payments to which he would have beien cntitled under his
employment agreement, the Corporation paid Mr. Taylor $3,940,155 on January 24, 2005 and $3,152,124 in
Dlecember 2005, and $784,541 in December 2006. The agreement also provides for the provision of certain
insurance benefits to Mr. Taylor, the transfer of a “key man” life insurance policy 1o Mr. Taylor, and the maintenance
of such policy by the Corporation {or five years {with the cost of maintaining such policy irllcluded in the above
amounts), in each case substantially as required by his employment agreement. This obltgallon to provide such
paymenis and benefiis to Mr. Taylor is absolute and wilt survive the death or disability of Mr. Taylor.

Under the agreemenl with Mr. Taylor, Ir.. in liew of the payments to which he would have been entitled under
his employment agreement, the Corporation paid Mr. Taylor, Jr., $1,382,872 on January 24, 2005. The agreement
also provides for the provision of certain insurance benefits to Mr. Taylor, Ir. and for the lmml‘edlale vesting of his
unvested incentive awards and deferred compensation in each case substantially as required by his employment
agreement. This obligation to provide such payments and benefits to Mr. Taylor, iz is absolulc:: and will survive the

death or disability of Mr. Taylor. Jr. (see Note 29.)

In connection with the above described management separation transactions, the Corporation recognized pre-
tx expenses of $15,467,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, the

Clorporation had $363,000 and $416,000, respectively of accrued liabilitics related to these ‘agreemems

29. Subsequent Events

In January 2008, the Corporation’s banking subsidiary entered into agreemenis wnth a limited liability
company, of which one of the Corporation’s directors is a member, pursuant to which the limited liability company
purchased on January 31, 2008 office buildings located in Albertville and Athens, Alabama for a total of
$4,250,000. See Note 6 for further details of this transaction.

In Janvary 2008, the Corporation securitized approximately $18,000,000 of residential morngage loans
r2taining 100 percent of the beneficial interest and retained interest. The beneficial mteresl includes federal
agency securities issued by the Federal Home Loan Morgage Corporation (*FHLMC") and the retained interest
includes a servicing asset. No gain or loss was recognized on the securitization, however, the Corporauon entered a
commitment to sell the securitics for a gain of approximately $347,000 which will close in' February 2008. The
Company retained servicing responsibilities and will receive servicing fees amounting to apbroximately 25 basis
foints of the outstanding balance of these loans. The FHLMC has no recourse to the Corporation for failure of
cebtors to pay when due. |

In January 2008, various members of the Corporation’s management received restricted stock grants otaling
107,150 shares. See note 12 for further details regarding this grant.

In February 2008, Jumes A, Taylor, Jr. and the Corporation jointly agreed to terminate all current and future
cbligations under the management separation agreement dated January 24, 2005 for a total paymcm of $568,000.
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29. Subseguent Events — (Continued)

In March 2008, the Corporation terminated its interest rate floor contracts for $1,267, 000 which resulted in a
tealized pre-lax gain of $677,000 that the Corporation will recognize in the Corporation’s first quarter 2008
consohdalcd statement of income (sec Note L5).

In March 2008, the Corporation’s Board of Directors approved, subject to approval by its stockholders, a
proposed amendment to Superior Bancorp’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation effecting a l-for-4 reverse split of
its issued and outstanding shares of common stock and decreasing the number of its authorized shares of common
stock from 60,000,000 to 15,000,000. Contingent on approval of this proposal by the Irequlsltf.: vote of the
stockholders at the Corporation’s 2008 annual meeting of stockholders, and the filing of the proposed amendment
with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, the 1-for-4 reverse stock split and reduction of authorized
shares would be effective in accordance with the terms of the proposed amendment. The Corporatlon anticipates
that the reverse stock split will become effective shortly after the 2008 annual meeting of| stockholders.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Firancial Disclosure,

None.

[tem 9A. Controls And Procedures

Officer Certifications |

Appearing immediately foliowing the Signatures section of this report are Ccniﬁ:cations of our Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ™) and our Chief Financial Officer, who is our principal financial officer (“PFO").
The Certifications are required to be made by Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
This [tem contains the information about the evaluation that is referved to in the Ccmﬁcauonls and the information
set forth below in this ltem should be read in conjunction with the Centifications for a more complete understanding
of the Cenifications.

Conctusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures to cnsure that material information required to be disclosed in
our Exchange Act reports is made known to the officers who certify our financial reports and to other members of
our senior management and our Board of Directors.

Based on their evaluation as of December 31, 2007, our CEQ and our PFO have concluded that our disclosure
controts and procedures (as defined in Rule |3a-15(¢) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) are effective to
ensure that the information required (o be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the rime penods specified in SEC
rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our manngcmcm as appropriate (0
illow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for cstablishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
veporting, as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934. Under thesupervision and with
the panticipation of our management, including our CEO and our PFO, our management conducted an evaluation of
the effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting based on the (ramework in Internal Control —
Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, as of
December 31, 2007. Based on this evaluation under the framework in Internal Control — Iri_legrale(l Framework,
our management concluded that our intemal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

During 2007, we acquired People’s as described in Note 2 to the consolidated ﬁnanc;ial statements. Man-
agement has excluded this business from its evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
1eporting as of December 31, 2007, This business represented approximately 12% of our consollidated total assets as
of December 31, 2007, and approximately 7% percent of our consolidated net interest income for the year then
cnded.
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's! GRANT THORNTON LLP

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors and Shareholders
Superior Bancorp

We have audited Superior Bancorp’s (a Delaware Corporation} internal control over ﬁnancial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in /nternal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Qrganizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Supenor Bancorp's management
is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of intemmal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Report on
Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on Superior Bancorp’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accoummg QOversight Board
{United Staies). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal conurol over financial reponiing was maintained in all malenal respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing, the risk that a material
weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of mlema,l control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statemenis for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control olver financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records lhat in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable
assurance that iransactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the cor:npany are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

As indicated in the accompanying Management's Report on Intemai Controi Over Financial Reporting,
management’s assessmeni of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reponirllg did not include an
assessment of the intemal controls over financial reporting of People’s Community Bancshares Inc., the financial
statements of which are included in the 2007 consolidated financial statements of Supenor Bancorp and Subsid-
iaries, and constituted approximately 12 percent of the Company’s consolidated total assets as of December 31,
2007, and approximately 7 percent of the Company's consolidated net interest income for lhe year then ended. Our
audit of internal control over financial reporting of Superier Bancorp and Subsidiaries also did not include an

|
evaluation of the internat control over financial reporting of People’s Community Bancshares, Inc.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
missiatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness o future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inzdequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree o lcompliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. In our opinion, Superior Bancorp maintained, in all material respects,
effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Intermal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

|
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated statement of financial condition of Superior Bancomp arfld Subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash
flows for the year ended December 31, 2007, and our report dated March 14, 2008, expressed an unqualified opinion.

Raleigh, North Carolina
March 14, 2008
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our intemal control over financial reponing during the most recent fiscal
quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely o matenially affect, our internallcontrol over financial

Teporting.
lItem 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART Il |

Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant; Exe‘cutwe
Compensation; Security Ownership of Certain Benefi clal Owners and
Management and Related Stockholder Matters; Certaln Relationships and
Related Transactions; and Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information set fonth under the captions “Security Ownership of Cenain BcheF icial Owners and
Management,” “Nominees for Director,” “Executive Officers,” “‘Certain Information Conccrnmg the Board of
Dhirectors and Its Committees,” Stockholder Communications with the Board,” *Director Compcns.mon * “Code
of Ethics,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” “Executive Compcnsauon and Other
Information,” “Certain Transactions and Relationships™ and “Relationship with Independent Public Accountants”
jucluded in our definitive proxy statement to be filed no later than April 30, 2008, in connection with our 2008
Annuzal Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV ' l

Iiem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(¢) Financial Statements and Financial Schedules.

(1} The consolidated financial statements of Superior Bancorp and its subsidiaries filed as a par of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K are listed in ltem 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10- K which is hereby
incorporated by reference herein.

(2) All schedules to the consolidated financial statements of Superior Bancorp and its sul!)sidiarics have been
omitted because they are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicallble, or because the
required information has been provided in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto,

{b) Exhibiss.

The exhibits required by Regulation S-K are set forth in the following list and are filed cill{cr by incorporation
by reference from previous filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission or by attachment to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K as indicated below. Prior to May 2006, Superior Bancorp was named|“The Banc Corpo-
raion”. Many of the following exhibits accordingly reference “The Banc Corporation™.

(34 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Superior Bancorp, filed as Exhibit 3 to Superior Bancorp’s
Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 17, 2007, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

(3)-2 Bylaws of Superior Bancorp, filed as Exhibit 3 to Superior Bancorp’s Curremt Report 'on Form 8-K dated
November 20, 2007, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

4)-1 Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust, dated as of September 7, 2000. by and among State Street
Bank and Trust Company of Connecticut, National Association, as Insiututional Trustee, The Banc
Corporation, as Sponsor, David R. Carter and James A. Taylor, Jr., as Administrators, ﬁled as Exhibii(4)-
10 The Banc Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.
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(4)-2

(4)-3

(4)-4

@5

(4)-6

4)-7

(4)-8

(4)-9

(4)-10

(4)-11

(4)-12

{4)-13

(4)-14

(4)-15

(4)-16
(4)-17

(4)-18

|
Guarantee Agreement, dated as of September 7, 2000, by and between The Baﬁc Corporation and State
Street Bank and Trust Company of Connecticut, National Association, filed as Exhlblt(4)-2 to The Banc

Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, is hereby
incorporated herein by reference,

" Indenture, dated as of September 7, 2000, by and among The Banc Corporation as issuer and State Street

Bank and Trust Company of Connecticut, National Association, as Trustee, ﬁled as Exhibit(4)-3 to The
Banc Cerporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000, is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Piacement Agreement, dated as of August 31, 2000, by and among The Banc Corporauon TBC Capital
Statutory Trust 1I, Keefe Bruyette & Woods, Inc., and First Tennessee Capna] Markets, filed as
Exhibit{4)-4 to The Banc Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2000, is hereby incorporated herein by reference. L

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust, dated as of July 16, 2001, by and among The Banc
Corporation, The Bank of New York, David R. Carter, and James A. Taylor, Jr. filed as Exhibit{4)-5 to The
Banc Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration No.| 333-69734) is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Guarantee Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2001, by The Banc Corporation andiThe Bank of New York
filed as Exhibit{4)-6 to The Banc Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration
No. 333-69734) is hereby incorporaied herein by reference.

Indenture, dated as of July 16, 2001, by The Banc Corporation and The Bank of New York filed as
Exhibit{4)-7 to The Banc Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration
No. 333-69734) is hereby incorporaied herein by reference.
Placement Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2001, among TBC Capital Statutory Trust [11, and The Banc
Corporation and Sandler O'Neill & Panners, L.P. filed as Exhibit(4)-8 to Tlhe Banc Corporation’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Registration No. 333-69734) is hereby incorporated herein by
reference.

[ndenture, dated March 23, 2000, by and between Community Baneshares, Inc and The Bank of New
York filed as Exhibit 4.4 to Community Bancshares’ Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31,2000, is
hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust, dated March 23, 2000, by and among The Bank of New York
(Delaware), The Bank of New York, Community Bancshares. Inc. and Community (AL) Capital Trust [
filed as Exhibit 10.1 10 Community Bancshares’ Ferm 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2000, is
hereby incorporated herein by reference. }
Guarantee Agreement, dated March 23, 2000, by and between Community Bancshares, Inc. and The
Bank of New York filed as Exhibit 10.2 «0o Community Bancshares’™ Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2000, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, between The Banc Corpomuon and the investors
named therein, filed as Exhibit 4-1 10 The Banc Corporation's Current Report on Form B-K dated
January 24, 2005, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, between The Banc Corporauon and the investors
named therein, filed as Exhibit 4-2 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Repon on Form 8-K dated
January 24, 2005, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Indenture, dated as of December 15, 2005, by and between Peoples Community Bancshares, Inc. and
Wilmington Trust Company. ‘

Placement Agreement, dated as of December 7, 2005, by and among Peoples Commumty Bancshares,
Inc., Peoples Community Statutory Trust I, FTN Financial Capital Markets and Keefe, Bruyetie &
Woods, Inc.

Guarantee Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2005, by and between Peoples Community Bancshares,
Inc. and Wilmington Trust Company.

Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust, dated as of December 15, 2005, by and among Wilmington
Trust Company, Peoples Community Bancshares, Inc., Neil D. McCurry, Ir. and Dorothy S. Barth.
Declaration of Trust, dated July 10, 2007, by and among Superior Bancorp, Wllnyngton Trust Company,
Mark A. Tarnakow, William H. Caughran and Rick D. Gardner filed as Exhibit 4.01 to Superior Bancorp’s
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2007,
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Indenture, dated as of July 19, 2007, between Superior Bancorp and Wilmington Trust Company filed as
Exhibit 4.02 to Superior Bancorp’s Form 10-Q for the quaner ended September| 30, 2007.

Guaraniee Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2007, between Superior Bancorp and Wilmington
Trust Company filed as Exhibit 4.03 to Superior Bancorp’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2007.

Placement Agreement, dated July 18, 2007, by and among Superior Bancorp, FTN Capital Markets and
Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc. filed as Exhibit 4.04 to Superior Bancorp 5 Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2007. l

Third Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan of The Banc Corporation, ﬁlcd as Exhibit (10)-1
to The Banc Corporation’s Annuzal Repon on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, is
hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Commerce Bank of Alabama Incentive Stock Compensation Plan, filed as Exhibit(4)-3 10 The Banc
Corporation's chnstrauon Statement on Form S-8, dated February 22,1 1999 (Registration
No. 333-72747), is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Employmeni Agreement by and between The Banc Corporation and James A. Taylor, filed as Exhibit
{(10}-1 to The Banc Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for quarter ended March 31, 2002 is
hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Deferred Compensation Agreement by and between The Banc Corporation and James A. Taylor, filed as
Exhibit (10)-2 to The Banc Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 {Registration
No. 333-67011), is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement by and between The Banc Corporation and the individuals
listed on Schedule A attached thereto filed as Exhibit (10)-11 to The Banc Corp-orauon s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, is hereby incorporated hcrﬁ:m by reference.
Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement by and between Superior Bank and thejindividuals listed on
Schedule A attached thereto filed as Exhibit (10)-11 to The Banc Corporation’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1999, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.
Agreement dated as of June 30, 2005, by and between The Banc Corporation and David R. Carter, filed as
Exhibit 10-3 1o The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form 10-K dated July|2l 2005, is hereby
incorporated herein by reference. |

Agreement, dated as of June 30. 2605, by and between The Banc Corporation and F. Hampion McFadden,
Jr., filed as Exhibit 10-4 10 The Banc Corporation’s Curreni Report on Form 8-K dated July 21, 2005, is
hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, between The Banc Corporation and James A.|Taylor, Sr., filed as
Exhibit 10-3 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January, 24, 2005, is hereby
incorporated herein by reference. |

Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, between The Bance Corporation and James A.| Taylor, Jr., filed as
Exhibit 10-4 10 The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 24, 2005, is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, by and between The Banc Corporauon The Bank and
C. Stanley Bailey, filed as Exhibit 10-5 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Report « on Form 8-K dated
January 24, 2005, is hereby incorporated herein by reference. i

Employment Agreement, dated January 24, 2005, by and between The Banc Corpomuon The Bank and
C. Marvin Scott, filed as Exhibit 10-6 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 24, 2005, is hereby incorporated herein by reference. L

Employment Agreement. dated January 24, 2005, by and between The Banc Corporauon The Bank and
Rick D. Gardner, filed as Exhibit 10-7 to The Banc Corporation’s Curremt Report on Form 8-K dated
January 24, 2005, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Agreement and Plan of Merger between Kensington Bankshares, Inc. and The Banc Corporation, dated
March 6, 2006, filed as Exhibit 10 to The Banc Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 6,
2006, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Agreement and Plan of Merger between Community Bancshares, Inc. and The Banc Corporation, dated
April 29, 2006, filed as Exhibit 2.01 to The Banc Corporation’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 2000, is hereby incorporated herein by reference. |

|
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(¢) Financial Statement Schedules.

Agreement and Plan of Merger between People's Community Bancshares, lnc. and Superior Bancorp,
dated January 18, 2007, filed as Exhibit 10 to Superior Bancorp's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
January 18, 2007, is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Change in Control Agreement between The Banc Corporation and James C. Gossett dated Apnil 1, 2002,
filed as Exhibit (10)-17 to Supcrior Bancorp's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 is hereby
incorporated herein by reference.

Agreement between Superior Bank and William H. Caughran, dated August 31, 2006, filed as
Exhibit 10.4 10 Amendment No. | to Superior Bancorp’s Registration Slaternent on Form S§-4
(Registration No. 333-136419) is hereby incorporated herein by reference.

Management Incentive Compensation Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to The Banc Corporation's Current
Report on Form 8-K, dated April 26, 2005, is hereby incorporated herein by referencc

Change in Centrol Apgreement, dated March 10, 2008, by and ameng Superior Bancorp. Superior Bank
and Mark A. Tamnakow.

Change in Control Agreement, dated March 10, 2008, by and among Superior Bancorp Superior Bank
and William H. Caughran.

Subsidiaries of Superior Bancorp.
Consent of Grant Thomton, LLP.
Consent of Carr, Riggs & ingram, LLC.
Certiftcations of Chief Executive Officer and Principal Fmanc:al Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a).

Centifications of Chief Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer pursuant 10 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350.

The Financial Statement Schedules required to be filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K are listed under
“Financial Statement Schedules” in Part [V, Item 15(a)(2) of this Annual Report on| Form 10-K, and are

incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES |

|
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly autholrized.

!
SUPERIOR BANCORP |

|
By /s/ C. Stanley Bailey

C. Stanley Baiilcy
Chief Executive Officer

March 14, 2008

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and
appoints C. Stanley Bailey and Mark A. Tamakow, and each of them, the true and lawful agents and his attorneys-in-
fact with full power and authority in either of said agents and attomneys-in-faci, acting suf:gly. to sign for the
undersigned as Director or an officer of the Corporation, or as both, the Corporation’s 2007 Annual Report on
Form 10-K 10 be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, Washington, D.C. 1‘|.mder the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, and to sign any amendment or amendments to such Annual Report, including an Anpual
Report pursuant to 11-K to be filed as an amendment to the Form 10-K; hereby ratifying and confirming all acts

tiken by such agents and attommeys-in-fact as herein authorized. .

Pursuant io the requiremenis of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has becn!signcd below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature ‘ﬂll_e Date
_ Is/ C. Stanley Bailey Chairman of the Board and Chicf March 14, 2008

Executive Officer (Principal

C. Stanley Baile
. Y y Executive Officer) and Director

_ fs/ Mark A. Tarnakow Chief Financial Officer (Principal March 14, 2008
Mark A. Tarnakow Financial and Accounting Officer),
s/ Roger Barker Director March 14, 2008

Roger Barker

/s! K. Earl Durden Director March 14, 2008
K. Earl Durden

fsf  Rick D. Gardner Director March 14, 2008
Rick D. Gardner

/s/ _Thomas E. Jernigan, Jr. Director March 14, 2008
Thomas E. Jernigan, Jr. ’

/s/  James Mailon Kent, Ir. Director March 14, 2008
James Mailon Kent, Jr.

/sf Mark A. Lee Director March 14, 2008
Mark A. Lee

o /s/  James M. Link Director March 14, 2008
James M. Link
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Signature

/s/ Peter L. Lowe

Peter L. Lowe

fs/ John C, Metz

John C. Metz

Is! D. Dewey Mitchell

D. Dewey Mitcheli

fs!  Barry Morton

Barry Morton

/s/  Robent R. Parrish, Jr.

Robert R, Parrish, Ir.

13/ Charles W. Roberts, 111

Charles W. Roberts, II1

/s C. Marvin Scott

C. Marvin Scott

fsf James C. White, Sr.

James C. White, Sr.

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

March 14, 2003
March 14, 2008
March 14, 2008
March 14, 2008
March 14, 2008
March 14, 2008
March 14, 2008

March 14, 2008




SUPERIOR BANCORP
17 North 20th Street
Birmingham, Alabama 35203

March 24, 2008

Dear Stockholder:

On behalf of the Board of Directors and management of Superior Bancorp, we cordlally invile you
to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at our principal executive ofﬂccs at 17 North
20th Street, Birmingham, Alabama 35203, on April 23, 2008, a1 10:00 a.m. Central T1me The attached
INotice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement describe the formal business to be transacted at the
Annual Meeting.

Itis imponant that your shares be represented at the Annual Meeting. Regardless of whether you
plan to atiend, please mark, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy as soon as possiple in the envelope
frovided or vote over the Internet or by telephone. If you attend the Annual Meeting, which we hope you
vill, you may vote in person even if you have previously mailed a proxy card or voted over the Internet ot
by telephone.

Sincerely,

(. Vit

C. Stanley Bailey
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

15125
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SUPERIOR BANCORP
17 North 20th Street
Birmingham, Alabama 35203

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON APRIL 23, 2008

To the Stockholders of Superior Bancorp:

You are hereby notified that the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”) of Superior
fancorp, a Delaware corporation, will be held at our principal executive offices at 7 North 20th Street,
Eiirmingham, Alabama 35203, on Wednesday, April 23, 2008, at 10:00 a.m. Central Time, for the following
purposes:

1. To elect 15 directors 1o serve for a term expiring ai the 2009 Annual Meeting or until their respective
. . . . . . |
successors are duly elected and qualified, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal.

2. To approve a proposed amendment to Superior Bancorp’s Centificate of Incorporation effecling a
1-for-4 reverse stock split of Superior Bancorp common stock and decreasing the number of authorized shares
of common stock following the reverse stock split. |

3. To adopt the Superior Bancorp 2008 Incentive Compensation Plan.

4. To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annuval Meeting or any adjournment
thereof,

All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting; however, only stockholders of record at
the close of business on March 6, 2008, are entitled to notice of and o vote at the Annu"al Meeting, or any
ac journments thercof. Regardless of whether you plan to attend the meeting, please mark, sign, date and return the
enctosed proxy in the enclosed prepaid envelope as soon as possible or vote in advance over the Internet or by
te'ephone as instructed in the proxy statement. If you attend the Annual Meeting in person, you may revoke your
proxy and vote in person. Attendance at the meeting does not of itself revoke your proxy.

In accordance with Delaware law, a list of stockholders entitled 1o vote at the Annual Mcctling shall be open to
the: examination of any stockholder, for any purpose relating to the Annual Meeting, during ordinary business hours
at Superior Bancorp's principal executive offices at 17 North 20th Street, Birmingham, Alabama, from April 11,
2008 through April 23, 2008, and the list shall be available for inspection at the Annual Meeting by any stockholder
who is present. 1

|

By Order of the Board of Directors
L]

(Dt 4 “

Williarn H. Caughran
Secretary

DATED: March 24, 2008







SUPERIOR BANCORP
17 North 20th Street
Birmingham, Alabama 35203

PROXY STATEMENT
For 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
to be Held on April 23, 2008

INTRODUCTION

We are fumnishing this Proxy Statement to the holders of Superior Bancorp common stock; par vatue $.001 per
share, in connection with our solicitation of proxies to be used at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (o be
hitd on Wednesday, April 23, 2008, at 10:00 a.m., Central Time, at our principal executive offices at 17 Nonh
2th Street, Birmingham, Alabama 35203 (the “Annual Meeting™) and any adjournment thereof. The enclosed
proxy is solicited on behalf of our Board of Directors. This Proxy Siaiement and (he accompanying proxy card are
being mailed 1o stockholders on or about March 24, 2008.

|
On May 18, 2006, Superior Bancorp changed its name from The Banc Corporation, ISuper'mr Bancorp’s
svbsidiary, Superior Bank, had changed its name from The Bank on January 1, 2006, All references in this Proxy
Statement to Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank for periods prior to those dates shall be deemed to refer to their
respective predecessor organizalions.

Stockholders Entitled to Vote

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 6, 2008, are entitled to rccé‘ive notice of and to
vcte at the Annual Meeting. Our only class of voting stock outstanding is our common stock, par value $.001 per
share. As of the close of business on March 6, 2008, the number of shares of common stock outstanding and entitled
to vote at the Annual Meeting was 40,211,230, Each share of common stock is entitled to one I\.'ole on all matters.
Ttere are no cumulative voling rights. . !

|
Vote Required

Before any business may be transacted at the Annual Meeting, a quorum must be present. A majority of cur
outstanding shares ol common stock which are entitled 1o vole at the Annual Meeting, represented in person or by
proxy, shall constitute a quorum for the wransaction of business. Assuming a quorum is prcsc‘nl.

* The election of directors (Proposal One) requires a plurality of the votes cast. This means |lhm the 15 director

nominees receiving the most votes will be elected. Shares not voted, and properly voted proxies to *“withhold
authority,” will result in a nominee receiving fewer votes, but will not be treated as votes ‘against a nominee.

* The amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation to effect a reverse slock split and decréasc the authorized
shares of common stock (Proposal Two) requires approval by the holders of a majority! of our issued and
outstanding shares of common stock. If you are present in person or represented by proxy at the meeting and
you abstain from voting on Proposal Two, your abstention will have the same effect as‘ a vole against the
proposal. Your failure o atiend the Annual Meeting or to be represented at the meeting by proxy will also
have the same effect as a vote against Proposal Two.

« Adoption of the 2008 Stock Incemive Plan (Proposal Three) requires the affirmative vole of a majority of
shares present in person or that are represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting. If you are present in person
orrepresented by proxy at the meeting and you abstain from voting on Proposal Three, your abstention will
have the same effect as a vote against the proposal.

Abstenlions and broker non-votes will be counted for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a
qucrum for the transaction of business, but will not be counted as votes cast on any matter. However, with respect to
Proposal Two, abstentions and broker non-votes will have the same effect as a vote against the proposal.




How to Vote Your Shares

To vote at the Annual Meeting, you may attend the Annual Meeting and vote your shares in person or you may
vote in advance of the Annual Meeting by Intemnet, telephone or mail as explained below. Elvcn if you plan to attend
the Annual Meeting., we urge you to vote in advance. If you own shares in record name, yol may cast your advance
vote in one of three ways:

» Vote by Internet:  You can choose to vole your shares over the Intemmet website hsted on the enclosed proxy
card. This website will give you the opportunity to make your selections and confi rlm that your instructions
have been followed. To take advantage of the convenience of voting on the Internct, you must subscribe to
one of the various commercial services that offers access to the Internel. If you vote via the Internet, you do
not need 1o veturn the proxy card. !

* Vote by Telephone:  You can also vote by phone at any time by calling the toll-free number (for residents of
the United States) lisied on the enclosed proxy card. Te vote by telephone, dial the 10ll-free number and

. . . |
follow the simple recorded instruciions. If you voie by telephone, you do not need (o return the proxy card.

* Vore by Mail:  1f you choose to vote by mail, simply mark the proxy card, and then date, sign, and retum itin
the postage pre-paid envelope provided.

Stockholders who hold shares beneficially in street name through a nominee (such as a broker) may be able to
vote by telephone or the Internet as well as by mail. You should follow the instnictions' you receive from your
nominee to vote these shares.

If instructions are given in any of the three ways listed above and are received by Superior Bancorp before or at
the Annual Meeting, and are not revoked, then the shares of common stock represented thereby will be voted as
specified. If no specification is made, then shares of common stock represented by the |pr0xy will be voled in
accordance with the recommendations of the Board of Directors.

How to Revoke Your Proxy

Sending in a signed proxy card or voting over the Internet or by telephone will not affect your right to attend the
Annual Meeting and vote in person. You may revoke your proxy ai any time before it is voted at the Annual Meeting

by:
« giving wrilten notice to the Secretary of Superior Bancorp that you wish to revoke your proxy.

* executing and delivering to the Secrelary of Superior Bancorp a later-dated proxy (including by Internet or
telephone vote), or

= anending, giving notice that you wish to revoke your proxy and voting in person at the Annual Meeting.

Solicitation

We will bear the costs of soliciting proxies. We have engaged Georgeson Sharcholder Communications, Inc. to
aid in the solicitation of proxies, for which we will pay a fee of approximately $12,500 plus reimbursement of
expenses. Some of our officers and employees (or those of our subsidiaries) may use their pt:rsonnl efforts 10 make
additional requests for the return of proxies by telephone, mail or ctherwise and may recelve proxies on our behalf.
They witl receive no additional compensation for making any solicitations. We expect to reimburse brokers, banks,
custodians and other nominees for their reasonable out-of-pockel expenses in handlm‘g proxy materials for
beneficial owners of our common stock.

Other Matters

As of the date of this Proxy Statement, the Board of Directors does not know of any matters other than those
set forth in the foregoing Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders, that may be brought before the Annual
Meeting. If other matters requiring a vote of the stockholders arise, the persons designated : as proxies will vote the
shares of common stock represented by the proxies in accordance with their judgment on such matters.
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|
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth, to the best of our knowledge, centain information regardiné our beneficial stock
ownership as of March 6, 2008, by: (a} each of our current directors, our Chief Executive Ofﬁcer and our other
current executive officers, (b) all current directors and executive officers as a group, and (c) cach stockholder known
bsy us, based solely upon a review of filings made with the SEC, to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our
outstanding commen stock. Except as otherwise indicated, each person listed betow has sole vioung and investment
power with respect to all shares shown 10 be beneficially owned by him. None of the shares are plcdgcd as securily
for indebtedness unless otherwise indicated.

Percentage (1X2)
Number of Shares of Of Common

Mame Common Stock | Siock Owned
C. Stanley Bailey. « . - oo v v oo 985,640(3) 241%
RogerBarker. . .. ... L e 63,93](4:) *
William H. Caughran ... ...ttt eeenn, 19,281(5) *
BL B DUEN « - . o e e et e et 638,296(6) 1.59%
RACK D. GAIANEE - -« o oo e e e e et e 418.511(7) 1.03%
Thomas E. JEMIgan, JE. .« - e v v v e e e et e 268.953(8): *
James Mailon Kent, Jr. .. .. oo e 427,047(9) 1.06%
T N P S |.525,870(|¢) 3.80%
James M. Link ... ... e e 12,403(11) *
Peter L: LOWe . . ottt et i i ittt it r e e 86,894 *
John €. MEIZ . oottt e e e e e e e e 339,657(12) *
C.Dewey Mitchell ... ... . . ... .. . . i i 284,031(13‘) *
Bammy MOMON ... ... i e - 3I8.334(l4|) *
Robert R. Parrish, Jr. . ... i i i e e 58,158(15) .
Charles W. Roberts, 111 . .. ... .. . i, 57,303 i *
C.MAVIN SCOM ot e ettt e e e e e 517.666(16) 1.28%
Mark A, TAMaKOW . ...ttt et 24,084(17) *
Jzmes C. White, St oo .o e 11,824(18) .
All executive officers and directors as a group (18 persons) . ......... 6,057.888(!9:) 14.50%
* Lessthan 1%

(0

)

)

“)

Except as otherwise noted herein, percentage is determined on the basis of 40,211,230 sh:lu'es of Corporation
common stock outstanding plus securities deemed outstanding pursuant to Rule 13d-3 pro'mulgzued under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Under Rule 13d-3,a person is deemed to
be a beneficial owner of any security owned by certain family members and any security of which that person
has the right 10 acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days, including, without limitation is]'la.res of common
stock subject to currently exercisable options. Shares held by employee benefit plans (as md:cated below) are
as of the most recently completed plan allocation coinciding with or preceding Marcp 6, 2008. Unless
otherwise indicated, the address of each person is ¢/o Superior Bancorp, 17 North 20th Street, Birmingham,

Alabama 33203,

Ownership percentage for each named individual is calculated by treating any shares subjecl to options that
are held by the named individual and that are exercisable within the next 60 days as if outstanding, but treating
such option shares held by others and treating shares subject to options held by the named individual but not
exercisable within 60 days as not outsianding. If ownership of restricted stock is shown, the individual has sole
voting power, but no power of disposition.
Includes 711,970 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days, 1,000 shares held by a trust, of
which he disclaims beneficial ownership, and 10,284 shares held for his benefit by employee benefit plans.

Includes 20,000 shares subject 10 options that are exercisable within 60 days.
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(5) Includes 89 shares hield as co-trustee of a trust, 860 shares held by his spouse, 8,500 shares of restricted stock
over which he has voting power but not investment power, and 5,645 shares held for,his benefit by employee
benefit plans.

{6} Includes 32,500 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days and 203,534 shares held by a
fumily trust. .

{7) Includes 355,985 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days and 1,327 shares held for his
benefit by employee benefit plans.

({8) Includes 30,000 shares subject o options that are exercisable within 60 days and 217,195 shares held by a trust
of which he is the beneficiary.

(9) Includes 30,000 shares subject to options that are excisable within 60 days.
(10) Includes 1,525,002 shares held by a limited liability company.
(11} Includes 5,000 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days.
(12) Includes 5,789 shares held in his spouse’s [RA.

{13) Includes 146,315 shares held by a corporation of which he is a controlling shareholder and 14,582 shares held
for his benefit by an employee benefit plan.

{14} Includes 20,000 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days.

{15} Includes 5,000 shares subject to options thal are excisable within 60 days and 47,287 shares held for his benefit
by an employee benefit plan.

(16) Iacludes 355,985 shares subject 1o options that are exercisable within 60 days and 81683 shares held for his
benefit by employee benefit plans, '

(17) Includes 6,800 shares of restricted stock over which he has voting power but nol; investment power and
2,284 shares held for his benefit by an employee benefit plan.

(18) Includes 5,000 shares subject to oplions that are exercisable within 60 days.
(19) Includes 1,571,440 shares subject to options that are exercisable within 60 days.
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PROPOSAL NUMBER ONE \

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS :
\

Under our Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws, each member of our Board of Directors stands for
¢lection annually. The Board of Directors has recommended the election of the nominees for director identified
telow, to serve for a term expiring at the 2009 Annual Meeting or until their successors arc duly elected and

i

qualified, or until their earlier death, resignation or removal,

The Board of Directors has no reason to believe that any of the persons named will be unable 1o serve if elected.
IF any nominee is unable to serve as a director, the enclosed Proxy will be voted for a substitute nominee selected by
the Board of Directors. The election of directors reqmres a plurality of the votes cast by the holders of our common
stock. A “plurality” means that the individuals who receive the largest number of votes cast are elected as directors
up to the maximum number of directors to be chosen at the meeting. In other words, the l|5 director nominces
raceiving the most votes will be elected. Consequently, any shares not voled (whether by abstenuon broker non-
vote or otherwise) will have no impact on the election of directors.

Mominees for Director

For each nominee’s beneficial ownership of common stock, see “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial
COwners and Management” above. Set forth below is certain additional information regarding each nominee:

Name(1) Age  Position with Superior Bancorp i
C. Stanley Bailey. ................. 59 Chairman & Chief Executive Officer; Director
RogerBarker. .................... 60 Director

Rick D.Gardner .................. 48  Chief Operating Officer; Director

Thomas E. Jemigan, Jr. ............. 42 Director

James Mailon Kent, Jr. .. ........... 67 Director

Mark A Lee.............connn... 49 Director

Jumes M. Link ................... 65 Direclor

Pater L.Lowe . ........... ... ..., 69 Director

JohnC. Metz ........ ... ... .... 68 Director

D. Dewey Mitchell ................ 51 Director

BarmyMorton . .. ................. 69 Director

Robert R. Parrish, Jr. .............. 53 Director

Charles W. Robents, Il .. ........... 54 Director

C.MarvinScott. .................. 58 President; Director

Jemes C. White, Sr. ... 60 Director

(1) Directors Barker, fernigan and White are members of the Audit Committee; Directors Link!. Kent and Metz are
members of the Compensation Commitiee; Dircctors Link and Morton are members of the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee. Cuerent director K. Earl Durden, who is not standing for re-election at the
Amnual Meeting, is also a member of the Nominating and Corporate Governance Comniittee.

C. Stanley Bailey joincd Superior Bancorp as Chief Executive Officer and a Director in January 2005, During
2004, he was Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Silver Acquisition Corp., Overland Park, |Kansas. Mr. Bailey
was founder, chairman and chief executive officer of Superior Financial Corp., Little Rock, Arkansas a financial
services company, from late 1997 until the sale of the company in late 2003. From 1971 throug!? 1997, he served in
varicus executive management positiens with AmSouth Bancorporation, Birmingharm, Alabama and Hancock
Holding Company, Gulfport, Mississippi, a bank holding company. |

Roger Barker has been Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Buffaloi‘ Rock Company, a
distributor and bottler of soft drink products, for over five years. He has been a director of Superior Bancorp since
December 2003 and began serving as a director of Superior Bank, in 1998.
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Rick D. Gardner joined Superior Bancorp as Chief Operating Officer in January 2005 and was elected as a
director in June 2005. During 2004, he was Chief Operating Officer of Silver Acquisition Corp., Overland Park,
Kansas. Mr. Gardner was an officer of Superior Financial Corp., Little Rock, Arkansas, from 1998 through late
2003, serving as Chief Admiristrative Officer and, previously, as Chief Financial Officer. qrom 1981 through 1998,
he served first as an accountant with Grant Thomton and then in various executive managemenl positions with
Metmor Financial, Overland Park, Kansas, and First Commercial Mortgage Company, Little Rock, Arkansas.

Thomas E. Jemigan, Jr. has been the President of Marathon Corporation, a privately held investment
management company based in Birmingham, Alabama, for over five years. He has been a direcior of Superior
Bancorp since September 1998, |

James Mailon Kent, Jr. has been the owner of Mailon Kent Insurance Agency in Birmingham, Alabama for
over 2} years. He has been a director of Superior Bancorp since September 1998.

Mark A. Lee has served as President of Forest Hill Capital, LLC, a private investment advisory firm in Little
Rock, Arkansas, for the past eight years. Prior 10 that time, Mr. Lee spent 16 years wi!lh Morgan Keegan and
Company, Memphis, Tennessee, in various positions. Mr. Lee has been a director of Supcnor Bancorp since January
2008.

James M. Link, Lieutenant General, U.S. Army (retired), served as President of Teledyne Brown Engineering,
Inc., Huntsville, Alabama, a subsidiary of Teledyne Technologies. Inc., from July 2001 :umil January 2008. He
previously served as Senior Vice President, Applied Technology Group, of Science Applications International
Corporation, Huntsville, Alabama. He completed his military-career as Deputy Commandmg General, U.S. Army
Matericl Command, from 1998 — 2000. Additionally, he is a director of Dewey Electronics Corporation. General
Link has been a director of Superior Bancorp since June 2005.

Peter L. Lowe is the President of G.W. Jones & Sons Real Estate Investment Company, Inc., Huntsville,
Alabama. Mr. Lowe has been a director of Superior Bancorp since July 2007.

John C. Metz is the Chairman, and Chief Executive Officer of Metz & Associates, a food service management
company located in Dallas, Pennsylvania, which he founded in 1994. Mr. Metz has been a director of Superior
Bancorp since July 2007.

D. Dewey Mitchell is a co-owner of Capstone Tropical Holdings, Inc., New Pont Richey, Florida, a holding
company for a number of real-estate related businesses in the Tampa Bay area. Mr. Miichell served as a director of
Kensington Bankshares, Inc.. Tampa, Florida, from its founding until its merger with Superior Bancorp in 2006, at
which time he became a director of Superior Bancorp.

Barry Morton is Chairman of Robins & Morton, Birmingham, Alabama, one of the largest contractors in the
United States. Before becoming Chairman, he served for 15 years as President of Robins & ‘Monon. He has served
for more than five years as a director of Superior Bank, and has been a direcior of Superior Bancorp since June 2005.

Robert R. Parrish, Jr. is president and owner of Parrish Group, Inc. of Tallahassee, Florilda, a holding company
for companies invelved in real estate development, construction and sales in the Capi[lol Region of Florida.
Mr. Parrish has served in such capacities for Parrish Group and its predecessors for more lhan 20 years. Mr. Parrish

has becn a director of Superior Bancorp since November 2005.

Charles W Roberts, I1I has been the President of C.W. Roberts Contracting, Inc., a roadiconstruction company
in Tallahassee, Florida, since 1976. Mr. Roberts has been a director of Superior Bancorp since January 2008.

C. Marvin Scott joined Superior Bancorp as President in January 2005 and was elected as a director in June
2005. During 2004, he was President of Silver Acquisition Corp., Overland Park, Kansas Mr. Scott served as
President and Chief Operating Officer of Superior Financial Corp., Little Rock, Arkansas, from April 1998 through
late 2003. From 1971 through 1997, he served in various executive management pos‘mons with Crestar, a
Richmond, Virginia-based bank holding corporation, AmSouth Bank and Hancock Hol'dmg Company. From
February 1996 until Janvary 1998, he was Chief Retail Officer and Senior Vice Pn:sxdcm of Hancock Holding
Company, and he was previously Executive Vice President — Consumer Banking al AmSouth Bank.

6




1
James C. White, Sr. has served as Managing Partner of Banks, Finley, White & Fo.. Cenified Public
Accountants, Birmingham, Alabama, one of the nation’s largest and oldest minority-owned certified public
accounting firms, since the firm's inception in 1973. He has been a director of Superior Bancorp since June

$1005, and previously served as a director of Superior Bank.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR the electton of all, nominees identified
ubove. The enclosed Proxy will be voted in favor of those nominees unless other instructions are given.

t

Jixecutive Officers

The following table sets forth certain information about our current executive officers:

tHame Age  Pusition

C. Stanley Bailey. ................. 59 Chief Executive Officer; Director i

William H. Caughran. . . ............ 51 General Counsel and Secretary

tick D.Gardner ... ............... 48 Chief Operating Officer; Director

C.Marvin Scott. .. ... ... ... .. 58 President; Director

Mark A. Tamakow. ................ 42  Chief Financial Officer

Information conceming Mr. Bailey, Mr. Gardner and Mr. Scoll is set forth above under “Nominees for

Director”

William H. Caughran was named General Counsel of Superior Bancorp in November 2006 upon completion of
Superior Bancorp’s acquisition of Community Bancshares, Inc., Blountsville, Alabama. Mr. Caughran became
Generat Counsel of Community Bank in 1998 and Community Bancshares, Inc. in 2002. | From 1986 t0 1998
Mr. Caughran served as in-house counsel to AmSouth Bank, Birmingham, Alabama.

Mark A. Tarmakow was named Chief Financial Officer of Superior Bancorp in Aprit 2007. Previously,
Mr. Tarnakow held various financial management positions at Regions Financiat Corporalion[and its predecessors,
Eiirmingham. Alabama, from 2002 to 2007, serving most recently as the Regional Financial Officer of the Midwest
E:anking Group. From 1992 to 2002 Mr. Tarnakow was employed in various financial mana'gement positions for

entities affiliated with Banc One Corporation, Columbus, Ohio. Mr. Tamakow is a Certified Public Accountant.

Certain Information Concerning the Board of Directors and its Committees

The Board of Directors held a tota] of seven meetings and acted by unanimous wrulen consent three times
during 2007. During 2007, each of the directors atiended at least 75% of the aggregate of (1) the 101al number of
Eioard of Directors meetings of Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank and (ii) the total numbcr of meetings held by
all Board committees of Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank on which he served during lhe period for which he
was serving as a director or committee member. The Board of Directors has delermmcd that the following
13 directors are “independent directors” under Rule 4200 of the NASDAQ Stock Market Marketplace Rules :
Messrs. Barker, Durden, Jernigan, Kent, Lee, Link, Lowe, Metz, Mitchell, Merton, Parrish, Roberts and White. Qur
non-employee dircctors periodically meet in executive session without the management dlrcctors There is no
policy requiring the directors to attend meetings of stockholders. Four of the 15 members of the Board of Directors

a: that time attended the 2007 Annual Meeting.

. . . . o .
The Board of Directors currently has three standing committees: the Audit Commiuee, the Compensation
Committee and the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

Audit Committee. 'The Audit Commitiee is responsible for overseeing our accounting an'd financial reporting
processes and the audits of our financial statements. Among other things, the Audit Committee is responsible for the
appointment, retention, compensation and oversight of our independent registered public acccltuntmg firm, reviews
significant audit and accounting policies and practices, meets with our independent registered public accounting
firm concerning, among other things, the scope of audits and reports, approves the provision of services by our

irdependent registered public accounting firm and reviews the performance of overall accolummg and financial
controls. The Audit Committee currently comprises Messrs. Barker (Chair), Jemigan and White. During 2007, there

were nine meetings of the Audit Committee. See “Report of the Audit Committee.”
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Each of the members of the Audit Commitiee is an independent director, as d'eﬁned under NASDAQ
Rule 4200, and meets the standards required by Rule 10A-3(b}(1) under the Securities Exchangc Actof 1934, The
Board of Directors has determined that each of Mr. Barker and Mr. White qualifies as an "audlt committeg financial
expen,” under the Rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission. [n 2007, the Board'of Directors revised the
Audit Committee Charter, a copy of which is available on our website at www, supenorbank com.

Compensation Commitice. The Compensation Committee is responsible for reviewing the performance of
all of our officers and recommending to the Board of Directors annual salary and bonus amounts for them. The
Compensation Commiittee also administers the Third Amended and Restated 1998 Incentive Stock Plan of The
Banc Corporation and the Commerce Bank of Alabama Stock Option Plan. The Co'mpensauon Commiitee
currently comprises Messrs. Link (Chair), Kent and Metz, all of whom are independent dlrectors as defined under
NASDAQ Rule 4200. During 2007, the Compensation Committee held four meenngs The Compensation
Committee operates under a written chanter revised in 2007 which is available on ourwebsite at www.super-
iorbank.com. See “Executive Compensation and Other Information — Compensation Discussion and Analysis —
Compensation Commitiee Report on Executive Compensation.”

Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.  The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
recommends 1o the Board of Directors and evaluates potential candidates to serve as directors of Superior Bancorp.
The Nominating and Corporate Govemance Committee was established in March 2004 as the Nominating
Committee and consists of Messrs. K. Earl Durden (Chair), who is not standing for re?—election at the Annual
Meeting, Link and Morton. Each of the voting members of the Nominating Committee is an independent director, as
defined under NASDAQ Rule 4200, The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee met three times during
2007.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee has 2 written charter, revised in 2007, which is
available on our website at www.superiorbank.com. The Committee is charged with devclo;‘aing and recommending
criteria to be considered in identifying and evaluating potential candidates to serve as directors of Superior Bancorp
as well as establishing policies and procedures for identifying, recruiting, interviewing and recommending to the
Board gualified candidates to serve as directors. The Committee is also responsible for developmg and recom-
mending to the Board criteria to be used in reviewing and evaluating candidates recommer{dcd by shareholders of
Superivr Bancorp and is responsible for reviewing and evaluating such candidates and makmg recommendations o

the Board.

In evaluating and recommending director nominces, the Commitiee does not rely on a fixed set of guali-
fications, but'instead atiempts to identify nominees with (i) a broad range of business experience consistent with
Superior Bancorp's strategic focus and its stockholder interests, (ii) the ability to dedicateiilhc 1ime and resources
necessary for service on the Board of Directors, and (iii) fami]iarity with the primary geogra'phic markets served by
Superior Bancorp. In addition, the Committee is charged with ensuring that at least a majorlty of our directors
satisfy the director independence requirements imposed by the NASDAQ Marketplace Rules In evaluating director
nominees, including incumbent directors and any nominees recommended by slockhqlders the Committee
considers a nominee's business experience and skills, character, judgment, leadership experience, familiarity with
community banking issues, knowledge of our geographic markets and relevant issues Ihercml, and such other criteria
as the Committee may deem relevant and appropnale based on the composition of the Board of Directors and the
strategic goals of Superiar Bancorp at the time in question. I

The Committee will consider recommendations for director pominees submitted by stockholders. In order for
the Committee to evaluate the nominees properly, such nominations should be received by t‘he Committee no later
than 60 days prior to the meeting at which the electicn is 10 be held and should set forth (a) as to cach person the
stockholder proposes to nominate for clection or re-election as a director (i) the person |s name, age, business
address. and residence address, (ii) the person’s princigal occupation or employment, (iii) the class and number of
shares of Superior Bancorp capital stock that the person beneficially owns and (iv) any other ‘infonnalion relating to
the person that is required to be disclosed in solicitations for proxies for election of directors pursuant to Section 14
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), and the !rules and regulations
promnuigated thereunder; and (b) as 10 the stockholder giving the notice, (i) the name and record address of the
stockholder, (ii) the class or series and number of shares of capital stock of Superior Bancorp that are owned
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seneficially or of record by the stockhalder, (iii) a description of all arrangements or understandings between the
stockholder and each proposed nominee and any other person or persons (including their namles) pursuant to which
:he nomination(s) are to be made by the stockholder, {iv) a representation that such s(ockholder intends to appear in
2erson or by proxy at the meeting to nominate the persons named in such notice, and (v) any other information
selating to the stockholder that would be required to be disclosed in a proxy statement or other fi filings required 10 be
imade in connection with solicitations of proxies for the election of directors pursuant to Section 14 of the Exchange
Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. The stockholder should also send to the Commitiee a
‘written consent of each person proposed to be named as a nominee and 10 serve as a director, if elected. We may
require any proposed nominee to furnish such other information as may reasonably be required to determine the
cligibility of such proposed nominee 1o serve as a director. Stockholders wishing 1o recommend potential director
nominees should write to the Committee in care of William H. Caughran, Secretary, Superior Bancorp, 17 North
0th Street, Birmingham, Alabama 35203.

SStockholder Communications with the Board

The Board of Directors provides a process for stockholders to send communications to thle Board of Directors.
Stockholders may send written communications to the Board of Directors addressed to the Board of Directors (or to
an individual director), Auention: Secretary, Superior Bancorp, 17 North 20th Sueet, Bii*mjngham. Alabama
35203, All communications will be compiled by the Secretary and submitted to the Board of Direclors or the

individual directors.

Director Compensation

The following table presents information concerning the compensation paid to non-employee directors of
Swuperior Bancorp during 2007:

Director Compensation

Change in
Pension
Value and
Fees Nongqualified
Earned Non-Equity Deferred
or Paid Stock QOption  Incentive Plan Compensation All Qther
inCash Awards Awards Compensation Earnings Co]mpensation Total

Name ! ) ($)1) () ) $) )

Foger Barker ........... — $31,000 — - — L — 31000
Clyon C. Debter(3). ... ... — $ 9,500 — — -— b= $ 9,500
K.Earl Durden.......... — 526,500 —_ — _ —_ $26.500
Koy B. Jackson(3}......... — $9,500 —_ — — —_ $ 9,500
Thomas E. Jemigan, Jr. ... — $22,500 _ —_ _— — $22,500
James Mailon Kent, Jr. .. .. —  $25,500 — — $7,767(2) — $33,267
James M. Link .......... —  $28,000 — — — — $28,000
Peter L. Lowe........... — § 7,500 $2,590 — —_ —_ $10,090
JohnC. Metz ........... $1,500 $ 7.500 $2,590 —_ — D e $11,590
L. Dewey Mitchell .. ... .. — $22,500 $8,760 — — - $31,260
BaryMorton . .......... —  $23,000 — — — — $23,000
Robert R. Pamrish, Jr. ..... —  $25,500 —_ = — — - $25,500
Michae! E. Stephens(3) . ... — § 6,500 _ — - — $ 6,500
James C. White, St. . ..... —  $27,500 — - — — $27,500

(1) Amounts in this column are the amounts recognized by Superior Bancorp in its financial statements as expenses
for 2007 in connection with stock options granted in 2007 or prior years. Mr. Lowe and Mr. Metz were each
granted options in 2007, and Mr. Mitchell was granted options in 2006. to purchase 5.009 shares of Superior
Bancorp common stock. The grant date fair value of the option awards to Mr. Lowe, Mr. Metz, and Mr. Mitchell

were $17,084, $17,084 and $19.575, respectively. !




(2) Represents the portion of the eamings on Mr. Kent’s deferred compensation which were paid at a rate in excess
of 120% of the average federal long-term rate with monthly compounding during 2007

(3) Messrs. Debter, Jackson and Stephens retired during 2007.

Non-employee directors receive an annual retainer of $10,000, payable in quarterly mstallmenls meeting fees
of $1,500 per Board meeting. and committee meeting fees of $1,500 per meeting for commulee chairs and $1,000
per meeting for committee members, and have the option of receiving such retainer and Ifees in cash or common
stock. All directors have elected 1o receive their compensation in common stock. !

|

Prior Deferred Compensation Agreements. The following directors entered into Deferred Compensation
Agreements with us originally effective as of September 1, 1999: Messrs, Durden, Jermgan Kent and Stephens.
Messrs. Kent and Jernigan also entered into Deferred Compensation Agreements wnrth Superior Bank, and
Mr. Morton had a Deferred Compensation Agreement with Superior Bank only. These agreements provided that
we would establish and fund invesiments in a Deferral Account for the director as provided in the agreements. Upon
termination of a director’s service other than by reason of death or following a change in controt, the agreemeats
obligated us to pay the director within 60 days of termination the amount equal to the Delferral Accouni Balance.
The agreements further provided that, if the director were terminated following a change in control, we must pay the
director the primary and secondary benefits. The primary benefit is the Deferral Account balance ai the end of the
plan year immediately preceding the director’s termination of service, which is payable to the director in ten equal
annual installments. The secondary benefit is the amount equal to the growth in the Dcfenal Account and must be
paid within 60 days of the end of each plan year. All of the affected directors other than M‘r Kent agreed, effective
July 31, 2005, to terminate their Deferred Compensatmn Agreements and accept shares of our common stock
having a value equal to their Deferral Account balances in full satisfaction of our obhgauons under their Deferred
Compensation Agreements. Mr. Kent, who was fully vesied in his benefits under his Deferred Compensation
Agreements, agreed to the termination of such agreements effective January 1, 2006 in exchange for our agreement
to fund a new deferred compensation arrangement for him in the amount of $154,547, representing the then-current
presenmt value of amounts that would have been paid to him under his Deferred Compensallion Agreements. Under
this new arrangement, such amount is deemed to be invested in specified benchmark funds or indices, and Mr. Kent
is entitled to receive benefits based upon the value of his deemed investment account after giving effect to deemed
investment gains and losses on the account. My, Kent may elect to receive such benefits in five or ten annual
installinents or in a lump sum beginning in 2011 or 2016, at his election, subject to earlier termination of the

arrangement.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to all of our employees, including our principal executive,
financial and accounting officers. A copy of our code of ethics is available on our website, u;'ww.superiorbank.com.
We intend 1o disctose information about any amendments to, or waivers from, our code of ethics that are required to
be disclosed under applicable Securities and Exchange Commission regulations by providing appropriate infor-
mation on our website. If at any time our code of ethics is not available on our website, we \lwll provide a copy of it
free of charge upon written request.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securilies Exchange Act of 1934 requires our officers and directors and persons who
beneficially own more than 10% of a registered class of our equity securities, to file reports of ownership and
changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Officers, directors and beneficial owners of
more than 10% of our common stock are required by SEC regulations wo furnish Superior Ba}lmorp with copies of all
Section 16(a) forms that they file. Based on a review of the copies of the forms furnished 10 us, or written
representations thal no reports on Form 5 were required, we believe that during 2007, all of our officers, direciors
and greater-than-10% beneficial owners complied with all applicable filing requirements except as set forth in the
following paragraph.

Mr. Mornton filed a laie Form 4 in May 2007 reporting an open market purchase of 4,600 shares of Superior
Bancorp common stock.
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Compensation Discussion and Analysis

This Compensation Discussion and Analysis describes our compensation program for (a) our principal
axecutive officer, (b) our principal financial officer, and (c) the three other most highly compensated executive
officers of Superior Bancorp during the year ended December 31, 2007. These cxecutive officers are referred to
zollectively as the “named executive officers.” For a summary of the amount of compensati:on paid to the named

2xecutive officers in 2007, please see “Summary of Cash and Cenain Other Compensation” below.

Compensation Philosophy and Policies for Executive QOfficers

Superior Bancorp’s Board of Directors has established a Compensation Committee wlfuch is responsible for
determining the compensation of all officers, including the named executive officers. Sce | i “Certain [nformation
iZoncerning the Board of Directors and its Committees.” The Compensation Committee’s Objcctl\'c 1s L0 compete
cffectively for the services of qualified officers and key employees, to give those employees appropnate incentive to
pursue the maximization of long-term stockholder value, and to recognize those employees’ isuccess in achieving
both qualitative and quantitative goals for the benefit of Superior Bancorp.

The Compensation Committee believes that executives of Superior Bancorp should be rewarded based upon
their success in meeting certain operational goals, improving eamings and generating returns for stockholders. The
{“ompensation Commitiee strives 10 establish levels of compensation that take these factors into account and
provide appropriate recognition for past achievement and incentive for future success. The Compensation
Commitiee recognizes that the market for executives with expertise and experience in lhc‘ banking industry is
highly competitive. In order to attract and retain qualified executives, the Compensation Commmce believes that
Superior Bancorp must offer compensation at competitive levels. In addition, the Compcnsauon Committee
believes that Superior Bancorp’s stock incentive plans offer its executives meaningful cquny participation in
Superior Bancorp's common stock. The Compensation Committee feels that the combination of cash compensation
and equily participation will be effective in stimulating Superior Bancorp’s executives to mect both long-term and
chort-term goals.

The role of management in determining executive compensation is limited (o0 galhcnng information for the
Compensation Committee. For example, compensation data regarding selected peer companies is compiled by
ranagement. See “Benchmarking.” The Compensation Cominittee receives the information frlom management and
then determines how it will utilize such information in the Committee’s decision-making process. The Compen-
sation Committee does not delegate to any other committee or individual its authority to delermmc the compen-
sation of the executive officers of Superior Bancorp. ‘
Benchmarking )

To assist the Compensation Committee in determining competitive tevels of compcnsa.tlon the Committee
r2views external compensation studies as welt as compensation data for selected positions cornplled internally from
proxy statements for selected peer companies. The most recent peer group was composed of the following financial
inslitutions: Alabama National Bancorporation (Birmingham, AL}, Bank of the Ozarks, ln(:1 (Little Rock, AR),
BancTrust Financial Group, Inc. (Mobile, AL), Fidelity Southern Corporation {Atlanta, GA) Hancock Holding
Company (Guifport, MS), IberiaBank Corporation {(Lafayette, LA}, Seacoast Banking Corporauon of Florida
(3wart, FL), Simmons First National Corporation (Fine Bluff, AR), and United Communlty]Banks Inc. (Blairs-
ville, GA). Although the Compensation Commitiee does not maintain a formal record of, and has not established
fixed targets for, where its compensation stands with respect to the peer companies, the Compensauon Committee’s
goal is for the compensation package provided to a Superior Bancorp officer to be comparable 10, and consequently
competitive with, the compensation provided by the peer companies for a similarly situated position.

Elements of Compensation

There are three primary components of Superior Bancorp’s executive compensation program: base salary,
short-term incentive compensation and long-term incentive compensation. The Compensation Committee has not
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established a specific targeted mix of compensation between base salary and short-term and long-term incentives.
Short-term incentives arc based upon percentages of base salary and long-lerm incentives are determined based
upon a targeted pool of equity. [n additton to these primary forms of compensation, Su;{)erior Bancorp provides
certain perquisites to its executive officers and maintains qualified retirement plans in which its executive officers

participate.

Base Salary: The Compensation Committee endeavors to establish base salary leveis for executives that are
consistent and competitive with those provided for similarly situaled executives of olheri publicly held financial
institutions of similar size and in similar geographic markets, 1aking ino account each execuuve 5 areas and level of
responsibility. As noied above, the Comminee utilizes data for peer companies in makmg its determination. For
2007 the Committec determined that the salary of Mr. Bailey would increase from $400, 000 10 $450,000, the salary
of Mr. Scott would increase from $300,000 to $350,000, and the salary of Mr. Gardner would increase from
$250,000 to $300,000 due to their contributions to Superior Bancorp and in recognition of lhe fact that none of these
individuals received a salary increase for 2006. Mr. Tarnakow joined Superior Bancorp in Apnl of 2007 at an annual
base salary of $200,000. Mr. Caughran joined Superior Bancorp in November 2006, and his annual base salary of
$165,000 was not changed for 2007. The salary of Mr. Gosselt, who served as the principal financial officer for part
of 2007, was increased from $140,770 for 2006 10 $146,289 for 2007.

Short-Term Incentive Compensation: The Compensation Committee has approved a Management Incentive
Plan, which is intended to recognize and reward senior officers of Superior Bancorp and its subsidiaries and
affiliates who have contributed to the enhancement of stockholder value through the achievement of corporate and
personal performance goals during each plan year. Under the terms of the Manageme'm Incentive Plan, the
Compensation Commitiee approves those officers selected to participate in the plan basc%l upon the recommen-
dation of the Chief Executive Officer. Panicipants are notified by February 15 of each plan year of their eligibility to
participate in the plan for such year. For each year, the Compensation Committee will establish corporate financial
and operational performance goals, and participants will jointly establish with their :rcspeclive supervisors
individual performance goals. Participants will be assigned to specific potential award levels ranging from
15% 10 50% of their respective base salaries, and will be eligible to earn up to 125% of their potential award
levels depending upon corporate performance. Awards will be made in a lump sum dlslnbuuon by March 15 of the
year following the plan year. The Compensation Committee has discretion to increase the eamed award payment or
award a discretionary payment in lieu of the award payment. The Compensation Committee did not exercise this
discretion with respect to any of the named executive officers for 2007. The Compcnsaliol‘n Committee makes a
determination of awards based on the infermation available to it at the time. The Compensal:on Committee has no
policy to adjust or recover awards or payments if the relevant company performance mcasurcq upon which they are
based are restated or otherwise adjusted in a manner that would reduce the size of an award or payment. The
Compensation Committee believes that the decision of whether a recovery is appropriate dcpfl:nds upon the facts and

circumstances surrounding the restatement or adjusiment.

For 2007 the corporate performance goals consisted of five components: (1) net operating carnings for the year,
weighted at 30%; (2) year-over-year growth in core deposits, weighted at 20%; (3) year-over-year loan growth,
weighted at 20%; (4) the level of non-performing assets and net charge-offs at year end, weighted at 20%; and (5) the
regulatory ratings assigned to Superior Bank, weighted at 10%. The individual goals for each of Mr. Bailey,
Mr. Scou and Mr, Gardner for 2007 were identical 1o the corporate goals because each‘of these officers has
responsibility for the performance of the entire company. The polential award level foreach oer. Batley, Mr, Scott,
and Mr. Gardner was 50% of their respective base salaries as provided in their respective cmploymem agreements
with Superior Bancorp. See “Employment Agreements.” The Compensation Committee dclemnned that Mr. Bailey,
Mr. Seott and Mr, Gardner were entitled to payouts for 2007 of $108,000, $84,000, and $72,000, respectively,
representing 24% of their respective base salaries. The potential award level of each citf Mr. Tarnakow and
Mr. Caughran was 40% of their respective base salaries. The Compensation Commluec determined  that
Mr. Tamakow and Mr. Caughran were entilled to payouts of $31,569 and $39,600, respccuve]y representing
24% of their respective base salaries paid during 2007. The potential award level of Mr. Gossett was 15% of his base
salary, and the Compensation Committee determined that Mr, Gossett was entitled (o la payout of $9.700,
representing 7% of his base salary. In lieu of cash payments, Superior Bancorp granied to Mr. Tamakow and
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Mr. Caughran restricted siock valued at the closing price of Supetior Bancorp common stolck on the date of the
award. The restricted stock vests over a two-year period.

Long-Term Incentive Compensation: In addition to cash incentive compensation, Supérior Bancorp utilizes
equity-based compensation in the form of stock options to encourage its executives to meet operauonal goals and
inaximize long-term stockholder value. Because the value of stock options granted to an executive is directly related
1o Superior Bancorp’s success in enhancing its market value over time, the Compensation Commmee believes that
its stock option programs are effective in aligning the interests of management and stockholders.

Except for stock options granted to new employees as a condition of their employment, the Compensation
(Committee generally considers grants annually at its July meeting. The Compensation Committee establishes a
target for its annual stock option grants. The amount of options for each individual is determined taking into account
&n executive's current responsibilities and historical performance, as well as the executive’s contribution to Superior
Bancorp's results of operations. In evaluating award grants, the Compensation Commitiee consuders prior granis
and shares currently held, as well as the recipient’s success in meeting operational goals and the recipient’s level of
responsibility. However, no fixed formula is utilized to determine particular grants. The Compcnsauon Commitiee
telieves that the opportunity to acquire a significant equily interest in Superior Bancorp will be a strong motivation
far the executives to pursue the long-term interests of Superior Bancorp and will promote Ionge'wny and retenttion of
key executives. In 2007 the Compensation Committee granted the following options to purchase Superior Bancorp
stock to its named executive officers: 50,000 shares to Mr. Tamakow: 10,000 shares Mr. Caughran and 3,000 shares
to Mr. Gossett. No grams were made to Mr. Bailey, Mr. Scott or Mr. Gardner in 2007 in hght of the grants which
viere made 10 each individual during 2005 as part of the inducement of each of these individuals to join the
management team of Superior Bancorp. Sce “Employment Agrecmems."

Superior Bancorp encourages its executives to participate in the equity ownership of the company and seeks to
facilitate this ownership through its long-term incentive program. However, Superior Bancorp has not estabtished

any security ownership requirements or guidelines for its executives.

Retirement Plans:,

The retirement plans maintained by Superior Bancorp are tax-qualified plans in Whlch named executive
officers participate on the same terms as other full-time employees of Superior Bancorp. The clompany maintzains a
491(k) plan pursuant to which it matches 100% of the first 3% and 50% of the next 2% of compensation contributed
to the plan by the employee. During most of 2007 Superior Bancorp maintained two employ'cc stock ownership
pians (*ESOPs"), one of which it acquired as a result of its merger with Community Bancs}hams inc. in 2006.
Contributions to the ESOPs are determined by the Board of Directors, but must be in an amount sufficient to enable
the ESOPs to service their debt. Superior Bancorp's contributions to the 401(k) plan and ESOPs for the benefit of
the named executive officers are included in the “All Other Compensation” column of the Sum}nary Compensation
Table below. Superior Bancorp terminaled one of its ESOPs on August 31, 2007. Each of lhc named execulive
oificers who participated in the terminated ESOP elected to have his Supericr Bancorp common stock transferred
from the terminated plan directly to the Superior stock fund of the 401k} plan. |

Superior Bancorp also maintains a defined benefit pension plan which it acquired as a result of the merger with
Communily Bancshares, Inc. The pension plan has been frozen since December 31, 2003 sb that no additional
benefits are accruing under the plan. Superior Bancorp is required to make contributions to lhe ptan in an amount
sufficient to satisfy the minimum fuading requirements of the Employee Retirement Income S;cunty Actof 1974,
as amended. Mr. Caughran is the only named executive officer with an accrued benefit under the pension plan. See

“Fension Benefs.”

Perquisites and Other Benefits:

Pursuant to the terms of their employment agreements, Mr. Bailey, Mr. Scoul and Mr. Gardner each receive
certain perquisites or other benefits, including use of an amomobile, club memberships and life insurance in excess
of that provided under the company's group term life insurance plan. The Compensation Commitiee believes thai all
of these benefits are appropriate considering the level of responsibility of these officers. Sele “Summary Com-

pensation Table — All Other Compensation.”
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Tax and Accounting Considerations

The Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993 contains a provision under which a publicly traded
corporation is sometimes precluded from taking a federal income tax deduction for compensation in excess of
$1,000,000 that is paid to the chief executive officer and the four other most highly-compensated executives of a
corporation during its 1ax year. Compensation in excess of $1,000,000 continues to be dcducuh]e if that com-
pensation is “performance based” within the meaning of that term under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue
Code. The Compensation Committec is aware of the potential effects of the Code. The Commmer: has chosen not to
distont its methodology and application of the factors it believes pertinent so as to ensure that all executive
compensation is deductible under Section 162(m). While the Compensaiion Commmcc intends that Superior
Bancorp's compensation plans will meet, to the extent practical, the prerequisites I'gr deductibility under
Section 162(m), if it develops that a portion of the compensation of one or more executive officers is not deductible
under Section 162(m), then the Compensation Commiltee cxpects that Superior B:mlcorp would honor its
obligations to the executive officers under the compensation arrangements approved by the Compensation

Commiliee.

We account for all compensation paid in accordance with generally accepled accon}.mling principles. The

accounling treatment has generally not affected the form of compensation paid to the named executive officers.

Use of Contractual Arrangements

The Compensation Committec considers contractual arrangements to be an effective method of attracting and
retaining the services of executives in critical positions. The terms of the company’s agreements are summarized
under “Employment Agreements” and “Potential Payouts Upon Termination of Employment or Change in Controi
of Superior Bancorp.”

Compensation Committee Report (1) . ‘
|

The Compensation Committec has reviewed and discussed with management the Con‘lpcnsmion Discussion
and Analysis contained in this Proxy Statement. Based upon this review and discussion, the Compensation
Commitiee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be included

in this Proxy Statement.
|

The foregoing repont is submitied by the following directors of Superior Bancorp, compnsmg all of the
members of the Compensauon Committee of the Bourd of Directors as of December 31, 2007

James M. Link, Chairman
James Mailon Kent, Jr,
John C. Metz \

|
1

(1) The information under this caption is not “soliciting material” or malerial “filed” wnh the SEC, except
() as otherwise required by the rules of the SEC or (b) as we may specifically so request or specﬂ‘ cally incorporate
it by reference in a filing with the SEC.
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Summary of Cash and Certain Other Compensation

The following table presents certain information conceming compensation paid or accrued for services rendered

to Superior Bancorp in all capacities during the year ended December 31, 2007, for the named executive officers.

(2)

Summary Compensation Table

Pension
Non-Equity Value and

Change in %
Incentive Nenqualified |

Stock  Option Plan Deferred | All Other
iName and Principal Salary  Bonus Awards Awards Compensation Compensation Compensation Total
Position Held Year _ (5) (8) (), (V] L) {$) LX) ($)
(2. Stanley Bailey. . .. ... 2007 $450.000 - — - $108,000 - $39.350 $597.350
Chairman and CEO 2006 $400.000 - - — $190,000 - $38.185  $618,185
€. Marvin Scott. .. . . . . . 2007 $350,000 - - —  $384000 — | s35058  $469,058
President 006 $300000  — — —  S148000 — | st ssoion
Rick D, Gardner . ... ... 2007  $300,000 - - — $ 72000 — $22,068  §394,068
Chief Operating Officer 2006 $250,000 - - — $120,000 —_ $25.762 $395,762
Mark Tarnakow . . ... ... 2007 $131.539 —  —  $25895 — - $ 8043 5165477
Chief Financial Officer 2006 — - = - - — -—_ —
William Caughran . .. ... 2007 $165000 $215099 —  § 5180 — $3.480(3) 1 $ 5656  $394415
General Counsel 2006 $165,000 - - —_ — $681(3) 1 $I13.678 $179.359
James C. Gossell . . ... .. 2007 $146,239 — —  $983 $ 9700 - $ 7958  §173,782
Finance Director — 2006 $140.770 — - 33450 $ 21.000 - $10,613 $175.833
Extcrnal Reporting(4) i
(1) Amounts in this column are the amounts recognized by Superior Bancorp in its financial statements as expense

for the year shown in connection with outstanding stock options granted during that 'ycar Or prior years.
Mr. Tamakow, Mr. Caughran, and Mr. Gossett were granted options to purchase 50 000, 10,000, and
3,000 shares, respectively, of Superior Bancorp common stock in 2007. Mr. Gosselt was granted oplions o
purchase 5,000 shares of Superior Bancorp common stock in 2006. See “Grant of PlaniLaned Awards.”

Represents the following expenses paid or reimbursed by Superior Bancorp for executive officers in 2007:
Mr. Bailey — country club expenses of $3,765; automobile expenses of $15,250; life indurance premiums of
$3,016; reimbursement of $325 related to the payment of 1axes, company contributions of ap'proxirmttely $1L,114
to the company’s defined contribution retirement plans, and 5,880 in reimbursement of expenses in connection
with the company's use of an airplane owned by an entity controlled by Mr. Bailey: Mr. Scott — country club
expenses of $5,736; automobile expenses of $14,750; life insurance premiums of $2,773; rcl'rnbursemem of 3685
related to the payment of taxes, and company contributions of approximately $11.114 10 lhtI: company's defined
contribution retirement plans ; Mr. Gardner — automobile expenses of $9,750; life insurance premiums of
$1,025; reimbursement of $179 related to the payment of taxes; and company conmbuuom of approximately
$11,114 to the company's defined contribution retirement plans; Mr. Tarnakow — automobite expenses of $3,923
and company contributions of $4,120 o the company's defined contribution retirement plale Mr. Caughran —
company contributions of approximately $5,656 to the company’s defined contribution r?tiremem plans; and
Mr. Gossett — company contributions of approximately $7,958 to the company’s defined contribution retirement
plans. Amounts shown as company contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are estimates since plan
allocations for 2007 have not been finalized. Represents the following expenses paid or re:r'nbursed by Superior
Bancorp for executive officers in 2006: Mr. Bailey — country club expenses of $1,500; au(omoblle expenses of
$9,250; life insurance premiums of $2,262; reimbursement of $311 related to the paymenl of taxes, company
contributions of $18,182 to the company’s defined contribution retirement plans, and $6,680 i in reimbursement of
expenses in conneclion with the company’s use of an airplane owned by an entity contmlled by Mr. Bailey;
Mr. Scott — country club expenses of $5,088; automobile expenses of $14,750; life msullrance premiums of
$2,773; relocation expenses of $10,145; reimbursement of $8,157 related to the payment of taxes, and company
contributions of $17.064 to the company’s defined contribution retirement plans ; M. G.uldner— automobile
expenses of $9,250; life insurance premiums of $1,025; reimbursement of $205 related to lhle payment of laxes;

and company contributions of $15,282 1o the company’s defined contribution retirement plans; Mr. Caughran —
automobile expenses of $5,539 and company contributions of $8,139 to the company’s defined contribution
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retirement plans; and Mr. Gossett — company contnibutions of $10,613 to the company’s defined contribution
retiremnent plans.

(3) Represents the net change in the actuarial value of Mr. Caughran’s accumulated benefit under the Community
Bancshares, Inc. Revised Pension Plan for the years indicated.

(4) Mr. Gossett served as the principal financial officer of Superior Bancorp through Ma‘y 9, 2007.
L
!

[
The following table contains information concerning compensation granted to the ndmed executive officers

during 2007 pursuant o incentive compensation plans of Superior Bancorp,

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

Al Other All Other

. Stock Awzrds: Option ‘Awands:
Estimated Futore Payouts Under . Estimated Futore Payouts Number of  Numberaf  Exercise or Grast Date

Non-Fquity Incentive Under Equify Incentive Plan o | ¥

Plan Avards Avards Yoo Uniching  of Optem el Stk

ot Thesbold  Taget  Madmom Threbod Target Mavimom  Usiss Options Amards  und Optioo

Name Date  (5) A1) ) W my ® m i) ($58)  Awards
C. Stanley Bailey . ... 1/23/07 N/A  $225000 N/A —_ R — —_ il — —_
C. Marvin Scotl . . . . . 112307 NIA  $175000 N/A - - - _ L — —_
Rick D. Gardner . . .. . 1723/07 N/A  $150000 N/A - _— - _ L _ —
Mark Tamakow . . ... 43007 N/A S 80000 NA @ — —_ = — A1 _ —
M  — — — NA 50000 NIA @ — L $9.99 $170.843

William Caughran. . .. /2307 N/A § 66000 NA  — - - - _:_ - _
nwr  — —  — N/A 10000 N/A - - $9.99 § 34,169

James C. Gossent . ... /23/07 N/A $ 21,116 N/A — —_ = — — — —_
Ak FA— — — N/A 3000 NA — —: $9.99 $ 10,251

{1y Amounts represent target awards under the Management Incentive Compensation Plan, which equal a specified
percentage of base salary. The plan does not have threshold or maximum amounts. Plan av!.vards of upto 125% of
target could be paid for extraordinary performance and amounts significantly below target could be awarded for
less than adequate performance. Actual cash payments made in 2008 for 2007 are shown in the summary
compensation table and are below the targets. Awards of restricted stock made in 2008 i |n lieu of cash payments

and a discussion of performance targets are disclosed in the Compensation DISCUSSIOT and Analysis above.

(2) The number of shares of Superior Bancorp common stock which may be acquired pursuant to the exercise of
stock options granted during 2007.

Employment Agreements

C. Sianlev Bailey. Mr. Bailey and Superior Bancorp have entered inte an Employm'em Agreement, dated
January 24, 2005. under which Superior Bancorp has agreed to employ Mr. Bailey as Chnef Executive Officer of
Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank for a term originally scheduled 1o expire January 31, 2008 -The Employment
Agreement automatically renews for successive one-year extensions on each anniversary of the commencement of
the term unless either party gives the other 30 days’ prior written notice of nonrenewal. Undcr the Employment
Agreement, Mr. Bailey is entitled to an initial base salary at the annual rate of $400,000 per year and to an annual
target bonus of 50% of his base salary, subject to the achievement of agreed-upon performan(l:e goals, Mr. Bailey is
also entitled to participate in other bonus or long-term incentive plans applicable. to similml'ly situated executive
officers, and to participate in such insurance, medical and other employee benefit plans as may be provided to such
executive officers. Superior Bancorp is also required to provide Mr. Bailey with certain other benefits, including a
serm life insurance policy in the amount of at least $1 million, an automobile and customary automobile-related
lrenefits, and initiation fees, dues and assessments for approved club memberships, and to ;'Jay certain relocation
cxpenses. The agreement restricts Mr. Bailey's ability to engage in various activities compelitive with Superior

. - . . |
Bancorp’s business during the terms of his employment and for one year after Mr. Bailey ceases o be employed by
uperior Bancorp. The agreement oblipates Superior Bancorp to appoint Mr. Bailey to the Board of Directors of
Superior Bancorp, and further provides that Mr. Bailey will be Chairman of the Board.
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C. Marvin Scoit and Rick D. Gardner. M. Scott and Mr. Gardner have entered into employment agreements
with Superior Bancorp and the Bank providing for terms substantially identical to those described above with
respect to Mr. Bailey, except that (a) Mr. Scott’s initial annual base salary is $300,000 nnd‘Mr Gardner’s initial
annual base salary is $250,000; (b} Superior Bancorp is obligated to provide term life i msurance policies to Mr. Scont
in the amount of $750,000 and to Mr. Gardner in the amount of $600,000; and (c) each of Mr. Scolt and Mr. Gardner
was required to be appointed as a director of Superior Bancorp effective on or before December 31, 2005, if then
permitted by the NASDAQ Stock Market Marketplace Rules, or, if not so permitted on or bcfore December 31,
1005, then as soon thereafter as is permitted by the NASDAQ Stock Market Marketplace Rulels Both Mr. Scott and
Mr. Gardner were elected as directors at the 2005 Annual Meeting of Siockholders and continue to serve in such
capacity. i

Stock Option Granis 10 Messrs. Bailey, Scoit and Gardner.  Under their respective employment agreements,
Superior Bancorp is obligated 1o grant, and has granted as of January 24, 2005, options to acquurc 711,970 shares of
common stock to Mr. Bailey, 355,985 shares to Mr. Scott, and 355,985 shares (o Mr. Gardner each @t an exercise

price of $8.17 per share, the market price on the date of grant. Such options have a ten-year term. Such options were
criginally scheduled 1o vest and become exercisable as follows: !

+ 50% on April 24, 2005; ‘

* 20% on the later of (x) the date on which the average closing price per share of Supen!or Bancorp common
stock over a 15-consecutive-trading-day period (the “Market Value price”) is at least $10 but less than $12,
and (y) June 29, 2005 (the “Alternate Vesting Date™);

* |5% on the later of (x) the date on which the Market Value price is at least $12 but less ihm $14, and (y) the
Altermate Vesting Datc; and

* 15% on the later of (x) the date on which the Market Value price is at least 314, and (y) tPc Aliernate Vesting
Date.

|
» To the extent not otherwise vested, on January 24, 2010. ‘I

The initial 70% of such grants vested as provided above. The remaining 30% of suchl grants were vested
effective November 15, 2005, as a result of the determination by the Compensation Commmee of the Board of
Directors to vest all outstanding but unvested stock option-grants in full as of such date. In conmderauon of such
accelerated vesting, Messrs. Bailey, Scott and Gardner agreed to forgo any bonuses for which lhcy would otherwise
hive been entitled with respect to 2005, \

Mark A, Tarnakow, William H. Caughran and James C. Gossetr.  Superior Bancorp and each of Mr. Tarnakow,
Mr. Caughran, and Mr. Gossett are parties to Change in Control Agreements under which each mdwndual would be
ertitled to certain benefits in the event that, following a Change in Control (as defined) of Superlor Bancorp, the
individual’s employment is terminated involuntarily without Cause (as defined) or voluntarily by the individual
afier a material diminution in the individual's compensation, authorily or duties or a mau‘l:rial change in the
geographic location at which the individual must perform services. The benefits to which each ilndividual would be
entitled include a lump sum payment of a specified muliiple of the individual’s base satary and target bonus,
inmediate vesting of all unvested amounts under benefit plans, and continued participation in Supenor Bancorp’s
welfare benefit plans for certain time periods. The multiple of salary and bonus payable to each mdmdual is 2.99 for

Mr. Tamakow, 1.5 for Mr. Caughran and 1.0 for Mr. Gossett. |

In connection with the acquisition of Community Bancshares, Inc., Superior Bank cnlcrcd into an agreement
with Mr. Caughran dated August 31, 2006 which provides that Mr. Caughran will serve as the pcncml Counse! of
Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank. In accordance with the terms of the agrecement, Mr. Caughran was paid a

bonus of $215,099 in November 2007. No other benefits are due to Mr. Caughran pursuant lb that agreement.

The provisions of each of these agreements relating to termination of the individual'ts employment are
discussed below under the caption “Potential Payouts Upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control of
Superior Bancorp.”
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Year End 2007.

The following table provides information with respect to equily awards held by the named executive officers at
December 31, 2007.

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Option Awards Stock Awards
Equil
| ' lng:nt;{e
I Plan
t Awards:
| Equity Market or
| Incentive  Payout

Fquity 1 Pan Volue

Incentive Awards: of
Plan | Markel Number of Unezrmed
Awgrds: Number Vatue of Unearned  Shares,
Number of Number of  Number of of Shares Sharesor Shares,  Unjts or
Securities  Securities  Securities or Units Unitsof Unitsor  Other
Underlying Underlying  Underlying of Stock  ‘Stock Other Rights
Unexercised  Unexercised  Unexercised  Option That | That Rights  That Have

Options (#) Options (#)  Unearned Exerclse  Option  Have Not Have Not That Have Not
Exerchable Unexercisable  Options Price Expirntion Vested  Vested Not Vested  Vested

Name (%) h [0} (% Date [0} | W) (3}
C. Stanley Bailey . .............. 711,970 — - § 817 2015 - _ _— -
CMarvinSeolt ................ 355.985 - - $ 817 2015 — — — —
RickD.Gardner . .. ............. 355,985 - — $ 817 2015 — — —_ —_
Mark Tarnakow . ............... - 50,000(1) — 3999 2017 - — — -
William Caughran. . .. .. ......... — 10,000(1) — $999 2017 — — — —
James C. Gossett . .. ... ......... -— 30001 —_ $99 2017 — | — — —
— 5,000(1) — $10.5¢ 2016 - — - -

5.000 _ — 51068 2015 - — — —_

15.000 — -_ $625 2014 — - _ —_

2.500 — — $ 767 2012 - — — —

7.500 — — $ 665 2001 — - - -

2.500 - - $ 600 2010 — — — —

(1) These options will vest upon the earlier of five years from the date of grant or {a) SO%J vesling upon Superior
Bancorp common stock reaching a per share marke1 value price of $12.00 and (b) 50% vesting upon Superior
Bancorp common stock reaching a per share market value price of $14.00. |

Options Exercises and Vesting of Stock.

During 2007, no named executive officer exercised stock options or became vested iln any restricted stock.
|
Pension Benefits.

The following table provides information with respect to retirernent benefits of the namcd executive officers
pursuant to defined benefit plans and related supplemental executive retirement plans mmntalm.d by Superior
Bancorp.

Pension Benefits

Number of Present Value

Years of Credited  of Accurnulated  Payments During

Service Beneflt Last Fiscal Year
Name Plan Name (#) ($) ($)
C. Stanley Bailey ....... — — _l‘. —
C. Marvin Scott ........ —_ —_ _ —
Rick D. Gardner ..., . ... —_ — _.T —_
Mark Tamakow....... V. —_ —_ _.T —_—
William Caughran....... Community Banegshares, 5(1) $48.718(2) —

Inc. Revised Pension Plan
James C, Gossett........ — — —

|

i
5
|
|




(13 Mr. Caughran’s years of credited service are less than his actual years of service because the Community

Bancshares, Inc. Revised Pension Plan was frozen as of December 31, 2003 and accru‘al of credited service
ceased at that time.

(2) The key assumplions used in determining the present value of Mr. Caughran’s benefit are thc same assumptions
used to calculate the plan’s liabilities as disclosed in Note 20 to the consolidated ﬁnancml statements of
Superior Bancorp and its subsidiaries contained in Superior Bancorp’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2007,

Superior Bancorp became the sponsar of the Community Bancshares, Inc. Revised Pension Plan upon its
inerger with Community Bancshares in November 2006. The plan was frozen as of December 31, 2003 such that no
new participants may enter the plan and no current participants may accrue any additional beneﬁls under the plan.

"The amount of the retirement benefit for a participant is determined by the length of the pamapant s credited
service under the plan and his average monthly earnings for the five highest compensated, consecuuve calendar
vears of the participant’s final ten consecutive calendar years of employment. Compensation ¢ covered by the plan is
total compensation, including bonuses, overtime or other forms of extrzordinary compcnsam:m. subject to the
limitation on compensation imposed by Section 401(a)(17) of the Intemal Revenue C(lade The amount of
compensation taken into account in determining a participant’s retirement benefits was also frozen as of
December 31, 2003.

Nonqualified Deferred Compensation

None of the named executive officers participate in any deferred compensation plans,

Potential Payouts Upon Termination of Employment or Change in Control of Superiolr Bancorp

As discussed above under the caption “Employment Agreements,” each of Mr. Ban!ey, Mr. Scott and
Mr. Gardner are parties 10 an employment agreement with Superior Bancorp, and each of Mr. Tamakow,
Mr. Caughran and Mr. Gosselt is a party to a change in control agreement with Superior Bfncorp

Messrs. Bailey, Scott and Gardner.  1f the employment of any of Mr. Bailey, Mr. Scc}n or Mr. Gardner is
terminated other than for Cause (as defined) or as a result of his death or disability, or if any such executive
tarminates the agreement as a result of certain adverse changes in his functions, duties or :responsibilitics or of
another material breach by Superior Bancorp of its obligations, the executive is entitled to continued compensation
at the then-current rate (including bonus compensation) for the then-remaining term of the agreement, provided that
l'1e executive may elect to receive such payment in a lump sum discounted to present value using a 6% discount rate,
and to the continuation of other benefits during such remaining term. If the executive's employment is terminated as
a result of his disability, he is entitled to continued compensation at his then-current ra{te (including bonus
compensation) and the continuaticn of other benefits for one year. If the executive’s employmcm by Superior
Eiancorp is terminated within two years following a Change in Control (as defined), other thlan for Cause or as a
rzsult of his death, disability or retirement, or if the executive terminates such employment following the occurrence
of specified events within two years after a Change in Control, the executive will be entitled to receive a lump sum
payment equal to three times the sum of (i) his then-current base salary plus (ii) the target bonus he would have been
entitled to receive, and he will be entitled to receive other benefits specified in the agreement. Irn addition, he will be
entitled to a gross-up payment equal to the amount of any excise taxes imposed upon him as a result of such
payments upon termination following a Change in Control.

If the employment of Mr. Bailey, Mr. Scott and Mr. Gardner had terminated as of Dccembcr 31, 2007, other
than for Cause, death or disability or following a Change in Control, Superior Bancorp would have been obligated to
make payments of $1,081,031 to Mr. Bailey; $840,784 to Mr. Scou; and $720,672 to Mr. Gardner, assuming each
individual elected to be paid in a lump sum discounted to present value. Superior Bancorp would also be obligated
to continue the executive’s participation in all benefit programs through January 24, 2010 at an approximate cost of
$16,752 for Mr. Bailey, $16,842 for Mr. Scott, and $14,462 for Mr. Gardner and to transfer to e'ach executive title to
the company automobile assigned to the executive at an approximate cost of $73,889 for Mr, Bailey, $21,494 for
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Mr. Scott, and $16,673 for Mr. Gardner. The costs for continued benefits assume that there are no premium increases
under the company’s insurance programs prior to January 24, 2010,

if the employment of Messrs. Bailey, Scott and Gardner had terminated as of December 31, 2007 following a
Change in Control, Superior Bancorp or its successor would have been obligated 1o make payments of the following
amounls, including gross-up payments: $2,823,736 to Mr. Bailey; $2,180,375 to Mr. Scott and $1,873.706 to
Mr., Gardner. Superior Bancorp or its successor would also be obligated until December 31 2010 to provide each
executive with life insurance, medical insurance, dental insurance and accident and dlsablluy insurance substan-
tially equivalent to whai executive received prior to the termination of his employment at an approximate cost of
$25,128 for Mr. Bailey, $25,263 for Mr. Scott and $21,693 for Mr. Gardner and 1o transfer to each executive title to
the company aulomobile assigned to the executive at an approximate cost of $73,889 for Mr Bailey, $21,494 for
Mr. Scott, and $16,673 for Mr. Gardner. The costs for continued benefits assume that there are no premium increases
under the company’s insurance programs prior to December 31, 2010.

Mussrs. Tamakow, Caughran, and Gossett.  Pursuant to the terms of their Change in Control Agreemenis,
Mr. Tarnakow, Mr. Caughran, and Mr. Gossett would each be entitled to certain benefits in the event that, following
a Change in Control (as defined) of Superior Bancorp. the individual’s employment is terminated involuntarily
without Cause (as defined) or voluntarily by the individual after a material dlmmuuon in the individual’s
compensation, authority or duties or a material change in the geographic location at which the individual must
perform services. The benefits to which each individual would be entitled include a lun"np sum payment of a
specifted multiple of the individual’s base salary and target bonus, immediate vesting of all unvesied amoumnts under
benefit plans, and continued participation in Superior Bancorp’s welfare benefit plans for cerlam time periods. The
multiple of salary and bonus payable to each individual is 2.99 for Mr. Tarnakow, 1.5 for Mr Caughran and 1.0 for

Mr. Gossett.

If the employment of Messrs. Tamakow, Caughran and Gossett had terminated as of December 31, 2007
following a Change in Control, Superior Bancorp or its successor would have been obhgattd to pay Mr. Tarnakow
$837,200, Mr. Caughran $346,500, and Mr. Gossett $168,232. In addition, Messrs. Tamakow Caughran and
Gossett would have become vested in options to purchase 50,000, 10,000 and 3,000 shares, reSpecch[y, of Superior
Bancorp common stock which were granted in 2007, and Mr. Gossett would have becom'e vested in options to
purchase an additional 5,000 shares of Superior Bancorp common stock which were gramed in 2006. The expense
to Superior Bancorp resulting from the vesting of these options as of December 31, 2007 would have been $139,823
for Mr. Tarnakow, $27,964 for Mr. Caughran, and $14.609 for Mr. Gossett. Superior Bancorp would also incur the
following expenses in connection with continuing cenain welfare insurance benefits for Mr Tamakow for three
years, for Mr. Caughran for 18 months, and for Mr. Gossett for one year: $18,348, §1,138, and $5,776, respectively.
The costs for continued welfare insurance benefits assume that there are no premium increases under the company’s
insurance programs during these time periods.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes information as of December 31, 2007, relating to our, equity compensation
2lans pursuant to which grants of options, restricted stock units or other rights to acquire shares may be granted in
the future. -

Number of Shares
' Remaining Available for
Number of Securities Future Issuance Under
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Equity Compensation
Exercise of Exercise Price of Pilans (Excluding
OQutstanding Options,  OQutstanding Options, Securities Reflected in
Ptan Category . . Warrants and Rights ~ Warrants and Rights Column ()
(a) (b) ()
Equity Compensation Plans Approved by
Security Holders(1) . .. .............. 1,466,096 $8.21 136,730
liquity Compensation Plans not Approved
by Security Holders{2). ... ........... 1,742,097 $8.32 34.048
Total. ... ... e 3,208,193 $8.27 170,778
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/1) Excludes 206,875 shares of restricted stock granted under the Third Amended and Restated 1998 Stock
Incentive Plan of The Banc Corporation.

'2) Includes options covering (a) 1,740,937 shares issued to Messrs. Bailey, Scott and Gardner and three other
management employees in connection with their employment agreements, (b) 34,048 shares reserved for
issuance to other new management hires, and (c) 1,160 shares authorized and issued undelr the Commerce Bank
of Alabama Stock Option Plan, which we assumed in the merger with Commerce Bank of Alabama in

November 1998, We do not intend o grant any additional options under this plan.

Third Amended and Restared 1998 Stock Incentive Plan.  The objectives of the Third Amended and Restated
1998 Stock Incentive Plan of The Banc Corporation are to further our growth and devclopmém by (i} encouvraging
selected participants who contribute or are expected to contribute materially to our suecess (o obtain shares of our
common stock and to encourage them o promote our best interests and (i} affording us 1:1 means of attracting
qualified personnel. The plan authorizes the grant of incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options and other
awards, including stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and performance shares. The plan covers
2,500,000 shares of our common stock. As of December 31, 2007, the Compensation Committee has granted
options to purchase 1,466,096 shares of our common stock which remain outstanding and restricted stock awards
covering 162,704 shares of our common stock which remain outstanding. Those shares may b'e, in whole orin part,
authorized but unissucd shares or issued shares that we have reacquired.

Our Compensation Commitiee, which administers the Third Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive
“lan, may grant options or other awards to employees, officers, directors, consultants, |agents, independent
contractors and other persons who contributed or are expected to contribute materially to our success. The
(Compensation Committee, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors and the prov:s:ons of the plan, has full
power to determine the types of awards to be granted, to select the individuals to whom awards w1ll be granted, to fix
the number of shares that each optionee may purchase, to set the terms and conditions of each option, and to
(letermine all other matiers relating to the plan.

The Commerce Bunk of Alabama Stock Incentive Compensaiion Plan. 'We assumed lhe Commerce Bank of
Alabama Incentive Compensation Plan in our acquisition of Commerce Bank of Alabama orll November 6, 1998,
"This plan authorized the grant of incentive and nongualified options to purchase commoan stock of Superior
Bancorp. As of December 31, 2007, there were options oulstanding under this plan to purchasc 1,160 shares of
common stock at a price of $6.24 per share. We have not granted and do not intend to grant alny additional options
under this plan.

IManagement Matters

There are no arrangements or understandings known to us between any of our direciors, nominees for director
or executive officers and any other person pursuant to which any such person was oris tobe nominated or elected as
z director or an executive officer except as otherwise disclosed herein. The employment agree:mcms for Mr. Bailey,
tr. Scout and Mr. Gardner provide that they will be nominated to serve as directors of Superior Bancorp.

Compensation Commitiee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee comprises Messrs, Link, Kent and Metz. None of tihc members of the
Compensation Committee is a former or current officer or employee of Superior Bancorp or any of its subsidiaries.

Certain Transactions and Relationships

Superior Bancorp has a written policy concerning transactions with its directors and their family members. The
policy provides that neither Superior Bancorp nor its subsidiaries will make payments to, or for the benefit of, any
ron-employee director or his family members totaling more than $60,000 per year in direct compensation, other

than board or committee fees and payments to family members who are non-executive employees of Superior
Hancorp or its subsidiaries. The policy also provides that Superior Bancorp will meet or cxceed the requirements of
tie NASDAQ Stock Market with respect to director independence. The policy does not prohibit business
r:lationships between Superior Bancorp or its subsidiaries and business entities affiliated with its directors excepl
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to the extent that such relationships would cause less than a majority of Superior Bancorp’s directors to be
independent under NASDAQ rules.

Superior Bancorp and Superior Bank have entered into transactions with certain ]direclors or officers of
Superior Bancorp or their affiliates. Such transactions were made in the ordinary course of blusincss on substantially
the same terms and conditions, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the same time for
comparable transactions with other customers, and did not, in the opinion of management in:volve more than normal

credit risk or present other unfavorable features. |

The Mailon Kent Insurance Agency received commissions of approximaiely $18:5.328 from the sale of
insurance to Superior Bancorp during 2007. James Mailon Kent, Jr., a director of Superior Bancorp, is the owner of
the Mailon Kent Insurance Agency.

On July 24, 2007, Superior Bank sold a branch office building in Huntsville, AIabar'na to a limited liability
company of which Peter L. Lowe, a director of Superior Bancorp, is a member, for $3,000, 000 The limited liability
company then leased the building back to Superior Bank. The initial term of the lease is 14 years and the lease may
be renewed, at Superior Bank's option, for three additional terms of five years each. The | amount of the monthly
lease payments to be made by Superior Bank is $19,500 for the first year of the lease and i increases annually until it
reaches $26,881 per month in year 14. Rent for the renewal terms is to be determined based on appraisals of the
property. *
~ On Janvary 30, 2008, Superior Bank entered into agreements with a limited llablhly company, of which
Mr. Lowe is a member, pursuant to which the limited liability company purchased on January 31, 2008 office
buildings tocated in Albenville and Athens, Alabama for a total of $4,250,000. The llmtte,dI liability company then
leased the buildings back to Superior Bank. The initial term of each lease is 13 years, and each lease may be
renewed. at Superior Bank's option, for two additional terms of five years each. The amou'm of the monthly lease
payments to be made by Superior Bank in the first year is $13,240 for the Albertville ofﬁcc and $14,208 for the
Athens office. These amounts increase annually until they reach $17,393 for the Albertvillé office and $18,666 for
the Athens office in year 13. Rent for the renewal terms is to be determined based on appraisals of the properties.

Superior Bank paid these limited hability companies a total of $97,500 in rent durirlg 2007.

Superior Bancorp believes that the foregoing transactions were made on terms and conditions reflective of
arms’ length transactions.
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PROPOSAL NUMBER TWO
AMENDMENT OF CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
TO EFFECT A REVERSE STOCK SPLIT AND
DECREASE AUTHORIZED SHARES OF COMMON STOCK

Overview

On March 6, 2008, Superior Bancorp’s Board of Directors approved, subject to approval by our stockholders, a
proposed amendment (the “Proposed Amendment”) to Superior Bancorp’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation
effecting a |-for-4 reverse split of its issued and outstanding shares ol common stock (“r'evcrse stock split” or
“reverse split”) and decreasing the number of its authorized shares of common stock! from 60,000,000 to
15,000.000. The form of the Proposed Amendment is attached to this Proxy Statement as lAnnex A. Contingenl
on approval of this proposal by the requisite vote of the stockholders and the filing of the Prop(i.)sed Amendment with
the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware, the 1-for-4 reverse stock split and reduction of authorized shares

would be effective in accordance with the terms of the Proposed Amendment,

Reasons for the Proposed 1-for-4 Reverse Stock Split

The number of outstanding shares of Superior Bancorp common stock has increased as a result of the
acquisitions completed in 2006 and 2007. As of March 6, 2008, there were approximately}‘io.'zl 1,230 shares of
Superior Bancorp common stock issued and outstanding. This number of shares is significantly higher than the
aumber of issued and outstanding shares of those financial institutions that Superior considers 10 be its peer banks.
The number of outstanding shares affects market value per share, bock value per share, tangible book value per
share, and earnings per share. Reducing the number of outsianding shares of Superior Bancorp (0 an amount more
consistent with the number of outstanding shares of our peer banks should: E

« facilitate easier comparison of Superior Bancorp to its peer banks with respect to, those measurements
affected by the number of outstanding shares;

» broaden the pool of investors that are interested in investing in Superior Bancorp by attracting new investors
who would prefer not to invest in shares that trade at single-digit share prices;

= make our common stock a more attractive investment to institutional investors;

- reduce the relatively high transaction costs and commissions incurred by our slcx‘:kholders due to our
currently high number of shares outstanding and correspondingly relatively low per share trading price; and

» illustrate more effectively the impact of our operational effors by enhancing the visibility of any changes to
our reporied eamings per share. :

In evaluating whether or not to authorize the Proposed Amendment, in addition to the corlsideralions described
1bove, the Board of Directors also took into account various ncgative factors associated with a reverse stock split.
The factors include: the negative perception of reverse stock splits held by some jnvestors, :m'alysts and other stock
market participants; the fact that the stock price of some companies that have effected re\:'erse stock splits has
subsequently declined back to pre-reverse stock split levels; the adverse effect on liquidity thatl might be caused by a
reduced number of shares outstanding; and the costs associated with implementing a reverse stock split. Also, other
factors such as our financial results, market conditions and the market perception of our business may adversely
affect the market price of our common stock. As a result, there can be no assurance that the Iprio::e of cur common
stock would be maintained at the per share price in effect immediately following the effective time of the reverse
stock split.

Stockholders should recognize that if a reverse stock splil is effected, they will own a fewer number of shares
than they currently own {a number equal to the number of shares owned immediately prior 1o the reverse stock split
divided by four — subject to a cash payment in lieu of fractional shares). While we expect %hat the reverse stock
split will result in an increase in the per share price of our common stock, the reverse stock split may not increase the
per share price of our common stock in proportion to the reduction in the aumber of shares of common stock
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outstanding or result in a permanent increase in the per share price (which depends on marlly factors, including our
performance, prospects and other factors that may be unrelated to the number of shares outstanding).

If a reverse stock split is effected and the per share price of our common stock declines, the percentage decline
as an absolute number and as a percentage of our overall market capitalization may be greater than would occur in
the absence of a reverse stock split. Furthermore, the liquidity of our common stock could be adversely affected by
the reduced number of shares that would be outstanding after the reverse stock split. In addition, the reverse stock
split will likely increase the number of stockholders who own odd lots (less than 100 shm:s)| Stockholders who hold
odd lots typically will experience an increase in the cost of sefling their shares, as well as p?ssmle greater difficulty
in effecting such sales. Accordingly, a reverse stock split may not achieve the desired results that have been outlined
above.

Procedure for Effecting Proposed Amendment and Exchange of Stock Certificates

If our stockholders approve the Proposed Amendment, and the Board of Directors deterrmm.q that a reverse
stock split, at a ratio of 1-for-4, continues to be in the best interests of Superior Bancorp alnd its stockholders, the
Board will file the Proposed Amendment reflecting the reverse split and the reduction of lhlc authorized number of
shares of our common stock with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. The reverse stock split and the
reduction of the authorized number of shares of our common stock will become effective as of 11:59 p.m., Eastern
Time, an the date of filing, which time will be referred to as the “effective lime.”” We anlICIpal‘C that the effective time
will be promptly following the Annual Meeting. Except as described below under “Cash Payment in Licu of
Fractional Shares,” at the effective ime each four shares of common stock issued and oulsmn'ding immediately prior
to the effective time will, automatically and without any further action on the part of our s(otlzkholders. be combined
inio and become one share of common stock. Subject 1o the cash payment in lieu of fracluonal shares described
below, each certificate which, immediately prior to the effective time represented pre-reverse stock split shares, will
be deemed for all corporate purposes o evidence ownership of post-reverse stock split shares, The number of
authorized shares of our common stock will be decreased from 60 million shares to 15 mllllon shares. Additionally,
the number of shares of common stock subject to outstanding options issued by Superior Bancorp will be reduced

by a facior of four and the respective exercise prices will be increased by a factor of four.

No {ractional shares of common stock will be issued by Superior Bancorp in connection with the reverse stock
split, Holders of comman stock who would otherwise receive a fractional share of Superior Bancorp common stock
pursvant to the reverse stock split will receive cash in lieu of the fractional share as expialined more fully below
under “Cash Payment in Lieu of Fractional Shares.” The cash payments represent merely a m{echaniqal rounding off
of the fractional shares that result from the reverse stock split and are not separately bargaiincd -for consideration.
Such cash payments will reduce the number of post-split stockholders of record o the extent there are stockholders
of record presently holding fewer than four shares at the effective time of the Proposed Amendment. Our common
stock is currently registered under Section 12(b) of the Securities Exchange Actof 1934, As ‘[a result, we are subject
to the periodic reporting and other requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The proposed reverse stock

split would not affect the registration of our common stock under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Superior Bancorp's transfer agent, Registrar and Transfer Company, will act as exchange agent for purposes of
implementing the exchange of stock certificates, and is referred o as the “exchange agent. "'As soon as practicable
after the effective time, a letter of transmittal will be sent to stockholders of record as of the effective time for
purposes of surrendering to the exchange agent certificates representing pre-reverse stock split shares in exchange
for centificales representing post-reverse stock split shares in accordance with the procedures set forth in the letter of
transmitial. No new certificates will be issued to a stockholder until such stockholder |has surrendered such
stockholder's outstanding certificate(s), together with the properly completed and executed letter of transmitial, to
the exchange agent. From and afier the effective time, any cenificates formerly rcpreseminglpre reverse stock split
shares which are submitted for transfer, whether pursuant to a sale, other disposition or otherwise, will be exchanged
for cenificates representing posi-reverse stock split shares, STOCKHOLDERS SHOULD NOT DESTROYANY
STOCK CERTIFICATES AND SHOULD NOT SUBMIT ANY CERTIFICATES UNTIL REQUESTED TO

DO SO.
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Even if the stockholders approve the Proposed Amendment, we reserve the right not to effect the reverse stock
split and decrease in the number of authorized shares of our common stock if in the opinion of the Board of
Directors it would not be in the best interests of Superior Bancorp and its stockholders.

No Appraisal Rights

Because the reverse stock split will apply to all issued and outstanding shares of common stock and
outstanding rights 1o purchase common stock or to convert other securities into common stock, the proposed
reverse stock split will not alter the relative rights and preferences of existing stockholders. The par value of
Superior Bancorp’s common stock will remain unchanged at $0.001 per share. !

If a reverse stock split is approved by the requisite vote of the stockholders, stockholders have no right under
Delaware law or Superior Bancorp’s Restated Centificate of Incorporation or By-Laws to dissent from a reverse
stock split or to dissem from the payment of cash in lieu of issuing fractional shares.

Cash Payment in Lieu of Fractional Shares

if the proposed reverse stock split is effecied, in lieu of any fractional shares to which a holder of common
stock would otherwise be entitled as a result of such reverse stock split, such holder will receiv? cash equal to the fair
value of such holder's fractional share of common stock as soon as practicable after the effective time of the reverse
split. Fair value of a fractional share of common stock will be determined by multiplying the fractional share by the
average of the closing trading prices of the common stock (as adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split) during
segular trading hours for the five urading days immediately preceding the effective time of the reverse stock split.

Federal Income Tax Consequences

The following description of the material federal income tax consequences of a reverse slock split is based on
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), applicable Treasury Regulattons promulgated
Ihereunder judicial authority and current administrative rulings and practices as in effect on the date of this Proxy
Statement. Changes to the laws could alter the tax consequences described below, possibly with retroactive effect.
superior Bancorp has not sought and will not seek an opinion of counsel or a ruling from the Intemal Revenue
Service regarding the federal income tax consequences of a reverse stock split, This disc‘ussion is for general
information only and does not discuss the tax consequences which may apply to special classes of 1axpayers (e.g.,
non-resident aliens, broker/dealers or insurance companies). The state and local tax conscquences of areverse stock
split may vary significantly as to each stockholder, depending upon the jurisdiction in whlch such stockholder
resides. Stockholders are urged 10 consult their own tax advisors to determine the particuilar consequences to them.

In general, the federa) income tax consequences of a reverse stock split will vary|among stockholders
depending upon whether they receive cash for fractional shares, or solely a reduced number of shares of common
stock in exchange for their old shares of common stock, or both. Superior Bancorp believes that because a reverse
stock split would nat be part of a plan to increase periedically a stockholder’s propomonate interest in the
company’s assets or eamings and profits, the reverse stock split would likely have the fo]lowmg federal income tax
cffects.

A stackholder who receives solely a reduced number of shares of common stock would not recognize gain or
loss. In the aggregate, such a stockholder’s basis in the reduced number of shares of common stock would egual the
stockholder’s basis in its old shares of common stock,

A stockholder who receives cash in lieu of a fractional share as a result of the reverse stock split would
generally be treated as having received the payment as a distribution in redemption of Lhe fractional share, as
provided in Section 302(a) of the Code, which distribution would be taxed as either a d1smbuuon under Section 301

of the Code or an exchange to such stockholder. depending on that stockholder's particular facts and circumstances.
Generally, a stockholder receiving such a payment should recognize gain or loss equal to tpe difference, if any,
tetween the amount of cash received and the stockholder’s basis in the fractiona! share. In the aggregate, such a
stockholder’s basis in the reduced number of shares of common stock will equal the stockhalder’s basis in its old
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shares of common stock decreased by ithe basis allocated to the fractional share for which such stockholder is
entitled to receive cash.

The Company would not recognize any gain or loss as a result of a reverse stock split.

Decrease in Authorized Common Stock

In the event that the |-Tor-4 reverse stock split is approved and implemented, ﬂlle Board of Direclors
recommends a reduction in the number of authorized shares of Superior Bancorp common stock from 60 million
to 15 million. The Board of Directors believes it is in the best interesis of Superior Bancorp to have a sufficient
number of shares available, if needed, for issuance in connection with possible future transactions approved by the
Board of Directors without the necessity for a special stockholders” meeling (except as may be required by
applicable law or rcgulatory authorities or by the rules of the Nasdaq Global Market). However, the Board of
Directors does not anticipate a need for 60 million authorized shares of Superior Bancorp's common stock if the
number of outstanding shares and shares reserved for future issuance under compensation arrangements is reduced
in a 1-lor-4 stock split. The Board of Directors believes that 15 million authorized shares iwill provide sufficient
flexibility to consider and respond to future business opportunities and needs as they arise.

Superior Bancorp’s Restated Centificate of Incorporation provides that Superior Bar!morp may issue up o
60 mallion shares of ils common stock, 3.001 par value per share, of which 40,211,230 shares were issued and
outstanding as of March 6, 2008. In addition, as of such date, approximately (a) 29,580 sharcs were reserved for
issuance under our Third Amended und Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, under which opuom 10 purchase a total
of 1.467.256 shares were outstanding, (b} 34.048 shares were reserved for issvance under other stock options
granted, assumed or reserved for future grants by Superior Bancorp under which options|(o purchase a toial of
1,742,097 shares were outstanding, and (c) 30,937 shares were reserved for issuance in liev oll'cash compensation to
non-employee directors. After giving effect to al! such reserved shares, approximately 1?,484,852 shares were
available for issuance on such date. At the 2008 Annual Meeting stockholders will vote on 1h|c adoption of the 2008
Steck Incentive Plan (See Proposal Three below) pursuant to which 1,200,000 shares of rl:ommon stock will be

reserved if such plan is adopted.

If a l-for-4 reverse stock split is approved and implemented, we anticipate that the number of outstanding
shares of common stock will decrease to approximately 10,052,807, the number of shares currently reserved for
issuance upon future grants, the exercise of outstanding options and in lieu of cash compensation to non-employee
directors will decrease to 825,979, and the number of shares reserved for issuance pursuvant to the 2008 Stock
Incentive Plan, if such plan is adopted by the stockholders, will decrease to 300,000

There are no preemplive rights with respect to our common stock.

The Beard of Directors recommends a vote FOR the proposal to amend the R?lated Certificate of
Incorporation to effect a reverse stock split of Superior Bancorp Common Stock by a ratio of 1-for-4 and to
decrease the authorized common stock of Superior Bancorp to 15 million shares.

26




PROPOSAL NUMBER THREE
ADOPTION OF THE SUPERIOR BANCORP 2008
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

At the Annual Meeting, our stockholders are being asked to approve the Superior Ba;ncorp 2008 Incentive
Compensation Plan {the “2008 Plan™). Our Board has approved and adopied the 2008 Plan, subject to approval by

our stockholders.

The 2008 Plan is intended to succeed the Third Amended and Restated 1998 Sloc}c Incentive Plan (the
1998 Plan™). Approval of the 2008 Plan by our stockholders will be considered approvall of the 2008 Plan for
purposes of Sections 162(m) and 422 of the Code. If the 2008 Plan is approved by our stockholders, no awards will
be made under the 1998 Plan after such approval. If the 2008 Plan is not approved by our slockholders the 1998 Plan

will remain in full force and effect until its expiration date.

The principal features of the 2008 Plan are summarized below, but the summary is qualified in its entirety by
reference 1o the 2008 Plan itself. The full text of the 2008 Plan is attached 1o this Proxy Statement as Annex B.

Purpose of the 2008 Plan

The purpose of the 2008 Plan is to provide additional incentive for our directors and key employees to further
vhe growth, development and financial success of Superior Bancorp and its subsidiaries by perconally benefiting
through the ownership of Superior Bancorp common stock, or other rights which recognize such growth,
development and financial success. Qur Board also believes the 2008 Plan will enable us to obtain and retain
the services of directors and employees who are considered essential to our long-range success by offering them an
npportunity to own stock and other rights that reflect our financial success. The 2008 Plan is also designed to permit
1s to make awards intended to be *“qualificd performance-based compensation” under Section 162(m) of the Code
and, accordingly, 1o be eligible for deductibility by Superior Bancorp.

'I'he 2008 Plan will become effective immediately upon stockholder approval at the Annual Mceting.

$ecurities Subject to the 2008 Plan

The maximum aggregate number of shares of commen stock that may be issued or transfcrrcd pursuant 10
awards under the 2008 Plan is 1,200,000 shares, of which no more than 360,000 shares may be tssued for “full value
awards” (defined under the 2008 Plan to mean any awards permitted under the 2008 Plan lhal are neither stock
options nor stock appreciation rights, as more fully described under “Awards under the 2008 Plan” below).

The 2008 Plan counts shares on a “gross” basis and does not allow the re-grant of shares withheld or
surrendered in payment of the exercise pncc or tax withholding obligations of an award. E In the event of any
termination, expiration, lapse or forfeiture of an award granted under the 2008 Plan or the l998 Plan, any shares
subject to the award at such time will again be made available for future grants under the 2008 Plan. In no event,
however, will any such shares of common stock again be available for future grants under lhe 2008 Plan if such
:ction would cause an incentive stock option to fail to qualify as an incentive stock option under Section 422 of the

Code.

To the extent permitted by applicable law or any applicable exchange rule, shares issued in assumption of, or in
substitution for, any outstanding awards of any entity acquired in any form of combination by the company or any of
i's subsidiaries will not be counted against the shares available for issuance under the 2008 Plan.

The shares of common stock covered by the 2008 Plan may be treasury shares, authonzed but unissued shares
cr shares purchased in the open market. For purposes of the 2008 Plan, the fair market value of a share of common
stock as of any given date will be the closing sales price for a share of common stock on the stock exchange or
national market system on which the common stock is listed on such date or, if there is no cloqmg sales price for the
common stock on the date in question, the closing sales price for a share of common stock on the last preceding date
for which such quotation exists, as reported in The Wall Street Journal, The closing salesiprice for a share of
common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market on March 6, 2008 was $4.84, as reported in The Wall Street Journal.
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Eligibility

Our employees and our directors are eligible to receive awards under the 2008 Plan. As of March 6, 2008, we
had approximately 802 employees, and we currently have 16 directors, 13 of whom are non—'empioyee directors. No
employee or director is entitled to panticipate in the 2008 Plan as a matter of right, nor docs any such participation
conslitute assurance of continued employment or service. Only those employees and directors who are selected to
receive grants by the administrator may participate in the 2008 Plan.

Awards under the 2008 Plan

The 2008 Plan provides that the administrator may grant or issue stock options, stock appreciation rights
(“SARs"), restricted stock, cestricted stock units, dividend equivalents, performance award:s and other stock-based
awards, or any combination thereof. Each award will be set forth in a separate agreement with the person receiving
the award and will indicate the type, terms and conditicns of the award,

Non-Qualified Stock Oprions (“NQSOs"). NQSOs will provide for the right 1o purchase shares of common
stock at a specified price, and usually will become exercisable (as determined by the administrator) in one or more
installments after the grant date, subject to the completion of the applicable vesting service penod or the attainment
of pre-established performance goals. NQSOs may be granted for any term specified by the administrator, but the
term may not exceed ten years.

Incentive Stock Options (“I50s'). 150s will be designed to comply with the applicable provisions of
Section 422 of the Code, and will be subject to certain restrictions contained in the Code. Among such restrictions,
1SOs must have an exercise price per'share that is not less than the fair market value of a shn}e of common stock on
the date of grant, may only be granted to our employees and must not be exercisable afler a period of ten years
measured from the date of grant. However, il subsequently modified, ISOs may cease to qua]:fy for treatment as
ISOs and be treated as NQSOs. The total fair market value of shares (determined as of the respecuve date or dates of
grant) for which one or more options granted to any employee (including all options granted under the 2008 Plan
and all other option plans of Superior Bancorp or any parent or subsidiary corporation) I‘ma)r for the first time
become exercisable as ISOs during any one calendar year may not exceed the sum of $100,000. To the ¢xtent this
limit is exceeded, the options granted will be NQSOs. In the case of an ISO granted to an 1nd:{ndual who owns (or is
deemed to awn) more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of Superior Bancorp or
any parent or subsidiary corporation, the 2008 Plan provides that the exercise price of an [SO/must be at least 110%
of the fair market value of a share of common stock on the date of grant, and the ISO must not be exercisable after a
period of five years measured from the date of grant. Like NQSOs, 1SOs vsually will become exercisable (as
determined by the administrator) in one or more installments after the grant date, subject to/the completion of the
applicable vesting service period or the attainment of pre-established performance goals.

Stock Appreciation Rights.  Stock appreciation rights provide for the payment of aniamount to the holder
based upon the excess (if any) of the fair market value of our common stock over the exercise price of the SAR. The
exercise price per share of a SAR must be at least 100% of the fair market value of a share of common stock on the
date of grant. SARs under the 2008 Plan will be settled in cash or shares of common stock, or in a combination of
both, at the election of the administrator. SARs may be granted in connection with stock opuons or other awards, or
separately. SARs may be granted for any term specified by the administrator, but the term may:' not exceed ten years.

Restricted Stock. Restricted stock may be issued at such price, if any, as may b‘c determined by the
administrator and may be made subject to such restrictions {including service vesting or vesting based on the
satisfaction of pre-established performance goals), as may be determined by the administrator: In general, restricted
stock may not be sold, or otherwise hypothecated or transferred, until the vesting restrictions!and other restrictions
applicable to such shares lapse. A holder of restricted stock, unlike a holder of options or festricted stock units,
generally will have voting rights and may receive dividends prior to the time when the restrictions lapse.

Restricted Stock Units.  Restricted stock units provide for the issuance to the holder of shares of common
stock, subject to vesting conditions (including vesting based on continued service or theT satisfaction of pre-
established performance goals) The issuance of shares of common stock pursuant to reslnclcd stock unils may be
delayed beyond the time at which the restricted stock units vest. Restricted stock units may nol be sold, or otherwise
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nypothecated or transferred, and a holder of restricted stock units will not have voting rights or dividend nights prior
o the time when the vesting conditions are satisfied and the shares are issued. Restricted stock units generally will
be forfeited, and the underlying shares of stock will not be issued, if the applicable vesting c‘?nditions are not met.

|
Dividend Equivalents. Dividend equivalents represent the right to receive the value of IPB dividends per share
said by us, if any, calculated with reference 10 a specified number of shares of common stock, Dividend equivalent
-ights may be granted in connection with full-value awards granted under the 2008 Plan, Divi:dend equivalenis may

Je paid in cash or shares of common stock, or in a combination of both, at the election of! 1he administrator.

Performance Awards. Performance awards may be granted by the administrator 1o employees or directors
based upon, among other things, the contributions, responsibilities and other compensation of the particular
recipient. Generally, the amount paid or distributed under performance awards will be bas&}:d on specific perfor-
mance goals and may be paid in cash ot in shares of common stock, or in a combination of both, at the election of the
administrator. Performance awards may include “phantom” stock awards that provide for puy:mems based upon the
-salue of our common stock. Performance awards may also include bonuses granted by the administrator, which may

be payable in cash or in shares of common stock, or in a combination of both.

Other Stock-Based Awards. The adminisirator may grant lo employees or directors other stock-based
awards. An other stock-based awards means any type of equity-based or equity-related |award not otherwise
described by the terms of the 2008 Plan. Payment of other stock-based awards may be madc in cash, in shares of
common stock, or a combination of cash and common stock.

Section 162(m) “Performance-Based” Awards. The administrator may designate employees whose com-
pensation for a given fiscal year may be subject to the limit on deductible compensation impos'ed by Section 162(m)
of the Code. The administrator may grant to such employees and other eligible employees aTvards under the 2008
Plan that are paid, vest or become exercisable upon the achievement of specified performance goals which are
related to one or more performance criteria, as applicable to Superior Bancorp or any subsidiary, division, operating
unit or individual. These performance criteria include: net earnings (either before or after interest, taxes. depre-
ciation andfor amortization); gross or net sales or revenue; net income {either before or after taxes); operating profit;
vash flow (including, but not limited to, operating cash flow and free cash flow); return on assets: relurn on capital;

return on stockholders’ equity; return on sales; gross or net profit or operating margin; costs; ﬂlmds from operations;
cxpense; working capital; eamings per share; price per share of common stock; regulatory ratings; market share;

growth in loans and/or other assets; growth in deposits and various measures of credit quality.

Performance goals established based on the performance criteria may be measured either in absolute terms or
45 compared to any incremental increase or decrease or as compared 1o the results of a ptt:cr group. Except as
provided by the administeator, the achievement of each performance goal will be determined in accordance with
gienerally accepted accounting principles to the extent applicable. At the time of grant, the administrator may
provide that objectively determinable adjustments will be made for purposes of determining th!c achievement of one
or more of the performance goals established for an award. Any such adjustments will be based on one or more of
the following: items related to a change in accounting principle; items relating to financing activities: expenses for
restructuring or productivity initiatives; other non-operating items; items related to acquisitions; items attributable
10 the business operations of any entity we acquire during the performance period: items related to the disposal of a
husiness or segment of a business; or items related to discontinued operations that do not qualify as a segment ofa
husiness under GAAP.

I
Award Limirs. The 2008 Plan provides that awards covering not more than 120,000 shares may be granted 1o

zny individual in any calendar year, subject 10 adjustment under certain circumstances in order 1o prevent the
clilution or enlargemem of the potential benefits intended to be made available under the 20(|)8 Plan, as described
tielow. These award limits will be adjusted appropriately in the event that the 1-for-4 reverse stock split of Superior
Bancorp common stock (Proposal Two) is approved by stockholders at the Annual Meeting and becomes effective.
See “Adjustments for Stock Splits, Recapitalizations and Mergers” below.
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Vesting and Exercise of Awards

The applicable award agreement will contain the period during which the right 1o exercise the award in whole
or in part vests, including the events or conditions upon which the vesting of an award may accelerate. No portion of
an award which is not vested at the holder's termination of employment or lcrminmiclm of directorship will
subsequently become vested, except as may be otherwise provided by the administrator either in the agreement
relating to the award or by action following the grant of the award.

Generally, an option or SAR may only be exercised while such person remains our employee or director or for
a specified period of time (up to the remainder of the award term) following the holder's termination of employment
or directorship, as applicable. An award may be exercised for any vested portion of the shares subject to such award
until the award expires.

Ouly whole shares of common stock may be purchased or issucd pursuant to an award.| Any required payment
for the shares subject to an award will be paid in the form of cash or a check payable to us in the amount of the
aggregate purchase price. However, the administrator may in its discretion and subject 0 applicable laws allow
payment through one or more of the following:

* the delivery of certain shares of common stock owned by the holder;

= the surrender of shares of common stock which would otherwise be issuable upon exercise or vesting of the
award;

the delivery of property of any kind wﬁich constitutes good and valuable consideration;

with respect to options, a sale and remittance procedure pursuant to which the holder }vill place a market sell
order with a broker with respect to the shares of common stock then issuable upon Iexercisc of the option,
provided the broker timely pays a sufficient portion of the net proceeds of the sale to us in satisfaction of the
option exercise price for the purchased shares plus all applicable income and employment taxes we are

required to withhold by reason of such exercise; or

* any combination of the foregoing.

Transferability of Awards

Awards generally may not be sold, pledged, assigned or transferred in any manner other thah by will or by the laws
of descent and distribution or, subject to the consent of the administrator, pursuant 1o a domasué relations order, unless
and until such award has been exercised, or the shares underlying such award have been lssuled and all restrictions
applicable 10 such shares have lapsed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, awards other than 1505 may also be transferred to
certain family members and trusts or an entity owned by these family members and trusts with the administrator’s
consent. Awards may be exercised, during the lifetime of the holder, only by the holder or such permitted transferee.

|
2008 Plan Benehts

No awards will be granted under the 2008 Plan until the 2008 Plan is approved by our siockholders. The future

benefits thar wilt be received under the 2008 Plan by our current directors, executive officers and all eligible

employees are not currently determinable.

Adjustments for Stock Splits, Recapitalizations and Mergers

in the event of any recapitalization, reclassification. stock split, reverse stock split, reorganization. merger,
izonsolidation. split-up, spin-off or other transaction that affects our common stock, the admlinistrator of the 2008
‘Man will equitably adjust any or all of the following in order 1o prevent the dilution or enlnrgerl'nem of the benefits or
potential benefits intended 10 be made available under the 2008 Plan or with respect to any award:

* the number and kind of shares of common stock (or other securities or property} with respect to which

awards may be granted or awarded under the 2008 Plan;

+ the limitation on the maximurn number and kind of shares that may be subject to one or more awards granted
to any one individual during any calendar year;
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+ the number and kind of shares of common stock (or other securities or property) subject to outstanding
+ awards under the 2008 Plan;

+ the number and kind of shares of common stack {or other securities or property) for which automatic grants
are subsequently to be made to non-employee directors; and

+ the grant or exercise price with respect to any outstanding award.

Consequently, in the event that the |-for-4 reverse stock split of Superior Bancorp‘common stock (Pro-
posal Two) is approved by stockholders at the Annual Meeting and becomes effective, the administrator will make
appropriate adjustments to the 2008 Plan as described above.

Change in Contrel

In the event of a Change in Conurol (as defined in the 2008 Plan), each outstanding uwa{d will be assumed, or
substituted for an equivalent award, by the successor corporation, If the successor corporanon does not provide for
+he assumption or substitution of the awards, the administrator may cause all awards to become fully exercisable
prior to the consummation of the transaction constituting a Change in Control. The admmls‘lmmr may also grant
awards under the 2008 Plan which provide for immediate accelerated vesting upon the consulmmalion of a Change
‘n Control or the occurrence of a subsequent event, such as the termination of the participant’s cmployment or
service.

Administration of the 2008 Plan i

The Compensation Committee will be the adminisirator of the 2008 Plan. The Committee is expected 10
consist solely of two or more directors, each of whom is intended to be independent under rules promulgated by a
securities exchange on which our common stock is listed, and to qualify as both a “non-employce director,” as
defined in Rule 16b-3 and an “outside director” for purposes of Section 162(m) of the Codc.‘,The Committee may
delegate its authority to grant certain awards to one or more of our officers. Aay such officer,will no1 be delegated
the authority 1o grant awards to individuals who are subject 10 the reporting requiremenis|of Section 16 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The administrator has the power to:

» select which directors and employees are to receive awards and the terms of such awan?s, consistent with the
2008 Pian; '

+ determine whether options are to be NQSOs or 1SOs, or whether awards are to be “qualified performance-
based compensation” under Section 162{m) of the Code:

« construe and interpret the terms of the 2008 Plan and awards granted pursuant to the 2008 Plan;
+ adopt rules for the administration, interpretation and application of the 2008 Plan;

« interpret, amend or revoke any of the rules adopted for the administration, interpretation and application of
the 2008 Plan; and

« amend one or more outstanding awards in a manner that does not adversely affect the rights and obligations
of the holder of such award (except in certain limited circumstances),

Amendment and Termination of the 2008 Plan

The administrator may amend the 2008 Plan at any time, subject to stockholder approval to the extent required
Ly applicable law or regulation or the listing standards of the NASDAQ Global Market {or any olhcr market or stock
exchange on which the common stock is at the time primarily traded). Additionally, stockholder approval will be
specifically required to increase the maximum number of shares of commeon stock which maﬂf be issued under the
2008 Plan, change the eligibility requirements or decrease the exercise price of any outstanding option or stock
appreciation right granted under the 2008 Plan, 1

The administrator may suspend or terminate the 2008 Plan at any time. However, in no c\!enl may an award be
granted pursuant to the 2008 Plan on or after the tepth anniversary of the effective date of the 2008 Plan.
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Federal Income Tax Consequences Associated with the 2008 Plan

The following is a general summary under current law of the material federal income tax consequences fo an
employee, director or consultant granted an award under the 2008 Plan. This summary deals iwith the general federal
income tax principles that apply and is provided only for general informaticn. Some kinds of taxes such as state, local
and foreign income taxes and federal employment taxes, are not discussed. Tax laws are complcx and subject to change
and may vary depending on individual circumstances and from locality to locality. The sumrﬁaxy does not discuss al}
aspects of federal income taxation that may be relevant in light of a holder’s personal cnrcumsu'mces This summarized

tax information is not tax advice, and a holder of an award should rely on the advice of his or h?r legal and tax advisors.

Non-Qualified Stock Options.  1f an optionee is granted a NQSO under the 2008 Plan, the optionee should not
have taxable income on the grant of the option. Generally, the optionee should recognize Brdinary income at the
time of exercise in an amount equal to the fair market value of a share of common stock at such time, less the
exercise price paid. The optionee’s basis in the stock for purposes of determining gain or loss ona subsequent sale or
disposition of such shares generally will be the fair market value of the common stock on the date the optionee
exercises such option. Any subsequent gain or loss generally will be taxable as a capital | gam or loss.

Incentive Stock Options.  No 1axable income should be recognized by the optionee at the time of the grant of
an IS0, and no taxable income should be recognized for regular federal income tax purposes at the time the option is
exercised; however, the excess of the fair market value of the common stock received over the option price is an

*item of adjustment” for altemative minimum 1ax purposes. The optionee will recognize taxz'ablc income in the year
in which the purchased shares are sold or otherwise made the subject of a taxable disposition. |For federal income tax
purposes, dispositions are divided into two categories: qualifying and chsquahfymg A qualifying disposition occurs
if the sale or other disposition is made more than two years after the date the option for the shares involved in such
sale or disposition is granted and more than one year after the date the shares are transferred upon exercise. 1f the
sale or disposition occurs before these two periods are satisfied, then a disqualifying dispbsilion will result.

Upon a qualifying disposition, the optionee should recognize long-term capital gain in an amount egual to the
excess of the amount realized upon the sale or other disposition of the purchased shares over lhﬁ exercise price paid for
the shares. IF there is a disqualifying disposition of the shares, then the excess of the fair market value of those shares
on the exercise date over the exercise price paid for the shares should be taxable as ordinary 1:ncomc to the optionee.

Any additional gain or loss recognized upon the disposition will be recognized as a capital gain or loss by the optionee.

We should not be entitled to any federal income tax deduction if the optionee makes a qu!alifying disposition of
the shares_'If the optionee makes a disqualifying disposition of the purchased shares, then generally we (or our
subsidiary corporation) should be entitled to a federal income tax deduction, for the taxable year in which such
disposition occurs, equal to the ordinary income recognized by the optionee.

Stock.Appreciarion Rights. Notaxable income generally should be recognized upon the grant of a SAR, but,

" upon exercise of the SAR, the cash or the fair'market value of the shares received should be taxable as ordinary

income to the recipient in the year of such exercise.

Resiricted Stock.  In general, a recipient of restricted stock should not be taxed upon the grant or purchase of
restricted stock that is subject to a “substantial risk of forfeiture” and non-transferable, vl'nhm the meaning of
Section 83 of the Code. However, at the time the restricted stock is no longer subject to the substantial risk of
forfeiture {(e.g., when the restrictions lapse on a vesting date), the participant should rccogmzc ordinary income
2qual to the fair market value of the common stock on the date the restrictions lapse, less the amoum the participant
paid, if any, for such restricted stock. A recipient of restricted stock may, however, makc an election under
Section 83(b) of the Code to be taxed at the time of the grant or purchase an an amount equal to the fair market value
of the common stock on the date of transfer, less the amount paid, if any, for such rcstnc‘ted stock. If a timely
Section 83(b) election is made, the recipient should ‘aot recognize any additional income as and when the
estrictions applicable to the restricted stock lapses.

Restricted Stock Units. A recipient of restricted stock units generally should not have ordinary income upon
arant of restricted stock units. When the shares of common stock are delivered under the te{rms of the award, the
recipient should recognize ordinary income equal to the fair market value of the shares delivered, less any amount
paid by the participant for such shares.
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Dividend Equivalent Awards and Performance Awards. A recipient of a dividend cquivalent award or a
performance award generally will not recognize 1axable income at the time of grant. However, at the time such an
award is paid, whether in cash or in shares of common stock, the participant will recognize ordinary income equal to
the value received.

Tax Deductions and Section 162(m) of the Code. Except as otherwise described ébove with respect o
incentive stock options, we generally should be entitled to a federal income tax deduction when and for the same
amount the recipient recognizes as ordinary income, subject to the limitations of Section 162(m) of the Code with
respect 10 compensation paid to certain “‘covered employees.” Under Section 162(m), mcomc tax deductions of
publicly-held corporations may be limited to the extent total compensation (including base salary, annual bonus,
stock option exercises and non-qualified benefits paid) for certain executive officers cxcmds| $1 million in any one
year. The Section 162(m) deduction limit, however, does not apply to centain “performance-based compensation™ as
provided for by the Code and established by an independent compensation commitiee. In pajnicular, stock options
and SARs will satisfy the “performance-based compensation” exception if the awards are made by a qualifying
compensation committee, the underlying plan sets the maximum number of shares that can be granted to any person
within a specified period and the compensation is based solely on an increase in the stock price after the grant date
(i.e., the exercise price or base price is not less than the fair market value of the siock subjecl 10 the award on the
grant date). Other awards granted under the 2008 Plan may be “qualified performancc-bascd compensation” for
purposes of Section 162(m), if such awards arc granted or vest based upon the ach:evemcn:t of one or more pre-
established objective performance goals using one of the performance criteria described previously.

The 2008 Plan is structured in a manner that is intended to provide the administrator wuh the ability to provide
awards that satisfy the requirements for “qualified performance-based compensation” under Section 162(m) of the
Code where appropriate. If the administrator determines that it is in the company’s best mtcrcslts to make use of such
awards, we believe that the remuneration attributable 10 those awards will not be subject to the $1 millicn limitation.
We have not, however, requested a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service or an opinion of Icouns.t:] regarding this
issue. This discission will neither bind the Internal Revenue Service nor preclude the Intemal Revenue Service

from adopting a contrary position. |

Section 409A of the Code. Cenain awards under the 2008 Plan may be considered “‘non-qualiﬂed deferred
compensation™ for purposes of Section 409A of the Code, which imposes certain additional reqmnemems regarding the
payment of deferred compensation. Generally, if at any time during a taxable ycar a non-qualified dcfem:d compensation
plan fails to meet the requirements of Section 409A, or is not operated in accordance with tlhose requirements, afl
amounts deferred under the non-qualified deferred compensation plan for the taxable year and all preceding taxable
years, by or for any participant with respect to whom the failure relates, are includible in the gross income of the
participant for the taxable year to the extent not subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture and not Iprf:\f:ou sty included in
gross income. If a deferred amount is required to be included in income under Section 409A, the amount also is subject to
interest and an additional income tax. The interest imposed is equal to the interest at the undcrpaymcnl rate plus one
percentage point, imposed on the underpayments that would have occurred had the compensation been includible in
income for the taxable year when first deferred, or if later, when not subject to a substantial Insk of forfeiture. The
additional income tax is equal to 20% of the compensation required to be included in gross incormne.

Vote Reﬁt'lired

Adopiion of the 2008 Plan requires an affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of common
stock cast on such proposal, in person or by proxy. provided that there is a quorum of stockholders represented at the
Annual Meeting.

Recommendation of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that stockholders vote FOR the adoption of the
Superior Bancorp 2008 Incentive Compensation Plan. '
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Based on the Audit Committee’s discussions with management and the independent! auditors, as described
above, and upon its review of the representations of management and the report of the independent auditors, the
Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors that Superior Bancorp’s audited consolidated financial
statements be included in the annual report on Form 10-K: for the fiscal year ended Decemiber 31, 2007, 2s fited with
the SEC.

The foregoing report is submitted by the following directors of Superior Bancorp,| comprising all of the
members of the Audit Commitiee of the Baard of Directors as of December 31, 2007.
B Roger Barker, Chairman
Thomas E. Jernigan, Jr.

- James C. White, Sr.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR
NEXT ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Any proposals that out stockholders wish to have included in our proxy statement and form of proxy for the
2009 annual meeting of stockholders must be received by us no later than the close of business on November 24,
2008. You may also submit a proposal for presentation at the annual meeting of slockholdcrs|to be held in 2009, but
not to have the proposal included in our proxy statement and form of proxy relating to that mlccling. If notice of any
such proposal is not received by us by the close of business on February 7, 2009, then we will not address the

proposal in our proxy statement relating to that meeting, and all proxies selicited. and recFived by the Board of

Directors will be deemed to have confirmed discretionary authority to vote on any such proposal. Any proposals
should be sent to:

Superior Bancorp.
17 North 2(th Street
Birmingham, Alabama 35203
Autention: Corporate Secretary
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Dividend Equivalent Awards and Performance Awards. A recipient of a dividend ?quivalenl award or a
performance award generally will not recognize taxable income at the time of grant. However, at the time such an
award is paid, whether in cash or in shares of common stock, the participant will recognize ordmary income equal to
the value received. i

Tax Deductions and Seciion 162(m) of the Code. Except as otherwise described above with respect to
incentive stock options, we generally should be entitled to a federat income tax deduction when and for the same
amount the recipient recognizes as ordinary income, subject to the limitations of Section IGg(m) of the Code with
respect to compensation paid to certain “‘covered employees.” Under Scction 162(m), income tax deductions of
publicly-held corporations may be limited 1o the extent total compensation {including base salary, annual bonus,
stock option exercises and non-gualified benefits paid) for certain executive officers exceeds $1 million in any one
year. The Section 162(m) deduction limit, however, does not apply to certain “performance- b:ised compensation” as
provided for by the Code and established by an independent compensation commitiee. [n pamcular stock options
and SARs will satisfy the “performance-based compensation” exception if the awards are ‘made by a qualifying
compensation committee, the underlying plan sets the maximum number of shares that can be granted to any person
within a specified period and the compensation is based solely on an increase in the stock prilce after the grant date

(i.e., the exercise price or base price is not less than the fair market value of the stock subjelcl to the award on the

grant date). Other awards granted under the 2008 Plan may be “qualified performance- basled compensation” for
purposes of Section 162(m), if such awards are granted or vest based upon the achnevemem of one or more pre-

established objective performance goals using one of the performance criteria described prevnously

The 2008 Plan is structured in a manner that is intended 10 provide the administrator with the ability 10 provide
awards thai satisfy the requirements for “qualified performance-based compensation™ under Section 162(m} of the
Code where appropriate. If the administrator determines that it is in the company’s best mlcrests to make use of such
awards, we believe that the remuneration attributable to those awards will not be subject (o lhe $1 million limitation.
We have not, however, requested a ruling from the Internal Revenue Service or an opinion of counsel regarding this
issue. This discussion will neither bind the Intemal Revenue Service nor preclude the Internal Revenue Service
from adopting & contrary position. }

Section 409A of the Code. Certain awards under the 2008 Plan may be considered “non-quallﬁed deferred
compensation” for purposes of Section 409A of the Code, which imposes certain additional requm:mems regarding the
payment of deferred compensation. Generally, if at any time during a taxable year a non-qualified deferred compensation
plan fails to meet the requirements of Section 409A, or is not operated in accordance with those requirements, all
amounts deferred under the non-qualified deferred compensation plan for the taxable year and all preceding taxable
years, by or for any participant with respect to whom the failure relates, are includibte in the gross income of the
participant for the taxable year to the extent not subject to a substantial risk of forfeirre and not'prevuous]y included in
gross income. If a deferred amount is required to be included in income under Section 409A, the amount also is subject to
interest and an additional income tax. The interest imposed is equal to the interest at the undcrlpaymem rate plus one
percentage point, imposed on the underpayments that would have occurred had the compenwiion been includible in
income for the taxable year when first deferred, or if Jater, when not subject to a substantial ‘nsk of forfeiture. The
additional income tax is equal to 20% of the compensation required to be included in gross income.

Vote Required |

Adoption of the 2008 Plan requires an affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the shares of common
stock cast on such proposal, in person or by proxy, provided that there is a guorum of stockholders represented al the
Annual Meeting.

Recommendation of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends that stockholders vote FOR |the adoption of the
Superior Bancorp 2008 Incentive Compensation Plan.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

General

Our independemt registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ended Deccmber 31, 2006 was Car,
Riggs & Ingram, LLC (“Carr Riggs”). On August 10, 2007, the Audit Commitlee determined not to reengage Carr
Riggs as the independent registered public accounting firm to audit Superior Bancorp's fi n:ancml statements. Carr
nggs reports on the Superior Bancorp's financial statements for the preceding two years did not contain any

adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion and were not qualified or modified as 1o uncetl'lalmy, audit scope, or
accounting principles, except that Carr Riggs’ report dated March 16, 2006, that wasmcluded in our Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005, which was filed with the Securmeq and Exchange
Commission on March 16, 2006, expressed an opinion that Superior Bancorp and ns subsidiaries had not
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria eslablished
in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of Sponsoring Orgammuons of the Treadway
Commission. During Superior Bancorp’s two most recent fiscal years and the subsequent i mlr:nm periods preceding
Carr Riggs' dismissal, there have been no disagreements with Carr Riggs on any matter of accounung principles or
practices, financial stalement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure which dxsagreemenls if not resolved to the
satisfaction of Carr Riggs, would have caused Carr Riggs to make reference to the ‘sub_]ect matter of the
disagreements in connection with its reports on Superior Bancorp’s financial statements. Carr Riggs’ report dated
March 16, 2007, that was included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal yearended December 31, 2006,
which was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 16, 2007, ex;‘)reesed an unqualified
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s and subsidiaries” internal coatrel over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006.

On August [0, 2007, the Audit Committee engaged Grant Thornton LLP (“Grant Thornton™) to serve as the
independem registered public accounting firm to audit our financial statements. During Superior Bancorp’s two
most recent fiscal years and the subsequent interim pertods preceding the engagement of Grant Thornton, Superior
Bancorp has not consulted with Grant Thomton regarding either (i) the application of acceunting principles 10 a
completed or proposed specified transaction or the type of audit opinion that might be|rendered on Superior
Bancorp's financial statements, or {ii) any matter that was the subject of a dxsagreemem with Carr Riggs or a
reportable event as described in Item 304(a)(1)(v) of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Regulation §-K.

The Audit Commitice has nol yet made a recommendation to the Board of Dlreclors concerning the
appointment of an independent registered public accounting firm to audit our financial statlcmemq for the current
fiscal year ending December 31, 2008. Management expects representatives from Grant Thomton 10 attend the
Annual Meeting. They will have an opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so, and they are expected to

be available 10 respond to appropriate questions.

Audit Fees

The aggregate fees (including reimbursable expenses) paid to Grant Thornton for) professional services
rendered for the audit of Supertor Bancorp’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 and
for the reviews of the financial statements for Superior Bancorp’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third
quarter of 2007 were $288,013. The aggregate fees (including reimbursable expenscs) pfnd to Carr Riggs for
professional services rendered for the audit of Superior Bancorp's financial statements f01" the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006 and for the reviews of the financial statements for Superior Bancorp’s Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q for 2006 were $583,710.

Audit Related Fees

The aggregate “audit related fees”™ (including reimbursable expenses) paid to Grant Thornton for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007 were $60.000. The aggregate “audit related fees (inciuding reimbursable expenses) paid
to Carr Riggs for the fiscal year ended December 31. 2006 were $198,444. Audit related fees primarily consist of
fees relating to benefit plan audits.
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'Tax Fees

The aggregate tax fees paid to Grant Thornton for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 were $58,000, and
the aggregate tax fees paid to Carr Riggs for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 were $15,000.

All Other Fees
The aggrepate fees paid 1o Grant Thornton and Carr Riggs for all other services rendered to Superior Bancorp,

ather than services described above, were $0 for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 anjd 2006, respectively.

Pre-Approval Policies

The Audit Commitiee pre-approves ali audit and non-audit services provided by the ilndependent auditors.
These services may include audit services, audit related services, tax services and other|services. The Audit
“ommittee pre-approved ail of the services for the audit fees described above. The Audit Committee regularly

/monitors the services provided by the independent auditors for both audit and non-audit s:erviceq None of the
services described above were approved by the Audit Committee pursuant to paragraph (©(7))C) of Rule 2-01 of

Regulation 5-X.

The Audit Committee has considered whether the provision of the services covered above is compatible with
imaintaining our external auditor’s independence and has concluded that it is.

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE (1)

The members of the Audit Committee are “independent directors™, as defined under NASDAQ Rute 4200, and
ineel the standards required by Rule 10A-3(b)(1) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934/ Two members of the
Audit Committee are “audit committee financial experts” under the Rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Audit Committee oversees Superior Bancorp's financial reporting process|and internal controls
on behalf of the Board of Directors and is responsible for the appointment, retention, oversight'and compensation of
the company’s independent auditors and the approval of services they perform. Mdnagerrllem has the pnmary
1esponsibility for establishing and maintaining systems of intemal controls and for the prepamuon of the financial

statements and other financial information included in Superior Bancorp's Annual Repent. [n flulﬁ]lmg its oversight
responsibilities, the Audit Committee reviewed the consolidated financial statements with management, including a
discussion of the quality, not just the acceptability, of the accounting principles, the reasonableness of significant

judgments, and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements.

The Audit Committee reviewed with the independent auditors, who are responsible for expressing an opinion
on the conformity of those audited financial statements with accounting principles, generally accepted in the
United States, their judgments as to the quality, not just the acceptability, of Superior Bancorp's accounting
principles and such other matters as are required to be discussed with the Audit Committee undler auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States. In addition, the Audit Committee has discussed with the independent
auditors their independence from management and Superior Bancorp, including the matters in the written
disclosures required by the Independence Standards Board.

The Audit Committee discussed with Superior Bancorp's internal and independent audtzors the overall scope
znd plans for their respective audits. The Audit Committee meets with the internal and mdependem auditors, with
znd without management present, to discuss the results of their examinations, their evaluauons of Superior
Bancorp’s internal controls, and the overall quality of Superior Bancorp's financial repomng

(1) The information under this caption is not “soliciting material™ or material “filed” wnh the SEC, except
{a) as otherwise required by the rules of the SEC or (b) us we may specifically so request or specnﬁcally incorporate
it by reference in a filing with the SEC.
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Based on the Audit Committee’s discussions with management and the independent auditors, as described
above, and upon its review of the representations of management and the report of the independent auditors, the
Audit Comminiee recommended 10 the Board of Directors that Superior Bancorp’s audited, consolidated financial
statements be included in the annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, as filed with
the SEC.

The foregoing report is submitted by the following directors of Superior Bancorp, comprising all of the
members of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors as of December 31, 2007.

Roger Barker, Chairman |
Thomas E. Jemigan, Jr.
James C. White, Sr.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR
NEXT ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Any proposals that our stockholders wish to have included in our proxy statement and form of proxy for the
2009 annual meeting of stockholders must be received by us no later than the close of business on November 24,
2008. You may also submit a proposal for presentation at the annual meeting of stockholdersito be held in 2009, but
not io have the proposal included in our proxy statement and form of proxy relating to that mleeling. If notice of any
such proposal is not received by us by the close of business on February 7, 2009, then we will not address the
proposal in our proxy statement relating to that meeting, and all proxies solicited and recewed by the Board of
Directors will be deemed 1o have confirmed discretionary authority to vote on any such pmposal Any proposals
should be sent to: ‘

Superior Bancorp.

17 North 20th Sireet
Birmingham, Alabama 35203
Atlention: Corporate Secrelary
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OTHER BUSINESS

As of the date of this Proxy Statement, the Board of Directors does not know of any business which wili be
presented for consideration at the Annual Meeting other than that specified herein and in tlhc Notice of Annuai
Meeting of Stockholders, but if other matters are prescnted, it is the intention of the persons designated as proxies to
vote in accordance with their judgments on such matters. !

Please promptly SIGN, DATE and RETURN the enclosed Proxy or vote over the lntelmel or by telephone.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

L),(m,;,.uc..r,

William H. Caughran
Secretary

Birmingham, Alabama
IMarch 24, 2008
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ANNEX A

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE IV, SECTION 4.1 AND SECTION 4.4 OF
THE RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF SUPERIOR BANCORP AS
APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS OF MARCH 6, 2008

RESOLVED, that, subject to the approval by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majomy of the issued and
outstanding common stock of the Corporation at the 2008 Anpual Meeting of Stockholderls of the Corporation,
() the first paragraph of Article IV, Section 4.1 of the Restated Cenificate of Incorporation of the Corporation shall
be amended, and (b) a new Section 4.4 shall be added to Article 1V of the Restated Centificate of Incorporation of the

Corporation, to read, respectively, as follows:

SecTioN 4.1 Authorization of Capital.  Effective at 11:59 p.m., Eastern Time, on|the filing date of this
Certificate of Amendment of Restated Centificate of Incorporation of the Corporation (ltlle “Effective Time"},
the total number of shares of all classes of capital stock which the Corporation shatl have uuthority 1o issue
shall be Twenty Million (20,000,000} shares, comprising Fifteen Million (15,000 000) shares of Common
Stock, with a par value of $.001 per share, and Five Million (5,000,000) shares of PrefelTred Stock, with a par
value of $.001 per share, as the Board of Directors may decide to issue pursuant to Section 4.3, which

constitutes a total authorized capital of all classes of capital stock of Twenty Thousand l|)ollam {$20,000.00).

Secriond.4  Reverse Stock Split.  As of the Elfective Time (as defined in Section tll 1 hereof), a one-for-

four reverse stock split of the Common Stock shall become effective, such that every four shares of Common
Stock outstanding (including wreasury shares) immediately prior to the Effective Time shall be reclassified and
combined into one share of Common Stock automatically and without any further action|by the holder thercof
upon the Effective Time, and shall represent one share of Common Stock from and after the Effective Time. No
fractional shares of Common Stock shall be issued as a result of such reclassification and combination. In lieu
of any fractional share to which the stockholder would otherwise be entitled, the Corpomuon shall pay cash
equal 1o such fraction multiplied by the product of (a) the average of the closing prices of the Common Stock as
reported on the Nasdaq Global Market or other principal market of the Common Slock for each of the five
trading days immediately preceding the Effective Time, and (b) four. Following the Effective Time, cach
holder of Common Stock shall be entitled to receive, upon surrender to the Corpo'rauon of certificates
representing Common Stock prior to the combination and reclassification described herein {~*Old Certifi-
cates™), a certificate or certificates representing the number of shares held by such holder after such
combination and reciassification (“New Certificates”). From and after the Effective Time, Old Cenificates

shall represent only the right to receive New Certificates.
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ANNEX B

PROPOSED SUPERIOR BANCORP 2008 INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

Superior Bancorp, a Delaware corporation (the “Company"™), by resolution of its Board of Directors, hereby
adopts the Superior Bancorp 2008 Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan will become effective upon
the approval of the Company’s stockholders (the “Effective Date™).

The purpose of the Plan is to promote the success and enhance the value of the Compa.ny by linking the
parsonal interests of its directors, officers and employees to those of the Company’s stockholders and by providing
sich individuals with an incentive for oulstanding performance to generate superior returns 10 the Company’s
siockholders. The Plan is further intended to provide flexibility to the Company in its ability to motivate, attract, and
retain the services of directors, officers and employees upon whose judgment, interest, and special effort the
snuceessful conduct of the Company’s operation is largely dependent.

ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS

Wherever the following terms are used in the Plan they shall have the meanings specified below, unless the
context clearly indicates otherwise. The singular pronoun shall include the plural where the context so indicates.

1.1.  “Administrator” shall mean the entity that conducts the general administration of the Plan as provided in
Anicle X.

1.2. “Award” shall mean an Option, a Restricted Stock Award, a Restricted Stock Unit Award, a Perfor-
niance Award, a Dividend Equivaleats Award, a Stock Appreciation Right or an Other Stock-Based Award, which
may be awarded or granted under the Plan (collectively, “Awards™).

1.3.  “Award Agreement” shall mean a written agreement executed by an authonzed oﬁ"lcer of the Company
and the Holder which shall contain such terms and conditions with respect to an Award as the Admmlstrator shall
determine, consistent with the Plan.

1.4, “Award Limit” shall mean 120,000 shares of Common Stock for grants to any individual in any calendar
year as adjusted pursuant to Section 11.3.

1.5. “Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Company.

1.6. “Change in Control" shall mean the occurrence of any of the following transactions or events occurring
on or after the Effective Date:

(a) a merger, consolidation or other corporate reorganization of the Company in which the Company
does not survive, or, if it survives, the shareholders of the Company before such transaction do not own more
than 50% of, respectively: (i) the common stock of the surviving entity, and (ii) the combined voling power of
any other outstanding securities entitled to vote on the election of directors of the surviving entity;

(b) the acquisition, other than from the Company, by any individual, entity or group (within the meaning
of Section 13(d)(3) or 14(d)(2) of the Exchange Act of beneficial ownership of 25% or more of either: (i) the
then outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company, or (ii) the combined volin‘g power of the then
outstanding voling securities of the Company entitled to vote generally in the election of directors; provided,
however, that neither of the following shall constitute a Change in Control:

(A) any acquisition by the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or any employee benefit plan (or related
trust) of the Company or its subsidiaries, or

(B) any acquisition by any corporation, entity, or group, if, following such acguisition, more than
50% of the then outstanding voting rights of such corporation, entity or group are owned, directly or
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indirectly, by ali or substantially all of the persons who were the owners of the {Commnn Stock of the
Company immediately prior to such acquisition; |
(c) individuals who, as of the effective date of the Plan, constitute the Board‘ of the Company (the
“Incumbent Board") cease for any reason to constitute at least a majority of the Board, provided that any
individual becoming a director subsequent to such date, whose election, or nomination for election by the
Company’s shareholders, was approved by a vole of at least a majority of the directors then comprising the
Board, shall be considered as though such individual were a member of the Incumbeni Board, but excluding,
for this purpose, any individual whose inilial assumption of office is in connection withian actual or threatened
election contest relating to the election of the directors of the Company (as such terms are used in Rule 14a-1 |
of Regulation 14A promulgated under the Exchange Act; or

(d) approval by the sharcholders of the Company of:
(i) a complete liquidation or dissolution of the Company, or

(ii) the sale or other disposition of all or substantially all the assets of lhe Company, other than
to a corporatian, with respect to which immediately following such sale or othcr disposition more
than 50%, respectively, of the then outstanding shares of common stock of sth corporation, and the
combined voting power of the then outstanding voling securities of such corporation entitled to vote
generally in the election of directors, is then beneficially owned, directly er indirectly, by all or
substantially all of the individuals and ertities who were the beneficial owners, respectively, of the
outstanding Common Stock of the Company, and the outstanding voting securities of the Company
immediately prior 1o such sale or other disposition, in substantially the same proportions as their
ownership, immediately prior to such sale or disposition, of the oulstandmg Common Stock of the
Company and outstanding securities of the Company, as the case may be. !

1.7.  “Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time 1o time.

1.8.  “Commirtee” shall mean the Compensation Committee of the Board, or another committee or sub-
commitice of the Board, appointed as provided in Section 10.1.

1.9.  “Common Stock” shall mean the common stock of the Company, par value $('|,l.OOI per share.
1.10. "Company” shall mean Superior Bancorp., a Delaware corporation.

I.11.  “Covered Emplovee” shall mean any Employee who is, or the Committee determines could be, a
“covered employee” within the meaning of Section 162{m) of the Code.

1.12.  “Direcror” shall mean a member of the Board.

1.13.  “Dividend Equivalent” shall mean a right to receive the equivalent value (in cash or Common Stock) of
dividends paid on Common Stock, awarded under Section 8.3 of the Plan. !

1.14.  “DRO" shall mean a domestic relations order as defined by the Code or T%lle [ of the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended from time to time, or the rules thelrcunder.

1.15.  “Effective Date” shall mean the date the Plan is approved by the Company's; stockholders.

1.16.  “Emplayee” shall mean any officer or other employee (as defincd in accordance with Section 3401(c)
of the Code) of the Company, or of any Subsidiary. |

1.17. . “Exchange Act™ shall mean the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended from time (o time.

. w | .
1.18.  “Fair Market Vafue " means, as of any date, the value of a share of Common Stock determined as
follows:

{a) If the Common Stock is listed on any established stock exchange (such a's the New York Stock
Exchange, the NASDAQ Global Market and the NASDAQ Global Select Market) or any national market
systern, including without limitation any market system of The NASDAQ Stock Mdrket the value of a share of
Common Stock shall be the closing sales price for a share of Common Stock as quolcd on such exchange or
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system for such date, or if there is no closing sales price for a share of Common Stock on‘[he date in question,
the closing sales price for a sharc of Common Stock on the last preceding date for which sluch quolation exists,
as reponied in The Wall Street Journal or such other source as the Administrator deems reliable;

{b) 1f the Common Stock is regularly quoted by a recognized securities dealer but closing sales prices are
not reported. the value of a share of Common Stock shall be the mean of the high bid and!low asked prices for
such date or, if there are no high bid and low asked prices for a share of Common Stock on 'the date in question,
the high bid and low asked prices for a share of Common Stock on the last preceding fdme for which such
information exists, as reported in The Wall Sireer Journal or such other source as the Administrator deems
reliable; or

(c) 1f the Common Stock is ncither listed on an established stock exchange or a nntlional markel system
nor regularly quoted by a recognized securities dealer, the value of a share of Common Stock shall be
established by the Administrator in good faith.

1.19.  “Fiscal Year” means the fiscal ycar of the Company.

1.20. “Full Value Award " means any Award other than an Option or a Stock Appreciation Right.

(.21. “Halder" shall mean a person who has been granted an Award.

1.22.  “lncentive Stock Qption” shall mean an option which conforms 10 the appl;icuble provisions of
Section 422 of the Code and which is designated as an Incentive Stock Option by the Administrator.

1.23.  “Non-Emplovee Director” shail mean a member of the Board who is not an Employee.

1.24.  “Non-Qualified Stock Option™ shall mean an Option which is not designated as an Incentive Stock
Option by the Administrator. ‘F

1.25.  "Opiion” shall mean a stock option granted under Anticle IV of the Plan. An Opuon granted under the’
Plan shall, as determincd by the Administrator, be either a Non-Qualified Stock Option oir an Incentive Stock
Option; provided, however, that Options granted 1o Non-Employee Dircctors shall be Non—Qua'llf' ied Stock Options.

1.26.  “Other Stock-Based Award™ shall have the meaning set forth in Section 8.5 ofjthe Plan.

1.27.  “Performance Award" shall mean a performance or incentive award that is denominated in siock and is
praid in cash, Common Stock or a combination of both, awarded under Scction 8.2 of the P!l.m

1.28. “Performance Criteria” means the criteria (and adjustments) that the Con‘amnttc-::i selects for un Award
for purposes of establishing the Performance Goal or Performance Goals for a Performance Period, determined as
foliows:

{a) The Performance Criteria that shall be used to establish Performance Goals are limited to the
foltowing: (i) net earnings (either before or after (A) intcrest, (B) taxes, (C) depreciation and (D) amortization),
(ii) pross or net sales or revenue, (iii) nct income (either before or after taxes). (iv) oper.mng profit, (v) cash
flow (including, but not limited to, operating cash flow and frec cash flow), {vi)return on 'assets, (vii) return on
capital, (viii) return on stockholders’ equity, (ix) return on sales, (x) gross or net profit or operating margin,
(xi) costs, {xii) funds from operations, (xiii) expense, (xiv) working capital, {xv) eamings per share, and
(xvi) price per share of Common Stock, (xvii) regulatory ratings, (xviii) market share, (xlx) growth in loans
and/or other assels, (xx) growth in deposits and (xxi) various measures of credit quality, any of which may be
measured either in absolute terms or as compared to any incremental increasc or decrease or as compared 1o
results of a peer group.

(b) The Committce may, in its discretion, at the time of grant, specify in the Award that one or more
objectively determinable adjustments shall be made 10 one or more of the Performance Goals. Such
adjustments may include one or more of the following: (i) items related to a change in accounting principle;
(it} items relating to financing aciivities; (iit) expenses for restructuring or productivity|initiatives; (iv) other
non-operating items; (v) items related to acquisitions; (vi) items attibutable to the busmcss operations of any
entity acquired by the Company during the Performance Period; (vii) items related 1o the dlspoc:xi of a business
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or segment of a business; or (viii} items related to discontinued operations that do not qualify as a segment of a
business under United States generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP”),

1.29. “Performance Goals" means, for a Performance Period, one or more goals established in writing by the
Committee for the Performance Period based upon one or more Performance Criteria. Depending on the
Performance Criteria used to establish such Performance Goals, the Performance Goals may be expressed in
terms of overall Company performance or the performance of a division, business umt or an individual. The
achicvement of cuch Performance Goal shall be determined in accordance with GAAP 10 the extent applicable.

1.30.  “Performance Period" means one or more periods of time, which may be of vz'u-ying and overlapping
durations, as the Conunillee may select, over which the attainment of one or more Pert”ormancc. Goals will be
measured for the purpose of determining a Holder's right (0, and the payment of, a Performance Award.

1.31.  “Plan” shall mean the Superior Bancorp 2008 Incentive Compensation Plan, as‘ amended from time to
time.

£.32.  “Prior Award"” shall mean a stock option, restricted stock or other stock award Igrzmued under any Prior
Plan. ' |

1.33.  “Prior Plan" shall mean the Third Amended and Resiated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan of The Banc
Corporation, as amended from time 10 time.

1.34.  “Restricted Stock™ shall mean Common Stock awarded under Article VII of the Plan that is subject to
repurchase or forfeiture,

1.35.  “Restricted Stock Units” shall mean rights to receive Common Stock or its cash equivaient awarded
under Section 8.4.

1.36. “Rule 16b-3" shall mean Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act] as such Hule may be
amended from time to time.

1.37.  “Securities Act” shali mean the Securities Act of 1933, as amended from time to time.

1.33.  “Srock Appreciation Right” shall mean a stock appreciation right granted underl Article IX of the Plan.

1.39,  “Subsidiary” means any entity (other than the Company), whether domestic or foreign, in an unbroken
chain of entities beginning with the Company if cach of the entities other than the last entity in the unbroken chain
beneficially owns, at the time of the determination, securities or interests representing more than fifty percent (50%)
of the tatal combined vating power of all classes of securities or interests in one of the othclr entities m such chain.

1.40.  “Subsidiarv Corporation” shall mean any corporation in an unbroken chain of It:orpc.rauicon 3 bc:ginning
with the Company if each of the corporations other than the last corporation in the unbmker{ chain then owns stock
possessing fifty percent (50%) or more of the total combined voting power of all classes of slock in one of the other
corporations in such chain. |

1.4}, “Substitwie Award™ shall mean an Award granted under this Plan upon Lhi. assumption of, or in

substitution for, outstanding equity awards previously granted by a company or other enuty in connection with a.

corporate transaction, such as a merger, combination, consolidation or acquisition of propeérty or stock: provided,
however, that in no event shall the term “Substitute Award” be consurued to refer to an award made in connection
with the cancellation and repricing of an Option or Stock Appreciation Right.

142,  “Termination of Directorship” shall mean the time when a Holder who is a Non-Employee Director
ceascs (0 be a Director for any reason, including, without limitation, a termination by resignation, failure to be
elected, death or retirement. The Adminisirator. in its discretion, shatl determine the effect of all maners and
questions relating to Termination of Directorship with respect to Non-Employee Directors.

.43,  “Termination of Emplovment " shall mean the 1ime when the employee-employer relationship between
a Holder and the Company or any Subsidiary is terminated for any reason, with or without cajuse, including, without
limitation, a termination by resignation, discharge, death, disability or retirement; but excluding terminations where
there is a simultaneous recmployment or continuing employment of a Holder by the Comllmny or any Subsidiary.
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The Administrator, in its discretion, shall determine the effect of all matters and questions relalir;\g to Termination of
Employment, including, without limitation, the question of whether a Termination of Emp]oyr}mnt resulted from a
discharge for cause; provided, however, that, with respect to Incentive Stock Options, uness the Administrator
otherwise provides in the terms of the Award Agreement or otherwise, a leave of absence, change in status from an
etnployee to an independent contractor or other change in the employee-employer rclationsh‘ip shall constitule a
Termination of Employment if, and to the extent that, such leave of absence, change in status or other change
interrupts employment for the purposes of Section 422(a)(2) of the Code and the then appliczlabie regulations and
revenue rulings undef said Section. For purposes of the Plan, a Holder's employee-employer ll'elationship shall be
deemed to be terminated in the event that the Subsidiary employing such Holder ceases to remain a Subsidiary

following any merger, sale of stock or other corporate transaction or event (including, without limitation, a spin-off).

ARTICLE H
SHARES SUBJECT TO PLAN

2.1. Shares Subject to Plan. ,

(a) Subject to Section 11.3 and Section 2.1(b), the aggregate number of shares of Comm(:m Stock that may be
issued or transferred pursuant to Awards under the Plan shall be 1,200,000 shares (the “Initial Authorized Shares™).
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock that may be issued or
uansferred pursuant to Full Value Awards under the Plan shall not exceed 360,000 shares. i

{b) To the exient that an Award under the Plan or 2 Prior Award under the Prior Plan telrminales, expires, is

s=tiled in cash, lapses or is forfeited for any reason, any shares of Common Stock then subj:er.‘lI to such Award shall
again be available for the grant of an Award pursuant to the Plan. To the extent permitted by a'pplicable law or any
exchange rule, shares of Common Stock issued in assumption of, or in substitution for, any outstanding awards of
any entity acquired in any form of combination by the Company or any Subsidiary shall not be counted against
shares of Common Stock available for grant pursuant to this Plan. The payment of Dividend Equivalents in cash in
conjunction with any outstanding Awards shall not be counted against the shares available fcl)r issuance under the
Flan. Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section 2.1(b), no shares of Common Stock may again be optioned,
granted or awarded if such action would cause an Incentive Siock Option to fail to qualify zins an incentive stock
cption under Section 422 of the Code. In addition, the following shares of Common Stock shall not become
available for purposes of the Plan: (1) shares of Common Stock previously owned or acquired by the Holder that are
celivered 1o the Company, or withheld from an Award, to pay the exercise price, (2) shares of; Common Stock that
zre delivered or withheld for purposes of satisfying a tax withholding obligation, or (3) shares of Common Stack

. L] .
reserved for issuance upon the grant of a SAR that exceed the number of shares actually issued upon exercise.

. Lo :
2.2, Stock Distributed. Any Common Stock distributed pursuant to an Award shall consist, in whole or in
pan, of authorized and unissued Common Stock, shares of Common Stock held in treasury or shares of Common
fitock purchased on the open market. |

2.3.  Limitation on Number of Shares Subject to Awards. Notwithstanding any provision in the Plan to the
contrary, and subject to Article X1, the maximum number of shares of Common Stock with respect to one or more
Awards that may be granted to any one Employee during any calendar year shall not exceed lhfc Award Limit. To the
¢:xtent required by Section 162(m) of the Code, shares subject to Awards which are canceled shall continue to be
ounted against the Award Limit. .

ARTICLE Il
GRANTING OF AWARDS

3.1. Award Agreement. Each Award shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement, Award Agreements
cvidencing Awards intended to qualify as performance-based compensation (as described in Section 162(m)(4){C)
of the Code) shall contain such terms and conditions as may be necessary to meet the applicable provisions of
Section 162(m) of the Code. Award Agreements evidencing Incentive Stock Options shall contain such terms and
~onditions as may be necessary to meet the applicable provisions of Section 422 of the Code.
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3.2.  Provisions Applicable to Seciion 162{in} Performance-Based Compensation,

{1} The Commitiee. in its discretion, may determine whether an Award is to quahfy as performance-based
compensation (as described i in Section 162(m)}{4)(C) of the Code).

{b) Notwithstanding anythmg in the Plan to the contrary, the Committee may grant any Award 19 a Covered
Employee. including Restricied Stock the restrictions with respect to which lapse upon the attainment of specified
Performance Goals and any performance or incentive award described in Article VHI [that vests or becomes
exercisable or payable upon the atainment of one or more specified Performance Goals.

(c) To the extent necessary to comply with the performance-based compensation requirements of
Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code, with respect to any Award granted under Articles ViI and VIIl which may
be granted to one or more Covered Employees, no later than ninety (90) days following thejcommencernent of any
Performance Period (or such earlier time as may be required under Section 162(m) of the Code), the Commitiee
shall, in wriling, {i) designate one or more Covered Employees, (ii) select the Performance Cnlcna applicable to the
Performance Period (including any applicable adjustments), (iii} establish the various performance targels, In terms
of an objective formula or standard, and amounts of such Awards, as applicable, which may be eamed for such
Performance Period, and (iv) specify the relationship between Performance Criteria and Lhe performance targets
and the amounts of such Awards, as applicable, 10 be earned by each Covered Emp]oyee for such Performance
Period. Following the completion of each Performance Period, the Committee shall cemfy in writing whether the
applicable performance targets have been achieved for such Performance Period. In delermtpmg the amount earned
by a Covered Employee, the Committee shall have the right to reduce (but not to increase} fhc amount payable at a
given level of performance to take into account additional factors that the Commitiee may deem relevant to the
assessment of individual or corporate performance for the Performance Period.

{d) Funthermore, notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, any Award which is granted to a Covered
Employee and is intended to qualify as performance-based compensation (as described in Secuon 162(m)(4)(C) of
the Code} shall be subject 1o any additional limitations set forth in Section 162(m) of lhe Code (including any
amendment to Section 162(m) of the Code} or any reguiations or rulings issued thereunder lpal are requirements for
qualification as performance-based compensation {as described in Section 162(m}4)(C) ofithe Code), and the Plan
shall be deemed amended 1o the extent necessary to conform to such requirements.

(¢) The maximum aggregate amount of all Awards intended to qualify as pcrfonnancc -based compensation
during any calendar year shall not exceed the Award Limit. Unless otherwise specified by lhe Administrator at the
time of grant, the Performance Criteria with respect to an Award payable to a Covered Employee shall be
determined on the basis of GAAP.

3.3, Limitarions Applicable to Section 16 Persons. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, the
Plan, and any Award granted or awarded 10 any individual who is then subject 1o Section l6 of the Exchange Act,
shall be subject to any additional limitations set forth in any applicable exemptive rule inder Section 16 of the
Exchange Act (including any amendmeat to Rule 16b-3 of the Exchange Act) that are requirements for the
application of such exemptive rule. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Plan land Awards granted or

awarded hereunder shall be deemed amended to the extem necessary to conform 1o such applicable exemprive rule.

3.4, Ar-Will Employment. Nothing in the Plan or in any Award Agreement hereundfer shali confer upon any
Holder any right 1o continue in the employ of the Company or any Subsidiary, or as a Director of the Company, or
shall interfere with or restrict in any way the rights of the Company and any Subsidiary, :Wthh rights are: hereby
expressly reserved, 1o discharge any Holder at any time for any reason whatsocver, with or without cause, except to
the extent expressly provided otherwise in a written employment agreement between the Holder and the Company
and any Subsidiary.

ARTICLE IV
GRANTING OF OPTIONS TO EMPLOYEES AND NON-EMPLOYEE DIIRECT ORS

4.1, Eligibitity. Any Employee or Non-Employee Director selected by the Administrator pursuant to
Section 4.4(a) shall be eligible to be granted an Option.
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4.2. Disqualification for Stock Ownership. No person may be granted an Incentive Stqck Option under the
Plan if such person, at the time the Incentive Stock Option is granted, owns stock possessing more than 10% of the
tetal combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any then existing Subsiﬁliary Corporation or
parent corporation (as defined in Section 424(e) of the Code) unless such Incentive Stock Oleion conforms to the

applicable provisions of Section 422 of the Code.

4.3. Qualification of Incentive Stock Options. No Incentive Stock Option shall be gr%med (o any person
who is not an Employee of the Company or a Subsidiary Corporation.

4.4, Granting of Options.

(a) Options may be awarded to any Employee or Non-Employee Director who the Administrator determines

should receive such an Award. The Administrator shall in its discretion, and, subject to applicable limitations of the
Plan:

(i) Subject to the Award Limit, determine the number of shares to be subject to such Options granied;

(i) Subject to Section 4.2 and Section 4.3, determine whether such Options are to be Incentive Stock
Options or Non-Qualified Stock Options; and

(iii) Determine the terms and conditions of such Options, consistent with the Plan.

(b) Upon the selection of an Employee or Non-Employee Director to be granted an Option, the Administrator
shall instruct the Secretary of the Company Lo issue the Option and may impose such conditions on the grant of the
Cption as it deems appropriale.

(c) Any Incentive Stock Option granied under the Plan may be modified by the Adrlninistrmor. with the
consent of the Holder, to disqualify such Option from treatment as an “incentive stock option™ under Section 422 of

the Code.

ARTICLE V
TERMS OF OPTIONS !

5.1. Option Price. The price per share of Common Stock subject to each Option graml:d 10 Employees and
Mon-Employee Directors shall be set by the Administrator; provided, however, that: |

I
(2) Except in the case of an Option that is a Substitute Award, such price shall not be less than 100% of
the Fair Market Vatue of a share of Common Stock on the date the Option is granted (or, infthe case of Incentive
Stock Options, the date the Option is modified, extended or renewed for purposes of Section 424(h) of the
Code); and

(b) Tn the case of Incentive Stock Options granted to an individual then owning (within the meaning of
Section 424(d} of the Code) more than 10% of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the
Company or any Subsidiary Corporation or parent corporation thereof (as defined in Section 424(e) of the
Code), such price shall not be less than 110% of the Fair Market Value of a share of Comrr:lon Stock on the date
the Option is granted (or the date the Option is modified, extended or renewed for purposes of Section 424(h)
of the Code); and

5.2. OptionTerm. Theterm of an Option granted to an Employee or Non-Employee Director shall be set by
1¢ Administrator in its discretion; provided, however, that the term shall not be more than lCI:l {10) years from the
cate the Option is granted, or five (5) years from the date the Option is granted if the Option is an Incentive Stock
Option granted to an individual then owning (within the meaning of Section 424(d) of the Code) more than 10% of
(2¢ tota! combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Company or any Subsidiary Corporation or parent
corporation thereof (as defined in Section 424(e) of the Code). Except as limited by requirements of Section 409A
cr Section 422 of the Code and regulations and rulings thereunder, the Administrator may exflend the term of any
cutstanding Option in connection with any Termination of Employment or Termination of Directorship of the
Holder, or amend any other term or condition of such Option relating to such a Terminalio‘n of Employment or
Termination of Directorship. |
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5.3. Option Vesting. [

(a} The period during which the right to exercise, in whole or in part, an Option vests in the Holder shall be set
by the Administrator and the Administrater may determine that an Option may not be exercnsed in whole or in part
for a specificd period after it is granted. At any time after grani of an Option, the Admmlslralor may, in its discretion
and subject to whatever terms and conditions it selecis, accelerate the period during which an Opticn vests.

{b) A Option is exercisable only while the Holder is an Employee or Non-Employee Director, as applicable;
provided, however, that the Administrator in its discretion may provide that the Option may be exercised subsequent
1o a Termination of Employment or Termination of Directorship, as applicable, following a Change in Control or
because of the Holder's retirement, death or disability or termination without cause, or otherwise.

(c) To the extent that the aggregate fair market value of stock with respect 10 which * mcenuve stock optiens”
(within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code, but without regard to Section 422(d) of thc Code) are exercisable
for the first time by a Holder during any calendar year under the Plan, and all other plans oﬁlhc Company and any
Subsidiary Corporation or parent corporation thereof (as defined in Section 424(e) of the Code), exceeds $100,000,
the Options shall be treated as Non-Qualified Stock Options to the extent required by Section 422 of the Code. The
rule set forth in the preceding sentence shall be applied by taking Options and other “incentive stock options™ into
account in the order in which they were granted. For purposes of this Section 5.3(c), the fair market value of stock
shall be determined as of the time the Option or other “incentive stock options™ with respect 1o such stock is granted.

ARTICLE VI
EXERCISE OF OPTIONS

6.1.  Partial Exercise. An exercisable Oplion may be exercised in whole or in parl. However, an Option
shall not be exercisable with respect to fractional shares and the Administrator may require that, by the terms of the

Option, a partial exercise be with respect to a minimum number of shares.
l

6.2. Mannerof Exercise.  All or a portion of an exercisable Option shall be deemed cxcnclscd upon delivery
of all of the foliowing to the Secretary of the Company, or such other person or enmy designatzd by the
Administrator, or his, her or its office, as applicable:

(a) A writien notice complying with the applicable rulcs established by the Admmnstralor stating that the
Option, or a portion thereof, is exercised. Such rules may provide that for admlms(rauve convenience an
Option may not be exercised during such period (not exceeding 10 days) as is spec:ﬁed in advance by the
Administrator. The notice shall be signed by the Holder or other person then entitled [0‘ exercise the Option or

such portion of the Option; i

{b) Such representations and documems as the Administrator, in its dlSCI'CUOII deems necessary or
advisable 1o effect compliance with all applicable provisions of the Securities Act and nny other federal, state
or lorcign securities laws or regulations. The Administrator may, in its discretion, also lz{ke whatever ndditional
actions it deems appropriate 10 effect such compliance including, without limitation, plucing legends on share

certificates and issuing stop-transfer notices to agents and registrars;

(c) In the eveat that the Option shall be exercised pursuani to Section 1.1 by any person or persons other
than the Holder, appropriate proof of the right of such person or persons to cxercisel the Option; and

() Full cash payment to the Secretary of the Company for the shares with respccl'lo which the Option, or
portion thereof, is exercised. However, the Administrator may, in its discretion, (i) allow payment, in whole or
in part. through the delivery of shares of Commeon Stock which have been owned by lhla Holder for ai least six
months, duly endorsed for transfer to the Company with a Fair Market Value on the date'of delivery equal o the
aggregate exercisc price of the Option or exercised portion thereof; (ii) allow pnymelm in whole or in part,
through the surrender of shares of Common Stock then issuable upon exercise of the Option having a Fair
Marke! Value on the date of Option exercise equal 10 the aggrepate exercise price of the Option or exercised
portion thereof; (iii) allow payment, in whole or in part, through the delivery of property of any kind which

constitutes good and valuable consideration; (iv) allow payment, in whole or in part, lhrough the delivery of 2
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notice that the Holder has placed a market sell order with a broker with respect 1o sharcé of Common Stock
then issuable upon exercise of the Option, and the broker timely pays a sufficient portion ot‘ the net proceeds of
the sale to the Company in satisfaction of the Option exercise price; or (v) allow paymem through any
combination of the consideration provided in the foregoing subparagraphs (i), (ii). (m) and (iv); provided,
however, that the payment in the manner prescribed in the preceding paragraphs shall nol be permitted 1o the
extent that the Administrator determines that payment in such masncr shall result in an extension or
maintenance of credit, an arrangement for the extension of credit, or a renewal or an:exiension of credit
in the form of a personal loan 1o or for any Director or executive officer of the Company that is prohibited by
Section 13(k} of the Exchange Act or other applicable law.

6.3. Conditions io Issuance of Stock Certificates. The Company shall not be required lo issue ordeliver any
certificate or certificates for shares of stock purchased upon the exercise of any Option or portion thereof prior to
fulfillment of all of the following conditions:

(2) The admission of such shares to listing on all stock exchanges on which such class of stock is then
listed;

{(b) The completion of any registration or other qualification of such shares under any federal, state or
foreign law, or under the rulings or regulations of the Securities and Exchange Comrrllission or any other
governmental regulatory body which the Administrator shall, in its discretion, deem necessary or advisable;

(c) The obtaining of any approval or other clearance from any federal, state or foreign governmental
agency which the Administrator shall, in its discretion, determine 10 be necessary or advisable;

(d) The lapse of such reasonable period of time following the exercise of the Option'as the Administrator
may establish from time o time for reasons of administrative convenience; and ’

(e) The receipt by the Company of full payment for such shares, including paymém of any applicable
withholding tax, which in the discretion of the Administrator may be in the form of conslderauon used by the
Holder 10 pay for such shares under Section 6.2(d).

6.4. Righis as Stockholders. Holders shall not be, nor have any of the rights or privileges of, stockholders of
(2e Company in respect of any shares purchasabie upon the exercise of any pan of an Option unless and until
certificates representing such shares have been issued by the Company to such Holders.

6.5. Ownership and Transfer Restrictions. The Administrator, in its discretion, ma)’iimpose such restric-
tions on the ownership and transferability of the shares purchasable upon the exercise of an Option as it deems
uppropriate. Any such restriction shall be set forth in the respective Award Agreement and ma)‘r be referred to on the
certificates evidencing such shares. The Holder shall give the Company prompt notice of any'disposition of shares
of Common Stock acquired by exercise of an Incentive Stock Option within (a) two years from the date of granting
(including the date the Option is modified, extended or renewed for purposes of Section 4"4(h) of the Code) such

Option to such Holder, or (b) one year after the transfer of such shares 10 such Holder.

6.6. Additional Limitations on Exercise of Options. Holders may be required to comply with any timing or
other restrictions with respect to the settlement or exercise of an Option, including a windowi-period limitation, as
may be imposed in the discretion of the Administrator. |

ARTICLE V11
AWARD OF RESTRICTED STOCK

7.1.  Eligibility. Subject to the Award Limii, Restricted Stock may be awarded to arrly Employee or Non-
Employee Dircctor who the Administrator determines should receive such an Award.
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7.2, Award of Restricted Stock.

(a) The Administrator may from time o time, in its discretion:

(i) Select from among the Employees or Non-Employee Directors (including Employees or Non-
Employee Directors who have previously received Awards under the Plan) such of them as in its opinion
should be awarded Restricted Stock; and

(i} Determine the purchase price, if any, and other terms and conditions applicable to such Restricted
Stock, consistent with the Plan.

{(b) The Administrator shall establish the purchase price, if any, and form of payment for Restricted Stock:
provided, however, that such purchase price shall be no fess than the minimum amount required by applicable state
law.

-{c) Upon the selection of an Employee or Non-Employee Director to be awarded Restricted Stock, the
Administrator shall instruct the Secretary of the Company to issue such Restricted Stock|and may impose such
conditions on the issuance of such Restricted Stock as it deems appropriate.

7.3.  Righis as Stockholders. Subject to Section 7.4, upon delivery of the shares of Restricted Stock to the
escrow holder pursuant to Section 7.5, the Holder shall have, unless otherwise provided by lhlc Administrator, all the
rights of a stockholder with respect to said shares, subject to the restrictions in his or her Award Agreement,
including the right 10 receive al! dividends and other distributions paid or made with respect Ito the shares; provided,
however, 1hat, in the discretion of the Administrator, any extraordinary distributions with respect to the Common
Stock shall be subject to the restrictions set forth in Section 7.4.

7.4. Resmriction. All shares of Restricted Stock issued under the Plan (including any shares received by
Holders thereaf with respect to shares of Restricted Stock as a result of stock divideads, stock splits or any other
form of recapitalization) shall, in the terms of each individual Award Agreement, be subject to such restrictions as
the Administrator shall provide, which restrictions may include, without limitation, restrictions conceming voling
rights and transferability and restrictions based on duration of employment or dlreclorshlp with the Company,
Company performance and individual performance; provided, however, by action taken afier the Restricted Stock is
issucd, the Administrator may, on such terms and conditions as it may determine to be appropnate remove any or
all of the restrictions imposed by the terms of the Award Agreement. Restricted Slock may not be sold or
encumbered until all restrictions are terminated or expire. A Holder's rights in unvested Restricted Stock shall lapse,
and such Restricted Stock shall be surrendered 10 the Company without conSIderauon!. upon Termination of
Employment or Termination of Directorship, as applicable; provided, however, that th:c Administrator in its
discretion may provide that such rights shall not lapse in the event of a Termination of Employment or Termination
of Directorship. as applicable. following a Change in Control or because of the Holder’s retirement, death or
disability or termination without cause, or otherwise. i

7.5. Escrow. ‘'The Secretary of the Company or such other escrow holder as the Aerinislrator may appoint
shall retain physical custody of each centificate representing Restricted Stock until all of thc restrictions imposed
under the Award Agreement with respect to the shares evidenced by such certificate explre or shall have been
removed.

7.7. Legend. In order 10 enforce the restrictions imposed upon shares of Resmcted Stock hereunder, the
Administrator shall cause a legend or legends to be placed on certificates representing all shares of Restricted Stock
that are still subject to restrictions under Award Agreements, which legend or legends shall make appropnate
reference to the conditions imposed thereby.

7.8. Section 83(b) Election. 1f a Holder makes an election under Section 83(b) of the Code, or any
successor section thereto, to be taxed with respect to the Restricted Stock as of the date of Lr;ansfcr of the Restricted
Stock rather than as of the date or dates upon which the Holder would otherwise be taxable under Section 83(a) of
the Code, the Holder shall deliver a copy of such election to the Company immediately after filing such election
with the Internal Revenue Service.
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ARTICLE VIl

PERFORMANCE AWARDS, DIVIDEND EQUIVALENTS, , RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS, OTHER
STOCK-BASED AWARDS

8.1, Eligibiliry. Subject 10 the Award Limit, one or more Performance Awards, Dividend Equivalent
Awards, Restricted Stock Unit Awards and/or Other Stock-Based Awards may be granted to any Employee or Non-
Employee Director whom the Administrator determines should receive such an Award. z

8.2. Performance Awards. Any Employee or Non-Employee Director selecied by lhe" Administrator may
be: granted one or more Performance Awards. The value of such Performance Awards may be linked to any one or
more of the Performance Criteria or other specific performance criteria determined appropriate by the Admin-
istrator, in each case on a specified date or dates or over any period or periods determined by the Administrator. In
making such determinations, the Administrator shall consider (among such other factors as it de'ems relevantin light

o' the specific type of award) the contributions, responsibilities and other compensation of the pamcular Employee
or Non-Employee Director.

8.3. Dividend Equivalents. Any Employee or Non-Employee Dircctor selected by the Administrator may
b: granted Dividend Equivalenis based on the dividends declared on Common Stack, to be credited as of dividend
payment dates, during the period between the date a Full Value Award is granted and the date such Full Value Award
vests, is exercised. is distributed or expires, as determined by the Administrator. Such Dividend Equivalents shalt be
converted to cash or additional shares of Common Stock by such formuia and at such time|and subject 10 such
limitations as may be determined by the Administrator.

8.4. Restricted Stock Units.  Any Employee or Non-Employee Director selected by lh(|: Administrator may
be granted an award of Restricted Stock Units in the manner determined from time to time by the Administrator. The
Administrator is authorized to make awards of Restricted Stock Units in such amounts and subject 1o such terms and
conditions as determined by the Administrator. The Administrator shall specify the date or dates on which the
Festricted Stock Units shall become fully vested and nonforfeitable, and may specify such conditions to vesting as it
ceems appropriate, and may specify that such Restricted Stock Units become fuily vested and nonforfeitable
pursuant o the satisfaction of one or more Performance Goals or other specific performance goals as the
Administrator determines 1o be appropriate at the time of the grani, in each case on a specified date or dates
or over any period or periods determined by the Administrator. The Administrator shall sptrzcify the distribution
dlates applicable to each award of Restricted Stock Units which shall be no earlier than the vesting dates or events of
the award and may be determined at the election of the Employee or Non-Employee Director, subject to compliance
with Section 409A of the Code. Payment of Restricted Stock Units shall be in cash, in Common Stock or 2

vombination of both, as determined by the Administrator.

8.5. Other Stock-Based Awards. Any Employee or Non-Employee Director selected by the Administrator
inay be granied an Other Stock-Based Award (as hereinafter defined) in the manner determined from 1ime to time by
ihe Administrator. An Other Stock-Based Award means any other type of equity-based or equity-related Award not
ntherwise described by the terms of this Plan (including the grant or offer for sale of unrestricted Shares} in such
smount and subject to such terms and conditions as the Administrator shall determine. Such Awards may involve
the transfer of actual shares of Common Stock, or payment in cash or otherwise of amounts based on the value of
shares of Common Stock.

8.6. Termination of Employment or Termination of Directorship. A Performance Award, Dividend Equiv-
ilent Award, Restricted Stock Unit Award andfor Other Stock-Based Award is exercisablejor distributable only
while the Holder is an Employee or Non-Employee Director, as applicable; provided, however, that the Admin-
istrator in its discretion may provide that the Award may be exercised or distributed subscqucnl 10 a Termination of
Employment or Termination of Directorship, as applicable, following a Change in Contiol or because of the

Holder's retirement, death or disability or termination without causc, or otherwise.
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ARTICLE IX
STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS

9.1. Grant of Stock Appreciution Rights. A Stock Appreciation Right may be granted to any Employee or
Non-Employee Director selected by the Administrator. A Stock Appreciation Right m:r:y be granted: (2) in
connection and simultaneously with the grant of an Option, or (b) independent of an Option. A Stock Appreciation
Right shall be subject to such terms and conditions not inconsistent with the Plan as the Administrator shall impose
and shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement.

9.2. Coupled Stock Appreciation Righis.

(a) A Coupled Stock Appreciation Right ("CSAR™) shall be related 10 a particular Option and shali be
exervisable only when and to the extent the related Option is exercisable.

{b) A CSAR may be granted to the Holder for no more than the number of shares SUbjCC( to the simultaneously
granted Option to which it is coupled.

(c) A CSAR shall entitle the Holder {or other person entitled to exercise the Option pursuam to the Plan) to
surrender 1o the Company unexercised a portion .of the Option to which the CSAR relatles (1o the extent then
exercisable pursuant to its terms) and to receive from the Company in exchange therefor an amount determined by
multiplying (i) the difference obtained by subtracting the exercise price per share of the CSAR from (ii) the Fair
Market Value of a share of Comimon Stock on the date of exercise of the CSAR by the numbcr of shares of Common
Stock with respect to which the CSAR shall have been exercised, subject to any limitations lhe Administrator may

impose. !

9.3, Independent Stock Appreciation Righis.

(a) An Independent Stock Appreciation Right (“ISAR") shali be unrelated to any Option and shall have a term
set by the Administrator in its discretion; provided, however, that the term shall not be more than ten (10) years from
the date the ISAR is granted. An [SAR shall be exercisable in such installments as the Administrator may determine.
An ISAR shall cover such number of shares of Common Stock as the Administrator may dt:termmc The exercise
price per share of Common Stock subject to each ISAR shall be set by the Admmlslmlor provided, that such
exercise price per share shail not be less than 100% of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date
the 1SAR is granted. An 1SAR is exercisable only while the Holder is an Employee or Non—E.mpioyec Director;
provided, that the Administrator may provide that ISARs may be exercised lollowing a Termination of Employ-
ment, or Termination of Directorship, as applicable, or following a Change in Control, or because of the Holder's
retirement, death or disability or termination without cause, or otherwise. |

(b) An ISAR shall entitlc the Holder (or other person entitled to exercise the ISAR pursuant to the Plan) to
exercise all or a specified portion of the ISAR (to the extent then exercisable pursvant to u's terms) and to receive
from the Company an amount determined by multiplying (i} the difference obtained by subtmcung the exercise
price per share of the ISAR from the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on Ihe date of exercise of the
ISAR by (ii} the number of shares of Common Stock with respect 1o which the ISAR shall have been exercised,
subject to any limitations the Administrator may impose. ‘

9.4. Faymemt and Limitations on Exercise. ‘

(2) Payment of the amounts determined under Section 9.2(c) and 9.3(b) above shall be in cash, shares of
Common Stock (based on its Fair Market Value as of the date the Stock Appreciation REght is exercised), or a
combination of both, as determined by the Administrator. The Company shall not be requ:red to issue or deliver any
certificate or certificates for shares of stock issuable upon the exercise of any Stock Apprecmnon Right prior to
fulfiltment of the conditions set forth in Section 6.3 above.

(b) Holders of Stock Appreciation Rights may be required 1o comply with any timing o:r other restrictions with
respeci to the settlernem or exercise of a Stock Appreciation Right, including a window- -period limitation, as may be
imposed in the discretion of the Administrator. |




ARTICLE X.
ADMINISTRATION

10.1.° Committee. The Committee shall consist solely of two or more Non-Employee Directors appointed
b and holding office at the pleasure of the Board, each of whom is intended to (a) be indeptendcm under rules
promulgated by a securities exchange on which the Company's Common Stock is listed and (b) qualify as both a
“non-employee director” as defined by Rule 16b-3 and an “outside director” for purposes of Secnon 162(m) of the
Code. Appointment of Committee members shall be effective upon acceptance of appomtmenl Commiliee
mrembers may resign at any time by ‘delivering written notice to the Board. Vacancies in u?e Commiitee may
b filled by the Board.

10.2. Duties and Powers of Committee. It shall be the duty of the Committee to conduct the general
administration of the Plan in accordance with its provisions. The Commiltee shalt have the power 10 interpret the
Plan and the Award Agreements, and to adopt such rulcs for the administration, interpretation and application of the
Plan as are consistent therewith, to interpret, amend or revoke any such rules, and to amend any Award Agreement
provided that the rights or obligations of the Holder of the Award that is the subject of any such Award Agreement
ase not affected adversely. Any such grant or award under the Plan need not be the same with respect 10 each Holder.
2Any such interpretations and rules with respect to Incentive Stock Options shall be consistent wuh the provisions of
Section 422 of the Code. In its discretion, the Board may al any time and from time to time ¢xercise any and all
rights and duties of the Committee under the Plan except with respect o matters which under Rule 16b-3 or
Section 162{m) of the Code, or any regulations or rules issued thereunder, are required to bt; determined in the
discretion of the Committee. The Board or the Committee may in its discretion, and consistent with applicable law,
delegate to one or more officers of the Company all or part of the Commitiee’s authority and dullc‘: with respect to
Awards to be granted to individuals who are (i) not subject to the reporting requirements of Section 16 of the
Exchange Act, and (ji) not Covered Employees. , |

i

10.3.  Majority Rule; Unanimous Written Consent.  The Commiltee shall act by a_majoﬁty of its members in
attendance at a meeting at which a quorum is present or by a memorandum or other written instrument signed by all
rnembers 'of the Committee.

10.4. Compensation; Professional Assistance; Good Faith Actions. Members of lhe Committee shall
teceive such compensation, if any, for their services as members as may be determined by the Bonrd All expensés
znd liabilities which members of the Commitiee incur in connection with the adminisiration/of the Plan shall be
home by the Company. The Committee may, with the approval of the Board, employ attomneys. consultants,
iccountants, appraisers, brokers or other persons, The Committee, the Company and the Company s officers and
Directors shall be entitled to rely upon the advice, opinions or valuations of any such persons AII actions taken and
all interpretations and determinations made by the Committee or the Board in good faith shall) ‘be final and binding
upon all Holders, the Company and all other interested persons. No members of the Committee or Board shall be
personally liable for any action, determination or interpretation made in good faith with respect (o the Plan or
Awards, and all members of the Commitiee and the Board shalt be fully protected by the Company in respect of any
such action, determination or mlcrprclauon !

!
|

ARTICLE XI
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

11.1. Transferabiiity of Awards.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in Section 11.1(b):

(i) No Award under the Plan may be sold, pledged, assigned or transferred in any manner other than by
will or the laws of descent and distribution or, subject to the consent of the Administrator, pursuant to a DRO,
unless and until such Award has been exercised, or the shares underlying such Award have been issued, and all

-restrictions applicable to such shares have lapsed;
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- {c} Subject to Sections 101.3(d) and 3.2, the Administrator ‘may, in its discrction,'include. such further
provisions and limitations in any Award, agreement or ceflificate, as it may deem equilable and in the best
interests of the Company. - ' : . o '

(d) With respeci 0 Awards which are granled to Covered Employees and are intended to qualify as
performance-based compensation under Section 162(m}(4)(C). no adjustment or acuon described in this
Section 11.3 or in any other provision of the Plan shall be authorized to the extent that such adjustment or action
would cause such Award to fail to so qualify under Section 162(m)(4)(C), or any successor provisions thereto, No
adjustment or action described in this Section 11.3 or in any other provision of the Plan shall be authorized to the
extent that such adjustment or action would cause the Plan to violate Section 422(b)(1) of the Codc Furthermore, no
such adjustment or action shali be authorized to the extent such adjustment or action would result in short-swing
profits lizbility under Section 16 or violate the exemptive conditions of Rule 16b-3 unless the Administrator
determines that the Award is not to comply with such exemptive conditions. The number of shares of Common
Stock subject to any Award shall always be rounded down to the next whole number. }

{e) The existence of the Plan, the Award Agreemem and the ‘Awards granted hereunder shall not affect or
restrict in any way the right or power of the Company or the stockholders of the Company to ‘make or authorize any
adjustment, recapitalization, reorgamzauon or other change in the Company's capital snruclurc or its business, any
merger or consolidation of the Company. any issue of stock or of options, warrants or rights to purchase stock or of
bonds, debentures, preferred or prior preference stocks whose righls are superior (o or affect!the Commaen Stock or
the rights thereof or which are convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock, or the dissolution or liquidation
of the company, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of its assets or business, or any ‘other corporate act or
proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.

!

(f) No action shall be taken under this Section 11.3 which shall cause an Award llo fail to comply- with
Section 409A of the Code or the Tréasury Regulations théreunder, to the extent appllcable to such Award.

11.4.  Approval of Plan by Siockholders. The Plan will be submitted for the approval of the Company’s
stockholders within twelve (12) months after the date of the'Board's initial adoption of the P]an No Awards may be
granted or awarded prior to such stockholder approval. In-addition, if theiBoard determines thal Awards other than
Options or Stock Appreciation Rights which may be granted to Covered Employees should conunue tobe eligible to
qualify as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m)(4)(C) of the Code, the Performance Criteria
must be disclosed to and approved by the Company’s stockholders no later than the first stockholdcr meeting that
occurs in the fifth year following the year in which the Company s stockholders prcwously approved the Plan,

11.5. Tax Mrhholdmg_ The Company or any Subsidiary shall have the authority and the right to deduct or
withhold, or require a Holder to remit to the Company, an amount sufficient to satisfy federal state, local and
foreign taxes (including the Holder’s FICA obligation) required by law 1o be withheld wuhI respect (o any taxable
event concerning a Holder arising as a result of this Plan. The Administrator may in its discretion and in satisfaction
of the foregoing requirement allow a Holder to elect to have the Company withhold shares of-Common Stock
otherwise issuable under an Award (or allow the return of shares of Common Stock) havu'lg a Fair Market Value
equat to the sums required to be withheld. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, ILhc number of shares of
Common Stock which may bewithheld with respect to the issuance, vesting, exercise or payment of any Award (or
which may be repurchased from the Holder-of such Award within six months (or such other period as may be
determined by the Administrator) after such shares of Common Stock were acquired by the Holder from the
Company) in order to satisfy the Holder's federal, state, local and foreign income and payroll tax liabilities with
respect 1o the issuance, vesting, exercise or payment of the Award shall be limited to the number of shares which
have a Fair Market Value on the daté of withholding or repurchase equal to the aggregate arr:noum of such liabilities
based on the minimum stautory withholding rates for fedefal, state, local and foreign income tax and payroll tax

purposes that are applicable to such supplemental taxable income.”

11.6.  Prohibition on Repricing.  Subject to Section 11.3, the Administrator shall not, without the approval
of the stockholders of the Company, authorize the amendment of any ouistanding Award to reduce its price per
share. Furthermore, no Award shall be cariceled and replaced with the grant of an Award havmg a lesser price per
share without the further approval of stockholders of the Company. Subject to Section 11.2, lthe Administrator shall
have the authority, without the approval of the stockholders of the Coimpany, to amend an“y outstanding award to
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ARTICLE X.
ADMINISTRATION l

10.1. " Commintee. The Committee shall consist solely of two or more Non-Employee Directors appointed
by and holding office at the pleasure of the Board, each of whom is intended to (a) be independent under rules
praomulgated by a securities exchange on which the Company’s Common Stock is listed and (b) qualify as both a

“non-employee director” as defined by Rule 16b-3 and an “outside director” for purposes of Section 162(m) of the
Code. Appointment of Committee members shall be effective upon acceptance of appointment. Commitiee
mzmbers may resign at any time by delivering written notice to the Board. Vacancies in the Committee may
be filled by the Board.

10.2. Duties and Powers of Committee. It shall be the duty of the Committee to c"onducl the general
ac¢ministration of the Plan in accordance with its provisions. The Committee shall have the power to interpret the
Plan and the Award Agreements, and to adopt such rules for the administration, interpretation and application of the
Plan as are consistent therewith, 1o interprel, amend or revoke any such rules, and to amend any Award Agreement
provided that the rights or abligations of the Holder of the Award that is the subject of any such Award Agreement
are not affected adversely. Any such grant or award under the Plan need not be the same with msbecl to each Holder.
Any such interpretations and rules with respect to Incentive Stock Options shall be consistent with the provisions of
Section 422 of the Code. In its discretion, the Board may at any time and from time to time cxcrclse any and all
rizhts and duties of the Committee under the Plan except with respect o matters which under Rule 16b-3 or
Srction 162(m) of the Code, or any regulations or rules issued thereunder, are required to bF determined in the
discretion of the Committee. The Board or the Commiltee may in its discretion, and consistent with applicable law,
delegate to one or more officers of the Company afl or part of the Committee’s authority and duues with respect o
Awards to be granted to individuals who are (i) not subject 1o the reporting requirements ot Section 16 of the
Exchange Act, and (ii) not Covered Employees.

103.  Majority Rule; Unanimous Written Consent.  The Committee shalt act by a majority of its members in
altendance at a meeting at which a quorum is present or by a memorandum or other writien lmlrumcnt signed by all
members of the Committee.

10.4. Compensation. Professional Assistance: Good Faith Actions. Members of the Committee shall
receive such compensation, if any, for their services as members as may be determined by the Board. All expenses
and liabilities which members of the Committee incur in connection with the adminismtionl of the Plan shall be
borne by the Company. The Committee may, with the approval of the Board, employ attorneys, consultants,
accountants, appraisers, brokers or other persons. The Committee, the Company and the Company’s officers and
Diirectors shall be entitled to rely upon the advice, opinions or valuations of any such persons. AII actions taken and
all interpretations and determinations made by the Commiltee or the Board in good faith shall| 'be fina! and binding
upon all Holders, the Company and all other interested persons. No members of the Commmee or Board shall be
personally liable for any action, determination or interpretation made in good faith with rcspcct to the Plan or
fiwards, and all members of the Committee and the Board shall be fully protecied by the Company in respect of any
such action, determination or mtcrprclauon.

ARTICLE XI
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

1L1.  Transferability of Awards.

(a) Except as otherwise provided in Section 11.1(b):

(i) No Award under the Plan may be sold. pledged, assigned or transferred in any manner other than by
will ar the laws of descent and distribution or, subject to the consent of the Administrator, pursuant to a DRO,
unless and until such Award has been exercised, or the shares underlying such Award have been issued, and all
restrictions applicabte to such shares have lapsed;
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{(it) No Award or interest or right therein shall be hable for the debts, contracts Ié)r engagements of the
Holder or his successors in interest or shall be subject w disposition by transfer, alienation, anticipation,
pledge, hypothecation, encumbrance, assignment or any other means whether such disp’osilion be voluntary or
involuntary or by operation of law by judgment, levy, attachment, garishment or any othcr legal or equitable
preceedings (including bankruptcy). and any attempted disposition thereof shall be ntull and void and of no
effect, except to the extent that such disposition is permitted by the preceding sentence; and

(iit) During the lifetime of the Holder, only the Holder may exercise-an Option or other Award (or any
portion thereof) granted to him under the Plan, unless it has been disposed of pursuant to a DRO; after the death
of the Holder, any exercisable portion of an Option or other Award may, prior to the time when such portion
becomes unexercisable under the Plan or the applicable Award Agreement, be exercised by his personal
representative or by any person empowered to do so under the deceased Holder’s will or under the then
applicable laws of descent and distribution. i‘

(b} Notwithstanding Section 11.1(a), the Administrator, in its discretion, may detetmir}e to permit a Holder to
transfer a Non-Qualified Stock Option to any one or more Permitied Transferees (as defined below), subject to the
following terms and conditions: (i) a Non-Qualificd Stock Option transferred to a Permitted Transferee shall not be
assignable or transferable by the Permitted Transferee cther than by will or the laws of dcsccm and distribution;
{ii) any Non-Qualified Stock Option which is iransferred to a Permitied Transferee shall commue 10 be subject to all
the terms and conditions of the Non-Qualified Stock Option as applicable to the originalj Holder (other than the
ability to further transfer the Non-Qualified Stock Option); and (iii} the Holder and the Pel;milted Transferee shall
execute any and all documents requested by the Administrator, including, without limitation documenis to
(A) confirm the status of the transferee as a Permitted Transferee, (B) satisfy any rcqmremems for an exemption
for the wransfer under applicable federal, state and loreign securities laws and (C) evidence Ihe transfer. For purposes
of this Section 11.1(b), “Permined Transferee” shall mean, with respect to a Holdeli‘ any child, stepchild,
grandchild, parent, stepparcnt, grandparent, spouse, former spouse, sibling, niece, rllephcw mother-in-law,
father-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, or sister-in-law, including adoplive relationships, any
person sharing the Holder’s household (other than a tenant or employee), a trust in which these persons (or the
Holder) control the management of assets, and any other entity in which these persons (o{' the Holder) own more
than fifty percent of the voting interests, or any other transferee specifically approved by!lhe Administrator after
taking into account any federal, state, local and foreign tax and securities laws applicable to transferable Non-
Qualifted Stock Options.

11.2. Amendment. Suspension or Termination of the Plan. Except as otherwise provided in this Sec-
tion 11,2, the Plan may be wholly or partiatly amended or otherwise modified, suspended q‘r terminated at any time
or from time to time by the Board, or the Compensation Committee of the Board. However, without approval of the
Company's stockholders given within twelve (12) months before or after the action by the Admnmslmlor no action
of the Administralor may, except as provided in Scclion 11.3, (i) increase the limits 1mposed in Section 2.1 on the
maximum number of shares which may be issued under the Plan, (ii) decrease the exercise price of any outstanding
Option or Stock Appreciation Right granted under the Plan, or (tii) result in a material change in eligibility
requirements. Except as provided in Section 11.12, no amendment, suspension or termination of the Plan shall,

without the consent of the Holder, alter or impair any rights or obllgauons under any Award theretofore granted or
awarded, unless the Award itsclf otherwise expressly so provides. No Awards may be granted or awarded during any
period of suspension or after termination of the Plan, and in no event may any Award be gra'nlcd under the Plan after

the first to occur of the following events: ’

|
{a) The expiration of ten {10) years from the date the Plan is adopted by the Board; or

(b) The expiration of ten (10} years from the date the Plan is first approved by the Company’s
stockholders. |

11.3.  Changes in Common Stock or Asseis of the Company. Acquisition or L:qwdanmz of the Company and
Other Corporate Events. I

(a) Subject to Section 11.3(d), in the event of any dividend or other distribution (whether in the form of cash,
Common Stock, other securitics or other property), recapitalization, reclassification, stock split, reverse stock split,
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recrganization, merger, consolidation, split-up, spin-off, combination, repurchase, liquidation, |dissolution, or sale,
transfer, exchange or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or cxchange of
Ccmmon Stock or other securities of the Company, issuance of warrants or other rights to purchase Common Stock
or other securities of the Company, or other similar corporate transaction or event that affects lhe Common Stock,

then the Administrator shall equitably adjust any or all of the following in order to prevent dilution or enlargement

of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be made available under the Plan or with respect to an Award:

(i) The number and kind of shares of Common Stock (or other securities or prope‘ny) with respect to
which Awards nay be granted or awarded (including, without limitation, adjustments of the limitations in
Section 2.1 on the maximum number and kind of shares which may be issued under the Plan, adjustments of
the Award Limit, and adjustments of the manner in which shares subject to Full Value Awards will be counted):

(ii} The number and kind of shares of Common Stock (or other securities or property) subject to
outstanding Awards; and

(iii) The gramt or exercise price with respecl to any Award.

(b} Subject 1o Section 11.3(d), in the event of any transaction or event described in SCFlion 11.3(a) or any
urusual or nonrecurring transactions or events affecting the Company, any affiliate of the Company, or the financial
statements of the Company or any affiliate, or of changes in applicable laws, regulations or accounting principles,
the Administrator, in its discretion, and on such terms and conditions as it deems appropriate, either by the terms of
thz Award or by action taken prior to the occurrence of such transaction or event and either au!tomatically Or UPON
th: Holder's request, is hereby auhorized to take any one or more of the following acllions whenever the
Administrator determines that such action is appropriate in order 1o prevent dilution or enlargement of the benefits
or potential benefits intended to be made available under the Plan or with respect to any Award under the Plan, to
fasilitate such wransactions or events or to give effect to such changes in laws, regulations or principles:

(i) To provide for the purchase of any such Award for an amount of cash equal to lhe amount that could
have been attained upon the exercise of such Award or realization of the Holder’s rights had such Award been
currently exercisable or payable or fully vested, to authorize a cash payment to the Holder pf an Optionor SAR
in an amount equal to the amount that could have been attained upon the exercise of the Option or SAR, or to
cancel for no consideration an Option that upon exercise would not yield a positive be?eﬁt for the Holder;

(i) To provide for the replacement of such Award with other nights or propclny selected by the
Administrator in its discretion having an aggregate value not exceeding the amount that could have been
aitained upon the exercise of such Award or realization of the Holder's rights had such Awurd been currently
exercisable or payable or fully vested;

(iii) To provide that the Award cannot vest, be exercised or become payable after such event;

(iv) To provide that such Award shall be exercisable as to all shares covered thereby, notwithstanding
anything to the contrary in Section 5.3 or the provisions of such Award;

1
(v} To provide that such Award be assumed by the successor or survivor corporanon or a parent or
subsidiary thereof, or shall be substituted for by similar options, rights or awards covelnng the stock of the
successor or survivor corporation, or a parent or subsidiary thereof, with appropriate adjustments as to the

number and kind of shares and prices;

{vi) To make adjustments in the number and type of shares of Common Stock ((I‘)r other securities or
property) subject to outstanding Awards, and/or in the terms and conditions of (including the grant, exercise or
purchase price), and the criteria included in, outstanding options, rights and awards and options, rights and
awards which may be granted in the future; and i

(vii) To provide that, for a specified period of time prior 10 such event, the rcsmcuons imposed under an
Award Agreemeni upon some or all shares of Restricied Stock, Resiricted Stock Units ar Other Stock-Based
Awards may be terminated, and, in the case of Restricted Stock, some or all shares of s'uch Restricted Stock
may cease to be subject to forfeiture under Section 7.4 after such event.
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{c) Subject to Sections 11.3(d) and 3.2, the Administrator may, in its discre:ion' include such further

provisions and limitations in any Award, agreement or ceruﬁcare as it may deem equitable and in the best
interests of the Company.

(d) With respect to Awards which are granted to Covered Employees and are intended to qualify as
performance-based compensation under Section 162(m)(4)(C), no adjustment or actlon described in this
Section 11.3 or in any other provision of the Plan shall be authorized to the extent that such adjustment or action
would cause such Award to fail to so qualify under Section 162(m}{d}C), or any sut;:ccssorI provisions thereto. No
adjustment or action described in this Sectton 11.3 or in any other provision of the Plan shall be authorized to the
exient that such adjustment or action would cause the Plan to violate Section 422(b)(1) of lhc Code. Furthermore, no
such adjustment or action shall be authorized to the extent such adjustment or action wou!d result in short-swing
profits liability under Section 16 or violate the exemptive conditions of Rule 16b-3 unlcss the Administrator
determines that the Award is not to comply with such exemptive conditions. The number of shares of Common

Stock subject to any Award shall always be rounded down to the next whole number.

(e) The existence of the Plan, the Award Agreement and the Awards granted hereunder shall not affect or
restrict in any way the right or power of the Company or the stockholders of the Company té make or authorize any
adjustment, recapitalization, recrganization or other change in the Company’s capital structure of its business, any
merger or consolidation of the Company, any issue of stock or of options, warrants or nghts,: to purchase stock or of
bonds, debentures, preferved or prior preference stocks whose rights are superior to or affect the Commen Stock or
the rights thereof or which are conventible into or exchangeable for Common Stock, or the dnsolunon or liquidation
of the company, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of its assets or business, or any other corporate act or

proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.

{f) No action shall be taken under this Section 11.3 which shall cause an Award lo fail to comply with
Section 409A of the Code or the Treasury Regulations thereunder, to the extent appl:cable to such Award,

11.4.  Approval of Plan by Stockholders. The Plan will be submitted for the apprpval of the Company's
stockholders within twelve (12) months after the date of the Board's initial adoption of the Plan. No Awards may be
granted or awarded prior to such stockholder approval. In addition, if the Board dctenmnes that Awards other than
Options or Stock Appreciation Rights which may be granted to Covered Employees should continue to be eligible to
qualify as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m)(4){(C) of the Code, lhc Performance Criteria
must be disclosed to and approved by the Company’s stockholders no later than the first stockholder meeting that
occurs in the fifth year following the year in which the Company’s stockholders prev:ously approved the Plan.

11.5. Tax W'rhhalding The Company or any Subsidiary shall have the authority and the right to deduct or
withhold, or require a Holder to remit to the Company, an amount sufficient to satisfy fcdcml state, local and
foreign taxes (including the Holder’s FICA obligation) required by law to be withheld wnh respect 1o any taxable
event concerning a Holder anising as a result of this Plan. The Administrator may tn its dlscreuon and in satisfaction
of the foregoing requirement allow a Holder to elect to have the Company withhold shares of 'Common Stock
otherwise issuable under an Award (or allow the return of shares of Common Stock) havmg a Fair Market Value
equal 1o the sums required to be withheld. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan, 'the number of shares of
Common Stock which may be withheld with respect to the issuance, vesting, exercise or paymem of any Award (or
which may be repurchased from the Holder of such Award within six months (or such OIher period as may be
determined by the Administrator) after such shares of Common Stock were acquired by the Holder from the
Company) in order 1o satisfy the Holder's federal, state, local and foreign income and payroll tax liabilities with
respect to the issuance, vesting, exercise or payment of the Award shall be limited to the number of shares which
have a Fair Market Value on the date of withholding or repurchase equal to the aggregate amount of such liabilities
based on the minimum statutory withholding rates for federal, state, local and foreign income tax and payroll tax
purposes that are applicable to such supplemental taxable income.

11.6. Prohibition on Repricing. Subject to Section 11.3, the Administrator shall n'ol without the approval
of the stockholders of the Company, authorize the amendment of any outstanding Award to reduce ils price per
share. Furthermore, no Award shall be canceled and replaced with the grant of an Award havmg a lesser price per
share without the further approval of stockholders of the Company. Subject 10 Section 1 1. 2 the Administrator shall
have the authority, without the approval of the stockholders of the Company, to amend any outstanding award to
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increase the price per share or 10 cancel and replace an Award with the grant of an Award having a price per share
th:1 is greater than or equal to the price per share of the original Award. !

117, Forfeiture_Provisions. Pursuant to its general authority to determine the 1cr}ns and conditions
applicable to Awards under the Plan, the Administrator shall have the right to provide, in the terms of Awards
mude under the Plan, or 1o require a Holder to agree by separate written instrument, that: (2)(i) any proceeds. gains
or other economic benefit actually or constructively received by the Holder upon any reccnpt or exercise of the
Award, or upon the receipt or resale of any Common Stock underlying the Award, must be paid lo the Company, and
(i) the Award shal) terminate and any unexercised portion of the Award (whether or not vested) sha]l be forfeited, if
(b)(i) a Termination of Employment or Termination of Directorship occurs prior 10 a spemﬁed date, or within a
spacificd time period following receipt or exercise of the Award, or (ii) the Holder at any time, or during a specified
tirae period, engages in any activity in competition with the Company, or which is inimical, contrary or harmful to
the interests of the Company, as further defined by the Administrator or (iii) the Holder incurs a Termination of
Einployment or Termination of Directorship for “cause™ (as such term is defined in l.hflb discretion of the
Administrator, or as set forth in a written agreement relating to such Award between the Company and the Holder).

11.8. Effect of Plan upon Other Compensation Plans. The adoption of the Plan shall not affect any other
compensation or incentive plans in effect for the Company or any Subsidiary, Nothing in the Plan shall be construed
to limit the right of the Company or any Subsidiary: (a) to establish any other forms of incemi\;’es or compensation
for Employees, Directors or Consultants of the Company or any Subsidiary, or (b) to grant or assume options or
other rights or awards otherwise than under the Plan in connection with any proper corporme purpose including
without limitation, the grant or assumption of options in connection with the acquisition by puréhase lease, merger,
censolidation or otherwise, of the business, stock or assets of any corporation, partnership, limited liability

company, h firm or association.

11.9. Compliance with Laws. The Pian, the granting and vesting of Awards under the Plan and the issuance
ard delivery of shares of Common Stock and the payment of money under the Flan or undc{ Awards granted or
awarded hereunder are subject to compliance with all applicable federal, state, local and foreign laws, rules and
regulations (including but not limited to federal, state and foreign securities law and margin requfremcms) and to such
approvals by any listing, regulatory or governmental authority as may, in the opinion of counsel for the Company, be
necessary or advisable in connection therewith. Any securities delivered under the Plan shall be subject to such
restrictions, and the person acquiring such securities shall, if requested by the Company, provide'such assurances and
representations to the Company as the Company may deem necessary or desirable to assure ‘kcompli:mce with all
applicable legal requirements. To the extent permitted by applicable law, the Plan and Awards granted or awarded

i .
hereunder shall be deemed amended to the extent necessary to conform to such laws, rules and regulations.

11.10. Titles. Titles are provided herein for convenience only and are not to serve as a basis for inter-
pretation or construction of the Plan. 1

1111, Governing Law. The Plan and any agreements hereunder shall be admlmstered interpreted and
enforced under the internal laws of the State of Delaware without regard 1o conflicts of laws thereof.

11.12.  Section 409A. To the extent that the Administrator determines that any Award granted under the
Plan is subject to Scction 409A of the Code, the Award Agreement evidencing such Award shall incorporate the
terms and conditions required by Section 409A of the Code. To the exient applicable, the Plan and Award
Agreements shall be interpreted in accordance with Section 409A of the Code and Depanmcnl of Treasury
r:gulations and other interpretive guidance issued thereunder, including without limitation any such regulations or
other guidance that may be issued afier the Effective Daie. Notwithstanding any prov:smn of the Plan to the
contrary, in the event that following the Effective Date the Administrator determines that any Award may be subject
to Section 409A of the Code and related Department of Treasury guidance (including such Departmenl of Treasury
guidance as may be issued after the Effective Date), the Administrator may adopt such amendr:nems to the Pian and
the applicable Award Agreement or adopt other policies and procedures (including amendments, policies and
procedures with retroactive effect), or take any other actions, that the Administrator detenmnes are necessary or
appropriate to (a) exempt the Award from Section 409A of the Code and/or preserve the intended tax treatment of
the benefits provided with respect to the Award, or (b) comply with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code
and related Department of Treasury guidance.
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